Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Planning and Transportation Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 21 SEPTEMBER 2021
Time: 10.30 am
Venue: INFORMAL VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY)
Members: Deputy Alastair Moss (Chair) Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark
Oliver Sells QC (Deputy Chairman)  Shravan Joshi
Randall Anderson Alderman Alastair King
Douglas Barrow Alderwoman Susan Langley
Peter Bennett Oliver Lodge
Mark Bostock Natasha Maria Cabrera Lloyd-Owen
Deputy Keith Bottomley Alderman Bronek Masojada
Thomas Clementi Andrew Mayer
Deputy Peter Dunphy Deputy Brian Mooney (Chief Commoner)
John Edwards Deputy Barbara Newman
Sophie Anne Fernandes Graham Packham
John Fletcher Susan Pearson
Marianne Fredericks Judith Pleasance
Tracey Graham Deputy Henry Pollard
Graeme Harrower James de Sausmarez
Sheriff Christopher Hayward William Upton QC
Christopher Hill Alderman Sir David Wootton

Deputy Tom Hoffman

Enquiries: Gemma Stokley
gemma.stokley@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link:
https://lyoutu.be/SMpRHsbbwnU
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location. Any views
reached by the Committee today will have to be considered by Assistant Town Clerk after the meeting in
accordance with the Court of Common Council’'s Covid Approval Procedure who will make a formal decision
having considered all relevant matters. This process reflects the current position in respect of the holding of
formal Local Authority meetings and the Court of Common Council’s decision of 15th April 2021 to continue
with virtual meetings and take formal decisions through a delegation to the Town Clerk and other officers
nominated by him after the informal meeting has taken place and the will of the Committee is known in open
session. Details of all decisions taken under the Covid Approval Procedure will be available on line via the
City Corporation’s webpages.
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of the public meeting
for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not constitute the formal minutes of
the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings
may be edited, at the discretion of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



https://youtu.be/5MpRHsbbwnU

4a.

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda
APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and summary of the informal meeting held on 7
September 2021.

For Decision
(TO FOLLOW)

SNOW HILL POLICE STATION, 5 SNOW HILL LONDON EC1A 2DP
Report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director.

For Decision
(Pages 5 - 206)

SNOW HILL POLICE STATION, 5 SNOW HILL LONDON EC1A 2DP - LISTED
BUILDING CONSENT
Report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director.

For Decision
(Pages 207 - 220)

CITY FUND HIGHWAY DECLARATION: MILLENNIUM BRIDGE HOUSE EC4
Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision
(Pages 221 - 226)

CONGESTION CHARGE CONSULTATION
Report of the Executive Director, Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 227 - 260)

BUSINESS PLAN 21/22 - Q1
Report of the Executive Director, Environment.

For Information
(Pages 261 - 270)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

OUTSTANDING ACTIONS
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 271 - 276)

DELEGATED DECISIONS OF THE CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER AND
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
Report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director.

For Information
(Pages 277 - 284)

VALID PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT

ENVIRONMENT
Report of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director.

For Decision
(Pages 285 - 288)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE
ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION — That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of the Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act.

For Decision

Part 2 - Non-public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the informal meeting held on 7 September 2021.

For Decision
(TO FOLLOW)

RESOLUTION OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Resolution from the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 16 July 2021.

For Information
(Pages 289 - 290)



16.

17.

18.

SUICIDE PREVENTION IN THE CITY OF LONDON
Report of the Deputy Town Clerk and Chief Executive.

For Decision
(Pages 291 - 308)

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



Agenda Item 4

Committee: Date:
Planning and Transportation 21 September 2021
Subject: Public

Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP

External and internal alterations together with demolition
and new build and associated change of use of existing
building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with
ancillary uses (Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of
facade to Snow Hill and the retained facade to Cock Lane;
(i) partial demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a
building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new plant at roof
level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision
of cycle storage; (v) highway works; (vi) greening and other
ancillary works.

Ward: Farringdon Without For Decision

Registered No: 20/00932/FULMAJ Registered on:
20 November 2020

Conservation Area: Smithfield Listed Building:
Grade |l
Summary
1. The proposed development includes the partial retention and partial

demolition of the existing Grade Il listed building at 5 Snow Hill, formerly Snow
Hill Police Station (Use Class Sui Generis), and to convert and change the use
of the building into a hotel (Use Class C1) with ancillary uses. This will include
a cultural offer on ground and first floor, including an atrium space and
restaurant, all open to the public seven days a week.

2. This includes an  application for planning  permission
(20/00932/FULMAJ) and an application for Listed Building Consent
(20/000933/LBC).

3. The proposals will retain the building facing Snow Hill (Block 'A") however
would remove the existing mansard roof at fifth floor level and adapt the interior

Page 5



and rear elevations of this Block. It is proposed to demolish the building facing
Cock Lane (Block 'B'") with the retention of the facade directly facing Cock Lane,
part of an interior staircase and the ‘reading room' on the first floor level. In
addition, the one storey link building between the two blocks would be
demolished. The existing sub-basement would be retained with minor
extensions.

4. The proposals include the extension of Block 'A' with a replacement
mansard to provide ground floor plus six storeys. Block 'B' would be extended
to provide ground plus seven storeys. The area which previously included a link
building between the Blocks would be enclosed and covered to create a six
storey internal atrium space. In addition, the Block 'B' building would be
extended outwards towards the buildings to the east and to the south.

5. The proposal would provide 6,369 sgm of hotel floorspace in the Culture
Mile, delivering 219 bedrooms, and would enable public access to a listed
building with ancillary uses including exhibition space. The hotel would be
operated as a 'hub by Premier Inn’ which the Applicant states will offer a high
quality, high-tech, compact, and affordable hotel product.

6. The Proposed Development would enable the use of a vacant building
to ensure the long-term conservation of this heritage asset, and would deliver
heritage-led and high-quality visitor accommodation in the Culture Mile, in close
proximity to the new Museum of London Site.

7. Seven objections have been received from third parties relating to a
range of issues which include, but not exclusively, concerns regarding: height
and massing; daylight and sunlight impact; privacy and overlooking; disruption
of the new use; the construction impact including noise; and the proposed
development potentially prejudicing future redevelopment of the adjoining site.

8. The servicing is proposed on-street on Snow Hill however there will be
no more than two trips per day and the applicant would consolidate servicing
with a hotel nearby. The servicing may fall inside peak hours however in this
case, minimal peak time servicing is acceptable because there will be no
additional trips on the network as a result of the proposed development, the
vehicles are already on the network servicing another nearby hotel. In addition,
the daily trips of two is considered very low. Therefore, the servicing
arrangements are considered acceptable.

9. Provision of long stay and short stay cycle parking is proposed in line
with policy requirements. The Applicant would provide additional short stay

Page 6



spaces, proposed on Snow Hill, in excess of policy requirements.

10. The proposal comprises refurbishment and reuse of a significant part of
the existing building and will deliver sustainability benefits including adhering to
Circular Economy Principles, delivering BREEAM ‘Excellent’, and the
installation of air source heat pumps, photovoltaic panels, a biodiverse green
roof, and SuDs measures through a blue roof. In addition, the proposal would
provide a green wall facing Cock Lane.

11. The proposal includes inclusive design with 10% of bedrooms as
wheelchair accessible, meeting policy requirements.

12.  The proposals would enable the continued use of the building and would
in parts better reveal the significance of the building, offering a number of heritage
benefits by preserving, refurbishing, and enabling public access including to
areas of significance.

13. However, the proposals would result in a level of less than substantial
harm to 5 Snow Hill due to the extent of demolition and loss of historic fabric
and to some areas of moderate interest. This harm is considered be at the lower
end of less than substantial and is therefore considered to be minimal.
Therefore, overall the proposals would comply with Local Plan Policies CS12,
DM 12.1, DM 12.2 and DM 12.3(1), draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and HE1,
and London Plan Policy HC1 (A, B, D and E) however elements of the proposals
would be contrary to DM 12.3 (2), emerging policy HE1 (1) and London Plan
Policy HC1 (C).

14. Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states "where a development proposal will
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage
asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal
including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use". Therefore an
evaluation of the public benefits and the weight afforded to them has been
undertaken. It is considered the proposals would result in public benefits, which
would outweigh the harm identified.

15.  Historic England and the Amenity Societies were consulted and raised
no objections.

16. Itis considered that the proposal would preserve the special architectural
and historic interest and heritage significance and setting of: No 4 Snow Hill
(grade Il); Church of St Sepulchre with Newgate (grade |) and Old Bailey (grade
[I*), would not harm the character and appearance or setting of the Smithfield
Conservation Area and the nearby Newgate Street Conservation Area, and it

Page 7



would preserve LVMF views and the setting of St Paul’s Cathedral.

17. There are no unacceptable adverse built development or operational
impacts anticipated for the proposed development and use, including
cumulative impacts, and the recommendation is subject to conditions to
mitigate impacts to surrounding uses, which include the requirement to provide
an operational management plan and conditions securing privacy screens and
obscured glazing, and relevant environmental health conditions.

18. Negative impacts during construction would be controlled as far as
possible by the implementation of robust deconstruction and construction
logistics plans and Scheme of Protective Works and good site practices
embodied therein; it is recognised that there are inevitable, albeit temporary
consequences of development in a tight-knit urban environment. Post
construction, compliance with planning conditions and S106 obligations would
minimise any adverse impacts.

19.  Whilst there are some adverse impacts to neighbouring occupiers in
regards to daylight and sunlight, some of the affected properties already
experience low levels of existing daylight or sunlight and the presence of
existing overhangs, therefore a modest increase in height is likely to have an
impact. Taking account of the scale of the impacts and that the Local Plan and
BRE Guidelines acknowledges that ideal daylight and sunlight conditions may
not be practicable in densely developed City locations, it is considered that
living standards would be acceptable and relevant daylight and sunlight
policies, including Local Plan CS10 and Policy DM10.7, and BRE Guidelines
would not be breached.

20. The proposal would largely meet the requirements of Local Plan Policy
DM11.3 (hotels), however due to impacts to daylight and sunlight, the proposal
would be contrary to an element of Local Plan Policy DM11.3 (4) which states
that hotels will only be permitted where these do not result in an adverse
impacts on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. Therefore, there is some
adverse impact but this is not considered to be unacceptable. Whilst there is
conflict with Local Plan Policy DM11.3, given the counteracting benefits which
promote other policies, this is not considered to justify refusal. This also applies
for draft City Plan Policy CV3 (2).

21. Therefore, it is considered that the proposals would not prejudice the
primary business function of the City, would contribute to the balance and mix
of uses in the immediate locality, would ensure the continuing beneficial use of
the historic building, and would not result in unacceptable adverse impacts on

Page 8



the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, including cumulative impacts.

22.  Virtually no major development proposal is in complete compliance with
all policies and in arriving at a decision it is necessary to assess all the policies
and proposals in the Local Plan and to come to a view as to whether in the light
of the whole plan the proposal does or does not accord with it.

23. Inthis case, the proposal complies with the majority of development plan
polices but is not compliant with elements of the policies regarding harm to
listed buildings and for hotels. National Planning Practice Guidance advises
that conflicts between development plan policies adopted at the same time
must be considered in the light of all material considerations including local
priorities and needs, as guided by the NPPF. Officers consider that overall, the
proposal accords with the development plan as a whole.

24. When taking all matters into consideration, subject to the
recommendations of this report it is recommended that planning permission be
granted.

25.  For the listed building consent, the proposed change of use to hotel is
considered appropriate as an adaptation and would enable a continued viable
use of the site securing the long term conservation of the building. However it
is acknowledged that the proposals do not preserve the listed building including
some features of historic interest, and special regard has been had to the
desirability of preservation, but in the context of the proposals and the
evaluation in this report it is not considered that this should lead to refusal of
the application for listed building consent.

26.  Overall, the proposal would comply with Local Plan Policies CS12, DM
12.1 and DM 12.3 (1), draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and HE1 (2, 3, 4 and
5), and London Plan Policy HC1 (A, B, D and E). However in delivering this new
use the proposal would result in some less than substantial harm, at the lower
end of the spectrum, failing to preserve the special architectural and historic
interest and heritage significance of the listed building. This harm stems from
the loss and alteration of historic fabric of some areas of moderate interest
including: the cells; staircase and minor alterations to the historic floor plan and
this would erode the connection between the site and its former use as a police
station.

27. The degree of harm is considered to be minimal. Therefore elements of
the proposals would be contrary to DM 12.3 (2), emerging policy HE1 (1) and
London Plan Policy HC1 (C).

Page 9



28.  When taking all matters into consideration, subject to the
recommendations of this report, it is recommended that listed building consent
be granted

Page 10



Recommendation

1. That planning permission be granted for the above proposal in
accordance with the details set out in the attached schedule subject to:

(@) Planning obligations and other agreements being entered into under
Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 278
of the Highways Act 1980 in respect of those matters set out in the
report, the decision notice not be issued until the Section 106
obligations have been executed.

2. That your Officers be instructed to negotiate and execute obligations in
respect of those matters set out in "Planning Obligations" under Section 106
and any necessary agreements under Section 278 of the Highway Act 1980.

3. That the accompanying application for listed building consent is granted
(ref. 20/00933/LBC).

Page 11



Site Location Plan

I\

g
H

30110 300

General Market

EARALEY

qonnvd

City Thameslink

68

STReer

<
£
E

3
2

HOSIER LANE

Queen M
ity of

West Sphithfield

Red Lion Buildings

o [~

16.1m

kkkkkk

Fieet Place
House

16.4m
COURT

(Station)

oS, Tuks

T
NP W so8ld wald

Briannia House

A

Cour

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 OS 100023243

ADDRESS:

5 Snow Hill
EC1A 2PD

SITE LOCATION

LISTED BUILDINGS

CONSERVATION AREA BOUNDARY

CITY OF LONDON BOUNDARY

CASE No.
20/00932/FULMAJ & 20/00933/LBC

ik %4){5 |
§§?ﬁ3§?

cTy
LONDON

Page 12

DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT



1. View from Snow Hill
2. View of the rear of the Snow Hill block (Block ‘A’) and view of the link building between the blocks.

e ,,“g-_':-_é.
e

View from Snow Hill



1. View facing west down Cock Lane

2. View facing west down Cock Lane
3. View of the Cock Lane Block rear wall that faces no. 6 Snow Hill
4. View facing east down Cock Lane

Page 14



1. View of the elevation directly facing Cock Lane (Block ‘B’)
2. View of the west elevation for Block ‘B’

3. View of the south elevation for Block ‘B’

4. View looking north towards Block B from Snow Hill Court

Page 15



Main Report
The Site

. The Site is located to the west of the City of London, in the Farringdon
Without ward, and comprises the former Police Station at 5 Snow Hill.
The Site is bounded by Snow Hill to the west and Cock Lane to the
north.

. The Site area includes the 5 Snow Hill building, an alley that runs by
Snow Hill Court and includes a portion of highway comprised of the
pavement immediately outside 5 Snow Hill, and an area of existing
police car parking on Snow Hill. The total site area is 1,312 sqm.

. The building is Grade Il listed and was designed by Sydney Perks, City
Surveyor, and built in 1926 and incorporates Arts and Crafts and
Moderne elements. The Site is within the Smithfield Conservation Area.

. The existing building comprises two main blocks which extend between
Snow Hill and Cock Lane: (i) a block facing Snow Hill (‘Block A’) at 5

Snow Hill, and (ii) a block facing Cock Lane (‘Block B’). The two blocks
are linked at basement and at ground floor level through a link building.

. The existing building layout at the Site is as follows:

e ‘Block A’, former main entrance reception and accommodation
facing Snow Hill, with neighbouring adjoining buildings on either
side (no.4 and no.6 Snow Hill). The existing building comprises
basement, ground plus five upper storeys. There is space
between Block A and Block B from the first floor and above.

e ‘Block B’, formerly a police administration block, facing Cock
Lane and comprises basement, ground plus five upper storeys.
The Block includes an internal lightwell and there is space
between the boundary line and the nearest buildings at no. 4
Snow Hill, no. 12 Cock Lane and Snow Hill Court. This Block is
currently built up to the boundary line of no. 6 Snow Hill with a
blank flank wall.

. The existing primary pedestrian access is from Snow Hill on the
principal elevation.

. There is no relevant recent planning history at the Site, with recent

applications comprising of proposed external plant and minor internal
works.

Page 16



The Surrounding Area

8. The Site is adjacent to the Newgate Street Conservation Area.

9. The Site is within the St Paul's Heights Policy Area, within London View
Management Framework Landmark Viewing Corridors from Kenwood
(3A.1) and Parliament Hill (2A.1), Wider Setting Consultation Area from
Primrose Hill (4A.1) and Background Wider Setting Consultation Areas
from Greenwich Park (5A.2) and Blackheath Point (6A.1).

10.The Site is within the Culture Mile and is near to the proposed Museum
of London Site (ref. 19/01343/FULEIA) which received resolution to
grant by the Planning and Transportation Committee on 23 June 2020.

11.The Site is within The North of the City Key City Place identified in the
adopted Local Plan, and the Smithfield and Barbican Key Area of
Change identified within the draft City Plan.

12.An application (ref. 19/01038/FULMAJ) on land opposite the site
received planning permission on 1 December 2020 for a ten-storey
building comprised of hotel, retail and office uses, known as ‘Citicape
House’. This permission has not yet been implemented.

13.The Site is within the setting of listed buildings with the No.4 Snow Hill
(grade II), and the Church of St Sepulchre (grade 1) in close proximity.

14.There is a blue plaque located on the facade at 5 Snow Hill for the Site
of the Saracen’s Head Inn, demolished in 1868.

15.The Site is near to the identified Smithfield residential area in Figure ‘X’
of the Local Plan and there are residential properties in close proximity
to the Site, with the closest residents on Cock Lane. There are
residential properties at: 32, 35, and 37 Cock Lane; The Parvis Flat at
St Sepulchre’s Church; 10 Hosier Lane (also fronting onto Cock Lane)
and 20 Hosier Lane; 8-9 Giltspur Street and 10 Giltspur Street; and 22
West Smithfield.

16.In addition to residential, the surrounding uses comprise of a mix of
office, ecclesiastical and hotel uses, and include:

The adjoining 4 Snow Hill — office use;

The adjoining 6 Snow Hill — office use;

The adjoining 12 Cock Lane — office use;

The Holborn Viaduct Church of St Sepulchre (Grade 1) which
includes a designated Open Space;

24-30 West Smithfield - Premier Inn Hotel;

e Snow Hill Court — Counselling services;

¢ In addition, there are retail units located nearby on Holborn
Viaduct and Newgate Street;

Page 17



e The consented Citicape House development (ref.
19/01038/FULMAJ).

The Proposed Development

17.Planning permission is sought for:
“External and internal alterations together with demolition and new
build and associated change of use of existing building from police
station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses (Class C1) including:

(1) refurbishment of facade to Snow Hill and the retained facade
to Cock Lane;

(i) partial demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a
building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new plant at roof
level;

(i)  extension of existing sub-basement;

(iv)  provision of cycle storage;

(v) highway works;

(vi)  greening; and

(vii)  other ancillary works.”

18. Listed building consent is sought for:

“External and internal alterations together with demolition and new

build associated with the change of use of a police station to a hotel

with ancillary uses including:

(1) refurbishment of facade to Snow Hill and the retained facade to
Cock Lane;

(i) partial demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building
ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new plant at roof level;

(i)  extension of existing sub-basement; and

(iv)  other ancillary works.”

19.This report deals with the considerations for both aforementioned
applications.

20.The scheme proposes a change of use from a police station (Sui
Generis) to provide a hotel development (Use Class C1) delivering 219
bedrooms which would comprise a total of 6,369 sqm (GEA) floorspace
which would include 5,262 sgqm GEA new build floorspace. This will
include uses ancillary to the hotel including publicly accessible
entrance spaces curated with relevant cultural and heritage information
at ground and first floor, including the refurbished historic reading room
and a new restaurant at first floor.

21.In addition to new build floorspace, a significant portion of the building
is to be retained due to the heritage significance.

22.The majority of Block ‘A’ is to be retained and refurbished, with the
proposed removal of the mansard roof at fifth floor level. The link

Page 18



building between the two blocks is to be demolished. The Snow Hill
facade will be refurbished.

23.The entirety of Block ‘B’ is to be demolished apart from a retained stair,
the historic Reading Room at first floor level, the walls in the sub-
basement, and the facade directly facing Cock Lane from basement
level to part of the fourth floor level which will be refurbished.

24.The new build parts of Block A include some internal alterations and
the replacement mansard roof. The other new build elements would
comprise of the majority of Block ‘B’ including the internal structures
and the entire facades to the east, south and west, and part of the
facade to the north. The atrium space between the two blocks would
also be a new build element and would have a part glazed roof and
perforated brickwork design on the elevation.

25.A small extension is proposed to the sub-basement within Block ‘B’
with [ift pits and a stairwell also requiring excavation at the Site.

26.1n respect of proposed height of the new building, Block ‘A’ facing
Snow Hill would be 36 metres AOD to the top of the roof. For Block ‘B’,
the top of the parapet facing Cock Lane would be 39.9 metres AOD,
with the top of the plant equipment above this at 41.17 metres AOD,
which sits slightly below the St Pauls Heights (which is 41.7 metres
AOD). The top of the atrium roof would be at 36.5 metres AOD.

27.Urban greening would be introduced to the Site in the form of blue roof
and green roof spaces.

28.The proposed plant is concentrated on the new build roof on Block ‘B’
and would sit alongside photovoltaic (PV) arrays with a total coverage
of 76 sgm. There are no accessible roof terrace spaces proposed as
part of the development.

29.The servicing of the building is proposed on-street on Snow Hill. The
development would provide long stay and short stay cycle parking in
accordance with London Plan standards. No car parking is proposed.

30.Highways works comprise the replacement of redundant police parking
bays in front of the building, to be replaced with double yellow lines
from which hotel servicing will take place (this will be subject to parking
orders being made, which will be subject to separate statutory
processes which cannot be predetermined).

31.The following amendments to the scheme were submitted during the
determination period following comments from Officers and other
consultation responses:

e The rooftop plant has been consolidated to form a more
concentrated area;

Page 19



Three windows on floors two, three and four on the elevation
facing no. 6 Snow Hill have been recessed into the building
within a void with the window itself not facing no. 6 Snow Hill;
The green wall and associated infrastructure has been recessed
into the building;

The provision of short-stay parking spaces internally, in
accordance with London Plan standards, and the provision of
external short stay cycle parking proposed on Snow Hill;

A commitment to remove the green wall facing no.6 Snow Hill in
the event the adjoining site (no. 6 Snow Hill) were to be
redeveloped to the boundary line of no. 5 Snow Hill;

A commitment to provide privacy screens or obscured glazing
on selected windows on all elevations;

A commitment to provide access to the publicly accessible
spaces at ground and first floor level seven days a week,
between 10.30am — 7pm,;

A revised Construction Environmental Management Plan to
respond to concerns raised by no. 6 Snow Hill;

Corridor widths on new upper floors and ground floor wheelchair
accessible toilet has increased in size. A wheelchair accessible
toilet at first floor level, a platform lift to the atrium space on first
floor, and accessible cycle parking have been provided.

Consultation Process

Statement of Community Involvement

32.The Applicant submitted a Statement of Community Involvement (‘'SCI’)
outlining their engagement with stakeholders. The consultation process
prior to the application submission comprised:

A consultation website;

Exhibition carried out virtually due to the Covid-19 pandemic
with interactive exhibition boards between 27 July - 10 August
2020;

Feedback forms;

Phone number and email address — four community members
used email address;

Engagement with local community members and ward
councillors.

33.The SCI states that the consultation website was promoted through an
invitation sent to 377 addresses in the surrounding area. In addition,
posters were placed at the site to publicise the consultation. The SCI
states the website received 95 sessions and 161 page views in total,
and that following the consultation, feedback centred around potential
disruption of the construction phase and daylight and sunlight impact.

Page 20



34.Prior to submission of the applications, the Applicant states pre-
application meetings were undertaken with Historic England and the
Twentieth Century Society.

Planning application / Listed Building Consent Consultation Responses

35. Following receipt of the applications these were advertised on site and
in the press and have been consulted upon. A site notice was placed at
the site on 7 December 2020 and a press notice was published on 15
December 2020.

36.Copies of all received letters and emails making representations are
attached in full and appended to this report. A summary of the
representations received, and the consultation responses is set out in
the tables below.

37.The Applicant has provided a detailed response to matters raised in
consultee and third-party responses which are available to view on the
public website and are listed in the background papers list at the end of
this report.

38.1In addition to the original consultation in December 2020, re-
consultations took place in:

March 2021 for 21 days;
June 2021 for 14 days;
August 2021 for 21 days; and
August 2021 for 14 days.

39.The Greater London Authority were not consulted as the application is
not a referable scheme.

40.Table 1 includes the consultees and associated responses received
from Statutory Consultees for 20/00932/FULMAJ.

Table 1: Consultation responses for application ref. 20/00932/FULMAJ from
Statutory Consultees.

Consultee Comments and CoL Response

Historic Responded and no comments.

England

Transport for Comments:

London 1. Long stay and short stay cycle parking acceptable in

London Plan standards.

2. Cycle parking lift to basement does not meet standards in
London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS).

3. Applicant to identify how basement cycle parking is
accessed in event of lift failure.

Page 21



. All cycle parking should be designed and laid out in
accordance with the guidance contained in the LCDS and
the applicant should demonstrate how a minimum of 5% of
cycle parking facilities will cater for larger cycles, including
adapted cycles for disabled people.

. Strongly support the removal of existing parking bays on
Snow Hill to provide a development which is car-free. No
disabled parking proposed and is acceptable in principle to
rely on nearby disabled parking bays instead if these are a
suitable distance from the site.

. Deliveries and servicing activity to take place on Snow Hill
is acceptable in principle, this is a borough highway and
therefore the views of City of London as highway authority
ultimately should be sought.

. Deliveries and waste collection should be outside of peak
hours where possible.

. Note a Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) submitted. A Construction Logistics Plan (CLP)
should be provided in accordance with TfL guidance and
secured by condition. Diagrams should be provided to
demonstrate how construction vehicles will access and
egress the area.

. Encouraged the construction to be aligned with 61-65
Holborn viaduct, if both schemes are delivered
simultaneously. All contractor vehicles should include
sidebars, blind spot mirrors and detection equipment to
reduce the risk and impact of collisions with cyclists and
other road users and pedestrians on the roads.

10.The applicant should confirm that they will comply with

CLOCS standards. TfL encourages the use of freight
operators with FORS silver or gold membership as it is
imperative that road safety measures are considered, and
preventative measures delivered through the construction
and operational phases of the development. All vehicles
associated with the works must only park/stop at permitted
locations and within the time periods permitted by existing
on-street restrictions.

11.The Travel Plan should be secured by condition. Travel

surveys will need to be repeated after 3 and 5 years and
details should be provided on the number of visitors
expected on site and shift patterns. The applicant should
consider providing cycle parking provision in excess of
London Plan standards to promote cycling.

Page 22




Officer Response: (please note TfL confirmed all responses

to comments were acceptable)

1.
2.

n/a.

The Applicant amended the lift size and TfL subsequently
confirmed the change is acceptable.

In the event of service lift failure, the cycle parking would
be accessed through the guest hotel lifts or the staircases
and hotel staff would assist in providing access via either
of these routes.

The application would provide one space for adapted
cycles, meeting the target.

There are disabled parking bays near to the Site, including
at Giltspur Street (one space) and at Hosier Lane (three
spaces).

The Transport Planning Team are content with the
servicing and delivery proposals.

As an exception, up to two deliveries per day will be taking
place in peak times as agreed with the Transport Planning
Team. These will take place as part of consolidated
deliveries with the West Smithfield Premier Inn and would
be secured via 106.

A Scheme of Protective Works, and Deconstruction and
Construction Logistics Plans are proposed to be secured
by conditions.

It is unknown at this time whether the construction can be
coordinated with 61-65 Holborn Viaduct as, at the time of
writing, that permission has not been implemented.

10.The requirement to comply with the CLOCS standards is

included within the condition securing the submission of a
Construction Logistics Plan.

11.A Cycling Promotion Plan is proposed to be secured by

obligation, which will address the requirements of a Travel
Plan. The Applicant is providing additional short stay cycle
parking, in excess of London Plan standards.

Thames Water

Ccomments:
1.

Thames Water has been unable to determine the waste
water infrastructure needs of this application, despite
contacting developer therefore requested that a condition
added to address this.

The pump rate for the basement and proposed connection
point prior to determination if possible, however should be
requested as part of condition if not received.

Page 23




3. The development is located within 15 metres of an

underground waste water assets and therefore an
informative is suggested.

There are public sewers crossing or close to the
development, and it is important the risk of damage is
minimised. An informative is suggested.

Thames Water requests that the Applicant should
incorporate within their proposal, protection to the property
by installing a positive pumped devise (or equivalent) on
the assumption the sewerage network may surcharge to
ground level during storm conditions. Notes potential
requirement for a Groundwater Risk Management Permit
from Thames Water.

Officer Response:

1.

The condition relating to waste water has been
recommended.

In relation to the foul water, the pump rate was not
provided by the Applicant therefore this detail is secured as
part of a condition.

The waste water assets informative has been
recommended.

The public sewer informative has been recommended to
respond to this comment.

In relation to sewerage network comment, an informative
has been recommended to address this.

Conservation
Area Advisory
Committee

Comments:
“The Committee had no objections subject to the retention of a
pair of blue police lamps on the building facade.”

Officer Response:

The building lamps have been removed and it is understood
these are currently in City storage therefore a condition is
recommended for these to be reinstated or for details for
replica lamps to be approved and reinstated before the Snow
Hill facade refurbishment works have begun. This should be
completed in consultation with the City of London Police to
address any security issues raised through reinstating the
lamps.

Lead Local
Flood
Authority

Ccomments:

Recommended the following conditions:
- Before any construction works hereby permitted are begun the

Page 24




following details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority in conjunction with the Lead Local
Flood Authority and all development pursuant to this permission
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details:

(a) Fully detailed design and layout drawings for the proposed
SuDS components including but not limited to: attenuation
systems including blue/green roofs, rainwater pipework, flow
control devices, design for system exceedance, design for
ongoing maintenance; surface water flow rates shall be restricted
to no greater than 0.8 I/s from a catchment of 468m2 with the
remainder of the site discharging at an unrestricted rate, provision
should be made for an attenuation volume capacity capable of
achieving this, which should be no less than 57m3;

(b) Full details of measures to be taken to prevent flooding (of the
site or caused by the site) during the course of the construction
works.

(c) Evidence that Thames Water have been consulted and
consider the proposed discharge rate to be satisfactory.

- Before the shell and core is complete the following details shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in conjunction with the Lead Local Flood Authority and
all development pursuant to this permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details:

(a) A Lifetime Maintenance Plan for the SuDS system to include:
- A full description of how the system would work, it's aims and
objectives and the flow control arrangements;

- A Maintenance Inspection Checklist/Log;

- A Maintenance Schedule of Work itemising the tasks to be
undertaken, such as the frequency required and the costs
incurred to maintain the system.

Officer Response:

The recommended conditions have been included.

The London
and Middlesex
Archaeological
Society
(LAMAYS)

Ccomments:

1. No objections to the principle of redeveloping the site and
acknowledge the opportunity this brings for improvements
to this historic asset.

2. Concerns about the complete loss of the historic cells as
part of the demolition of the internal floors of the building.
Whilst it is acknowledged that the cells have been altered
and modified since their original construction, these form

Page 25




an important element of the unique character of this type of
building, with very few examples remaining in London.

3. Paragraph 189 of the NPPF requires that: In determining
applications, local planning authorities should require an
applicant to describe the significance of any heritage
assets affected, including any contribution made by their
setting. Where a site on which development is proposed
includes, or has the potential to include, heritage assets
with archaeological interest, local planning authorities
should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-
based assessment and, where necessary, a field
evaluation.

4. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF requires that: Local planning
authorities should require developers to record and
advance understanding of the significance of any heritage
assets to be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner
proportionate to their importance and the impact, and to
make this evidence (and any archive generated) publicly
accessible. However, the ability to record evidence of our
past should not be a factor in deciding whether such loss
should be permitted.

5. The City of London Local Plan Policy DM 12.3 Listed
buildings paragraph 3.12.16 also requires that: Where
alterations are acceptable, the City Corporation may
require a standing building record to be made of internal or
external structures and features that may be affected or
revealed during the course of work. These circumstances
would include occasions where a building is likely to be
changed as a consequence of major repairs, alteration or
extension.

6. Suggest the requirement for an archaeological building
investigation and recording programme to be undertaken
during demolition, as outlined in the CIfA guidelines.

Officer Response:

1. n/a

2. The Cells are considered to be of moderate significance
however retention is impractical within the proposed
rebuilding to deliver the proposed new use which requires
single floor level floors. Retention of the cells would result
in split floor levels at basement and on the upper floors
reducing step free access to a large part of the hotel. The
cells are considered to be a recognisable function within

Page 26




the historic floor plan and are intrinsic to the special
interest which is unique to this building typology and
therefore central to historic and architectural significance.
However the quality of the cells is compromised as they
have also been substantially altered with new fittings which
has diminished their significance and they do not compare
to other listed examples of police or holding cells.
Alterations include new solid metal doors; the replacement
of benches and original sanitary ware; insertion of glass
block windows, new flooring and glazed bricks have been
over painted and the ceilings have been rebuilt as part of
the post war rebuild. When considered in the context of the
significance of Snow Hill Police Station which is primarily
listed as an example of an interwar police station and of
the quality of the external elevation to Snow Hill the cells
are considered to be of a lesser quality and would be
minimal.

The demolition of the cells would cause a degree of less
than substantial harm when taking into consideration
quality and previous alterations this harm would be at the
lower end of the spectrum.

. The Applicant has described the significance within the

submitted Historic Building Report. A desk-based
Archaeological Assessment has been submitted with the
application and conditions for further investigation have
been recommended. The full Officer response is detailed
within the ‘Design’ and ‘Archaeology’ sections of the
Report.

. The archaeological impact and the recommended

conditions is addressed in full in the ‘Archaeology’ section
of the report.

The Smithfield
Trust

No response.

Twentieth
Century
Society

No response.

Surveyor to the
Fabric of St
Paul’s

No response.

41.Table 2 below provides details of the consultation responses received
for the listed building consent application only (ref. 20/00933/LBC); no
objections were received for the application.

Page 27




Table 2: Listed Building Consent Application only (ref. 20/00933/LBC).

Consultees Comment

Historic England Responded and no comments. Letter of
authorisation received to confirm that the Secretary
of State has considered the information and does
not intend to require the application concerned to
be referred to him.

Twentieth Century Society No response.
Victorian Society No response.
Society for the protection of No response.

Ancient Buildings

Council for British Archaeology | No response.

Ancient Monument Society No response.
Georgian Group No response.
Victorian Society No response.

42.A total of 162 residential addressed were consulted as part of the full
planning application (ref. 20/00932/FULMAJ). In addition, the Holborn
Viaduct Church of St Sepulchre was consulted due to the proximity to
the Site.

43.There are seven objections for the application ref. 20/00932/FULMAJ.
An additional objection from a resident on Giltspur Street was
withdrawn following discussions with the Applicant team. Therefore a
total of five objections have been received from residents near to the
Site, located on Cock Lane, Hosier Lane, and Giltspur Street. The
remaining two objections were received from local businesses
associated with no. 6 Snow Hill. The representations are considered in
Table 3 below.

44.To summarise, the issues raised in the seven objections were as
follows:

¢ Principle of hotel, and demand for hotel not evidenced including
no detail regarding impact of COVID-19;

e Impact on residential amenity including: daylight and sunlight
impact; privacy and overlooking issues; noise; obstruction of
views;

e Impact to amenity of commercial property: daylight and sunlight;
outlook; privacy; sense of enclosure; and prejudicing future
redevelopment of adjoining Site;

e Issues with the green wall, including maintenance, oversailing
and ability for plants to survive;

e Harm to heritage assets;

e Construction impact including noise, dust, road closures and
accessibility restrictions;

e Excessive bulk and massing of the proposed development;

e Impact to economic value of property;

Page 28



Issues with

Issues with
application.

Construction Environmental Management Plan;

Delivery and servicing arrangements;
Loss of community use;
Poor quality rooms due to lack of natural daylight;

receiving correct notice to owners as part of

Table 3: Representations received for application ref. 20/00932/FULMAJ from
residents and commercial occupiers.

#

Representation

Summary

1

Resident at 32
Cock Lane

comments:

1. Daylight and Sunlight loss to low existing levels.

2. Material adverse impact on economic value of property.

3. The applicant was unable to advise on the potential
local disruption from any construction process. There
was significant disruption to local residents caused by
the previous closure to Cock Lane during the
construction of the West Smithfield Premier Inn and it
would be unreasonable to have further disruptions in a
short time frame.

Officer Response:

1. The impact is assessed with the ‘Daylight, Sunlight and
Overshadowing’ section of the report.

2. As stated in the Planning Practice Guidance, in respect
of what is considered to be a material planning
consideration: in general the courts have taken the view
that planning is concerned with land use in the public
interest therefore the protection of purely private
interests such as the impact of a development on the
value of a neighbouring property could not be material
considerations. Therefore this is not considered to be a
material consideration in this case.

3. The impact is addressed in full in the ‘Construction
Impacts’ section of the Report.

Resident at 10
Hosier Lane (flat
faces Cock
Lane)

Comments:

1. Daylight and Sunlight loss to low existing levels.

2. Material adverse effect on economic value of property.

3. The proposed extensions in the development to
between 6 and 8 storeys are excessive and there is no
reason to build taller than the existing building.

4. Significant disruption to local residents caused by the
previous closure to Cock Lane during the construction of
the West Smithfield Premier Inn and it would be
unreasonable to have further disruptions within a short
time frame.

Page 29




Officer Response:

1.

2.

3.

4.

The impact is addressed in the ‘Daylight, Sunlight and
Overshadowing’ section of the report.

Responded to this comment in representation ‘#1’ above
(bullet point 2).

The full Officer response to the design approach,
including for height and massing, is provided within the
‘Design’ section of this Report.

The impact is addressed within the ‘Construction
Impacts’ section of the Report.

Resident at 8-9
Giltspur Street

Ccomments:

1.

2.
3. Will cause disruption in terms of noise, dust and road

4.

The extension plus plant will obscure the view from the
flat.
The extension is too large for the surrounding area.

closures.

Previously informed that there would be no material loss
of daylight to 8-9 Giltspur Street however the application
includes no analysis of Giltspur Street.

Officer Response:

1.

2.

3.

4.

The impact on the private views is not a material
planning consideration.

The full Officer response to the design approach,
including for height and massing, is provided within the
‘Design’ section of this Report.

The impact is addressed within the ‘Construction
Impacts’ section of the Report.

The impact is assessed with the ‘Daylight, Sunlight and
Overshadowing’ section of the Report.

Resident at 32
Cock Lane

comments:

1.

The height of the proposed building will have a direct
negative impact on flat which faces the back of the
building. The height of the new building will significantly
reduce the light coming into flat which only has two
windows.

The proposed plant on the roof will prevent the opening
of windows due to the 24/7 noise from the plant.

The noise created as a result of a hotel e.g. staff
entrance located on Cock Lane which is a narrow road.
Increase of deliveries and waste collection. All will create
a neighbourhood nuisance.

Loss of privacy as windows will look directly into flat (and
Cock Lane is narrow).

Officer Response:

1.

The impact is assessed with the ‘Daylight, Sunlight and
Overshadowing’ section of the Report.

Page 30




The proposed plant at roof level will be predominantly
located to the south of the roof for Block B, therefore
further away the Cock Lane residential properties
including 32 Cock Lane. The plant will be subject to
recommended conditions from Environmental Health to
mitigate the impact of any plant noise to surrounding
uses and this is the standard approach in the City.

The staff entrance is located on Snow Hill. A condition is
recommended for an Operational Management Plan to
ensure that the operations minimise disruption to
surrounding uses, including staff entry and exit. The
hotel is considered to be a noise sensitive use in the
evenings, and includes bedrooms directly facing onto
Cock Lane, therefore is expected to maintain low noise
levels in the evening.

Regarding deliveries and servicing, these will be capped
at two deliveries per day and these will be consolidated
with the operating West Smithfield Premier Inn (to be
secured through Section 106) therefore it is considered
that no new trips will be introduced to the network.
Regarding loss of privacy, the Applicant has amended
the proposal to include internal privacy screens to block
views towards neighbours for 16 windows facing Cock
Lane, which are the windows closest to 32 Cock Lane.
These privacy screens are recommended to be secured
via a compliance condition, and a condition is
recommended for the Applicant to provide details of the
privacy screens and/or obscured glazing prior to
relevant works.

Resident at 10
Hosier Lane (flat
facing Cock
Lane)

comments:
1.

Too many hotels already in the area. One application
pending just across the road from this site. The
residents at 10 Hosier Lane experienced many years of
disturbance for the current Premier Inn in Barts Square.
Construction impact and more demolition in a small
area, and residents at 10 Hosier Lane are and will be
enclosed by works on all sides, including the
construction of the new Museum of London
development. In addition, more excavation work and
heavy drilling which causes vibration, as was case
recently for demolition across the road from 5 Snow Hill.
Additional plant at roof level. Noise and disturbance
from plant/machinery is experienced from the roof of
Tracers Smith Braithwaite (10 Snow Hill) and the
Premier Inn (West Smithfield). The noise is constant
even with windows closed.

More disturbance and safety issues at street level,
whilst entering and leaving our residential building.

A more appropriate use of the building would be for

Page 31




offices or residential, utilising the existing structure.

Officer Response:

1. This is addressed in the ‘Principle of Development’
section of the Report. Throughout the Report, the
cumulative impact of Citicape House is considered
(assumed this is the site the resident refers to).

2. The impact is addressed in full in the ‘Construction
Impacts’ section of the Report.

3. Response provided above for representation ‘#4’ (in
bullet point ‘2’). In addition, the plant noise condition
takes into account the existing background noise as part
of the assessment required.

4. An Operational Management Plan is to be secured by
condition to ensure the Applicant mitigates disturbance
in the operational phase. For the construction phase,
conditions are recommended to mitigate disturbance
and safety issues and this is addressed in the
‘Construction Impacts’ section of the report.

5. This is addressed within the ‘Principle of Development’
section of the Report.

Beaumont Comments:

Business 1. Loss of amenity, outlook, privacy, daylight and sunlight
Centres Limited including cumulative impact with Citicape House, sense
(related to 6 of enclosure, including impact from new windows and
Snow Hill) — six cross hatched brickwork to atrium. Failure to assess full
letters received daylight and sunlight impact for no. 6 Snow Hill.

2. No justification for hotel, no hotel demand study

Collineve submitted, and no detail about Covid-19 impact.

Limited (related 3. Significant harm to heritage assets and insufficient detail
to 6 Snow Hill) - provided assessing impact.

two letters 4. Sterilisation of adjoining land at no.6 Snow Hill,
received prejudicing future redevelopment, including from the

Anstey Horne
consultants
(related to 6
Snow Hill) —two
letters received
with one on
behalf of
Beaumont
Business
Centres Limited

green wall, the new proposed windows and the cross-

hatched brickwork of the external atrium wall.
5. The green wall:
- Will oversail the neighbours land;

- The management and maintenance is not possible
as requires access from neighbours land that will
not be granted and the site location plan should be

amended to include 6 Snow Hill maintenance

access. Accordingly, the green wall should not be

included in calculation.

- planting will not survive including due to lack of light;
- removal of green wall will result in not meeting UGF

score.
- Error in UGF calculation.

6. Impact of construction. The CEMP is not deliverable and

therefore the scheme cannot be constructed. The

Page 32




9.

construction requires use of no. 6 Snow Hill land and
consent has not been sought and the Applicant has not
engaged in meaningful way. The revised CEMP
includes alternatives for construction if agreement not
reached to access to land in ownership no. 6 Snow Hill
however these options are not feasible and would
require relevant permissions.

Notice (Certificate B) was not properly served to no. 6
Snow Hill.

Confirmation requested for which windows are to be
frosted from the 13 windows facing no. 6 Snow Hill and
how this will enforced.

Loss of community use due to publicly accessible area
of police station.

10. No evidence that police station is no longer required.
11. Adverse effects on amenity of surrounding uses caused

by hotel.

12.Servicing arrangements will compete through the same

entrance for visitors and servicing and deliveries. This is
also proposed on street and there will be associated
disturbance. The proposal for shared servicing trips
should be discounted as ownership may change in the
future.

13.Over 20% of hotel bedrooms would not have access to

daylight therefore not suitable for hotel use and not of a
high design quality.

14.The Applicant has included the land in front of the Site

(on Snow Hill) as part of development and will block the
front of the building impacting on safety of employees.

15.This will cause operational and financial harm to the

business which contributes £3,000,000 in business rates
per annum.

16.The Applicant did not comply with relevant legislation for

the development of the nearby West Smithfield Premier
Inn including damage to land at no. 6 Snow Hill.

17.Despite issues raised and meetings undertaken, the

Applicant has only made minimal changes.

18.The impact to the daylight and sunlight to the office

should be assessed as per paragraph 2.2.2 of BRE.
Daylight has health and wellbeing benefits for office
employees. Local Plan Policy CS10 states that scale of
new development should respect amenity of
surrounding uses, and the daylight and sunlight policy
states that daylight and sunlight is important for mental
health of workers and residents. Policy DM11.3 states
that new hotels should not be permitted if adverse
impacts on amenity of neighbouring occupiers including
cumulative impacts. Works are underway to provide new
office accommodation at no. 6 Snow Hill and this will
involve replacing former tea stations with office

Page 33




accommodation at each level. The office use may
accommodate a variety of uses (such as creative fields
including architecture) which seek office spaces with
good daylight provision therefore the quality/amenity of
the space is a key objective and Point 2 assigning a
‘typical’ office use to the property is not appropriate and
there are low existing levels.

Officer Response:

1. The neighbouring development would be affected by the

proposals and thus the overlooking, privacy and sense
of enclosure issues have resulted in amendments which
include the inclusion of privacy screens within the
windows and this is addressed in the ‘Impacts to
amenity of surrounding uses’ section of the Report. The
impact to daylight and sunlight is assessed with the
‘Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing’ section of the
report.

. There is no policy requirement for the preparation of a
hotel demand assessment. Nevertheless the principle of
a hotel and the evidence of demand is included within
‘Principle of Development’ section of the Report.

. The detailed response to harm to heritage assets is
provided within the ‘Heritage’ section of this Report.

A further heritage addendum from the Applicant provided
a more detailed assessment on the impacts on the
setting and significance of surrounding heritage assets
including 4 Snow Hill.

Consultees at pre-application stage included Historic
England and 20" Century Society. At application stage
Historic England, 20" Century Society, Georgian Group,
Victorian Society, Ancient Monument Society and SPAB
were consulted. No objections have been received from
these independent heritage bodies.

The City of London has determined following
comprehensive pre-applications meetings, site visits, and
amendments, that the proposal would cause harm to
areas of moderate significance and this level of harm is
less than substantial towards the lower end. Paragraph
202 of the NPPF is therefore applied.

The Design and Heritage section includes an
assessment of balancing paragraph 202 and public
benefits, and an assessment of massing and bulk in
views along Cock Lane.

. This is addressed in the ‘Design considerations for
future redevelopment of surrounding sites’ section of the
report.

. The Applicant recessed the green wall into the building
to ensure this was located entirely within the ownership
boundary of the Applicant and does not result in

Page 34




overhang to the adjoining land at no. 6 Snow Hill. In
addition, maintenance is proposed by abseiling
therefore would not require access to land at no. 6 Snow
Hill. The details of the type of planting and the irrigation
system to ensure the measures are in place to maintain
the plants is recommended as a condition. The
Applicant has confirmed that the proposal would meet
the UGF score if the green wall is removed.

A revised UGF calculation was provided following a
typographical error.

An updated CEMP was provided by the Applicant to
respond to comments and the application has been
reviewed by the Environmental Health team and is
considered to be acceptable. This matter is addressed
in full in the ‘Construction Impacts’ section of the report.
Conditions are recommended to mitigate construction
and demolition impacts before relevant works
commence which require details (including
arrangements for liaison with neighbours) to be
submitted, approved and complied with. The conditions
will not be discharged and thus the development will be
unable to commence unless the details provided are
satisfactory.

The application form includes Beaumont Business
Centres Limited as an owner that was notified of the
application. Subsequently, the Agent confirmed that the
correct notice (Certificate B) was served to the owner.
The red line boundary originally included part of the land
owned by no. 6 Snow Hill, however this was
subsequently amended and land in no. 6 Snow Hill’'s
ownership was not included.

8. See response to point ‘1’ above.
9.

This is addressed in the ‘Principle of Development’
section of the report.

10.This is addressed in the ‘Principle of Development’

section of the report.

11.Impact of new hotel use on surrounding occupiers is

addressed within the ‘Impact to amenity of neighbouring
uses’ section of the report.

12.The Transport Planning Team and TfL has no objections

to the proposals, and there will be a maximum of two
deliveries per day which are to be consolidated with the
nearby West Smithfield hotel therefore are not
considered to have a detrimental impact to the network
or surrounding uses. Regarding securing the shared
servicing arrangements in perpetuity, an obligation has
been drafted to ensure that peak servicing does not take
place in the event that the ownership changes and
consequently consolidated delivery and servicing with
nearby sites is not proposed.

Page 35




This is addressed in full in the ‘Servicing and Deliveries’
section of the report.

13.The provision of windowless rooms is addressed within
the ‘Daylight in proposed hotel bedrooms’ section of this
report.

14.The Applicant will submit a Scheme of Protective Works,
a Deconstruction Logistics Plan and a Construction
Logistics Plan prior to relevant works. In addition, the
Applicant will be required to secure other permissions
from other parties during the construction phase.

15.This report considers the impacts on the amenity on the
surrounding uses, including the construction, daylight
and sunlight, noise, and deliveries and servicing. The
contribution of business rates is not a material planning
consideration.

16.As mentioned above, the Applicant will require relevant
permissions during the construction process which
include agreements with neighbours. These are not
required as part of the planning application and
therefore is not a material planning consideration.

17.The Applicant has made changes in response to
comments received, this includes: recessing the green
wall, recessing windows and introducing privacy screens
to windows to address overlooking, and providing
different construction options to avoid use of the
adjoining land.

18.This is addressed in the ‘Daylight, Sunlight and
Overshadowing’ section of the report.

8 | Resident at 8-9
Giltspur Street

Objection withdrawn.

Policy Context

45.The development plan consists of the London Plan 2021 and the City
of London Local Plan 2015. The London Plan and Local Plan policies
that are most relevant to the consideration of this case are set out in
Appendix B to this report.

46.The draft City Plan 2036 was approved for consultation by the Court of
Common Council in May 2020 and January 2021. The draft City Plan
2036 was published for consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
between March and May 2021. As such, it is a material consideration in
the determination of applications.

47.Government Guidance is contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) July 2021 and the Planning Practice Guidance
(PPG) which is amended from time to time.

Page 36




48.There is relevant GLA supplementary planning guidance and other
policy in respect of: Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive
Environment SPG (GLA, October 2014), Control of Dust and Emissions
during Construction and Demolition SPG (GLA, September 2014),
Social Infrastructure (GLA May 2015), London Environment Strategy
(GLA, May 2018), London View Management Framework SPG (GLA,
March 2012), Central Activities Zone (GLA March 2016), Cultural
Strategy (GLA, 2018), Mayoral CIL 2 Charging Schedule (April 2019),
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context (GLA June 2014),
Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2018), The Square Mile: Future City
Report, 2021, City of London Visitor Destination Strategy 2019-2021
and Cultural Strategy 2018 — 2022 (CoL 2020).

49.Relevant City of London Guidance and SPDs comprise: Air Quality
SPD (ColL, July 2017), Archaeology and Development Guidance SPD
(CoL, July 2017), City Lighting Strategy (CoL, October 2018), City
Transport Strategy (CoL, May 2019), City Waste Strategy 2013-2020
(CoL, January 2014), Protected Views SPD (CoL, January 2012), City
of London’s Wind Microclimate Guidelines (CoL, 2019), City of London
Thermal Comfort Guidelines (CoL 2020), Planning Obligations SPD
(CoL, July 2014), Open Space Strategy (COL 2016), City Public Realm
(CoL 2016), and relevant Conservation Area Summaries.

50. The Historic England Good Practice Advice notes, including Note 3 The

Setting of Heritage Assets and Note 2 Managing Significance in
Decision-Taking in the Historic Environment.

Considerations

Relevant Statutory Duties

51.The Corporation, in determining the planning application has the
following main statutory duties to perform:-

e to have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far
as material to the application, local finance considerations so far
as material to the application, and to any other material
considerations.

e (Section 70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990); and to
determine the application in accordance with the development
plan unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.

e (Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004).

52.1n considering whether to grant planning permission for development
which affects a listed building or its setting, to have special regard to
the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. (S66 (1)
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990).

Page 37



53.1In determining a planning application for a building or land in the
Smithfield Conservation Area, special attention must be paid to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of
that area (S.72(1) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990).

54.1n considering the application for Listed Building Consent special
regard must be had to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which
it possesses (S16(2) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990).

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF, 2021)

55.The NPPF states at paragraph 2 that “Planning Law requires that
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise”.

56.It states at paragraph 8 that achieving sustainable development has
three overarching objectives, being economic, social and
environmental.

57.Paragraph 10 states that “at the heart of the Framework is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development”. That presumption
is set out at paragraph 11. For decision-taking this means:

e approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or

e where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the
policies which are most important for determining the application
are out of date, granting permission unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect
areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear
reason for refusing the development proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

58.Paragraph 48 states that local planning authorities may give weight to
relevant policies in emerging plans according to:

a. the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced
its preparation the greater the weight that may be given);

b. the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater
the weight that may be given) and

c. the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging
plan to this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan

Page 38



59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be
given).

Chapter 9 of the NPPF seeks to promote sustainable transport.
Paragraph 105 states that “Significant development should be focused
on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the
need to travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This
can help to reduce congestion and emissions, and improve air quality
and public health.”

Paragraph 113 states that “All developments that will generate
significant amounts of movement should be required to provide a travel
plan, and the application should be supported by a transport statement
or transport assessment so that the likely impacts of the proposal can
be assessed”.

Chapter 12 of the NPPF seeks to achieve well designed places.
Paragraph 126 advises that “The creation of high quality, beautiful and
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning
and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect
of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and
work and helps make development acceptable to communities.”

Paragraph 130 sets out how good design should be achieved including
ensuring developments function well and add to the overall quality of
the area, are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout
and appropriate and effective landscaping, are sympathetic to local
character and history, establish or maintain a strong sense of place,
optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an
appropriate amount and mix of development and create places that are
safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and wellbeing.

Paragraph 134 sets out that in determining applications, great weight
should be given to outstanding or innovative designs which promote
high levels of sustainability, or help raise the standard of design more
generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form and
layout of their surroundings.

Chapter 14 of the NPPF relates to climate change, flooding and coastal
change. Paragraph 152 identifies that the planning system should
support the transition to a low carbon future. It should help to: shape
places in ways that contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve resilience; encourage
the reuse of existing resources, including the conversion of existing
buildings; and support renewable and low carbon energy and
associated infrastructure.

Chapter 16 of the NPPF relates to conserving and enhancing the

historic environment. Paragraph 195 of the NPPF advises that Local
Planning Authorities should identify and assess the particular

Page 39



66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal
(including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset)
taking account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise.
They should take this into account when considering the impact of a
proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between
the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

Paragraph 197 of the NPPF advises, “In determining applications, local
planning authorities should take account of:

a. the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of
heritage assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their
conservation;

b. the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can
make to sustainable communities including their economic vitality;
and

C. c. the desirability of new development making a positive contribution
to local character and distinctiveness.”

Paragraph 199 of the NPPF advises “When considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage
asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and
the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial
harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.”

Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states “Any harm to, or loss of, the
significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or
destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear
and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:

a) grade ll listed buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens,
should be exceptional;

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments,
protected wreck sites, registered battlefields, grade | and 11* listed
buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and gardens, and World
Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.”

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states “Where a development proposal will
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits
of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum
viable use.” When carrying out that balancing exercise in a case where
there is harm to the significance of a listed building, considerable
importance and weight should be given to the desirability of preserving
the building or its setting.

Paragraph 203 states “The effect of an application on the significance

of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or

Page 40



indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement
will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the
significance of the heritage asset.”

The Square Mile: Future City Report

71.The Square Mile: Future City report aims to “create and sustain a
vibrant and engaging City Offer” and target outcomes includes for:
“Leisure visitors return and remain in the City, encouraged by the
vibrant offer” and for “retail, hospitality, tourism and culture operators to
return to and remain in the City, encouraged by City Corporation
support”. It is not development plan policy and does not have the
weight or statutory status of development plan policy, but may be
considered a material consideration.

Considerations in this case

72.1n considering this planning application and listing building consent
application, account has been taken of the statutory and policy
framework, the documentation accompanying the application, and the
views of both statutory and non-statutory consultees.

73.The principal over-arching issues in considering this application are:

The extent to which the proposals comply with the relevant
policies of the Development Plan.

The extent to which the proposals comply with Government
guidance (NPPF).

The application of the duty, when considering whether to grant
planning permission, to have special regard to the desirability of
preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses when
determining the planning application and the duty to have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses when considering whether to grant listed building
consent.

The application of the duty, when determining a planning
application for a building or land in the Smithfield conservation
area, to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of that area.

The acceptability of hotel use.

Whether the proposal supports the development of the City as a
cultural destination for its communities and visitors and the City’s
economic development.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring amenity.
The impact of the proposal on daylight and sunlight to dwellings.

Page 41



e The acceptability of the scheme in design and heritage terms
including impact on heritage assets and whether the public
benefits outweigh any harm.

e Whether the potential for redevelopment of adjoining sites has
been safeguarded.

e The accessibility and inclusivity of the development.

e The impact of the proposal on any archaeology beneath the site.
e Fire safety.

e The impact of the proposal in highway and transportation terms.

e The impact of the proposal in terms of environmental
sustainability.

e The impact of the proposal on air quality.
e The results of the Healthy Urban Checklist.

e The requirement for financial contributions.

Economic Development and the Provision of Hotel Accommodation

74.The City of London, as one of the world's leading international financial
and business centres, contributes significantly to the national economy
and to London’s status as a ‘World City’. Rankings such as the Global
Financial Centres Index (Z/Yen Group) and the Cities of Opportunities
series (PwC) consistently score London as the world’s leading financial
centre, alongside New York. The City is a leading driver of the London
and national economies, generating £69 billion in economic output (as
measured by Gross Value Added), equivalent to 15% of London’s
output and 4% of total UK output. The City is a significant and growing
centre of employment, providing employment for over 540,000 people.

75.Planning policy supports economic growth. The National Planning
Policy Framework establishes a presumption in favour of sustainable
development and advises that significant weight should be placed on
the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into
account both local business needs and wider opportunities for
development. It also states that planning decisions should recognise
and address the specific locational requirements of different sectors.

76.The City lies wholly within London’s Central Activity Zone (CAZ) where
the London Plan promotes further economic and employment growth in
addition to tourist and cultural uses.

77.The Applicant stated there will be approximately 260 guests per day
with an estimated total visitor spend of £8.5million per annum of which
£3.6million per annum is expected to be spent in the immediate
neighbourhood of the hotel.

78.The Applicant states the hotel will provide new employment and

Page 42



training opportunities during the operational and construction phases.
The Applicant estimates 50 full time roles will be created within the
hotel and estimates 200 jobs will be required during the construction
phase.

79.The submitted Cultural Plan states that the hotel at Snow Hill could
provide accommodation for around 55,000 leisure visitors to the City
every year.

80. Despite the short term uncertainty about the pace and scale of future
growth in the City following the immediate impact of Covid-19, the
longer term geographical, economic and social fundamentals
underpinning demand remain in place and it is expected that the City
will continue to be an attractive and sustainable meeting place where
people and businesses come together for creative innovation. Local
Plan and draft City Plan 2036 policies seek to facilitate a healthy and
inclusive City, new ways of working, improvements in public realm,
urban greening and a radical transformation of the City’s streets in
accordance with these expectations.

Principle of Development

Hotel use

81.The London Plan 2021 states (paragraph 2.4.4) that one of the
Strategic Functions of the Central Activities Zone (CAZ) is for tourism
facilities including hotels. London Plan Policy E10 states that a
sufficient supply of serviced accommodation should be maintained, and
that this should be provided in the CAZ except in wholly residential
streets or predominantly residential neighbourhoods and subject to the
impact on office space and other strategic functions. London Plan
Policy E10 states that intensification of the provision of serviced
accommodation should be resisted where this compromises local
amenity or the balance of local land uses. In addition, Policy E10(H)
states that accommodation should provide accessible rooms in line
with British Standards.

82.Paragraph 6.10.2 of the London Plan states that it is estimated that
London will need to build an additional 58,000 bedrooms of serviced
accommodation by 2041 and paragraph 10.6.22 of the Plan states that
hotel and leisure uses should be located in accessible locations to
encourage walking, cycling and public transport use.

83.The City of London Visitor Destination Strategy 2019-2021 notes that
capacity for growth represents a challenge as: “Demands on land use
mean that future growth in hotel supply will be limited — as recognised
in the City of London Local Plan policies. Increasing overnight stays will
therefore be limited, noting the Culture Mile area is perceived to be
particularly short of hotels.”

Page 43



84.The Local Plan Policy CS11 states that hotel development will be
allowed where it supports the primary business or cultural role of the
City and hotels should be refused where these would compromise the
business function or potential for future business growth, and that
hotels should not be located where these would create amenity
problems for existing residential areas.

85.The Site is located in the CAZ and in a highly accessible area in terms
of public transport, and the development would encourage walking and
cycling due to its central location in the Culture Mile and proximity to
Thameslink and Elizabeth Line stations and provision of short and long
stay cycle parking. The Site is surrounded by a mix of uses which
includes residential. Although the Site is near to the Smithfield
residential area identified in the Local Plan, the locality is a ‘vibrant,
mixed use area’ as identified in the Draft Strategic Policy S23 therefore
is not within a wholly residential street or a predominantly residential
neighbourhood.

86.The adopted Local Plan (paragraph 3.11.5) states there is capacity for
future hotel development in the City to meet the needs of City
Businesses and visitors and Local Plan Policy DM11.3 and that
proposals for new hotels will only be permitted where they:

e do not prejudice the primary business function of the City;

e are not contrary to adopted Policy DM 1.1 (‘Protection of
office accommodation’);

e contribute to the balance and mix of uses in the immediate
locality;

e do not result in adverse impacts on the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers, including cumulative impacts;

e provide satisfactory arrangements for pick-up/drop-off,
service delivery vehicles and coaches, appropriate to the
size and nature of the hotel or apart-hotel;

e are inclusive, providing at least 10% of hotel rooms to
wheelchair-accessible standards;

e ensure continuing beneficial use for historic buildings, where
appropriate.

87.In addition, Draft City Plan Policy CV3 requires hotels to provide a
range of complementary facilities accessible to the public.

88.Paragraph 5.3.16 of draft City Plan 2036 states:

e In 2020, the City had 44 hotels, aparthotels and hostels
providing over 6,700 bedrooms;

e The GLA has forecast the need for an additional 58,146
bedrooms in London between 2015 and 2041,

e The demand is driven by a projected increase of 42 million
visitor nights and a 15 million increase in domestic visitor nights

Page 44



and that the City’s projected share of this increase is 4,341
rooms;

e Based on past trends and hotel sites permitted or under
construction, there is a strong likelihood that the City will meet
the London Plan requirement. The Policy notes that the GLA
forecasts predate the Covid-19 pandemic and states that
although there have been short term impacts on the tourism
industry, the attractions of the City and London as a visitor
destination remain strong.

89.Paragraph 5.3.17 of the draft City Plan states that visitor numbers are
projected to increase and the development of the Culture Mile is likely
to increase demand for hotel accommodation particularly in the north
west of the City.

90.The Local Plan (paragraph 3.11.10) states that hotel development
should ensure that it does not result in the loss of suitable and viable
office accommodation or sites, or prejudice the primary business
function of the City. The Draft City Plan states (paragraph 5.3.19) hotel
development should not displace sites that are suitable for office
accommodation.

91.The Site is located within the North of the City Key City Place in the
Local Plan (Policy CS5) requiring that the City benefits from substantial
public transport improvements in the area and realises the potential for
rejuvenation and ‘eco design’. The Site is located in the Smithfield and
Barbican Key Area of Change in draft City Plan Policy S23 which
encourages culture-led mixed-use development and complementary
uses.

92.There is an existing hotel near to the Site at 24-30 West Smithfield
(Premier Inn) and a consented hotel at 61-65 Holborn Viaduct
(‘Citicape House’) opposite the Site. The Applicant is not required to
provide a hotel demand study as part of the application, however the
Applicant has provided a response to comments objecting to a lack of
evidence for demand. In this response, the Applicant has referred to
the market research which accompanied the Citicape House
application which stated that demand in the City to 2024 is likely to be
1.5 times the current supply representing 1,250 new rooms over this
period and identifies the north west area as having the lowest number
of rooms in convenient walking distance. The Applicant states that
Whitbread’s own projection anticipates higher than average occupancy
at this proposed hotel and is confident that the additional supply will be
met by demand and that this is unaffected by the current COVID-19
circumstances. In addition, the Applicant states that the proposed hotel
would provide smaller and more affordable rooms, that the existing
West Smithfield hotel provides a different type of accommodation
including rooms suitable for families and that Citicape House would
provide larger rooms with extensive guest amenities, therefore
concluding that the hotels would cater for different groups.

Page 45



93.The lawful use of the Site is as a police station and classified as a Sui
Generis use, and therefore the proposal does not result in a loss of
office accommodation. In addition, the Applicant states the complex
configuration of the building including level issues and the additional
intervention that would be required to the historic fabric for conversion
to office use, would result in challenging conditions for potential re-use
for modern office requirements. Therefore the Applicant considers that
the hotel proposal will provide a viable use of the vacant listed building
to ensure it is conserved with key elements preserved.

94.There are a mix of uses in the immediate vicinity of 5 Snow Hill
including office premises at the adjoining no. 4 and no. 6 Snow Hill and
at the adjacent 12 Cock Lane. In addition, there is office space located
at the adjacent 35 Cock Lane and 10 Snow Hill properties. The
Proposed Development is near to residential properties predominantly
to the north and north-west of the Site, and to the east. Therefore, the
Proposed Development will contribute to the balance and mix of the
uses in the immediate locality.

95.The proposals would provide a restaurant on the first floor that is
accessible to the public and a cultural offer including exhibition spaces,
therefore would include a range of complementary facilities accessible
to the public.

96. The proposal would secure the continuing beneficial use for a historic
building and would include enhanced public access to and
interpretation of the heritage, demonstrated through the cultural offer
and access to the retained entrance and historic reading room. The
proposal would also support the cultural role of the City through the
Cultural Plan proposals.

97.Therefore, subject to recommended conditions, the Proposed
Development is not considered to prejudice the primary business
function of the City, would contribute to the balance and mix of uses in
the immediate locality, would not result in unacceptable adverse
impacts on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, including cumulative
impacts.

98. Therefore it is considered that the proposals are in accordance with
Local and regional policies including elements of Local Plan Policy
DM11.3, draft City Plan Policy CV3, and London Plan Policy E10.

Cultural Use and Public Access

99.Policies CS11 and DM11.2 in the Local Plan 2015 and policy S6 in the
Draft City Plan 2036 encourage new cultural experiences. The Site is
within the Culture Mile and close to the new Museum of London site.
Draft City Plan 2036 Strategic Policy S24 supports the development of
cultural facilities and uses and the transformation of the north west of

Page 46



the City into a vibrant strategic cultural area through the Culture Mile
initiative.

100. The Applicant has submitted a Cultural Plan in accordance with
draft City Plan Policy S6. The Cultural Plan includes spaces which are
comprised of four key zones: Threshold and Entrance; Entrance Hall;
Main Corridor; Staircase to café and atrium space. These would all be
publicly accessible spaces. The Cultural Plan states the spaces will
offer a narrative to the building, its use and heritage to be promoted as
part of the Culture Mile.

101. The details of the proposals, including how this will successfully
cater to the needs of the hotel guests and members of the public to
optimise the hotel and cultural experience, and the long-term public
access will be agreed through the final Cultural Plan to be secured
within the Section 106 Agreement.

102. The cultural offer will enable public access to the historic
building through a curated series of spaces and thus this is considered
to be a public benefit to the scheme.

103. The intention is that the Premier Hub would offer more
affordable hotel accommodation for both businesses and tourist visitors
to complement the existing options in the Culture Mile. The enhanced
visitor experience would be in key areas of heritage significance within
Block A and Block B: the former police station reception areas; through
to the new dynamic atrium space to ascend the historical staircase and
up to the restored Reading Room. Within these areas there would be a
permanent exhibition space celebrating the history of the police
building and narratives of the local area referencing the surrounding
context such as St Sepulchre Church, Old Bailey, Former Newgate
Prison, and the ghost of Cock Lane.

104. This offer will be free and publicly accessible between 10.30am
to 7pm for seven days a week and this includes the requirement for
booking an appointment via a booking system between 5 - 7pm; no
booking will be required from 10.30am — 5pm.

105. The final details of the installation including locations, fixings,
lighting, exhibition content and management and monitoring to update
and refresh proposals, would be agreed within a Cultural
Implementation Plan as part of a Section 106. There will be a
requirement to work in partnership with the Culture Mile Team and
Museum of London and focus on employing local artists and creatives
for the design work. The intention would be to ensure the deliverables
are high quality, respect the listed building special architectural and
historic interest and are focused on the heritage narrative of the
building and locations and support other cultural activity in
neighbourhood with some integrated aspects of modest branding. As
part of the cultural offer, opportunities for pop-up exhibitions and events

Page 47



within the atrium spaces and restaurant would also be secured
providing an opportunity to showcase a range of creative design work
in partnership with the Culture Mile Team.

106. The proposals would enhance and better reveal the history and
significance of the listed building, support the vibrancy and aspirations
of the Culture Mile including provision of visitor space, as well as
support local creatives and design industries and provide culture-led
and mixed-use development with complementary uses in the Smithfield
and Barbican draft City Plan Key Area of Change. The proposal would
also provide visitor information, increasing awareness of the City’s
cultural and heritage assets.

107. Therefore, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with
Local Plan policy CS11 and Draft City Plan policies S6, S23 and CV3
(1 and 3-7).

Loss of Police Station use

108. London Plan Policy S1 supports and protects social
infrastructure. The vacant former police station is no longer required for
police purposes. As highlighted in the recent application ref.
20/00997/FULEIA (‘Fleet Street Estate’), which received resolution to
grant on 22 April 2021, the proposed City of London Police
headquarters would consolidate the existing workforce within one main
building, enabling the release of existing City of London Police stations,
including at Snow Hill, for other uses.

1009. As detailed within the Committee Report for the Fleet Street
Estate, legacy police stations such as Snow Hill were designed for a
model of policing appropriate 60 years ago and due to fabric, design
and listing status are entirely unsuited to modern policing. Prior to
disposal, it had become operationally compromised, inefficient and
expensive to run, with significant outstanding backlog maintenance
costs. In addition, the building could not be adapted to meet demanding
Home Office standards for custody suite design or compliance with
structural hardening to meet the threat of bomb blast without significant
compromise.

110. The Committee Report for the Fleet Street Estate detailed that
the City of London Corporation continually seeks to modernise its
policing model in terms of ways-of-working, technology, services,
organisation and accommodation, and the Report notes that, key to
these changes is the move to a modern, adaptable, efficient,
sustainable, secure, compliant and fit-for-purpose new headquarters
building.

Page 48



Loss of overnight accommodation

111. The building previously provided one unit of overnight police
accommodation, ancillary to its main function as a police station. There
would be no loss of permanent residential accommodation and
proposals accord with Local Plan Policy DM21.2 and draft City Plan
Policy HS2.

Loss of community use

112. A representation received stated that the former police station
had a ‘walk-in’ element therefore this represented a community use
and thus the proposal resulted in a loss of community floorspace. The
former police station falls outside of the definition of Local Community
use within the Use Classes Order (use class F.2), being a Sui Generis
Use and is not considered to be a community use.

113. Therefore, the proposal is not considered to result in a loss of
community floorspace and therefore is in accordance with Local Plan
Policy DM22.1 and draft City Plan Policy HLS5.

Design
Height, bulk and design approach

114. The opportunities to increase height and massing on the site are
constrained and informed by the heritage designations. The existing
physical layout of the site also restricts development possibilities due to
the double aspect nature and narrowness of the building plots,
topography, street alignments and the surrounding context of varied
architecture and building ages. Overall, the design approach is a
contextual response and has been heritage led with insertions being
largely contemporary and distinct but complementary and deferential.
Objections have been raised in relation to massing and bulk and these
are addressed below.

Block A fronting Snow Hill

115. The proposed changes to Block A are limited to replacement of
the existing small and much altered mansard extension which is partially
concealed by the stone parapet. The proposed mansard would be more
prominent following a traditional double pitched form with a large central
dormer detailed in materials to match the main facade with discreet
rooflights to the rear of the upper shallower pitch.

116. The terrace along this eastern side of Snow Hill together with St
Sepulchre Court and Snow Hill Court form a characterful enclave
detached from Holborn Viaduct and have a finer urban grain, variety of
roof forms and architectural expression. Roof extensions are generally
traditional, set back and pitched to reduce visual impact and provide a

Page 49



degree of deference and are often in more recessive materials such as
slate and profiled metal including zinc and lead. The proposed mansard
extension would sit comfortably within the immediate townscape in near
and longer views from Snow Hill, Farringdon Street and Holborn Viaduct.
This very modest extension would reflect the established building
heights and townscape character and be a recessive incidental addition
to the established roofscape.

117. There would be little change to the Snow Hill facade. Signage
would be required through a condition and the approach would be
bespoke and restrained to ensure the proposals would not detract from
the overall elevation, replica lanterns (to be reinstated) or historic
plagues. The hotel use would generate a more active frontage to Snow
Hill and the building would be publicly accessible. The reimagining of the
buildings would complement the emerging cultural quarter of the
Smithfield area and the delivery of the relocated Museum of London.

Block B fronting Cock Lane

118. Block B would be increased in height and volume through upward
and rearward extensions behind the retained Cock Lane historic facade
with an atrium infill between Block A and Block B. The overall height
would be relatively modest increasing from five to eight storeys. The
maximum height of the building including plant would be below both the
St Pauls Heights Policy Area and LVMF threshold restrictions.

1109. The Cock Lane plain historic stock brick elevation would be
retained and the existing partial fifth storey completed and then stretched
by an additional storey and surmounted by a double height mansard.
Both elements would be architecturally contemporary and distinct but
well-mannered using contextual materials and proportions to stitch
together old and new. The extended masonry levels would be set back
with an expressed shadow gap to distinguish between the retained
historic elevation and contemporary addition. Window openings would
be set within punched and articulated masonry and windows angled to
reduce any overlooking. The placement of windows and dormers would
have an individual rhythm and the positioning and vertical proportions
would complement the retained elevation. The additional double pitched
mansard profiled roof with dormers would be set back and deferential as
a contemporary reinterpretation of a traditional roof form.

120. Behind the retained historic elevation to Cock Lane the remaining
Block B would be almost entirely demolished. The flank west elevation,
which is a combination of a stark rendered masonry wall, set back stock
brick and modern glazed core facing no. 6 Snow Hill and recessed off
street parking area would be rebuilt to full capacity of the site. Climbers
would be incorporated to this reformed brick masonry elevation which
would soften and add visual interest to the built up context of Cock Lane
which has little or no urban greening.

Page 50



121. The existing gap between the rear elevations of Block A and
Block B is glimpsed from Cock Lane and would be infilled in brickwork
and roofed over to form an internal circulation atrium space connecting
the retained rear elevation of Block A and the rebuilt rear elevation of
Block B. The elevation to Cock Lane would be contemporary in design
and include a semi perforated brick skin allowing low levels of light in
and out but ensuring any light spillage is restrained. This brick patterning
would add visual interest and reference similar architectural treatments
along Cock Lane. Overall there would be a coherent approach to these
new build elements — the stretched facade, the mansard roof, rebuilt
elevations and atrium — to reinforce a consistent design integrity to Block
B which would be well considered, architecturally quiet and restrained.

122. The increased massing and height to Block B would have a
limited and localised visual impact due to the canyon like tight urban
nature of Cock Lane. The townscape is characterised by an enclosed
narrow street with a back edge of pavement building line, with a
warehouse scale and is predominately brick. The visual impact of the
remodelled and enlarged Block B would be oblique and in some wider
views from Snow Hill Court would be glimpsed between buildings as part
of a medley of rear elevations. The increased massing would be most
evident in views looking east along Cock Lane and in all these visual
experiences the design approach as well as massing and height are
considered appropriate and compatible with the scale and character of
context and the prevailing massing and height of existing buildings.
Overall the contemporary insertions would respect the established urban
grain and be reflective of the buildings typologies of Cock Lane which is
a mixture of new and historic buildings.

123. Conclusion on design: The design approach to Block A and Block
B are appropriate in terms of scale, design approach, materials and
intended quality and would add a level of richness and visual interest to
the local townscape and would support the emerging vibrancy of Snow
Hill and the wider area. Final materials and details would be the subject
of conditions. The proposals comply Local Plan Policies CS10 and
DM10.1, emerging City Plan Policy S8 and DE2, and London Plan D3
and paragraphs 130 and 132 of the NPPF.

Heritage

124, Through the pre-application and application process the
proposals have been assessed against Local Plan Policies CS12, DM
12.1, DM12.2 and DM 12.3, draft City Plan 2036 policies S1 and HEL1,
and London Plan Policy HC1 and the relevant NPPF paragraphs 199-
208. Considerable importance and weight has been attached to and
special attention has been paid to the desirability of preserving and
enhancing the character or appearance of Smithfield conservation area
and surrounding conservation areas, under s.72. There has also been
special regard to the desirability of preserving 5 Snow Hill and

Page 51



surrounding listed buildings including their setting and any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses, under s.16
and s.66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990, as amended.

125. The proposals have been developed and refined to minimise
harm to significance with a focus on opportunities for enhancement.
Evolution of the scheme includes reduced demolition and preservation
of key features of significance such as the reading room and related
staircase and areas of the ground floor within Block A. The massing to
both block A and Block B has been amended and contemporary
interventions refined in design terms. There has also been a focus on
better revealing the heritage bedrooms in block A, creation of public
access as well as the inclusion of urban greening on the flank wall.

126. Objections are raised that the proposals have not been
independently scrutinised by heritage specialists. At application stage
Historic England, 20™ Century Society, Georgian Group, Victorian
Society, Ancient Monument Society and SPAB were consulted. No
objections have been received from these independent heritage bodies.
The CAAC has recommended the blue lamps should be preserved and
these would be reinstated as part of the application. LAMAS has raised
concerns in relations to the removal of the cells and this is addressed
below.

Direct Impacts on Heritage Assets
5 Snow Hill, Snow Hill Police Station

127. The proposals would have a direct impact as a result of physical
demolition, alteration and extensions. The works to the listed building
are also subject to a separate application for listed building consent
(ref: 20/00933/LBC) which is also for determination in this report.

128. Significance and setting: The current building stands on the site of
a purpose-built police station and represents a continuity of policing from
19 to present day. Snow Hill Police Station was designated as grade I
listed in 1998 and has historic and architectural values. It is the oldest
purpose built police station to survive in the City of London and was the
second station on this site. Constructed 1925-1926 and designed by
Sydney Perks, Architect and Surveyor to the City of London. It was
designed as a civic focal point for the area whilst providing functions for
the City Police. The foundation stone at ground floor level remains as a
lasting reminder of the buildings original purpose. The original blue
lamps noted on the Snow Hill elevation which immediately distinguish
the function of the building have been removed.

1209. The building is a good example of progressive interwar municipal
architecture mixing civic, residential and administrative functions divided
between two blocks (A and B) connected by a single storey link block.
The original Y shaped plan form has a steel and concrete frame and the

Page 52



entire structure is built over a large basement. The two parts whilst
distinct in character and appearance should be read as a single
operational entity to be understood as an historic police station.

130. Block A is of the highest significance and is generally well
preserved and comprises a unique and imposing narrow portland stone
clad frontage of five storeys and recessed rebuilt mansard. This facade
has very high architectural value for its fusion of restrained interwar
classicism with the material and form of the Arts and Crafts movement
reflected in the bronze framed polygonal bow window across the upper
four floors. There are some modern additions at ground floor including
signage, cameras and modern light fittings. The rear of Block A is
glimpsed from Cock Lane and is much plainer comprising stock brick
and window openings of varying sizes and attractive expressed chimney
and stack. The lightwell area between Block A and Block B is of low
significance as a space and contains plant and ad hoc additions.

131. This block contained the main entrance and reception area with
the upper floors providing extended accommodation for married senior
officers. The panelled entrance lobby, staircases and residential floor
plan to the upper levels all survive. The upper floors which have a more
domestic but altered character with remnants of room layouts, evidence
of chimneybreasts and fragments of decorative plasterwork and joinery
and these spaces are assessed as being of moderate significance. The
internal decoration is typical of an early 20™ century civic building with a
limited palette of materials and simple detailing, the windows are original
but include secondary glazing.

132. Block B is a larger 5 storey utilitarian block with a main frontage to
Cock Lane which includes a secondary double door access and front
lightwell. The Cock Lane facade is also relatively well preserved but
plain with no embellishment comprising yellow stock brick and window
openings of different sizes with gauged brick arches. All windows have
been replaced with UPVC casements, with grilles and there is a cage
over the narrow lightwell. The main facade has a functional composition
but remains relatively well preserved and is of modest heritage
significance. The west elevation is a prominent feature on Cock Lane,
the original brick wall has been coated in cement render and there is a
full height post war lift enclosure and more historic but partially rebuilt set
back masonry elevations and these areas are of low to no heritage
significance. The site is land locked to the east. Other elevations of
Block B are glimpsed between buildings but are also of low significance
having been rebuilt at the upper levels and altered with blocked
openings, as well as UPVC replacements. At roof level there is a plain
brick coping with a combination of a lean to slate pitched roof which is of
modest interest otherwise the roof was remodelled post WW?2 flat roof
and the flat asphalt roof and various plant additions are of no heritage
significance.

Page 53



133. Block B was purpose built and contemporary with Block A to
provide administration functions focused around a central lightwell faced
in glazed bricks. The basement contained the canteen, kitchen, mess
room and cleaning facilities; the ground floor included offices and the cell
block; and the first floor recreation rooms and the upper floors
compromised cellular spaces off corridors and contained basic
unmarried police officer accommodation and washing facilities. The plan
form has been heavily altered following bomb damage and rebuilding
and was the significantly altered through the 1990s resulting in a very
disjointed building with complicated internal layout, many steel columns,
multiple mismatched levels and low ceiling heights. However, there are
some key areas of high significance including the principal staircase with
historic police lantern from ground to first floor and round arched timber
window with copperplate glazing and the first floor reading room with
decorative interior and chimney piece. The internal decoration has an
institutional character and is dominated by glazed bricks. Where these
have not been painted over, they are green and cream coloured. The
majority of windows have been replaced.

134. The block also contains the police cells, fragments of secondary
staircases, and chimney breasts although altered and are of moderate to
low significance and indicators of historic floor plan and former functions.
The police cells are a defining function of this building typology but have
been altered with modern doors and internal fittings and this has
diminished their special interest and evidential value. The cells have a
modern contemporary appearance and do not reflect the original design
and materiality compared to the overall interwar character and are of a
lesser quality compared to others for example those in the former Wood
Street Police and on balance this are considered to be of moderate
heritage value.

135. The setting of the police station is defined by the realignment and
development of Snow Hill and the tight knit character of Cock Lane as
well rear elevations of surrounding properties. Snow Hill is varied and
includes buildings dating from 1870 as well as post war development of
the 20" Century, the topography and the strong building lines all
reinforce the distinct character of the Snow Hill facade. This setting is
attractive as a group which sits alongside St Sepulchre Church and
contrasts with the wider urban context of High Holborn. Within the wider
setting is the Central Criminal Court and the site of the former Newgate
Prison and these local references reinforce the local associations with
policing, crime and punishment.

136. Cock Lane is a narrow characterful backstreet dating back to the
medieval period and comprises buildings from late 19, 20t and 215t
centuries. The buildings heights are relatively uniform and are enhanced
by granite setts, york stone and varieties of brick. The street has a strong
sense of enclosure with the building line right on the back edge of a very
narrow pavement. The materials, building heights and alley like setting
all reinforce the more utilitarian back street secondary character of the

Page 54



rear block. The setting immediately adjoining the west side of the site on
Cock Lane is a small triangular area which is used for car parking and
detracts from the significance of the setting and defined building line and
character of Cock Lane.

Impact of the proposals on significance of 5 Snow Hill

137. Change of use: The building is vacant having been declared
surplus to the needs of the City of London Police who have
demonstrated the building no longer meets requirements and therefore a
new use is essential to secure the future of the building and reduce risk
of it remaining empty which could have a detrimental impact on the
future of the building.

138. This change of use from a purpose-built police station to hotel
would have an impact on historic significance eroding the long
established link with active policing on this site and wider setting.
Externally the Snow Hill elevation which is of high heritage significance
would largely remain unaltered and so externally would still reflect its
former use. The main impacts stemming from delivery of the hotel use
would be expressed through demolition and extensions. A degree of
continuity of the former use would be expressed through the heritage
interpretation exhibition areas, reinstatement of external replica lamps
to the Snow Hill elevation and the preservation of the key areas of high
heritage significance.

139. City Plan Policy CS12 requires the safeguarding of listed
buildings while allowing for appropriate adaptation and new uses.
Emerging policy S11 encourages the beneficial continued use of
heritage assets consistent with their conservation and enhancement. It is
recognised that any change of use of the Police Building would require
significant alteration particularly of Block B given the low quality of the
much altered internal layout and fit out.

140. Overall the change of use and adaptation to a hotel would erode
but not delete the historic references to the former use and would seek
to largely preserve and repurpose the areas of high heritage
significance. Parts of the required alterations and demolition to deliver
the new use would however result in a degree of harm which is
considered to be less than substantial harm and at the lower end of the
spectrum and this is evaluated further below. This harm is considered to
be minimal. The new use would also significantly revitalise and in parts
enhance the existing buildings and secure its long term use.

141. Extent of and justification for demolition: The areas proposed to
change such as partial demolition of Cock Lane, including the cells and
part of the main staircase and lesser secondary staircases are required
to achieve a better relationship of level floor to ceiling heights; improve
circulation and level access. The approach has been to retain areas of
high to moderate heritage significance and to focus demolition on areas

Page 55



of low to no significance within Block B which is less well preserved and
utilitarian. This demolition would retain the Cock Lane facade and parts
of the basement wall as well as the basement to first floor ornate main
staircase and wider setting and the reading room which are all areas
identified as of primary importance. The majority of the proposed
demolition would cause no harm to the significance of the listed building
as a single entity as the significance of these areas has already been
eroded through the significant internal remodelling, alterations and bomb
damage.

142. The cells are within a split floor arrangement and therefore would
be impractical to retain within the proposed rebuilding to deliver the
proposed new use which requires single floor levels. The cells are a
recognisable function within the historic floor plan and are intrinsic to the
special interest which is unique to this building typology and therefore
central to historic and architectural significance and have evidential and
historic value. However the quality of the cells is compromised as they
have also been substantially altered with new fittings which has
diminished their significance and they do not compare to other listed
examples of police or holding cells. When considered in the context of
the overall significance of Snow Hill police station which is primarily
listed as an example of an interwar police station and compared to the
quality of the external elevation to Snow Hill the cells are clearly of a
lesser quality.

143. The main decorative and historic staircase in Block B from
basement to first floor would be preserved and then the utilitarian parts
demolished from first to fifth floor. Other utilitarian secondary staircases
would also be removed. These circulation routes again do not align and
create split mismatched floors and are within areas which are altered
and are utilitarian in terms of detailed design.

144, Taking into consideration significance and the quality of these
elements, demolition of the cells and the partial loss of the secondary
parts of the main staircase and other minor staircases, the resulting
impact would cause a low level of less than substantial harm. The
degree of harm is considered to be minimal given the extent of later
alterations.

145. Conditions are attached to fully record the existing buildings
internally and externally prior to demolition.

Extensions and adaptation:

146. Block A: The Snow Hill frontage would be preserved, and the
existing non original mansard roof rebuilt after WW2 would be removed
and replaced with a full width traditional double pitched mansard. The
proposed design has been informed by archival information and original
historic drawings and it is proposed to reconstruct the new mansard as
close to the original dimensions and detail as far as a possible with

Page 56



central dormer including timber framed architrave and leaded light
casements. The roof profile would be a double pitch as it is proposed to
provide additional hotel accommodation. The mansard would
complement the overall design and proportions of the listed building and
would increase the height of the building to better reflect the originally
intended scale of the building in the street scene. The proposed cleaning
of the stone work to remove staining and reinstatement of replica
lanterns would be welcomed enhancements to the front elevation and
would reinforce significance and historic integrity. These aspects would
require further detail as conditions.

147. Externally the rear elevation of Block A would be restored
removing UPVC windows and replacing these with timber sash windows
which were the original window types based on evidence. This would
better reveal and enhance the historic significance of the existing
retained elevation.

148. Block B: The proposed Cock Lane contemporary masonry and
double height mansard extensions would be compatible additions to the
retained historic facade and the areas to be demolished are of low to no
heritage significance and the extent of this demolition is not considered
to cause harm. Effectively Block B would be almost entirely remodelled
but in doing so would retain a functional institutional and pared down
appearance consistent with the existing building and would be a worthy
reimagined partner building to Block A with a clear secondary character
which would not diminish the identified heritage significance and the
sense of two distinctive blocks linked on a single site would be
maintained. The replacement and restoration of the windows, removal of
grilles, the cage and rendered elements on the retained historic elevation
are welcomed.

149. Internal alterations: The interior of Block A is proposed to be
retained and restored including the original layout and circulation route
where possible including the entrance hall and flanking staircases. The
restored entrance hall would link to a reinstated corridor route into Block
B. In these spaces a public exhibition is proposed related to the history
of the building as a police station as well as other cultural aspects to be
agreed as part of a S106. This exhibition would extend into a new
internal atrium space between the blocks and the journey would
continue up though the retained historic staircase to the reading room.

150. On the upper floors of Block A the proposed alterations would
involve some subdivision of relatively plain historic rooms to create
ensuite hotel rooms but the level of harm would be low given the modest
quality of the spaces. The approach is to create heritage rooms for an
enhanced visitor experience as opposed to modular rooms. Where they
exist, historic features would be revealed and replicated including
cornices and architraves. The services have been considered at this
stage and the intention is to upgrade and reuse the existing service runs
as far as possible. Where new services are required for the bedrooms

Page 57



these would be installed in a reversible manner and historic fabric will
remain in situ. A new service lift would be relocated outside of the areas
of high significance in an area of low significance between block A and
Block B.

151. The existing lightwell between the rear elevations of Block A and
B is visually unattractive and includes plant. The space would be cleared
out and the rear elevation of Block A retained, restored and adapted. As
part of the Block B rebuild a full height internal space would be created
with glazed rooflights, external green roof and perforated brick infill
elevation to Cock Lane to enclose the north elevation. This internal void
would become a dramatic space which would include bridge links on the
upper floors connecting the Block A and B. This new dynamic circulation
space would preserve the historic distinction of two separate blocks and
the rear elevation of Block A with historic brickwork and retained
chimneybreast would form an attractive backdrop. There would be a
minor loss of historic fabric of significance to deliver this new space
including changes to the original layout of Block A, but this would be in
areas of low significance. This atrium would be a central part of the
proposed exhibition space and a key transition zone connecting Block A
to Block B.

152. The rebuilding of Block B behind the Cock Lane facade would
enable new level floors and lifts to facilitate step free access and
insertion of new floor plates focused around a central lightwell with
corridors and insertion of modular hotel rooms. The main historic
staircase to the first floor and the Reading Room would be preserved
and would become a key historic feature of the hotel experience to be
fully restored and converted to a publicly accessible restaurant, bar and
lounge.

Conclusion on impacts to 5 Snow Hill

153. The proposals seek to rationalise, revitalise and in parts better
reveal the significance of the listed building through comprehensive
reconfiguration and adaptation. It is a heritage led approach with
significance as the starting point to the development. The proposals
would offer a number of benefits to the listed building and it would
preserve, refurbish and make publicly accessible the key areas of
significance: the front elevation; the historic interiors; and associations
with the police function would be retained through the replica lamps and
heritage interpretation. The overall investment in the built fabric of the
building would prolong and enhance its life and introduce a vibrant new
use.

154. The extensive demolition of Block B would largely be areas of no
heritage significance. There would be also be a loss of areas of
moderate heritage significance including: demolition of cells; and
demolition of lesser significant secondary staircases to improve
circulation as well as modest changes to historic floor plans. The new

Page 58



extensions including the roof extensions and atrium area are sensitively
designed to limit impacts on the significance of the listed building. The
larger rear extensions are in areas of lesser significance and the
replacement extensions are of a scale and materiality that would be
compatible with the retained Block B historic elevation.

155. Objectors have identified substantial harm to the listed building.
However despite the extensive demolition key areas of heritage
significance and the overall historic and architectural interest would be
preserved and therefore the impact is not evaluated as substantial harm.
The adaption has been based on a thorough understanding of
significance and as far as possible efforts have been made to reduce
and mitigate harm where it arises. However the proposals are impactful
and would result in harm and a clear and convincing justification has
been set out for this harm. The harm is evaluated as less than
substantial and this is assessed to be at the lower end of the spectrum.
Primarily this harm is due to the loss of the cells and other internal
features of low to moderate interest and thereby the erosion of the
historic association with law and order. Given the extent of later
alterations the degree of harm is considered minimal. These elements of
the proposals would therefore be contrary to DM 12.3 (2), emerging
policy HE1 (1) and London Plan Policy HC1 (C).

Smithfield Conservation Area

156. Objections have been raised in relation to impact on the
Conservation Area and this is addressed below.

157. The character and appearance and heritage significance of
Smithfield Conservation Area is summarised in the Character Summary
and Management Strategy SPD (2016), which is a material
consideration of the application.

158. The area lies to the north of Holborn Viaduct and Newgate Street
and comprises 5 character areas. The site is within Area 4 and this is
bounded by Smithfield Street, West Smithfield, Giltspur Street and Snow
Hill. The sub area is defined by a historic street pattern, building lines
and a prevailing building height and change of in topography Cock Lane
is identified as having relatively uniform building heights, York stone
paving and varied palette of brick types. The change in levels and gentle
curve of the street provide interest to local views. Snow Hill has a varied
and attractive architectural grouping alongside the contrasting stone St
Sepulchre Church and includes attractive streets trees at both junctions
and the urban greening around the churchyard. Snow Hill is an original
thoroughfare to link Farringdon Street and Holborn Viaduct.

159. Snow Hill Police Station is one of the few inter-war buildings on

Snow Hill and its progressive architectural style makes a valuable
contribution to the historic and communal values of the Conservation

Page 59



Area. The conservation area has evolved incrementally and has a
diversity of built forms and development of specialised institutions and
activities. The police station once bustled with activity with a large
number of officers working and living in the station and the building had
recognisable importance within the conservation area and the district of
the City. The Snow Hill elevation enhances the Conservation Areas
status and whilst the Cock Lane elevation is less refined it contributes to
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area with traces of
the working life of Smithfield and the typical pared back stock brick
elevation representative of Cock Lane and other alleyways and streets
within the Conservation Area. The view along Cock Lane is identified as
a Local View within the Conservation Area Appraisal.

160. The areas of the Cock Lane building which detract from the
character and appearance of the conservation area are of limited interest
and include the flank elevations. The proposed extension to Cock Lane
would remain subservient to the main building and the overall massing
and bulk would be compatible with wider context off established heights
and massing and would reinforce the enclosed warehouse feel of Cock
Lane. The external appearance of the extensions, green wall and the
contrasting contemporary extensions would integrate with the varied
character of Cock Lane which is a combination of historic and newer
buildings. The enhancements to the retained elevation would be
beneficial to the street scene. The mansard extensions to the Snow Hill
elevation would result in a massing and bulk and roof form which would
complement the wider townscape context and would be an incidental
addition.

161. Conclusion on impacts: The scheme would be of a scale,
structure, urban grain, disposition, form and appearance consistent
with the character and appearance of the Smithfield Street
Conservation Area. Although the change of use to a hotel would erode
historic associations with policing the exterior of the Snow Hill elevation
would be preserved reflecting this former use and the reinstatement of
replica lamps would further evidence this function. On balance the
proposals would not harm the character and appearance or significance
of the Smithfield Conservation Area. This part of the Conservation Area
is dynamic and within the Culture Mile and the proposed new use which
would be more outward facing to the public would contribute to the
evolution of the conservation area as a centre of cultural activity.

Indirect impacts on the setting of designated heritage assets
No 4 Snow Hill (grade II)

162. Objections have been raised in relation to the impact on this listed
building. No 4 Snow Hill adjoins the application site and dates from 1875
and is 5 storeys of a plain red brick and Portland stone with tiled roof and
is an office building but former furniture warehouse. The building has
architectural and historic significance derived from the front elevation,
the building has been remodelled and extended at the rear and the

Page 60



interior has been comprehensively modernised. The buildings central
alignment within the terrace and prominent roofline is defined by the
pinnacle of its brick gable end and is a distinct feature. The setting is
defined by the mid terrace location alignment of Snow Hill and the rich
variety of buildings that surrounding Holborn viaduct and Farringdon
Street which reflect the former uses of the area and St Sepulchre’s
Church. This dense, architecturally varied urban character and rich
variety of former uses as well as the finer urban grain of neighbouring
buildings reinforces the historic and architectural values overall visual
interest of the front elevation. 5 Snow Hill immediately adjoins the
property and the proposed mansard roof extension to 4 Snow Hill would
be a comfortable addition to the existing setting and would reinforce the
overall character of building within the setting comprising set back more
recessive roof forms and would maintain the overall uniform scale of
Snow Hill.

163. Overall the proposal would preserve the special architectural
and historic interest and heritage significance of 4 Snow Hill, including
the contribution made by setting. There is not considered to be any
harm to the significance of this heritage asset.

Nos 19-20 Cock Lane

164. There is a listed building entry for these buildings but the site has
been redeveloped and there is no heritage significance designated or
non designated. There would be no impact on this building.

Church of St Sepulchre without Newgate (grade 1) and Railings and dwarf wall
to the Church of St Sepulchre (grade 1)

165. The church dates from mid C15th — late C17th with later
alterations and has architectural, historic, archaeological and artistic
values. The Church occupies a prominent corner location. The railings
and wall date from the early C19th and enclose the churchyard and
have historic and architectural value. The setting is defined by the
churchyard, prominent location fronting the interchange of Giltspur
Street, Newgate Street, Snow Hill Court, Old Bailey, Cock Lane and
Holborn Viaduct as well as the radiating curve of Snow Hill. The church
tower is set back and is a visual marker enclosed by the churchyard
and the vegetation which have a sense of serenity separating the
building and its context from the busy commercial and congested High
Holborn. The rear of the churchyard is accessed via Snow Hill Court via
a gate on Giltspur Street. The courtyard contains the former
vestry/school house and is a peaceful and characterful contributor to
the setting of the church and tranquil qualities of reflection associated
with the church. The wider setting is low quality dominated by the rear
elevations of Snow Hill including the police station buildings and Cock
Lane which have been rebuilt and these aspects do not contribute to
setting. The proposed remodelling and extension would be within the
setting of the churchyard but the increased massing and bulk, materials

Page 61



and detailed design would not detract from the wider existing setting
and would blend into the existing dense urban layers. Overall the
proposal would preserve the special architectural and historic interest
and heritage significance of Church of St Sepulchre and the railings,
and it's setting therefore is not considered to be any harm to the
significance of this heritage asset.

Other designated heritage assets

166. The impact of the proposals on the settings of the other listed
buildings and their significance, identified have been fully assessed and
taken into consideration. These include: Old Bailey Central Criminal
Court (Grade I1*), Holborn Viaduct Bridge (grade Il), 126 Newgate
Street (grade Il), 15 Old Bailey (grade 1), 16-17 Old Bailey (grade 1),
West Smithfield St Bartholomew’s Hospital Medical School (grade Il);
The Golden Boy of Pye Giltspur Street (grade 1l). The setting of these
designated heritage assets have been assessed and due to their
distance from the site and lack of visibility between them there would
be no harm the setting or the contribution that the setting makes to their
significance.

Impacts on Other Conservation Areas

167. Newgate Conservation Area adjoins the site and is essentially
the crossroads of Newgate Street, Holborn Viaduct, Old Bailey and
Giltspur Street and is dominated by the Central Criminal Court and
other monumental and often classical in spirit buildings. St Sepulchre
Church and Snow Hill Court are within Newgate Conservation Area. St
Sepulchre Church and The Central Criminal Court are distinct skyline
buildings. The existing Snow Hill Block A and Block B are visible in the
context of the Newgate Conservation Area. The mansard roof
extension would be incidental and would have no impact on the setting
of Newgate Conservation Area. The extensions and rebuilding of Block
B would be glimpsed form St Sepulchre Church Churchyard and from
the gateway next to St Sepulchres Church on Giltspur Street. The
existing police buildings are visible in these glimpse views and the
setting of this part of the Conservation Area is defined by rear
elevations many of which are modern.

168. Whilst the hotel use would erode the link of crime and
punishment with Newgate Conservation Area including connections
with the Central Criminal Court and former Newgate prison site the
appearance of the Snow Hill block would outwardly be preserved as a
police station. The reinstatement of the police lanterns would further
reinforce the historic connection. The new development particularly of
Block B would result in some minor change to the wider backdrop
setting of Newgate Conservation Area but the height, massing and
design which would be reflective of the existing context and would not
undermine or harm that significance, which would be preserved. The
proposed development would not harm setting or significance.

Page 62



Indirect impacts on non-designated heritage assets

169. Giltspur Street: No 5 Giltspur Street is a 1930s domestic neo-
Georgian style building with a red brick and stone facade which
attractively turns the corner to Cock Lane. No 6 Giltspur Street is also
from a similar period in red brick and Portland stone with a well-ordered
classical hierarchy of features and extensive metal windows. Nos 8-9
are of red brick and sandstone with attractive stained glass in an
Edwardian Baroque Style and are central to the setting of St Sepulchre
Church. Individually and collectively these building have considerable
townscape value and have historic and architectural value with similar
materials, high quality detailing and a consistent scale and urban grain
which reflects the local context. The proposed extensions and
rebuilding of the application site would only be glimpsed in the context
of this group of buildings and there would be no harm to their
significance or setting.

170. Cock Lane: No 37 Cock Lane has a striking terracotta frontage
to the ground floor with the wording “Saracens Head Buildings, John
Royle of Manchester” the elevation above is largely rebuilt. No 36 Cock
Lane has an attractive facade and is redbrick and terracotta, a narrow
plot with and six storeys with gable roof. Both buildings
have architectural and historic value which contribute positively to the
townscape of Cock Lane. The application site would not be seen in the
context of these non-designated heritage assets and there would be no
impact on significance or setting.

171. Snow Hill: No 1 Snow Hill is a late 19™ century brick and stone
building exuberant and florid in detail including animal motifs and
occupies a prominent corner adjacent to the Church of St Sepulchre.
The building has architectural and historic interest and positively
contributes to the attractive and eclectic grouping of the buildings along
the northern side of Snow Hill and positively contributes to the setting
and significance of surrounding listed buildings stone church. The
proposed development would not harm setting or significance.

172. No 10 Snow Hill occupies the junction of Snow Hill and Cock
Lane and is defined by a curved appropriately proportioned 1980s
building with deep window reveals in high quality materials and deeply
recessed windows and is a positive contextual building. The proposed
extensions to Snow Hill Police Station would not harm the values these
non-designated heritage assets which contribute to the Snow Hill
townscape. There would be no harm to significance or setting

173. Snow Hill Court: No 1 Snow Hill Court dating from 1859 is
tucked behind the Church of Sepulchre and stands within the
churchyard with its own secluded garden. The white rendered gabled
single storey building served as a parish school house/vestry and has
historic and architectural values and its setting is defined by St
Sepulchre’s Church, its peaceful setting and the surrounding rear

Page 63



elevations of Cock Lane and Snow Hill. The development would
change the setting of the non-designated heritage assets but due the
massing, height and materials which reflect the locality the impact
would not be adverse and setting and significance would not be
harmed.

Heritage Conclusion

174. The proposals have been assessed against Local Plan Policies
CS12,DM 12.1, DM 12.2 and DM 12.3, draft City Plan 2036 policies
S11 and HE1, London Plan Policy HC1 and the relevant NPPF
paragraphs 199-208. Considerable importance and weight has been
attached to and special attention has been paid to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of Smithfield
conservation area and surrounding conservation areas, under s.72 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as
amended. There has also been special regard to the desirability of
preserving 5 Snow Hill and surrounding listed buildings including their
setting and any features of special architectural or historic interest
which it possesses, under s.16 and s.66 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended.

175. The proposed heritage led change of use of 5 Snow Hill Police
Station to hotel is considered appropriate as an adaptation and would
enable a continued viable use on the site securing the long term
conservation of the buildings. The proposals would preserve keys
areas of high heritage significance and make these publicly accessible
for the first time. There would be a number of physical enhancements
including replacement of windows; sensitive refurbishment and
cleaning of all historic elevations; and removal of redundant services
and structure to better reveal internal features.

176. However the delivery of the use would result in a level of less
than substantial harm to 5 Snow Hill Police Station due to loss of
historic fabric to some areas of moderate heritage significance and this
would erode the connection with the history of policing on the site. This
harm is considered be less than substantial and is considered to be
minimal. It is acknowledged that elements of the proposals do not
preserve the listed building at 5 Snow Hill including some features of
historic interest, and special regard has been had to the desirability of
preservation, but in the context of the proposals and the evaluation of
this report it is not considered that this should lead to a refusal of
planning permission.

177. There would be no harm to the significance of Smithfield
Conservation Area and its character and appearance would be
preserved.

178. It is considered that the proposal would preserve the special
architectural and historic interest and heritage significance and setting

Page 64



of: No 4 Snow Hill (grade Il) and Church of St Sepulchre with Newgate
(grade I).

179. It is considered that the proposal would preserve the special
architectural and historic interest and heritage significance and setting
of: Old Bailey Central Criminal Court (Grade I1*), Holborn Viaduct
Bridge (grade Il), 126 Newgate Street (grade Il1), 15 Old Bailey (grade
I), 16-17 Old Bailey (grade II), West Smithfield, St Bartholomew’s
Hospital Medical School (grade Il); and The Golden Boy of Pye Giltspur
Street (grade II).

180. There would be no harm to the setting and significance of
Newgate Street Conservation Area and its character and appearance
would be preserved.

181. It is considered there would be no harm to the significance of
identified non designated heritage assets in Snow Hill, Snow Hill Court,
Giltspur Street or Cock Lane.

182. Overall the proposals would comply with Local Plan Policies
CS12,DM 12.1, DM 12.2 and DM 12.3(1) draft City Plan 2036 policies
S11 and, HE1 London Plan Policy HC1 (A, B, D and E).

183. Elements of the proposals would be contrary to DM 12.3(2),
emerging policy HE1(1) and London Plan Policy HC1(C).

Conclusion on Listed Building Consent ref. 20/00933/LBC

184. The proposals have been assessed against Local Plan Policies
CS12,DM 12.1, and DM 12.3, draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and
HE1, London Plan Policy HC1 and the relevant NPPF paragraphs 199-
208. There has also been special regard to the desirability of
preserving 5 Snow Hill and surrounding listed buildings including their
setting and any features of special architectural or historic interest
which it possesses, under s.16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended.

185. The proposed change of use to hotel is considered appropriate
as an adaptation and would enable a continued viable use of the site
securing the buildings long term conservation.

186. It is acknowledged that the proposals do not preserve the listed
building at 5 Snow Hill including some features of historic interest, and
special regard has been had to the desirability of preservation, but in
the context of the proposals and the evaluation in this report it is not
considered that this should lead to refusal of the application for listed
building consent.

Page 65



187. Overall, the proposal would comply with Local Plan Policies CS
12, DM 12.1 and DM 12.3 (1), draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and,
HE1 (2, 3, 4 and 5) London Plan Policy HC1 (A, B, D and E). However
in delivering this new use the proposal would result in some less than
substantial harm, at the lower end of the spectrum, failing to preserve
the special architectural and historic interest and heritage significance
of the listed building. This harm stems from the loss and alteration of
historic fabric of some areas of moderate interest including: the cells;
staircase and minor alterations to the historic floor plan and this would
erode the connection between the site and its former use as a police
station. The degree of harm is considered to be minimal. Therefore
elements of the proposals would be contrary to DM 12.3 (2), emerging
policy HE1 (1) and London Plan Policy HC1 (C).

188. Otherwise the substantive remodelling and new build element
would preserve special interest and heritage significance, subject to
detail reserved for condition.

Heritage assessment against paragraph 202

189. Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states "where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use". An evaluation of the public benefits and the
weight afforded to them in the evaluation carried out for the purposes of
paragraph 202 is set out in the ‘Assessment of the Public Benefits for
the purposes of paragraph 202 of the NPPF’ section of the report.

Strategic Views, London wide and Local

London View Management Framework (LVMF)

190. The site is within a number of Strategic Viewing Corridor
including: Landmark Viewing Corridors for: View 2A Parliament Hill and
View 3A Kenwood; Wider Setting Consultation Area for view 4A.1
Primrose Hill; and Background Wider Setting Consultation Area View
5A.2 Greenwich Park and View 6A.1 Blackheath Point. In all cases the
proposed maximum height would be below the corridor thresholds.

191. The proposed development would therefore not impact on
strategic views of St Paul’'s Cathedral and would accord with Local Plan
Policy CS13, the draft City Plan 2036 Policy S13 and London Plan
Policies HC3 and HCA4.

Other Protected Views

192. The City of London Protected Views SPD provides guidance on
the St Pauls Heights code, relevant (LVMF) Strategic Views, views
from and to the Monument, views to and from the Tower of London

Page 66



World Heritage Site and views of historic City landmarks and skyline
features. The site is located within St Pauls Heights Policy Area, The
SPD identifies Historic City Landmarks and Skyline Features which
includes St Sepulchres as a “City Church with a Skyline Presence” and
Old Bailey are recognisable landmarks. The SPD is supported by Local
Plan Policy CS 13(1), draft City Plan 2036 Policy S13 and London Plan
Policy HC3 and guidance contained in the LMVF SPG.

193. The site is within the St Pauls Heights policy area. The maximum
height of the proposed extensions to Block A and B including the plant
would be below the St Paul's Heights threshold height.

194, There would be no impact on St Sepulchres Church or Old Bailey

as important historic city landmarks and skyline features due to the
modest increase in height and topography of Cock Lane and Snow Hill.

Daylight in proposed hotel bedrooms

195. Policy DM10.7 requires that “the design of new developments
should allow for the lighting needs of intended occupiers and provide
acceptable levels of daylight and sunlight.” The proposed scheme is for
hotel rooms, not residential dwellings, therefore the same requirements
for light are not applied however it is important the development would
provide a high-quality environment for visitors. In addition, it is relevant
to consider that hotel occupants are likely to be transitory and occupy
rooms for a short period of time. Local Plan Policies CS10 and DM10.1
require that all new developments are of a high standard of design.

196. A representation received has stated concerns about the quality
of the development in respect of the provision of windowless rooms.
The proposals include 18% of bedrooms without windows.

197. It is pertinent to consider that the scheme proposes to retain
significant parts of the listed building which result in constraints to the
layout of the Site. Overall it is considered that the development is of a
high-quality design and would provide adequate daylight in line with its
use as a hotel which is not required to provide natural daylight to all
bedrooms. In addition, it is understood that these smaller bedrooms
form part of the business model for the Premier Inn ‘Hub’ rooms
operating elsewhere.

198. The proposals are considered to be of a high quality design
appropriate to the proposed use and therefore in compliance with Local
Plan Policies.

Archaeology

199. The site is in an area of archaeological potential, outside the
Roman and medieval walled City and on the edge of the Roman

Page 67



Western cemetery. An Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment and
Addendum have been submitted with the application.

200. The Assessment confirms that there is high potential for Roman
remains to survive, including 3rd—4th century burials and evidence of
earlier 1st—2nd century Roman occupation, such as quarrying and
building activity, rubbish pits and features such as wells, which have
been recorded in the vicinity.

201. There is low or moderate potential for later medieval remains
and structures as the site has been occupied since the 12th century,
and this would include buildings, courtyards and gardens next to St
Sepulchre Church. There is potential for survival of foundations of an
early 19th Century Baptist Chapel which was on the northern part of
the site.

202. The building has a basement covering the entire site and a
smaller sub-basement to the rear. It is considered that remains would
not survive below the sub-basement due to its depth and that there is
high potential for remains to survive below the single basement area.

203. The proposed extension of the sub-basement and stair access
would have an impact on archaeological remains. Other groundworks
which would have an archaeological impact include temporary works,
underpinning, new piled foundations, facade support works, lift pits and
services.

204. There is potential for features of the building and construction to
be revealed during the course of work, which it would be appropriate to
record.

205. The proposals are acceptable subject to conditions which are
recommended to cover a programme of archaeological work, building
recording, and details of foundations and piling design.

206. Therefore the development is in accordance with Local Plan
Policy DM 12.4 and London Plan Policy 7.8 and the Archaeology and
Development Guidance SPD.

Access and Inclusive Design

207. Developments should be designed and managed to provide for
the access needs of all communities, including the particular needs of
disabled people as required by policies CS10, DM10.1, DM10.5 and
DM10.8 of the Local Plan, policies HL1, S1 and S8 of the draft City
Plan 2036 and Policy D5 of the London Plan. In addition, Policy E10 of
the London Plan requires Visitor Infrastructure to be accessible.

208. The Proposed Development would provide:

e 10% wheelchair accessible bedrooms;

Page 68



e Step-free ramped access at the main entrance;

e Lifts would be the main means of vertical circulation within
the building and have been designed to accommodate a
variety of users, including wheelchair users;

e A cycle parking space to accommodate larger adapted
bicycles, meeting policy requirement;

e Accessible toilet facilities on the ground and first floor areas.

2009. Following comments from the Access Officer, the Applicant
amended the scheme including to: increase of the widths of and to
introduce passing points for corridors in Block B, introduce a platform
lift to enable step-free access to the first floor atrium, and to provide an
accessible toilet at first floor level.

210. The areas open to the public are level (aside from the atrium
space which will be served by a platform lift) and the main lifts would
bring wheelchair users up to the first floor where the reception and the
restaurant space is level with the reading room.

211. The Proposed Development would not provide a disabled car
parking space. There are disabled parking bays located near to the Site
at Giltspur Street (one space) and at Hosier Lane (three spaces).
People with mobility issues will be able to access the site by taxi, which
would be able to drop off outside the front door of the hotel, and by
national rail or bus, which are located at the top of Snow Hill on
Holborn Viaduct. City Thameslink, the national rail service on Holborn
Viaduct, has step free access to all platforms, and there are drop kerbs
at all crossings between the station to the development.

212. Conditions are recommended to ensure the facilities meet the
requirements for accessibility. This includes a requirement for the
Applicant to submit an Accessibility Management Plan. In addition, a
condition is recommended (Operational Management Plan) which
requires details of the management strategy for arrangements for
disabled car parking for guests.

213. The Access Officer welcomes the inclusive access to and within
the building which would meet the requirements of Local Plan and
London Plan.

Structural issues

214. The Applicant has provided a Structural Planning Report with
the submission detailing the proposed works. The details assess the
impact of the works on the listed building and neighbouring structures.
Conditions are recommended requiring details regarding structural
stability and monitoring while works are in progress and structural
issues will be addressed under Building Regulations.

Page 69



Design considerations for future redevelopment of surrounding sites

215. Local Plan Policy CS11 and Policy DM11.3 supports
development where it this would support, and not compromise, the
primary business or cultural role of the City or potential for future
business growth. The Policy states that hotels should not be located
where they would create amenity issues for neighbouring occupiers.

216. Local Plan Policy DM1.2 requires the promotion of the assembly
and development of sites for large office schemes in appropriate
locations and this includes resisting development and land uses in and
around potential large sites that would jeopardise their future assembly,
development and operation, unless there is no realistic prospect of the
site coming forward for redevelopment during the Plan period. It is
considered that listed building constraints mean there are no
opportunities for development for large office schemes nor potential
large sites in the vicinity that would be jeopardised by development on
the application site. Policy DM1.2 is not therefore, considered to apply.
Nevertheless, the impacts of the proposals for the development
potential of neighbouring sites has been considered.

217. The proposed development seeks to extend the existing building
line for the east and south sides of Block ‘B’. In addition, the
development seeks to introduce new windows on the flank wall facing 6
Snow Hill.

218. The Site adjoins a triangle of paved area which is owned by no.
6 Snow Hill and is currently used for parking purposes. An objection
was received from no. 6 Snow Hill stating that the provision of a green
wall and windows on the boundary line of their site could prejudice
future redevelopment of their site.

2109. Therefore, the green wall has been amended to be recessed
into the building of 5 Snow Hill and the Applicant has confirmed that
this will utilise an integrated irrigation system, with maintenance to take
place from the highway and through abseiling, neither of which will
require access via the land owned by no. 6 Snow Hill.

220. In addition, a condition is recommended that in the event that
the parking area of no.6 Snow Hill is to be redeveloped, the green wall
must be removed from the flank wall at no. 5 Snow Hill. This would
remove the potential for the future protection of the green wall and
allow no. 6 Snow Hill to build up to the boundary line without limitations.

221. Following concerns raised by the adjoining commercial
neighbours, the Applicant has recessed three proposed windows on
the boundary line with no. 6 Snow Hill and stated that they understand
these windows may be blocked in the future in the event that the
neighbour builds to the boundary line, the three recessed windows will

Page 70



be covered and served through an artificial circadian light source
instead of the daylight it would receive if approved.

222. The three windows from floors two to four are directly on the
boundary line with no. 6 Snow Hill. However, the other 11 windows
facing this neighbour are slightly recessed and seven of these are part
of a mansard roof element. Therefore, because these windows are not
located on the boundary line, these are not considered to jeopardise
future redevelopment of the Site. In any event, the Applicant has
agreed to provide privacy screens for the rooms on this elevation to
address overlooking and hence would not be significantly affected in
the event of re-development of the adjoining site.

223. The Applicant has addressed the proximity of windows to the
adjoining sites for the east and south elevations, where no objections
have been received specifically, and has amended the development to
move the locations of some windows to ensure the maximum distance
from the adjoining sites. The Applicant has also provided confirmation
that in the event of the neighbouring properties being redeveloped to
the boundary line of no. 5 Snow Hill, the glazing to the windows on the
south and east elevation will be removed and replaced with frosted or
obscured glass. A condition to secure this in the event of
redevelopment of these sites is proposed. This would ensure that the
future redevelopment of the adjoining site up to the boundary line was
not compromised.

224. In addition, a commercial neighbour raised the issue of the
cross-hatched brickwork on the external atrium wall as prejudicing
future redevelopment of the Site. However the design of the brickwork
itself is not considered to prejudice future redevelopment of the Site as
if the neighbour were to build to the boundary line, and thus the
external atrium wall, this would not block the only light source to the
atrium space, which serves as open publicly accessible space. The
atrium is also served by a rooflight which would allow light into the
space, and this could be supplemented by artificial lighting if required.

225. Therefore it is considered that the proposed changes to the
scheme adequately overcome the objections raised, and that the
proposed development will protect the amenity of the surrounding uses,
and would not prejudice any future re-development of the adjoining
sites in accordance with Local Plan policies DM1.2, CS11, and
DM11.3.

Impacts to amenity of surrounding uses

226. Local Plan Policies CS10, CS11, DM11.3, DM15.7, DM21.3 and
draft City Plan Policies HL3, HS3, CV3, S23, S24, and SB1, and
London Plan Policies D3, D6, D13, D14 seek to protect the amenity of
neighbouring uses, including residential, from adverse impacts of uses
including hotel and culture from noise, light pollution, daylight and

Page 71



sunlight and other amenity impacts.

227. Whilst there are likely to be impacts to the amenity of
surrounding occupiers as part of the development (and the draft City
Plan states these could be, for example, through noise nuisance or
traffic and servicing impacts) it is not considered there would be
unacceptable adverse impacts on amenity, including as a result of
cumulative impacts.

Privacy, Overlooking and sense of enclosure

228. The Proposed Development is in close proximity to its
neighbours, which comprise a mix of residential and commercial uses
which reflects the tight knit urban grain of this part of the City. Following
objections raised on the grounds of the impact of overlooking, the
Applicant has amended the drawings to demonstrate that internal
privacy screens will be fitted within specific windows to prevent views
towards the surrounding properties. This includes:

e For the elevation facing no. 6 Snow Hill: Four windows on the
fifth floor level and four windows on sixth floor level would have
privacy screens. The three windows on the seventh floor level
would not have privacy screens but would serve plant rooms
and a stairwell only therefore there are no concerns with
overlooking or privacy associated with these rooms. The
windows on the second to fourth floors have also been amended
to be recessed into the wall and the direction of the recessed
window will not face no. 6 Snow Hill and would be at a right
angle to this neighbour; these windows would have no views of
neighbouring windows.

e For the elevation facing 12 Cock Lane (to the east) and rear
elevation facing Snow Hill (south): the Applicant has confirmed
that in the event of the neighbouring properties being
redeveloped, these windows would be reviewed and internal
screens or frosted glass added to avoid privacy issues.

e For the north elevation directly facing Cock Lane, a total of 16
windows are proposed to be fitted with privacy screens to block
views towards neighbours.

229. A condition is recommended to agree the details of the privacy
screens and any obscured glazing prior to the relevant works for
windows, and to require their installation prior to occupation of the
relevant redeveloped neighbouring sites.

230. The commercial neighbour at no. 6 Snow Hill has stated
concerns regarding increased sense of enclosure. There is an existing
flank wall on the boundary line of no. 5 Snow Hill and the proposed
development will increase the massing facing no. 6 Snow Hill on the
boundary line with the main west elevation and the new infill atrium.
However, there remains space in the form of the existing hard

Page 72



landscaping of no.6 Snow Hill between the two buildings and both sites
are located in an urban context of dense development which is
evidenced by the other nearby sites. Therefore it is not considered that
the proposals would result in a sense of enclosure that would have a
significant adverse effect on the amenity of the commercial building
and therefore is in accordance with DM 11.3.

Cross-hatched brickwork to atrium

231. A neighbour has stated that the cross-hatched brickwork for the
external wall to the atrium affects the amenity of no. 6 Snow Hill. The
atrium would have internal glazing on the other side of the brickwork
thus there would be no noise transfer, although there could be limited
transfer of light via the modest perforations although it is not
considered that this would have a significant detrimental impact. A
lighting strategy is recommended as a condition, which would seek to
address light trespass to surrounding properties. In addition,
overlooking is not considered to be an issue in this instance as there
are no windows proposed in the atrium elevation.

Entrances, Servicing and Deliveries impact

232. There will be up to two servicing trips per day as a result of the
development. The S.106 Agreement would limit servicing trips to a
maximum of two and prohibit these trips from being at peak hours,
other than in consolidation with existing servicing trips to the West
Smithfield hotel for so long as they are owned/operated by the same
operator. In terms of cumulative impact with Citicape House, there will
be no additional new trips on the network as two servicing trips will be
consolidated with the existing hotel at West Smithfield. For all trips, the
Transport Statement states there will be a net increase however there
will be a decrease in the number of vehicle trips (taxis for the proposed
use) from the existing use. This assessment is considered acceptable.

233. In the Transport Assessment submitted with the application, the
consultant conducted a high level review of the Citicape House
proposals to understand the cumulative impact and determined there
would not be any conflicting issues from a transport perspective and
that the number of daily vehicle trips would be less than the existing
use at the site.

234. The location of the main entrance on Snow Hill is considered
acceptable, including as a drop off point for guests and for delivery and
servicing. For cumulative impact for servicing entrances, the loading
bay entrance for the West Smithfield Premier Inn is via Cock Lane.
Citicape House would be serviced through an internal loading bay
accessed via Snow Hill. The servicing and delivery for the proposed
development will take place on Snow Hill outside the main entrance.
For Citicape House, the internal loading bay is located to the west of
the Site therefore a significant distance away from the 5 Snow Hill

Page 73



entrance. Due to the constraints of the listed building, an internal
loading bay could not be accommodated, although a maximum of two
deliveries per day will be permitted in any event. The main entrance on
Snow Hill will be accessed by guests, public space and restaurant
visitors, staff, and for waste collection; this is considered appropriate as
this was the main entrance for the former police station therefore the
proposed development would not be introducing a new primary
entrance on Snow Hill.

235. No car parking, taxi or coach parking facilities are proposed as
part of the application. The Applicant has confirmed that a Section 106
obligation prohibiting coach parties would be acceptable.

236. The Transport Statement estimates that there would be 707
additional two-way trips which would comprise trips via vehicles (taxis),
public transport and walking compared with the lawful use of police
station, with the majority of the trips via public transport and walking.
However, the Transport Statement states there is likely to be a
reduction in vehicular traffic over the day, compared to the existing use.
This assessment is considered acceptable.

237. The Cleansing Team, the Transport Planning Team and
Transport for London had no objections to the proposals. Therefore,
considering a large proportion of the building is being retained, it is
considered the hotel will provide satisfactory arrangements for pick-up/
drop-off, service delivery vehicles, waste storage and taxis appropriate
to the size and nature of the development. Transport considerations
are discussed further in the Transport section.

Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing

Assessment Context

238. An assessment of the impact of the proposed development on
the daylight and sunlight received by surrounding residential buildings
has been submitted in support of the application. The effects of the
development have been assessed having regard to the
recommendations in Building Research Establishment (‘BRE’) Report
209, Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A Guide to Good
Practice (second edition, 2011). No overshadowing of open spaces
was assessed as there are no open spaces relevant to the proposal.

239. London Plan Policy D6 states that the design of development
should provide sufficient daylight and sunlight to surrounding housing
that is appropriate for its context. Local Plan Policy CS10 seeks to
ensure that the bulk, height, scale, massing, quality of materials and
detailed design of buildings are appropriate to the character of the City
and the setting and amenities of surrounding buildings and spaces.

Page 74



240. Policy DM10.7 of the Local Plan seeks to resist development
which would reduce noticeably the daylight and sunlight available to
nearby dwellings and open spaces to unacceptable levels, taking
account of the BRE guidelines. Draft City Plan Policy DES8 requires
development proposals to demonstrate that daylight and sunlight
available to nearby dwellings and open spaces is appropriate for its
context and provides acceptable living standards, taking account of the
BRE guidelines.

241. The BRE guidance advises that numerical values are not to be
rigidly applied but recognise the specific circumstances of each case.
Paragraph 3.10.41 of the Local Plan states that “The Building Research
Establishment (BRE) has issued guidelines that set out several
methods of assessing changes in daylight and sunlight arising from
new developments. The City Corporation will apply these methods,
consistent with BRE advice that ideal daylight and sunlight conditions
may not be practicable in densely developed city centre locations”.

242. The BRE guidelines state that “bedrooms should be analysed
although they are less important” and are therefore considered less
sensitive than other uses.

243. Paragraph 3.10.41 of the Local plan further states that when
considering proposed changes to existing lighting levels, the City
Corporation will take into account the cumulative effect of development
proposals on the amenity of existing residents. Local Plan Policy DM
11.3 requires that hotels do not result in adverse impacts on the
amenity of neighbouring occupiers, including cumulative impacts.

244, The assessment submitted in support of the application has
assessed the impact of the proposed development on the daylight and
sunlight received by the residential properties at: 32 Cock Lane; 35
Cock Lane; 37 Cock Lane (also referred to as '35-37’ Cock Lane); and
8-9 Giltspur Street. In addition, for the closest residential at 32 Cock
Lane, and at 35 Cock Lane, supplementary radiance assessments
have been submitted. For the addresses 32 and 35 Cock Lane,
referred to below, some of these properties are accessed via 10 Hosier
Lane.

245. The Applicant has undertaken a daylight and sunlight
assessment for two scenarios. These include:

e Existing baseline vs. Proposed Development (referred to as
‘existing vs. proposed’ scenario), with the proposed hotel only;
and

e Existing baseline vs Proposed Development and consented
development (referred to as ‘existing vs. cumulative’ scenario),
with the proposed hotel and the consented Citicape House
development.

Page 75



246. The impacts on daylight and sunlight levels were also
considered if the existing overhangs were removed, where relevant.

247. There is residential accommodation at the Watch House (10
Giltspur Street) and The Parvis (Holborn Viaduct) at the Holy Sepulchre
Church and the consultant has confirmed that a VSC study has been
undertaken to confirm that these properties would not experience any
material reduction in daylight and are thus outside the scope of further
detailed commentary.

248. The BRE Guidelines state in paragraph in 2.2.2 that the
Guidelines “may also be applied to any existing non-domestic building
where occupants have a reasonable expectation of daylight; this would
normally include... hotels and hostels, small workshops and some
offices.”

249. Following objections received, a supplementary letter
addressing the daylight impact to the commercial property at no. 6
Snow Hill was submitted including a radiance assessment. In addition,
the Daylight and Sunlight Assessment states it is aware of surrounding
commercial properties, including the existing nearby hotel at 24 - 30
West Smithfield, however the Consultant did not consider this to
require special need for daylight or have a high expectation of daylight
or sunlight that would warrant consideration. The Assessment further
states that the impact to the hotel is modest and due to the transient
nature of the property, the relative alterations were not considered and
states that most of the rooms maintain a similar level of retained
daylight appropriate for the location. This response is considered
acceptable.

Daylight impact

250. Regarding daylighting for residential properties, the vertical sky
component (‘VSC’) and daylight distribution tests (No Sky Line) have
been applied to 32 Cock Lane, 35 Cock Lane, 37 Cock Lane, and 8-9
Giltspur Street.

251. The VSC test measures the amount of skylight available at the
centre of a window on the external plane of the window wall. The BRE
guidelines state that a window which achieves a VSC of 27% or more
is considered to provide good levels of light. If with the proposed
development in place the figure is both less than 27% and reduced by
20% (0.8 times its former value) or more than the existing level, the
loss would be noticeable.

252. As the VSC calculation does not account for the size of the
window being tested, the size of the room that it lights or whether there
are multiple windows serving a room, the BRE guidelines recommend
that the results should be read in conjunction with those of a second
test: daylight distribution.

Page 76



253. The BRE Guidelines state that “If a room has two or more
windows of equal size, the mean of their VSCs may be taken”.

254, The daylight distribution test, also referred to as the No Sky Line
test (‘NSL’), calculates the areas of a working plane inside a room
(usually 0.85m above the finished floor level) that would or would not
have a direct view of the sky. The BRE guidelines state that if with the
proposed development in place the level of daylight distribution in a
room is reduced by 20% (0.8 times its former value) or more, the loss
would be noticeable.

255. In making assessments a judgement is made as to the level of
impact on affected windows. Where there is a less than 20% change in
VSC the effect is judged as to not be noticeable. Between 20-30% it is
judged to be minor adverse, 30-40% moderate adverse and over 40%
major adverse. All these figures will be impacted by factors such as
existing levels of daylight and sunlight and on site conditions. The
judgements that arise from these percentages do not form part of the
BRE Guide and have become part of an industry standard utilised by
Daylight and Sunlight specialists. It is for the Local Planning Authority
to decide whether any losses result in a reduction in amenity which is
or is not acceptable. This will depend on a whole number of
circumstances.

256. It should be noted that where there are existing low levels of
daylight in the baseline figures any change in the measured levels has
been generally described in two ways to give a more complete picture.
These are:

e Percentage change (10% reduced to 8% = 20% reduction); and
e Actual/Absolute change (10% reduced to 8% = 2% change).

257. A Radiance Assessment is a lighting simulation tool that
measures the individual ‘daylight factors’ at a number of given points
(usually based on a grid) within a room (or defined space). Similar to
measuring the ADF of a room, this method of assessment takes into
account the total glazed area to a room, the transmittance quality of the
glazing, the total area of the room’s internal surfaces, including ceilings
and floors, and their reflectance values (which may be actual or
reasonably assumed). The radiance method of assessment also takes
into account the quantum of light reflected off external surfaces,
including the ground and nearby buildings.

258. Whilst there is currently no established guidance regarding what
constitutes a ‘noticeable’ or ‘significant’ change in daylight when using
the BRE guidelines ADF formula or Radiance methodology, the
radiance based assessments can draw upon the BRE’s recommended
ADF target values. Radiance assessment results are presented as floor
plans colour rendered to illustrate the individual daylight factors within

Page 77



room, which range between 0% and 5%. The average value of the
individual daylight factors within a room can be expressed as an ADF
percentage for the room as a whole.

259. The application is supported by a Radiance Assessment, and
there is no separate ADF Assessment.

32 Cock Lane — Existing vs Proposed

260. Located to the north of the site, this building contains the nearest
residential properties to the development and is arranged over six
floors and a basement. The assessment considers the windows on the
facade facing the site. Windows at ground and basement level are
located below an existing overhang as the building steps out from the
first floor to fifth floor level. A total of 36 windows serving 14 rooms (Six
bedrooms and eight living/kitchen/dining rooms) have been assessed
for daylight from floorplans obtained by the consultant.

261. The consultant confirmed that there are windows within a
lightwell behind the assessed facade which include residential
properties which were are not included in the Assessment because a
VSC facade study has been undertaken to confirm these properties do
not experience any material reduction in daylight and thus are outside
the scope of further detailed commentary.

262. For VSC assessment, 22 of 36 windows (six of 14 rooms) tested
would meet the BRE criteria (i.e. experience no more than 20%
reduction in existing VSC) therefore impacts are considered not to be
noticeable. For the VSC for the remaining 14 windows (associated with
eight rooms):

¢ Six windows would experience minor adverse impacts
(reductions of 22%, 22%, 22%, 23%, 26% and 28%);

e Four would experience moderate adverse impacts (33%, 33%,
33% and 35%);

e Four would experience major adverse impacts (43%, 43%, 63%
and 69%).

263. All the major adverse reductions relate to windows that form a
multi-pane window for one room located at ground floor beneath an
existing overhang. However the highest level of existing daylight to
these windows is 1.6% against a recommended 27%. The absolute
percentage reduction would range from 0.2% to 0.7% and such small
alterations are likely to be imperceptible to the occupants.

264. For the four moderate adverse impacts, these relate to four
rooms located at basement, ground, third and fourth floors. Two of
these rooms are also served by another window which experiences a
reduction of 22% (slightly above the BRE criteria of 20% for a
noticeable impact) and the mean impact to windows serving these

Page 78



rooms would be considered minor adverse overall. The other two
rooms are underneath an existing overhang experiencing very low
existing daylight.

265. Of the six minor adverse impacts, these relate to five rooms
located at first, third, fourth, and fifth floors. The majority (four) of these
impacts are at 22% (slightly above BRE criteria of 20% for a noticeable
reduction). Two of these rooms are served by another window that
meets BRE for VSC.

266. Therefore overall, over 60% of windows meet BRE guidelines for
VSC. For the all windows experiencing reductions, the majority are
minor or moderate adverse, with all major impacts relating to a room at
ground floor with very low existing light levels. In addition, for the all
VSC reductions, half of these have absolute percentage changes of
less than 2% and such small alterations are likely to be imperceptible to
the occupants.

267. The BRE Guidelines recommends an additional VSC calculation
(‘no balcony’ assessment) without the obstruction or overhang to
ascertain whether this is the primary factor in the loss of light. This
assessment demonstrates that without the obstruction, eight of 36
windows would experience noticeable reductions. Six of these
reductions are minor adverse, and two are moderate adverse.
Therefore the existing overhang is considered to have a significant role
in the VSC reductions as six windows would become BRE compliant
when removing the obstruction.

268. The daylight distribution results (‘NSL’ assessment) demonstrate
that five of 14 rooms would experience reductions in daylight
distribution which are within the BRE guidelines criteria. Nine rooms
would experience noticeable reductions of over 20% and the majority
(eight rooms) would experience minor adverse impacts. One room
(located at ground floor underneath the existing overhang) would
experience a major adverse impact of 45% reduction. The large
majority of the impacts are minor adverse; therefore this is considered
acceptable in the dense urban environment.

32 Cock Lane — Existing vs. Cumulative

2609. For the cumulative daylight impact (VSC), the assessment
demonstrates that 20 of 36 windows tested would be BRE compliant.
Of the remaining 16 windows that experience noticeable reductions:

e Seven would experience minor adverse impact (20%, 22%,
22%, 23%, 25%, 28%, and 29%);

¢ Five would experience moderate adverse impacts (31%, 33%,
34%, 35%, and 37%);

Page 79



e Four would experience major adverse impacts (43%, 43%, 63%,
and 69%).

270. All the major adverse reductions relate to windows that form a
multi-pane window for one room located at ground floor beneath an
existing overhang. The highest level of existing daylight to these
windows is 1.6% against a recommended 27%. The absolute
percentage reduction would range from 0.2% to 0.7% and such small
alterations are likely to be imperceptible to the occupants.

271. For the five moderate adverse impacts, these relate to five
rooms located at basement, ground, third, fourth and fifth floors. Three
of these rooms are also served by another window which experiences
a minor adverse reduction (between 23% - 29%); two of these rooms
become minor adverse when taking the mean for the windows for
room. The other two rooms are at basement and ground floor
underneath an existing overhang experiencing very low existing
daylight and would experience an absolute percentage reduction of
0.1% - 0.4% and such small alterations are likely to be imperceptible to
the occupants.

272. Of the seven minor adverse impacts, these relate to six rooms
located at first to fifth floors. The majority (four) of these impacts range
between 20% - 23% (slightly above BRE criteria of 20% for a
noticeable reduction). Half of the six rooms are served by other BRE
compliant windows for VSC and one of these rooms becomes BRE
compliant when taking the mean for the windows for room.

273. Therefore overall, over 55% of windows meet BRE guidelines for
VSC. For the windows experiencing reductions, the majority are minor
or moderate adverse, with all major impacts relating to a room at
ground floor with very low existing light levels of between 0.4 — 1.6%
(against a target of 27%). In addition, for the VSC reductions, half of
these have absolute percentage changes of no more than 2% and such
small alterations are likely to be imperceptible to the occupants. The
absolute percentage changes range from 0.1 — 9.5%.

274. For cumulative ‘no balcony’ VSC calculation without the
obstruction, 10 of 36 windows would experience noticeable reductions.
Seven of these reductions are minor adverse, and three are moderate
adverse. Therefore the existing overhang is considered to be have a
significant role in the noticeable VSC reductions as six windows would
become compliant when removing the obstruction.

275. The daylight distribution test (NSL) for the cumulative scenario
demonstrates that one additional room would experience a noticeable
reduction of a 21% therefore considered to be minor adverse and
slightly above the 20% which BRE states will be noticeable. There are
increases to the reductions that the nine rooms which experience

Page 80



noticeable reductions in the non-cumulative proposed scenario
however these remain as eight minor adverse impacts and one major
adverse impact. The large majority of the impacts are minor adverse;
therefore this is considered acceptable in the dense urban
environment.

35 Cock Lane — existing vs proposed

276. Located to the north of the site and adjoining 32 Cock Lane, this
building contains residential properties and is arranged over eight floors
and a basement. The assessment considers the windows on the
facade facing the site. The ground floor and basement windows are
located below an overhang from the first floor. The consultant has
assumed that 36 windows serve 32 rooms for the assessment.

277. For VSC assessment, one of 36 windows would experience a
noticeable reduction of over 20%. Therefore, 35 windows are BRE
compliant. The one window that would experience a reduction of 26%
is a ground floor window below an existing overhang, the reduction is
considered to minor adverse and the room has low existing daylight of
2.2%. The absolute percentage reduction would be 0.6%

278. For the ‘no balcony’ VSC assessment, the non-compliant
window becomes compliant. Therefore all windows would be BRE
compliant in this scenario therefore the overhang is considered to be a
primary factor in the reduction.

279. For the NSL assessment, three of 32 rooms experience
reductions beyond 20%, which BRE state would be noticeable. These
rooms are located at the ground, first and second floors. Two of these
reductions are between 22 — 24% therefore considered minor adverse.
One room experiences a moderate adverse reduction of 33% however
this is recessed room at ground floor.

35 Cock Lane — Existing vs. Cumulative

280. For the cumulative daylight impact (VSC), the assessment
demonstrates that 33 of 36 windows remain BRE compliant; therefore
two additional windows would experience noticeable reductions from
the non-cumulative proposed scenario. One of these windows would
receive 80% reduction therefore considered to be major adverse,
however this window would be BRE compliant with the 5 Snow Hill
proposal only, without Citicape House, and would experience only a
6.3% reduction (20% is considered noticeable) in the proposed
scenario therefore this represents a very small proportion of the loss in
the cumulative scenario. The other two windows would experience
reductions of 39% (major adverse) at ground floor, and 23% (minor
adverse) at first floor level.

Page 81



281. In the cumulative ‘no balcony’ VSC scenario, one of the three
windows in the cumulative scenario would become BRE compliant and
the other two windows would experience minor adverse reductions. In
addition, one additional window experiences minor adverse reduction
at basement level.

282. For the cumulative daylight distribution assessment (NSL), six of
the 32 rooms experience noticeable reductions. These reductions
include two minor adverse impacts at first floor and second floor level
with reductions between 21% - 29%. One room at first floor would
experience a moderate impact of 33%. There are two major adverse
impacts of 49% and 78% for rooms recessed at ground floor. For the
room experiencing a reduction of 49%, this experiences a moderate
adverse reduction in the proposed scenario without Citicape House
with a reduction of 33%. The room experiencing a reduction of 78% is
BRE compliant in the proposed scenario without Citicape House with a
reduction of only 15%.

Daylight Radiance Assessment for 32 Cock Lane and 35 Cock Lane

283. The radiance assessment results demonstrate that there would
be reductions in daylight to the affected rooms. However in the existing
scenario, all rooms experience less than 2% daylight (ADF) to the
majority of the room area, therefore suggesting electrical lighting would
be required as per BRE Guidelines. For the proposed scenario, where
there are reductions in daylight, the absolute reductions in ADF do not
exceed 0.33%. The rooms will continue to experience less than 2%
daylight (ADF) throughout a majority of the room area. It is considered
there will be no material difference between the proposed scenario and
the cumulative scenario.

37 Cock Lane — existing vs proposed

284. The consultant prepared a supplementary report to address the
daylight impacts at this property. The report states that the building is
comprised of office use at ground and basement levels, with residential
use from first to sixth floor. The consultant has assessed 39 windows
serving 25 habitable rooms.

285. All windows and rooms experience alterations of daylight (VSC

and NSL) of less than 20%, which BRE states will be unnoticeable. The
greatest alteration of VSC is 3%.

37 Cock Lane — existing vs cumulative

286. For the cumulative scenario, 13 of 39 windows experience
noticeable reductions of VSC with the impacts between 21 — 29%
therefore considered to be minor adverse, which can be attributed to
the Citicape House development.

Page 82



287. For cumulative NSL, 12 of 25 rooms experience noticeable
reductions with four of these as moderate adverse (up to 39%) and in
the proposed scenario without Citicape House, these reductions range
from 0% - 5.6% and therefore would be BRE compliant and considered
a negligible impact; and two of these rooms are bedrooms which are
considered less important in BRE guidelines. Eight rooms experience
minor adverse impacts however in the proposed scenario without
Citicape House, six of these rooms experience 0% reduction and the
remaining two experience reductions of only 1.2% and 1.4% therefore
would be BRE compliant and considered a negligible impact.

288. Overall the cumulative impact is considered acceptable.

8-9 Giltspur Street

289. The rear elevation of the property is located to the south-east of
the site and overlooks the proposed development. The consultant has
assumed room layouts and room depths from external observation.
Nine windows servicing five habitable rooms have been assessed.

290. All windows and rooms assessed are fully BRE compliant for
VSC and for NSL. The greatest VSC impact is 3% and BRE states that
reductions below 20% will not be noticeable. In the cumulative
scenario, the windows and rooms remain BRE compliant for daylight.

Non-domestic properties — 6 Snow Hill

291. The dense urban environment of the City is such that the
juxtaposition of commercial buildings is a characteristic that often
results in limited daylight and sunlight levels to those premises.
Commercial buildings in such locations require artificial lighting and are
not reliant on natural daylight and sunlight to allow them to function as
intended, indeed many buildings incorporate basement level floorspace
or internal layouts at ground floor and above without the benefit of
direct daylight and sunlight.

292. Following representations received from no. 6 Snow Hill (office
use), a radiance assessment was carried out to measure the daylight
impacts to the property. The assessment includes rooms served by
windows facing the development and facing north. The property is
comprised ground and five upper storeys.

293. The radiance results demonstrate that all rooms on all floors
currently experience an ADF of less than 5% (defined by BRE as a
“well daylit space”), and that the ground to fourth floors (except one
room) currently experience less than 2% ADF. Below 2% a room will
look dull and electric lighting is likely to be required. The radiance
diagrams indicate that there will be small changes to the daylight
pooling however this is not considered to be significant. In the

Page 83



cumulative scenario, it is considered that there is no material difference
to the impact.

294, Whilst there will be some loss of daylight as a result of the
proposed development, BRE Guidance and Local Plan policy does not
expect losses of light to standard commercial premises to be taken into
account when assessing the proposal except in special circumstances.
In addition, the existing low light levels and use of electric lighting and
the computer-based operations at no. 6 Snow Hill, do not indicate that
the continued office use of the building would be adversely affected.

Sunlight Impact for Annual Probable Sunlight Hours

295. Regarding sunlight, the BRE guidance recommends that all
main living rooms of dwellings should be checked if they have a
window facing within 90 degrees of due south. The available sunlight is
measured in terms of the percentage of annual probable sunlight hours
(APSH) at the centre point of the window. Probable sunlight hours is
defined as “the long-term average of the total number of hours during a
year in which direct sunlight reaches the unobstructed ground (when
clouds are taken into account)”. Sunlighting of a dwelling may be
adversely affected if the centre of the window:

e Receives less than 25% of annual probable sunlight hours, or
less than 5% of annual probable sunlight hours between 21
September and 21 March and

e Receives less than 0.8 times its former sunlight hours during
either period and

e Has a reduction in sunlight received over the whole year greater
than 4% of annual probable sunlight hours.

296. To clarify, all three of the above criteria need to be met for there
to be an adverse impact in sunlight terms.

32 Cock Lane

297. A total of 13 of 14 rooms are BRE compliant for APSH. The one
affected room would retain 19% annual sunlight against a target of 25%
and the absolute reduction is 7% and the room is served by another
BRE compliant window. The impact is considered minor adverse.
There are no material differences in the cumulative scenario.

35 Cock Lane

298. A total of 31 of 32 rooms experience fully BRE compliant
reductions for APSH. However the room adversely affected would
retain 24% of annual sunlight against a BRE target of 25%. The
absolute reduction to the room is 5%.

299. For the cumulative scenario, five of 32 rooms experience
reductions that is considered may be adverse for APSH. Four of the

Page 84



rooms would experience between 22-23% APSH against a 25% target
in the cumulative scenario. The remaining room is recessed and
located at ground level an experiences low existing annual sunlight
levels (9% against target of 25%) with an absolute percentage
reduction of 7%.

37 Cock Lane

300. All rooms assessed experience fully BRE compliant APSH in the
existing vs. proposed scenario. For the cumulative scenario, five of 25
rooms would not meet BRE however four of these would retain annual
sunlight of between 21% - 24% against a target of 25%.

8-9 Giltspur Street

301. There is one room material for assessment, and the room is fully
BRE compliant with the proposed development in place. In the
cumulative scenario, the room remains BRE compliant for sunlight.

Overall Conclusion on Daylight and Sunlight impacts

302. The assessments have been reviewed and the methodology and
conclusions are considered to be reliable.

Daylight

303. Overall, the assessments submitted in support of the application
demonstrate that there would be noticeable loss of daylight in a number
of rooms within 32 Cock Lane and 35 Cock Lane in the proposed
scenario (without Citicape House), however the majority of these are
considered to be minor adverse. In the cumulative scenario (including
Citicape House), there are additional reductions however the majority
of impacts are minor adverse. The only major impact relates to a
recessed single room at ground floor with low existing light levels.

304. For 35 Cock Lane, the large majority of windows and rooms are
BRE compliant for daylight in the proposed and cumulative scenarios.

305. In addition, there are existing site circumstances to consider
including existing overhangs above the ground and basement windows,
and existing low daylight levels. The results demonstrate that the
overhangs have a significant role in the amount of daylight received as
seven windows would become BRE compliant across 32 and 35 Cock
Lane when removing this obstruction in the existing vs. proposed
scenario.

306. The radiance results for 32 Cock Lane, and 35 Cock Lane
demonstrate that all rooms currently experience less than 2% daylight

Page 85



(ADF) to the majority of the room area, therefore electrical lighting
would be required as per BRE Guidelines. For the proposed scenario,
where there are reductions in daylight, these do not exceed 0.33%. The
rooms will continue to experience less than 2% daylight (ADF)
throughout a majority of the room area. The images suggest the
daylight experienced in the rooms will be of a similar level with 5 Snow
Hill in place and in the cumulative scenario which is reflected in the
limited reduction in ADF levels for the four ground floor rooms (two in
No0.32 and two in No. 35) which range between 0.01 to 0.06 reduction
from existing levels which is considered to be negligible. This radiance
analysis demonstrates that whilst these rooms would experience
reductions in VSC and NSL, the change in daylight experienced would
be minimal.

307. For 8-9 Giltspur Street and 37 Cock Lane, all rooms are BRE
compliant with the proposed development at 5 Snow Hill in place. In the
cumulative scenario, 37 Cock Lane experiences noticeable reductions
due to the proximity to the Citicape House scheme however the
majority of impacts are considered to be minor adverse.

308. For the impact to the commercial property at 6 Snow Hill, the
radiance assessment demonstrates that all rooms on all floors currently
experience an ADF of less than 5% (defined by BRE as a “well daylit
space”), with all rooms except on the ground to fourth floors currently
experiencing less than 2% ADF. Below 2% a room will look dull and
electric lighting is likely to be required. The radiance diagrams indicate
that there will be small changes to the daylight pooling however this is
not considered to be significant. In the cumulative scenario, it is
considered that there is no material difference to the impact.

Sunlight

3009. For sunlight, one room at 32 Cock Lane and one room at 35
Cock Lane would not meet BRE criteria; with the majority of rooms
meeting BRE guidelines; and these rooms would retain 19% and 24%
respectively (against a target of 25%). In the cumulative scenario, there
would be additional reductions although the majority of rooms would
continue to meet BRE guidelines.

310. The windows at 37 Cock Lane would be BRE compliant in the
proposed scenario however there would be noticeable reductions in the
cumulative scenario, due to the proximity of the Citicape House
development, although the majority of the rooms would retain annual
sunlight of between 21% - 24% against a target of 25%.

311. There are no adverse reductions for 8-9 Giltspur Street in the
proposed or the cumulative scenario.

Page 86



Conclusion

312. Whilst there are some adverse impacts, some of these have
existing circumstances which need to be considered, including low
levels of existing daylight or sunlight or existing overhangs above the
window restricting the level of light received. In addition, is important to
consider that Cock Lane is a narrow street and therefore a modest
increase in height is likely to have daylight and sunlight impacts.

313. Taking account of the scale of the impacts, including cumulative
impacts, and that the Local Plan acknowledges that ideal daylight and
sunlight conditions may not be practicable in densely developed City
locations, it is considered that living standards would be acceptable
and relevant daylight policies would not be breached.

314. Therefore, overall, the daylight and sunlight impacts are
considered acceptable in this dense urban location.

315. As such, for daylight and sunlight impact, the proposal is not
considered to conflict with London Plan Policy D6, Local Plan Policies
CS10 and DM10.7, and draft City Plan 2036 Policy DE8. However due
to the adverse impacts, which are considered to be acceptable in line
with Local Plan Policy DM10.7, the proposal is contrary to an element
of Policy DM11.3 (4) for hotels which requires there are no adverse
impacts to neighbouring occupiers. This conflict also applies for draft
City Plan Policy CV3 (2).

Environmental Considerations
Air quality

316. Local Plan 2015 policy CS15 seeks to ensure that developments
positively address air quality. Policy DE1 of the draft City Plan 2036
states that London Plan carbon emissions and air quality requirements
should be met on sites and policy HL2 requires all developments to be
at least Air Quality Neutral, developers will be expected to install non-
combustion energy technology where available, construction and
deconstruction must minimise air quality impacts and all combustion
flues should terminate above the roof height of the tallest part of the
development. The requirements to positively address air quality and be
air quality neutral are supported by policy SI1 of the London Plan.

317. Policy DM15.6 requires developers to consider the impact of
their proposals on air quality and encourages the installation of non-
combustion low and zero carbon energy technology.

318. The submitted Air Quality Assessment concludes that there
should be no significant impacts on air quality due to the development.
The application predicts the development will reduce vehicle trips to the
building by 96 two way vehicle movements (Annual Average Daily

Page 87



Traffic) which would benefit the local air quality. The proposed
development will utilise an electric heat pump system which is
welcomed in regards to air quality. The development meets both the
transport and building emissions benchmarks for the Air Quality Neutral
Assessment.

3109. The development would be car free. Vehicle trips would be
generated from servicing and delivery vehicles however this would
represent up to two trips per day.

320. The City’s Air Quality Officer have reviewed the assessment,
which is considered acceptable, and has no objections to the proposal
and recommends that relevant conditions are applied.

321. During demolition and construction dust emissions would
increase and would need to be controlled in order to avoid significant
impacts. Mitigation measures and dust control measures would need to
be put in place on the construction site. Details of the dust control
measures would be required by condition prior to the commencement
of development as part of a scheme of protective works.

322. A condition is recommended for an Air Quality Report to be
submitted and approved in writing prior to any plant being
commissioned or installed on the building to ensure the proposed
development does not have a detrimental impact on air quality and
reduces exposure to poor air quality.

323. Subject to the compliance with conditions, the proposed
development would accord with Local Plan 2015 policy CS15, policies
HL2 and DEL1 of the draft City Plan 2036, and Policy SI1 of the London
Plan which all seek to improve air quality.

Noise and vibration

324. Policy DM15.7 of the Local Plan states that noise and vibration
from deconstruction and construction activities must be minimised and
mitigation measures put in place to limit noise disturbance in the vicinity
of the development. The Policy also requires the consideration of the
impact of operational use on neighbours and any conflict between uses
should be minimised.

325. Generally, in City redevelopment schemes most noise and
vibration issues occur during demolition and early construction phases.
Noise and vibration mitigation, including control over working hours and
types of equipment to be used, would be included in a Scheme of
Protective Works to be approved by condition which has been
recommended in this case.

326. The Applicant has submitted a Noise Impact Assessment for the
proposed new plant. The development would include new mechanical

Page 88



plant which would be located at seventh floor, roof and basement
levels, and would include extract fans, heat pumps and condenser
units. The plant areas at roof level will be surrounded by a combination
of solid mansard roof and acoustic louvre screens which will provide
attenuation in addition to air flow require by the heat pumps. To ensure
that noise from plant is adequately closed and minimised conditions are
required related to plant noise and vibration.

327. All deliveries would take place on street with these potentially
taking place at peak times. However the development would not result
in more than two deliveries per day therefore this is considered to have
a negligible impact in terms of noise associated with unloading.

328. In addition, the hotel entrance and servicing activities are
proposed to take place from Snow Hill which is located further away
from the Cock Lane residential properties therefore this minimises the
impact of these arrivals.

329. The hotel use will require low noise levels at night to provide
high-quality visitor accommodation. The Cultural Uses are not
anticipated to have a detrimental impact to the surrounding as these
areas are all internal and public access will cease by 7pm. There are
no accessible roof terrace spaces proposed as part of the development
therefore no terrace-related noise as a result of the development. The
development would be subject to an Operational Management Plan, to
be approved by condition, to minimise disruption.

330. No unacceptable adverse noise issues are anticipated from the
operation of the hotel which will not have accessible roof terraces, no
night-time uses (restaurant open until 10pm), and the proposed plant
will be subject to the standard plant conditions requiring that noise
emitted from any new plant shall be lower than the existing background
level by at least 10 dBA. Furthermore, noise would need to be limited
as the hotel represents a noise-sensitive use.

331. Therefore, subject to recommended conditions, the development
is in accordance with Local Plan Policies DM11.3, DM 15.7 and
DM21.3.

Light Pollution

332. Local Plan Policy DM15.7 and draft City Plan 2036 Policy DE9
requires that development should incorporate measures to reduce light
spillage particularly where it would impact adversely on neighbouring
occupiers, the wider public realm and biodiversity. Policy DE9 states
that external lighting of heritage assets must be sympathetic to the
building and wider context.

Page 89



333. Light pollution is not considered to be a pertinent issue for this
development due to the low prevalence of glazed facade however the
requirement for the applicant to provide a lighting strategy to be agreed
as part of condition discharge has been recommended in accordance
with the adopted Lighting strategy.

334. For the fagade directly facing Cock Lane, this is partially retained
therefore retains the same window openings at ground to third floors.
There are additional windows at floors four to seven. For the facade
facing no. 6 Snow Hill, 14 new windows are proposed however three of
these will be recessed. In addition, an atrium wall is proposed at the
rear of the site with cross-hatched brickwork and no windows. There is
no large area of glazing proposed.

335. Therefore, due to the size of the windows and nature of the use
where lights are expected to be turned off during the night, no
significant lighting pollution effects or light trespass are anticipated as
part of the proposals.

336. No external lighting is proposed as part of the application
however the condition recommended for a full Lighting Strategy will
require these details, including or the replica lamps on Snow Hill.

337. Subject to the recommended condition, the proposed

development would comply with the Local Plan Policy DM15.7 and
draft City Plan 2036 policy DE9.

Construction impacts

338. The Applicant submitted a Construction Environment
Management Plan (‘CEMP’) with the application which sets out
measures to mitigate construction impact for surrounding uses.

339. Concerns have been raised by neighbours for the impact of
construction activities, in particular following recent disruption from a
nearby hotel site at West Smithfield. The neighbour at no. 6 Snow Hill
objected to the CEMP on various grounds including stating it would
cause harm to the occupiers, that the relevant permissions including
access via, and oversailing of, land in no. 6 Snow Hill's ownership
would not be granted for the works set out in the CEMP, and to the
vehicle access proposals.

340. The Applicant subsequently amended the CEMP in response to
the concerns of representations from no. 6 Snow Hill to include options
for rebuilding the wall facing no. 6 Snow Hill within the boundary of no.
5 Snow Hill, to be utilised if use of the hardscaped area in the
ownership of no. 6 Snow Hill is not agreed between the parties. The
revised CEMP also includes a commitment for further iterations of the

Page 90



CEMP to be finalised with the City and the neighbouring occupiers to
the Site.

341. The Environmental Team have reviewed the revised CEMP and
raised no objections and have recommended two conditions for a
Scheme of Protective works to limit the impacts of the construction of
the development in terms of noise, dust and vibration; this is required
prior to demolition and prior to construction.

342. In addition, a Deconstruction Logistics Plan, a Construction
Logistics Plan, would be secured through conditions.

343. Negative impacts during construction would be controlled as far
as possible by the implementation of a robust Scheme of Protective
Works and good site practices embodied therein; it is recognised that
there are inevitable, albeit temporary consequences of development in
a tight-knit urban environment. Details for cumulative impacts have not
been provided to include Citicape House however this represents a
temporary impact to amenity and it not possible to ascertain whether
the developments will be constructed at similar times. The Transport
Assessment Addendum states that it is understood construction will be
choreographed with any construction at Citicape House, providing both
schemes are delivered simultaneously, and that this is encouraged. In
any event, robust conditions are proposed to mitigate deconstruction
and construction impacts of no. 5 Snow Hill.

344. Representations have been received from no.6 Snow Hill stating
that it is not possible to build the development as proposed without
relevant permission, for example crane oversailing. Although this is not
specifically a material planning consideration, the recommended
conditions requiring a Scheme of Protective Works, and Deconstruction
and Construction Logistics Plans require the Applicant to engage with
the neighbouring occupiers in the preparation of the information.

345. The construction of the proposed development would have an
impact on the surrounding uses however the conditions proposed are
considered to be adequate to mitigate this impact and to address
concerns raised by residents. Therefore, subject to recommended
conditions, the proposals are in accordance with Local Plan Policies
CS16 and DM16.1.

Contaminated Land

346. A Contaminated Land assessment has been provided which
suggests recommendations for site surveys required at the site.
Therefore, a pre-commencement condition has been recommended to
ensure a detailed site investigation is carried out to establish if the Site
is contaminated and to determine the potential for pollution of the water

Page 91



environment. This is in accordance with Policy DM15.8 of the Local
Plan.

Conclusion for overall impact to amenity of neighbouring uses

347. Therefore for the overall impact to the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers, including cumulative impacts, it is considered the proposed
development complies with London Plan Policies D13 and D14, Local
Plan Policies CS10, CS11, DM15.7, DM21.3 and draft City Plan
Policies, HL3, HS3, S23, S24, and SB1.

348. As outlined above, for daylight and sunlight impact, the proposal
is not considered to conflict with London Plan Policy D6, Local Plan
Policies CS10 and DM10.7, and draft City Plan 2036 Policy DES.
However due to the adverse impacts, which are considered to be
acceptable in line with Local Plan Policy DM10.7, the proposal is
contrary to an element of Policy DM11.3 (4) for hotels which requires
there are no adverse impacts to neighbouring occupiers; in addition,
this applies to CV3 (2).

Sustainability Considerations

349. The City of London Climate Action Strategy supports the
delivery of a net zero, climate resilient City. The agreed actions most
relevant to the planning process relate to the development of a
renewable energy strategy in the Square Mile, to the consideration of
embedding carbon analysis, circular economy principles and climate
resilience measures into development proposals and to the promotion
of the importance of green spaces and urban greening as natural
carbon sinks, and their contribution to biodiversity and overall
wellbeing.

Energy and Carbon Emissions

350. The Energy Strategy is based on an all-electric system utilising
air source heat pumps. The Energy Statement accompanying the
application demonstrates that the Proposed Development has been
designed to achieve regulated CO, savings of 68% when measured
against a Part L baseline which comprises a 66% reduction for new
build aspects and 69% for refurbished aspects. In addition, Air Source
Heat Pumps and photovoltaic (PV) arrays with a roof coverage of 76
sgm are proposed. The carbon emissions savings due to the
incorporation of renewable technologies amount to 51% reduction over
the baseline case.

Page 92



351. The proposed energy demand reduction strategy would reduce
the building’s operational carbon emissions by 17% compared to a
Building Regulations compliant building.

352. The new elements of building fabric have been specified to
exceed the minimum standards set out within the Building Regulations,
whilst the retained and historic elements have been upgraded to meet
the minimum requirements of Part L1B.

353. The proposed energy demand reduction measures include:

e Energy efficient light fittings and controls;

¢ Installation of high efficiency centralised mechanical ventilation
system and individual heat recovery units;

e Efficient building services and control systems; and

¢ A Building Management System with submetering will be
installed to allow for the metering of 100% of energy
consumption on Site.

354. There are currently no proposals to connect the development to
an existing or planned district heating network. A future extension is
proposed to the Citigen Heat Network running through Snow Hill.
Provision has been made for future connection to the network through
additional plant and riser space to be included to accommodate
required equipment and soft points in walls to allow for easy
adaptation.

355. Natural ventilation is not proposed due to operational, safety and
security concerns of the applicants. The lack of incorporating natural
ventilation is a disappointing element to the scheme however overall,
this is mitigated by the high carbon savings, including incorporating
heat recovery from the mechanical ventilation system.

356. The energy strategy demonstrates compliance with the London
Plan carbon targets. A Section 106 obligation is recommended
requiring reconfirmation of this energy strategy approach at completion
stage and a carbon offsetting contribution to account for any shortfall
against London Plan targets for the completed building. There will also
be a requirement to monitor and report the post-construction energy
performance to ensure that actual operational performance is in line
with the GLA’s zero carbon target in the London Plan.

BREEAM Assessment

357. BREEAM (new construction) 2018 pre-assessment has been
carried out, demonstrating that the building will achieve an “Excellent”
rating. The Applicant considers an “Excellent” rating to be the highest

Page 93



feasible and viable rating based on the constraints of the existing listed
building.

358. The assessment indicates acceptable scores in the City’s priority
categories and particularly high scores in the energy category where
only few credits cannot be targeted due to the constraints of the site,
including the partial retention of the existing structure and facade,
limiting the ability to implement energy efficient measures and free
cooling measures.

359. A condition has been included requiring the submission of a

post-construction BREEAM assessment demonstrating the target rating
of “Excellent” as a minimum has been achieved.

Circular Economy and Waste

360. London Plan Policy SI7 (‘Reducing waste and supporting the
circular economy’) sets out a series of circular economy principles for
development proposals to follow and Circular Economy Statements are
required for referable schemes; the Applicant has provided this despite
not being a development referable to the Mayor. Emerging City Plan
2036 Policy S16 sets out the City’s support for Circular Economy
principles, and the emerging Plan would require all major development
to submit a Circular Economy Statement.

361. The Proposed Development would be predominantly new-build,
however due to the historic importance of the building, the Applicant
estimates that 30 — 35% of the existing building is to be retained,
including:

Block A

e Retention of the existing building from ground level to fourth floor
level (with removal of existing mansard roof at fifth floor level);

e At basement level to fourth floor, retention of the majority of
internal structures in the Block including two staircases.

Block B

¢ Retention of facade directly facing Cock Lane from basement
level to third level and part of fourth floor level;

e Walls retained at sub-basement level in Block ‘B’;

e Retention of Reading Room in the Block and a staircase.

362. The mansard roof of Block ‘A’ at fifth floor level and the link
building between the two blocks are to be demolished.

363. The extent of demolition of Block ‘B’ is due to the multiple level

changes within the Site which would restrict hotel servicing, mechanical
services, and step-free access in large parts of the building.

Page 94



364. The Applicant states that the level of retention is considered
optimal as it retains a proportion of the existing structure and fabric and
claims that any greater degree of retention would encounter a high
degree of complexity and structural engineering together with design
compromise due to the multiple level changes across the site and
constraints imposed by the structure.

365. An initial Demolition Recovery Assessment has been carried out
to provide an estimate of the quantity of materials as well as their
suitability for reuse or recycling. A pre-refurbishment and demolition
audit will be carried out to determine capacity for materials to be
retained, reused and recycled and a condition has been recommended
to ensure this.

366. The Applicant states that the approach will be for minimal
excavation waste to be created. The excavation is limited to the
extension to the existing sub-basement, the stairwell access and lift
pits. Where excavation occurs, waste will be reused as much as
possible on site. The London Plan target for excavation waste/material
to be used for beneficial use is 95%; the Applicant has confirmed they
will seek to meet the target.

367. The Applicant has set a target for 70% by volume of the
construction waste to be reused, recycled or backfilled as per
BREEAM. The London Plan target is 95%. The Applicant states they
undertook the circular economy workshop and strategy from March to
September 2020 with the new London Plan being adopted in March
2021 and therefore targets set as part of our input were agreed prior to
the formal adoption of the 95% target. However, a condition is
recommended requiring the Applicant to meet the current targets set by
the GLA.

368. London Plan Policy SI7 requires the design to provide adequate,
flexible, and easily accessible storage space and collection systems
that support the separate collection of dry recyclables (at least card,
paper, mixed plastics, metals, glass) and food. The development
provides storage for this area.

3609. The submitted Circular Economy Statement demonstrates the
strategic approach of the Proposed Development including design for
longevity, modularity, a high degree of standardisation and to ensure
that material use is responsible and of low carbon impact.

370. The London Plan requires circular economy performance to be
monitored and reported. The Applicant has confirmed that targets for
reduction, reuse, and recycling will be integrated into the specification
for the main contractor Employers Requirements and performance
against these targets will be aligned with the commercial agreement
with the main contractor.

Page 95



371. In addition, the Applicant proposes to produce a Construction
Waste Management Plan (CWMP) to monitor waste generated on site;
set targets for minimising the amount of waste generated on site; and
sorting, reuse and recycling of construction waste.

372. The Applicant (Whitbread Group PLC) have created an
approach with goals including the elimination of unnecessary single-
use plastic by 2025, 50% reduction in food waste by 2030, and not
sending any routine operational waste to landfill.

373. Overall, the partial retention of existing structure and the
intentions stated for: the new build elements; the minimising and reuse
or recycling of construction waste; and managing operational waste,
are positive elements of the Proposed Development.

374. A pre-commencement Circular Economy Assessment update
and a post-completion update in line with the Mayor’s guidance on
Circular Economy Assessments to confirm full details and achievement
of the planning stage intentions have been requested by conditions.
These assessments will be expected to demonstrate that the relevant
targets set out in the GLA Circular Economy Guidance can be and
have been met.

Whole Life-Cycle (WLC) carbon emissions

375. London Plan Policy SI 2 (Minimising greenhouse gas emissions)
encourages applicants for major development proposals to submit a
Whole Life-Cycle Carbon assessment against each life-cycle module,
relating to the product sourcing stage, construction stage, the building
in use stage and the end-of-life stage. The assessment captures a
building’s operational carbon emissions from both regulated and
unregulated energy use, as well as its embodied carbon emissions,
and it takes into account potential carbon emissions benefits from the
reuse or recycling of components after the end of the building’s life.
The assessment is therefore closely related to the Circular Economy
assessment that sets out the contribution of the reuse and recycling of
existing building materials on site and of such potentials of the
proposed building materials, as well as the longevity, flexibility and
adaptability of the proposed design on the Whole Life-Cycle Carbon
emissions of the building. The Whole Life-Cycle Carbon assessment is
therefore an important tool to achieve the Mayor’s net carbon target.

376. The submitted Whole Life-Cycle carbon assessment results
confirm that the greatest savings in embodied carbon emissions derive
from the retention of the existing facades and structures, and the use of
a cement replacement for elements of the frame as well as up to 50%
cement replacement for the piles to reduce embodied carbon over the
life cycle.

Page 96



377. The whole life-cycle carbon emissions for the proposed
development are in line with the GLA’s aspirational WLC benchmarks.

378. Confirmation of the strategy including further improvements from
the detailed design stage, and confirmation of the post-construction
results have been requested through conditions.

Overheating

379. Draft Local Plan policies S15 and CR1 states that developers
will be required to demonstrate their developments have been
designed to reduce the risk of overheating.

380. An Overheating Assessment has been undertaken. The design
of the building does not include significant glazed facades and
incorporates urban greening to improve evaporative cooling.

Mechanical ventilation is proposed to prevent overheating of the hotel
including bedrooms.

Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage

381. London Plan Policy SI12 and Local Plan Policy CS18 require
that development ensure flood risk is mitigated and minimised. The use
of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) is supported by Local Plan

policies CS18 and DM18.2, Policy CR3 of the draft City Plan, and
London Plan Policy SI13.

382. The Site is not within the City Flood Risk Area and is within the
Environment Agency’s (EA) Flood Map for Planning in Flood Zone 1,
an area with a low probability of flooding.

383. The existing site discharges via a sewer towards the combined
sewer in Snow Hill. The internal network below ground is combined,
with gullies and rainwater pipes running into foul water runs at

basement level. All gullies are shown as trapped and interceptor trap is
provided at the outfall manhole.

384. The Flood Risk Assessment states that the risk from flooding
from all sources is considered low risk. A combined blue and green roof
is proposed on Block B with a catchment for the blue roof of 468 sgm.
The water will be collected within the blue roof, which is a shallow
water holding layer below the roof surface. This is then drained with

pipework for a controlled discharge to the sewer. No attenuation tank is
proposed in the basement.

Page 97



385. The Drainage Strategy states that the blue roof equates to a
total of 57 sgm of storage, reducing runoff by 0.8l/s whilst collecting
water for irrigation of the green roof. The existing site currently
achieves a run-off rate of 33.5l/s for a 1-in-100 year event, and the
proposed development will achieve a total saving of up to 80.9% over
the existing site.

386. The Applicant is exploring options for rainwater harvesting from
the blue roof for the irrigation for the green wall and a condition is
recommended to secure this.

387. The inclusion of SuDS and rainwater harvesting would reduce
the risk of sewer surcharge flooding elsewhere in the City by reducing
the speed and quantity of rainwater entering the combined drainage
network. This will be especially important as we experience more
frequent extreme weather events due to climate change.

388. The Lead Flood Authority reviewed the application and have
raised no objections, subject to recommended conditions.

389. Final details of the SuDS and associated components are
reserved by condition. The use of SuDS is supported by London Plan,
adopted Local Plan and draft City Plan.

Urban Greening and Biodiversity

390. London Plan Policy G5 and G6, and Local Plan policies DM10.3
and DM19.2 promote urban greening and biodiversity.

391. A preliminary ecological appraisal has been undertaken for the
development which concluded the Site is deemed to be of low
ecological value. The Proposed Development would provide:

357 sgm of biodiverse combined blue and green roof;
40 sgm green wall facing Cock Lane;

Bird boxes;

Bat boxes.

392. The Proposed development would have an Urban Greening
Factor (UGF) of 0.35 which exceeds the London Plan target of 0.3.
However, to address objections from the neighbouring site, a condition
is proposed for the removal of the green wall in the event that the
neighbouring site is redeveloped to the boundary line where the green
wall is proposed. The UGF for the Site without the green wall would
remain above 0.3 and therefore would meet the London Plan standard.

Page 98



393. The Proposed Development will provide a biodiversity net gain
of 0.17 units which is a positive impact of the proposals considering the
limited site area and constraints of existing listed building.

394. A condition is recommended to ensure the green roof and green
wall design demonstrates high quality specifications and substrate
depths to provide appropriate environmental benefits of biodiversity
and rainwater attenuation. In addition, a condition is recommended to
secure rainwater collection for the irrigation of the green wall.

Summary for Sustainability of the Scheme

395. The proposed development, by way of its central location within
London, its opportunities for providing a positive contribution to Cultural
Mile and enhanced visitor experience, and its environmental
credentials, would positively contribute to the economic, social and
environmental sustainability of the City of London.

396. The scheme achieves 68% carbon savings against Part L
baseline, which significantly exceeds the London Plan target of 35%.
The air source heat pumps and PV panels account for 51% (total 68%)
of the carbon savings over the notional building.

397. The proposed sustainability strategy overall meets current
London Plan policies as well as Local Plan policies. The development
is on track to achieve an “Excellent” BREEAM rating. A BREEAM
“Outstanding” rating is not considered to be achievable due to the
heritage constraints of the existing building. The partial retention of the
existing building, the proposed robust detailing, the optimised structural
solutions and the application of design principles for longevity and
adaptability positively address Circular Economy principles and
significantly reduce Whole Life-Cycle carbon emissions.

398. Overall, this development includes measures which will improve
its resilience to climate change. Details of these measures will
determine how effectively the building performs in coming decades,
and conditions are attached to seek more detailed modelling and
planting plans against the UK Climate Projections UKCP18 to 2080.

399. The Proposed Development includes a range of measures that

are considered to achieve an appropriate degree of climate change
resilience and mitigation.

Page 99



Transport, Servicing and impact on Public Highways

Public Transport

400. The site has the highest level of public transport provision with a
public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 6B. The site is located
close to City Thameslink Station, and Chancery Lane and St Pauls
underground stations. The site is close to several bus routes running
close by on Holborn Viaduct and Farringdon Street.

Cycling

401. The London Plan policy T5 requires cycle parking be provided at
least in accordance with the minimum requirements published in the
plan. Policy T5 requires cycle parking to be designed and laid out in
accordance with guidance contained in the London Cycling Design
Standards and that developments should cater for larger cycles,
including adapted cycles for disabled people.

402. The London Plan requires 11 long stay cycle parking and 5 short
stay cycle parking spaces which are proposed as part of the scheme
thereby meeting the standards.

403. The cycle parking would be accessed through the servicing
entrance on Snow Hill. The short stay would be in the lobby area at
ground floor and the long stay would be in the basement accessed via
the goods lift. The long stay cycle parking is sized in accordance with
the London Cycling Design Standards, the short stay cycle parking
uses semi-vertical stands, due to space constraints.

404. 5% of the long stay cycle parking spaces are accessible for
adapted cycles and this arrangement will be secured by planning
condition (in line with the London Plan Policy T5 cycling B, with the
London Cycling Design Standards 8.2.1, and the emerging City Plan
6.3.24).

405. The London Plan policy 10.5.7 recommends a minimum of 2
lockers per 3 long-stay spaces, and at least 1 shower per 10 long-stay
spaces. The proposals include 1 shower, and at least 11 lockers, which
complement the cycle parking provision and are in line with the London
Plan standards.

406. The applicant will be responsible for promoting the use of the
cycle parking spaces and as such will be required by planning condition
to produce a Cycling Promotion Plan which is a cycling focused Travel
Plan. It will be submitted to the City for approval in line with the London
Plan policy T4 and 10.4.3.

Page 100



Car Parking

407. The development is car free, Local Plan 2015 Policy DM16.5 — 1
and Draft City Plan 2036 policy VT3 — 1 require development in the City
to be car-free except for designated Blue Badge spaces. No blue
badge space has been proposed due to the constraints of the site.
People with mobility issues will be able to access the site by taxi, which
are able to drop off outside the front door of the hotel, and by national
rail or bus, which are located at the top of Snow Hill on Holborn
Viaduct. City Thameslink, the national rail service on Holborn Viaduct,
has step free access to all platforms, and there are drop kerbs at all
crossings between the station to the development.

408. It has been predicted there would be a maximum of 32 taxi trips
per day. No taxi facility will be provided, taxis and private hire vehicles
will be able to drop off passengers in line with the on-street restrictions.

4009. No coach facility will be provided, the applicant has agreed to a
maximum group size booking clause to be added into the Section 106,
which will reduce the likelihood of coaches accessing the site.

410. The proposed development is car free and it is expected the
proposed hotel use would produce significantly fewer vehicle trips than
the existing Police Station use. It has been estimated that currently
there can be up to 161 vehicle movements on a typical weekday to the
police station, with most of these being police car trips. It has been
estimated that there will be a maximum of 65 vehicle movements on a
typical weekday to the proposed hotel. Therefore, the proposed
development is considered to have a positive impact on the number of
trips to the development.

Servicing and deliveries

411. Policy DM16.5 of the Local Plan states developments states on-
site servicing should be designed to allow vehicles likely to service at
the same time to be conveniently unloaded and loaded at the same
time. London Plan Policy T7 G and draft City Plan 2036 Policy VT2 — 1
requires development proposals to provide adequate space off-street
for servicing and deliveries, with on-street loading bays only used
where this is not possible.

412. Options for the servicing of the building have been considered.
An on-site loading facility has been discounted due to the size and
layout of the development, the level changes on the site, and the listed
facades on Snow Hill and Cock Lane. Therefore, the servicing would
take place on-street on Snow Hill. Servicing from other streets
surrounding the development has been discounted due to the proximity
to residents and narrow streets.

Page 101



413. Draft City Plan Policy VT2 — 4 requires delivery to and servicing
of new developments to take place outside peak hours (7am — 10am,
12pm — 2pm and 4pm — 7pm on weekdays) and requires justification
where deliveries within peak hours are considered necessary. The
applicant has provided justification to show why servicing cannot be
achieved at off-peak times only. The applicant will be consolidating
servicing of this development with other nearby developments, and due
to the schedule of other near-by developments the servicing for this
development may fall inside peak hours. In this case, minimal peak
time servicing is acceptable because there will be no additional
vehicles on the network as a result of this development — the vehicles
are already on the network servicing a nearby hotel. The number of
trips per day is also 2 vehicles, which is very low.

414. Policy VT2- 2 requires major commercial development to
provide for freight consolidation. The applicant is proposing to use a
consolidation strategy with other hotels in their ownership in order to
reduce the number of deliveries to the development per day. As such
the servicing of this hotel will not add an additional vehicle onto the
network — it will be serviced (by no more than two trips per day) by a
vehicle already servicing another nearby hotel, which is the Premier Inn
Hotel at West Smithfield, for so long as they are owned/operated by the
same operator. Should that cease to be the case the prohibition on
peak time servicing will apply.

415. The applicant has estimated that there would be 14 deliveries
per week — approximately 2 deliveries per day, which includes
approximately 3 waste collections per week. This is a low number of
deliveries due to the applicants experience in the industry and also the
ability to consolidate deliveries with existing hotels nearby in their
ownership. A cap of two servicing vehicle trips per day will be included
in the Section 106 agreement.

416. Policy DM 11.3 of the Local Plan states new hotels will only be
permitted when they ‘do not result in adverse impacts on the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers’ and ‘provide satisfactory arrangements for
pick-up/drop-off, service delivery vehicles and coaches’. The proposals
for this development reduce the number of vehicles to the site per day
due to the new consolidated delivery arrangement. The proposals
restrict coach travel to the site, and are funding the removal of the
redundant police bays on Snow Hill, to facilitate an area for loading on
Snow Hill, which is appropriate to the size and nature of the hotel.

417. The development will be required to produce a delivery and
servicing plan (DSP), and this will be secured by planning obligation.
The DSP will require servicing to be off peak, unless agreed by the City
of London Corporation. In the case of the current developer, it will be
acceptable for some deliveries (limited to two per day) to be at peak

Page 102



times, however if the owner changes, the new owner will be required to
service at off-peak times only. An obligation to this end will be in the
Section 106 agreement.

Pedestrian Comfort

418. A PCL assessment has not been conducted due to the size and
location of the development.

4109. It is predicted that the total number of daily trips to the
development would be 1448, and the peak hour trips to the hotel will
have a negligible impact on the surrounding streets. For example, it
has been estimated that there would be 63 trips during the AM peak
hour and 91 trips during the PM peak hour.

420. It is not known what the current daily trips are to the police
station as the Covid-19 pandemic has affected the number of people
visiting the station — meaning surveys may not be representative of
‘normal’ conditions. However, it has been estimated that over a day
there will be an increase in 707 trips (increasing to 1448). 1448 trips to
the development per day is considered acceptable due to wide
footways, low level of existing footfall, the significant predicted
reduction in vehicle trips, and the likelihood of trips occurring at off
peak times.

421. The submitted Transport Assessment indicates that the overall
increase in trips across all modes would have a minimal impact on the
surrounding highway and public transport network capacities, and
during the conventional peak hours, there would be a reduction in
public transport use compared to the previous use, which actually
represents a reduced impact on the surrounding transport services and
infrastructure.

Section 278 Agreement

422. A Section 278 agreement has been secured to comprise works
to amend the current kerbside activity (removal and replacement of
bays and lines — subject to parking orders being made), public
consultation, repaving of the footway, any requirements for tactile
paving that are needed, and to retain any existing cycle markings on
Snow Hill. The applicant has also agreed to extend the existing public
cycle parking at the top of Snow Hill — this is over and above the
London Plan 2021 compliant level of cycle parking, and we welcome
this provision.

423. The Section 278 works are considered necessary in planning

terms and will be in line with the 10 Healthy Streets indicators, the City
of London Transport Strategy and City of London’s Public Realm

Page 103



vision, including the potential for footway widening and greening. This
would be secured through the Section 106 agreement.

Waste collection

424, Refuse collection would be undertaken from the kerb at Snow
Hill and the Applicant has confirmed that the bins will be available at
ground floor level for collection crew with a maximum 10m trundle
distance to the collection vehicle. The bin store is located a basement
level and will comply with BS5906 specifications and could be
accessed via a goods lift. The Applicant has confirmed that this will be
overseen by facilities management and not left on the footway. A
Condition to secure an Operational management Plan has been
recommended.

425. The City of London’s Cleansing Team have confirmed that the
proposed waste storage and collection facilities complies with their
requirements.

426. Local Plan Policy DM11.3 requires hotels to provide satisfactory
arrangements for pick-up/drop-off, service delivery vehicles and
coaches, appropriate to the size and nature of the hotel. The proposed
arrangements for the transport aspects of this scheme are appropriate
for this small scale hotel, and a S278 agreement has been agreed to
secure changes on street, therefore the proposals are considered
acceptable and in compliance with DM11.3 (5).

Security and Safety

4217. The Applicant has provided a Security Statement which details
the security measures for the development. The City Police have
reviewed the application and have raised no objections subject to a
recommended condition to provide an updated Security Statement to
be reviewed in Consultation with City Police. Therefore the proposal is
in accordance with London Plan Policy D11, Local Plan Policies CS3
and D3.2, and draft City Plan S2.

Fire Safety

428. Policy D12 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that proposals
have been designed to achieve the highest standards of fire safety,
embedding these into developments at the earliest possible stage.
Policy D5.B.5 of the London Plan requires development proposal to be
designed to incorporate safe and dignified emergency evacuation for all
building users. In all developments where lifts are installed, as a
minimum at least one lift per core (or more subject to capacity

Page 104



assessments) should be a suitably sized fire evacuation lift suitable to
be used to evacuate people who require level access from the building.

429. A Fire Statement has been provided by the Applicant which
demonstrates how the development would achieve the standards of fire
safety. The District Surveyors Office has confirmed that this meets the
requirements of the London Plan and the City’s Fire Safety Team has
provided input.

430. There are no in principle issues with the fire safety measures
proposed. Further detail is required prior to the construction of the
green wall and the green roof to ensure a maintenance strategy for
these elements to mitigate fire risk and to approve plants with a high
moisture content for the green wall; therefore a condition is
recommended for these details to be submitted and approved in
consultation with the Fire Safety Team and the District Surveyors prior
to relevant works.

431. Subject to compliance with the condition the proposed

development would meet the requirements of Policy D12 of the London
Plan.

Health Impacts

432. Policy HL9 of the draft City Plan 2036 advises applicants of
major developments to assess the potential impacts their development
may have on the health and well-being of the City’s communities. The
applicant has submitted a Healthy Urban Checklist, based on the NHS
Healthy Urban Development Unit’s criteria and toolkit to assess the
possible impacts on the health and well-being of the City’s
communities.

433. The Checklist is considered acceptable, and the proposed
development will provide public access to spaces.

Equality Impacts

434. When considering the proposed development, the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED) requires City of London to consider how the
determination of the application will affect people who are protected
under the Equality Act 2010, including having due regard to the effects
of the proposed development and any potential disadvantages suffered
by people because of their protected characteristics.

435. Under the Act, a public authority must, in the exercise of its
functions, have due regard to the need to:-

Page 105



¢ eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

e foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

436. The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation.

437. Public authorities also need to have due regard to the need to
eliminate unlawful discrimination against someone because of their
marriage or civil partnership status.

438. This application has been assessed against the Equality Act
2010 and any equality impacts identified.

439. The proposed development would provide significant
employment opportunities during the construction and operations
phases of the development, which could benefit all groups with
protected characteristics. A planning obligation for contributions
towards employment and training initiatives will be secured through the
Section 106 Agreement. This would provide further opportunities for
priority groups.

440. The Proposed Development would offer step free access
throughout and around the Site. Significant consideration has been
given in the design of the scheme to ensure it is accessible. All floors of
the building will be served by wheelchair accessible lifts, accessible
toilets and wide circulation space.

441. The Applicant has submitted a Security Statement which
includes design and management measures to increase security.

442. Potential impacts of the proposed development on the nearby
occupiers identified above, have been assessed. Officers do not
consider that they would be detrimentally impacted in so far as the
spaces within the development become unusable nor would it be
considered that there would be disadvantages to any persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic as identified in the Equalities
Act 2010.

Page 106



Assessment of the Public Benefits for the purposes of paragraph 202 of
the NPPF

443. Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states “where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits
of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum
viable use”. The National Planning Practice Guidance states that
“public benefits...could be anything that delivers economic, social or
environmental progress as described in the National Planning Policy
Framework. Public benefits should flow from the proposed
development. They should be of a nature or scale to be of benefit to the
public at large and should not just be a private benefit. However,
benefits do not always have to be visible or accessible to the public in
order to the genuine public benefits”. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF
states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on
the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset,
the greater the weight should be). Paragraph 200 states that any harm
to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its
alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should
require clear and convincing justification. As the statutory duty imposed
by section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 is engaged, considerable importance and weight must
be given to the desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings
when carrying out the balancing exercise.

444, In this case, the less than substantial harm is modest to a single
designated heritage asset (5 Snow Hill). Great weight is attached to the
significance of this asset of national importance and to the level of
harm. Such levels of harm require clear and convincing justification and
should only be accepted if there is such justification and that the harm
would be outweighed by the public benefits which the proposals would
secure.

445, The key public benefits of the proposal are considered to be as
follows:

e Contribution to vibrant City offer to include evening and
weekends in the Culture Mile — afforded moderate weight;

e Contribution to jobs and visitor spend in the Culture Mile —
afforded moderate weight;

e Public access into the listed building including areas of high
heritage significance and to exhibition spaces — afforded
substantial weight;

e Sensitive reuse of the listed building securing its long-term
conservation including heritage enhancements of repair and
refurbishment — afforded low weight;

e Short stay cycling parking provision proposed on Snow Hill, in
excess of policy requirements — afforded low weight.

Page 107



446. It is the view of officers that after applying the relevant tests, the
public benefits outweigh the less than substantial harm to the
significance of 5 Snow Hill. The proposals would achieve a successful
and sensitive change of use to provide a proposed viable reuse. It is
considered that the public benefits of the proposals outweigh the less
than substantial harm and that there is clear and convincing justification
for that harm.

447. The NPPF heritage policies are an important material
consideration and it is considered the benefits of the scheme would
outweigh the low level of less than substantial harm to the designated
heritage asset. This conclusion is reached even when giving great
weight to heritage significance as required under statutory duties.

448. On the basis of the above, the proposal accords with the
heritage policies set out in the NPPF. The central aims of the planning
system in achieving sustainable development are achieved by this high
quality proposal and by the public benefits that will flow from the
scheme.

CIL and Planning Obligations

449. The proposed development would require planning obligations
to be secured in a Section 106 agreement to mitigate the impact of the
development to make it acceptable in planning terms. Contributions
would be used to improve the City’s environment and facilities. The
proposal would also result in payment of the Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) to help fund the provision of infrastructure in the City of
London.

450. These contributions would be in accordance with Supplementary
Planning Documents (SPDs) adopted by the Mayor of London and the
City.

451. From 15t April 2019 Mayoral CIL 2 (MCIL2) supersedes the
Mayor of London’s CIL and associated section 106 planning obligations
charging schedule. This change removes the Mayors planning
obligations for Crossrail contributions. Therefore, the Mayor will be
collecting funding for Crossrail 1 and Crossrail 2 under the provisions of
the Community Infrastructure Levy regulations 2010 (as amended).

452. CIL contributions and City of London Planning obligations are
set out below.

Page 108



MCIL2 payable

£355,460

£341,242

£14,218

City CIL and S106 Planning Obligations

City CIL

Affordable
Housing

£190,425

£50,780

£180,904

£50,272

£9,521

£508

Local,
Training,
Skills and
Job
Brokerage

£7,617

£7,541

£76

Carbon
Reduction
Shortfall (as
designed)

£204,345

£204,345

£0

Section 278
Design and
Evaluation

£25,000

£25,000

£0

S106
Monitoring
Charge

£3,000

£0

£3,000

Total liability
in
accordance
with the City
of London’s
policies

£480,667

£468,062

£13,105

Page 109




City’s Planning Obligations

453. The obligations set out below are required in accordance with
the City’s SPD. They are necessary to make the application acceptable
in planning terms, directly related to the development and fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development and meet the
tests in the CIL Regulations and government policy.

e Highway Reparation and other Highways Obligations;

e Local Procurement Strategy;

e Local Training, Skills and Job Brokerage Strategy (Demolition &
Construction);

e Local Training, Skills and Job Brokerage Strategy (Operational
Phase);

e Delivery and Servicing Management Plan (including

Consolidation);

Cycling Promotion Plan;

Carbon Offsetting;

Utility Connections;

Section 278 Agreement;

Cultural Plan (including historical exhibition within public areas);

Visitor Access and Management Plan (including public access

seven days a week from 10.30am — 7pm with no booking

required between 10.30am — 5pm, and with an appointment if

between 5 — 7pm at no charge);

e Construction Monitoring Costs; and

e Prohibition of Coach Parties/ maximum group bookings of 6.

454, The proposed obligations are necessary to make the application
acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the development, and
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development and
meet the tests in the CIL Regulations and government policy. Any
planning permission would therefore be subject to the completion of a
S106 agreement to secure the obligations set out above, together with
the payment of the local planning authority’s legal and planning
administration fees of this legal agreement.

455, In addition, your approval is sought to continue to negotiate and
enter into the S278 agreement.

456. The scope of the s278 agreement may include, but is not limited
to, works to amend the current kerbside activity (removal and
replacement of bays and lines), public consultation, repaving of the
footway, any requirements for tactile paving that are needed, retain any
existing cycle markings on Snow Hill, and the provision of public cycle
parking within an appropriate location close to the site.

Page 110



Monitoring and Administrative Costs

457. A 10 year repayment period would be required whereby any
unallocated sums would be returned to the developer 10 years after
practical completion of the development. Some funds may be set aside
for future maintenance purposes.

458. The applicant will pay the City of London’s legal costs and the

City Planning Officer's administration costs incurred in the negotiation,
execution and monitoring of the legal agreement and strategies.

Site Specific Mitigation

459. The City will use CIL to mitigate the impact of development and
provide the infrastructure necessary for the area. In some
circumstances, it may be necessary additionally to seek site specific
mitigation to ensure that a development is acceptable in planning
terms. Other matters requiring mitigation are yet to be fully scoped.

Human Rights Act

460. It is unlawful for the City, as a public authority, to act in a way
which is incompatible with a Convention right (being the rights set out
in the European Convention on Human Rights (“ECHR”).

461. Insofar at the grant of planning permission will result in
interference with the right to private and family life (Article 8 of the
ECHR) including by causing harm to the amenity of those living in
nearby residential properties or the amenity of neighbouring properties,
it is the view of officers that such interference is necessary in order to
secure the benefits of the scheme and therefore necessary in the
interests of the economic well-being of the country, and proportionate.

462. Insofar at the grant of planning permission will result in
interference with the right to private and family life (Article 8 of the
ECHR) including by causing harm to the amenity of those living in
nearby residential properties, it is the view of officers that such
interference is necessary in order to secure the benefits of the scheme
and therefore necessary in the interests of the economic well-being of
the country, and proportionate. It is not considered that the proposal
would result in an unacceptable impact on the existing use of the
properties. As such, the extent of harm is not considered to be
unacceptable and does not cause the proposals to conflict with Local
Plan Policy DM10.7 and Policy DES8 of the draft City Plan 2036. It is
considered that the public benefits of the scheme would meet the
objective of the Development Plan and the emerging City Plan, and
outweighs the impact and such impact is necessary in the interests of
the economic well-being of the country and is proportionate.

463. Insofar as the grant of planning permission will result in
interference with property rights (Article 1 Protocol 1) including by

Page 111



interference arising though impact on daylight and sunlight or other
impact on adjoining properties, it is the view of Officers that such
interference is in the public interest and proportionate.

Conclusion
Conclusion for 20/00932/FULMAJ

464. The proposal has been assessed in accordance with the
relevant statutory duties and having regard to the development plan
and other relevant policies and guidance, SPDs and SPGs and
relevant advice including the NPPF, and the emerging Local Pan and
considering all other material considerations.

465. The proposal would provide 6,369 sgm hotel floorspace in the
Culture Mile. The visitor accommodation would provide a more
affordable offer in the City and public access to a listed building with
ancillary uses including exhibition space. The principle of development
is considered acceptable.

466. The Proposed Development is not considered to prejudice the
primary business function of the City, would contribute to the balance
and mix of uses in the immediate locality, provides satisfactory
servicing arrangements, provides 10% wheelchair accessible hotel
rooms, would ensure the continuing beneficial use of the historic
building and would not result in unacceptable adverse impacts on the
amenity of neighbouring occupiers, including cumulative impacts.

467. The servicing is proposed on-street on Snow Hill however there
will be no more than two trips per day and the applicant will be
consolidating servicing with a hotel nearby. The servicing may fall
inside peak hours however in this case, minimal peak time servicing is
acceptable because there will be no additional trips on the network as a
result of the proposed development, the vehicles are already on the
network servicing another nearby hotel. In addition, the daily trips of
two is considered very low. Therefore, the servicing arrangements are
considered acceptable.

468. Provision of long stay and short stay cycle parking in line with
policy requirements. The Applicant will provide additional short stay
spaces, proposed on Snow Hill, in excess of policy requirements.

4609. The proposal comprises refurbishment and reuse of a significant
part of the existing building and will deliver sustainability benefits
including adhering to Circular Economy Principles, delivering BREEAM
‘Excellent’, the installation of air source heat pumps, photovoltaic
panels, a biodiverse green roof, and SuDs measures through a blue
roof.

470. It is considered that the proposal would preserve the special

Page 112



architectural and historic interest and heritage significance and setting
of: No 4 Snow Hill (grade Il1); Church of St Sepulchre with Newgate
(grade 1) and Old Bailey (grade II*), would not harm the character and
appearance or setting of the Smithfield Conservation Area and the
nearby Newgate Street Conservation Area, and it would preserve
LVMF views and the setting of St Paul’'s Cathedral.

471. The proposals would enable the continued use of the building and
would in parts better reveal the significance of the building, offering a
number of heritage benefits by preserving, refurbishing, and enabling
public access including to areas of significance. The overall investment
in the built fabric of the building would prolong and enhance its life and
introduce a vibrant new use.

472. However, the proposals would result in a level of less than
substantial harm to 5 Snow Hill due to the extent of demolition and loss
of historic fabric and to some areas of moderate interest. This harm is
considered be at the lower end of less than substantial and is therefore
considered to be minimal. Therefore, overall the proposals would
comply with Local Plan Policies CS12, DM 12.1, DM 12.2 and DM
12.3(1), draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and HE1 London Plan Policy
HC1 (A, B, D and E), however elements of the proposals would be
contrary to DM 12.3 (2), emerging policy HE1 (1) and London Plan
Policy HC1 (C).

473. Historic England and the Amenity Societies were consulted and
raised no objections.

474, Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states "where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use". Therefore an evaluation of the public benefits
and the weight afforded to them has been undertaken. It is considered
the proposals would result in the following public benefits, which would
outweigh the harm identified:

e Contribution to vibrant City offer to include evening and
weekends in the Culture Mile;

e Contribution to jobs and visitor spend in the Culture Mile;

e Public access into the listed building including areas of high
heritage significance and to exhibition spaces;

e Sensitive reuse of the listed building securing its long-term
conservation including heritage enhancements of repair and
refurbishment;

e Short stay cycling parking provision proposed on Snow Hill, in
excess of policy requirements.

475. There are no unacceptable adverse built development or
operational impacts anticipated for the proposed development and use,

Page 113



including cumulative impacts, and the recommendation is subject to
conditions to mitigate impacts to surrounding uses, which include the
requirement to provide an operational management plan and conditions
securing privacy screens and obscured glazing, and relevant
environmental health conditions. Therefore it is considered the
proposed development complies with London Plan Policies D13 and
D14, Local Plan Policies CS10, CS11, DM11.3 (other than explained in
paragraphs 477- 478), DM15.7, DM21.3 and draft City Plan Policies
HL3, HS3, CV3 (other than explained in paragraphs 477- 478), S23,
S24, and SB1 regarding impact on amenity.

476. Negative impacts during construction would be controlled as far
as possible by the implementation of a robust Scheme of Protective
Works and good site practices embodied therein; it is recognised that
there are inevitable, albeit temporary consequences of development in
a tight-knit urban environment. Post construction, compliance with
planning conditions and S106 obligations would minimise any adverse
impacts.

477. Whilst there are some adverse impacts to neighbouring
occupiers in regards to daylight and sunlight, some of the affected
properties already experience low levels of existing daylight or sunlight
and the presence of existing overhangs, therefore a modest increase in
height is likely to have an impact. Taking account of the scale of the
impacts and that the Local Plan and BRE Guidelines acknowledges
that ideal daylight and sunlight conditions may not be practicable in
densely developed City locations, it is considered that living standards
would be acceptable and relevant daylight and sunlight policies,
including London Plan Policy D6, Local Plan Policies CS10 and
DM10.7, draft City Plan Policy DE8, and BRE Guidelines would not be
breached.

478. Therefore, the proposal would largely meet the requirements of
Local Plan Policy DM11.3 (hotels), however due to impacts to daylight
and sunlight, the proposal would be contrary to an element of Local
Plan Policy DM11.3 (4) which states that hotels will only be permitted
where these do not result in an adverse impacts on the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers. Therefore, there is some adverse impact but
this is not considered to be unacceptable. Whilst there is conflict with
Local Plan Policy DM11.3, given the counteracting benefits which
promote other policies, this is not considered to justify refusal. This also
applies for draft City Plan Policy CV3 (2).

479. Virtually no major development proposal is in complete
compliance with all policies and in arriving at a decision it is necessary
to assess all the policies and proposals in the Local Plan and to come
to a view as to whether in the light of the whole plan the proposal does
or does not accord with it.

Page 114



480. In this case, the proposal complies with the majority of
development plan polices but is not compliant with elements of the
policies regarding harm to listed buildings and for hotels. National
Planning Practice Guidance advises that conflicts between
development plan policies adopted at the same time must be
considered in the light of all material considerations including local
priorities and needs, as guided by the NPPF.

481. Officers consider that overall, the proposal accords with the
development plan as a whole.

482. When taking all matters into consideration, subject to the
recommendations of this report it is recommended that planning
permission be granted.

Conclusion on Listed Building Consent 20/00933/LBC:

483. The proposals have been assessed against Local Plan Policies
CS 12,DM 12.1, and DM 12.3, draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and
HE1, London Plan Policy HC1 and the relevant NPPF paragraphs 199-
208. There has also been special regard to the desirability of
preserving 5 Snow Hill and surrounding listed buildings including their
setting and any features of special architectural or historic interest
which it possesses, under s.16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended.

484. The proposed change of use to hotel is considered appropriate
as an adaptation and would enable a continued viable use of the site
securing the buildings long term conservation.

485. It is acknowledged that the proposals do not preserve the listed
building at 5 Snow Hill including some features of historic interest, and
special regard has been had to the desirability of preservation, but in
the context of the proposals and the evaluation in this report it is not
considered that this should lead to refusal of the application for listed
building consent.

486. Overall, the proposal would comply with Local Plan Policies
CS12,DM 12.1 and DM 12.3 (1), draft City Plan 2036 policies S11 and
HE1 (2, 3, 4 and 5), and London Plan Policy HC1 (A, B, D and E).
However in delivering this new use the proposal would result in some
less than substantial harm, at the lower end of the spectrum, failing to
preserve the special architectural and historic interest and heritage
significance of the listed building. This harm stems from the loss and
alteration of historic fabric of some areas of moderate interest
including: the cells; staircase and minor alterations to the historic floor
plan and this would erode the connection between the site and its
former use as a police station. The degree of harm is considered to be
minimal. Therefore elements of the proposals would be contrary to DM

Page 115



12.3 (2), emerging policy HE1 (1) and London Plan Policy HC1 (C).

487. When taking all matters into consideration, subject to the
recommendations of this report it is recommended that listed building
consent is granted permission be granted.

Page 116



Appendix A

Background Papers — 20/00932/FULMAJ

Application documents

Existing plans: 5177-P-100, 5177-P-101, 5177-P-102, 5177-P-103, 5177-P-
104, 5177-P-105, 5177-P-106, 5177-P-107, 5177-P-108, 5177-P-109, 5177-
P-110, 5177-P-111, 5177-P-112, 5177-P-113, 2019-4988-002 P1,

Design and Access Statement, Axiom Architects, November 2020
Covering Letter, Daniel Watney, 13/11/2020

Phase | Preliminary Risk Assessment ref. ‘CRM.1483.043.GE.R.001.A’,
Enzygo Geoenvironmental Ltd, September 2020

Urban Greening Assessment, Greengage, 06/11/2020

BREEAM Ecology Credit Report, Greengage, November 2020

CIL Form, Daniel Watney, 13/11/2020

Cultural Plan, becg, November 2020

Daylight and Sunlight Report, Point 2 Surveyors, November 2020
BREEAM Pre-Assessment, Greengage, 06/08/2020

Delivery and Servicing Management Plan, RGP, November 2020
Transport Assessment, RGP, November 2020

Travel Plan, RGP, November 2020

Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy Report, Heyne Tillett Steel, 28/10/2020
Planning Statement, Daniel Watney, November 2020

Statement of Community Involvement, becg, October 2020
Structural Report, Heyne Tillett Steel, 28/10/2020

Archaeological Desk-based assessment, MOLA, October 2020
Circular Economy Statement, Greengage, 06/11/2020

Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, November 2020

Energy Statement, Greengage, 13/11/2020

Page 117



Air Quality Assessment, Entran Limited, 10/11/2020

Noise Impact Assessment, Scotch Partners, 12/11/2020

Life Cycle Assessment, Greengage, 13/11/2020

Statement of Significance, Donald Insall Associated, November 2020
Overheating Assessment, Greengage, October 2020

Letter, Scotch Partners 11/01/2021

Daylight and Sunlight Addendum, Point 2 Surveyors, 11/01/2021

Healthy Urban Planning Checklist, Daniel Watney, 11/01/2021

Transport Statement Addendum, RGP, January 2021

Addendum Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, February 2021
Views from Giltspur Street, Point 2 Surveyors, 01/02/2021

Sustainability Addendum. Greengage, March 2021

Archaeological Desk Based Assessment — Addendum, MOLA, February 2021
Q-ton, Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Air-conditioning Europe, Ltd, May 2021
Fire Strategy, C.S. Todd, May 2021

Sustainability Statement, Greengage, March 2021 PV02

Axonometric Roof Plan, 5177-P-310 Rev A

IFC Engineering Assessment Report, International Fire Consultants Limited,
February 2020

Construction Environmental Management Plan, Gilbert Ash, August 2021
General Detailing for blue roofs for SuDS, 01/06/2021

Impacts to 6 Snow Hill Letter, Anstey Horne, 18/06/2021

Security Policy Statement, Whitbread PLC, August 2021

Daylight and Sunlight Report, Point 2 Surveyors, August 2021

Daylight and Sunlight Letter for 6 Snow Hill, Point 2 Surveyors, 13/08/2021

Daylight and Sunlight Addendum, Point 2 Surveyors, 26/08/2021

Page 118



Representations

Mr Thomas Boden 17/12/2020

Marcello Leonardi 20/12/2020

Mr Alan Buxton 21/12/2020

Beaumont Business Centre Limited (sent from CMS LLP) 06/01/2021
Mr Richard Leyland 06/01/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited (sent from CMS LLP) 18/01/2021
Collineve Limited 27/04/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited 20/04/2021

Collineve Limited 28/06/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited 28/06/2021

Anstey Horne (on behalf of Beaumont Business Centres Limited 14/07/2021
John James 22/08/2021

Mrs Carol Bernstein 23/08/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited 31/08/2021

Anstey Horne 02/09/2021

External

Letter Historic England (pre-application advice) 24/08/2020
Letter Historic England 21/12/2020

Email Thames Water 29/12/2020

Email ANS Global, 01/04/2020

Email Twentieth Century Society (pre-application advice to Applicant)
28/10/2020

Email Transport for London 11/01/2021

Letter Conservation Area Advisory Committee 21/01/2021
Email Whitbread PLC 01/02/2021

Email Daniel Watney 03/02/2021

Email Thames Water 09/02/2021

Email Daniel Watney 11/02/2021

Marcello Leonardi 05/02/2021

Letter, Greengage, 15/02/2021

Letter Daniel Watney 19/02/2021

Page 119



Letter Daniel Watney 03/03/2021

Email Daniel Watney 03/03/2021

Letter LAMAS Historic Buildings 08/03/2021
Email Air Quality Officer 24/03/2021
Letter Whitbread Group PLC, 29/03/2021
Email Transport for London 29/03/2021
Email Transport for London 31/03/2021
Letter ANS Global 01/04/2021

Email Daniel Watney 08/04/2021

Email Daniel Watney 27/04/2021

Letter BRCS Building Control 15/04/2021
Email Thames Water 11/05/2021

Email Daniel Watney 25/05/2021

Email Tower Eight, 07/06/2021

Email Tower Eight, 11/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 23/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 24/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 18/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 11/08/2021

Email Daniel Watney 03/09/2021

Email Thames Water 06/09/2021

Internal

Email Transport Planning Team 11/12/2020

Memo Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 18/12/2020
Memo Lead Flood Authority 18/12/2020

Memo Lead Flood Authority 26/03/2020

Memo Air Quality Officer 15/01/2021

Memo Access Team 15/01/2021

Email Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 22/01/2021
Email Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 17/03/2021

Email Culture Mile Manager 01/02/2021

Page 120



Email

District Surveyors Office 02/06/2021

Memo District Surveyors Office 18/05/2021

Email
Email
Email
Email
Email

Email
Email
Email

Email

Email

Email

Email

District Surveyors Office 27/04/2021 (09:45)
District Surveyors Office 11/06/2021 (09:45)
District Surveyors Office 11/06/2021 (13:46)
District Surveyors Office 22/06/2021 (11:01)
District Surveyors Office 22/06/2021 (11:39)

Fire Safety Department, 08/11/2020
Fire Safety Department, 09/03/2021
Fire Safety Department, 27/01/2021
Fire Safety Department, 08/04/2021

City of London Police 21/06/2021
City of London Police 01/07/2021

Access Team 25/06/2021

Memo Transport Planning Team 01/06/2021
Memo Planning Obligations Team 25/06/2021

Email

Email

Other

Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 13/08/2020

Cleansing Team 12/04/2021

The Square Mile: Future City Report, 2021
City of London Visitor Destination Strategy 2019-2021

Cultural Strategy 2018 — 2022 (CoL 2020)

Page 121



Appendix B

Relevant London Plan Policies

Policy CG1 Building Strong and Inclusive Communities
Policy GG2 Making the best use of land

Policy CG3 Creating a Healthy City

Policy GG5 Growing a good economy

Policy CG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience

Policy SD4 The Central Activities Zone (CAZ)

Policy SD5 Offices, and other strategic functions and residential development
in the CAZ

Policy D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth
Policy D2 Infrastructure requirements for sustainable densities
Policy D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
Policy D4 Delivering Good Design

Policy D5 Inclusive Design

Policy D6 Housing Quality and Standards

Policy D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency
Policy D13 Agent of Change

Policy D12 Fire Safety

Policy D14 Noise

Policy E10 Visitor infrastructure

Policy E11 Skills and Opportunities for All

Policy HC1 Heritage conservation and growth

Policy HC3 Strategic and Local Views

Policy HC4 London View Management Framework

Policy HC5 Supporting London’s culture and creative industries
Policy G1 Green infrastructure

Policy G5 Urban Greening

Policy G6 Biodiversity and access to nature

Policy S1 Developing London’s social infrastructure

Policy SI1 Improving air quality

Policy SI2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

Policy SI3 Energy Infrastructure

Policy SI4 Managing heat risk

Policy SI5 Water Infrastructure

Page 122



Policy SI7 Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy
Policy SI8 Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency
Policy SI 12 Flood Risk Management

Policy SL13 Sustainable drainage

Policy T1 Strategic approach to transport

Policy T2 Healthy Streets

Policy T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
Policy T5 Cycling

Policy T6 Car Parking

Policy T6.4 Hotel and leisure uses parking

Policy T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction

Policy T9 Funding transport infrastructure through planning
Policy DF1 Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations

Relevant GLA Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):

Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment SPG (GLA, October
2014)

Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG (GLA,
September 2014)

Sustainable Design and Construction (GLA, September 2014)
Social Infrastructure (GLA May 2015)

London Environment Strategy (GLA, May 2018)

London View Management Framework SPG (GLA, March 2012)
Cultural Strategy (GLA, 2018)

Mayoral CIL 2 Charging Schedule (April 2019)

Central Activities Zone (GLA March 2016)

Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context (GLA June 2014)
Town Centres SPG (July 2014)

Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2018)

Culture and Night-time Economy SPG (2017)

Relevant Draft City Plan 2036 Policies
AT1 Pedestrian movement

AT2 Active travel including cycling
AT3 Cycle parking
CE1 Zero Waste City

Page 123



CR1 Overheating and Urban Heat Island effect
CR2 Flood Risk

CR3 Sustainable drainage systems (SuDS)
CR4 Flood protection and flood defences
CV2 Provision of Visitor Facilities

CV3 Hotels

DE1 Sustainability requirements

DE2 New development

DE7 Advertisements

DES8 Daylight and sunlight

DE9 Lighting

HE1 Managing change to heritage assets
HE2 Ancient monuments and archaeology
HL1 Inclusive buildings and spaces

HL2 Air quality

HL3 Noise and light pollution

HL4 Contaminated land and water quality
HL9 Health Impact Assessments

HS3 Residential environment

IN1 Infrastructure provision and connection
IN2 Infrastructure Capacity

OS2 City greening

OS3 Biodiversity

S1 Healthy and inclusive city

S2 Safe and Secure City

S3 Housing

S6 Culture, Visitors and the Night -time Economy
S7 Smart Infrastructure and Utilities

S8 Design

S9 Vehicular transport and servicing

S10 Active travel and healthy streets

S11 Historic environment

S13 Protected Views

S14 Open spaces and green infrastructure
S15 Climate resilience and flood risk

Page 124



S16 Circular economy and waste
S23 Smithfield and Barbican
S24 Culture Mile Implementation
S25 Smithfield

S27 Planning contributions

SA2: Dispersal Routes

SA3 Designing in security

SB1 Culture Mile Impacts

VT1 The impacts of development on transport
VT2 Freight and servicing

VT3 Vehicle Parking

Relevant City Corporation Guidance and Supplementary Planning
Documents (SPDs)

Air Quality SPD (CoL, July 2017)

Archaeology and Development Guidance SPD (CoL, July 2017)
City Lighting Strategy (CoL, October 2018)

City Transport Strategy (CoL, May 2019)

City Waste Strategy 2013-2020 (CoL, January 2014)
Protected Views SPD (CoL, January 2012)

City of London’s Wind Microclimate Guidelines (CoL, 2019)
City of London Thermal Comfort Guidelines (CoL 2020)
Planning Obligations SPD (ColL, July 2014)

Open Space Strategy (COL 2016)

City Public Realm (CoL 2016)

Relevant Conservation Area Summaries

Page 125



Relevant Local Plan Policies

CS10 Promote high quality environment

To promote a high standard and sustainable design of buildings, streets
and spaces, having regard to their surroundings and the character of the
City and creating an inclusive and attractive environment.

DM1.2 Protection of large office sites

To promote the assembly and development of sites for large office
schemes in appropriate locations. The City Corporation will:

a) assist developers in identifying large sites where large floorplate
buildings may be appropriate;

b) invoke compulsory purchase powers, where appropriate and
necessary, to assemble large sites;

C) ensure that where large sites are developed with smaller
buildings, the design and mix of uses provides flexibility for potential
future site re-amalgamation;

d) resist development and land uses in and around potential large
sites that would jeopardise their future assembly, development and
operation, unless there is no realistic prospect of the site coming forward
for redevelopment during the Plan period.

CS2 Facilitate utilities infrastructure

To co-ordinate and facilitate infrastructure planning and delivery to
ensure that the functioning and growth of the City's business, resident,
student and visitor communities is not limited by provision of utilities and
telecommunications infrastructure.

DM2.1 Infrastructure provision

1) Developers will be required to demonstrate, in conjunction with
utility providers, that there will be adequate utility infrastructure capacity,
both on and off the site, to serve the development during construction
and operation. Development should not lead to capacity or reliability
problems in the surrounding area. Capacity projections must take
account of climate change impacts which may influence future
infrastructure demand.

2) Utility infrastructure and connections must be designed into and
integrated with the development wherever possible. As a minimum,
developers should identify and plan for:

a) electricity supply to serve the construction phase and the

intended use for the site, and identify, in conjunction with electricity
providers, Temporary Building Supply(TBS) for the construction phase

Page 126



and the estimated load capacity of the building and the substations and
routes for supply;

b) reasonable gas and water supply considering the need to
conserve natural resources;
C) heating and cooling demand and the viability of its provision via

decentralised energy (DE) networks. Designs must incorporate access
to existing DE networks where feasible and viable;

d) telecommunications network demand, including wired and
wireless infrastructure, planning for dual entry provision, where possible,
through communal entry chambers and flexibility to address future
technological improvements;

e) separate surface water and foul drainage requirements within
the proposed building or site, including provision of Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS), rainwater harvesting and grey-water
recycling, minimising discharge to the combined sewer network.

3) In planning for utility infrastructure developers and utility
providers must provide entry and connection points within the
development which relate to the City's established utility infrastructure
networks, utilising pipe subway routes wherever feasible. Sharing of
routes with other nearby developments and the provision of new pipe
subway facilities adjacent to buildings will be encouraged.

4) Infrastructure provision must be completed prior to occupation of
the development. Where potential capacity problems are identified and
no improvements are programmed by the utility company, the City
Corporation will require the developer to facilitate appropriate
improvements, which may require the provision of space within new
developments for on-site infrastructure or off-site infrastructure
upgrades.

CS3 Ensure security from crime/terrorism

To ensure that the City is secure from crime, disorder and terrorism, has
safety systems of transport and is designed and managed to
satisfactorily accommodate large numbers of people, thereby increasing
public and corporate confidence in the City's role as the world's leading
international financial and business centre.

DM3.2 Security measures

To ensure that security measures are included in new developments,
applied to existing buildings and their curtilage, by requiring:

a) building-related security measures, including those related to the
servicing of the building, to be located within the development's
boundaries;

b) measures to be integrated with those of adjacent buildings and
the public realm;

Page 127



C) that security is considered at the concept design or early
developed design phases of all development proposals to avoid the
need to retro-fit measures that impact on the public realm;

d) developers to seek recommendations from the City of London
Police Architectural Liaison Officer at the design stage. New
development should meet Secured by Design principles;

e) the provision of service management plans for all large
development, demonstrating that vehicles seeking access to the building
can do so without waiting on the public highway;

flan assessment of the environmental impact of security measures,
particularly addressing visual impact and impact on pedestrian flows.

DM3.3 Crowded places
On all major developments, applicants will be required to satisfy

principles and standards that address the issues of crowded places and
counter-terrorism, by:

a) conducting a full risk assessment;
b) keeping access points to the development to a minimum;
C) ensuring that public realm and pedestrian permeability

associated with a building or site is not adversely impacted, and that
design considers the application of Hostile Vehicle Mitigation measures
at an early stage;

d) ensuring early consultation with the City of London Police on risk
mitigation measures;
e) providing necessary measures that relate to the appropriate

level of crowding in a site, place or wider area.
DM3.4 Traffic management

To require developers to reach agreement with the City Corporation and
TfL on the design and implementation of traffic management and
highways security measures, including addressing the management of
service vehicles, by:

a) consulting the City Corporation on all matters relating to
servicing;

b) restricting motor vehicle access, where required;

C) implementing public realm enhancement and pedestrianisation
schemes, where appropriate;

d) using traffic calming, where feasible, to limit the opportunity for

hostile vehicle approach.
CS4 Seek planning contributions

To manage the impact of development, seeking appropriate developer
contributions.

Page 128



CS5 Meet challenges facing North of City

To ensure that the City benefits from the substantial public transport
improvements planned in the north of the City, realising the potential for
rejuvenation and "eco design" to complement the sustainable transport
infrastructure.

CS10 Promote high quality environment

To promote a high standard and sustainable design of buildings, streets
and spaces, having regard to their surroundings and the character of the
City and creating an inclusive and attractive environment.

DM10.1 New development

To require all developments, including alterations and extensions to
existing buildings, to be of a high standard of design and to avoid harm
to the townscape and public realm, by ensuring that:

a) the bulk and massing of schemes are appropriate in relation to
their surroundings and have due regard to the general scale, height,
building lines, character, historic interest and significance, urban grain
and materials of the locality and relate well to the character of streets,
squares, lanes, alleys and passageways;

b) all development is of a high standard of design and architectural
detail with elevations that have an appropriate depth and quality of
modelling;

C) appropriate, high quality and durable materials are used;

d) the design and materials avoid unacceptable wind impacts at

street level or intrusive solar glare impacts on the surrounding
townscape and public realm;

e) development has attractive and visually interesting street level
elevations, providing active frontages wherever possible to maintain or
enhance the vitality of the City's streets;

fthe design of the roof is visually integrated into the overall design of the
building when seen from both street level views and higher level
viewpoints;

9) plant and building services equipment are fully screened from
view and integrated in to the design of the building. Installations that
would adversely affect the character, appearance or amenities of the
buildings or area will be resisted,

h) servicing entrances are designed to minimise their effects on the
appearance of the building and street scene and are fully integrated into
the building's design;

i)there is provision of appropriate hard and soft landscaping, including
appropriate boundary treatments;

j)the external illumination of buildings is carefully designed to ensure
visual sensitivity, minimal energy use and light pollution, and the discreet
integration of light fittings into the building design;

k) there is provision of amenity space, where appropriate;

Page 129



lthere is the highest standard of accessible and inclusive design.
DM10.2 Design of green roofs and walls

1) To encourage the installation of green roofs on all appropriate
developments. On each building the maximum practicable coverage of
green roof should be achieved. Extensive green roofs are preferred and
their design should aim to maximise the roof's environmental benefits,
including biodiversity, run-off attenuation and building insulation.

2) To encourage the installation of green walls in appropriate
locations, and to ensure that they are satisfactorily maintained.

DM10.4 Environmental enhancement

The City Corporation will work in partnership with developers, Transport
for London and other organisations to design and implement schemes
for the enhancement of highways, the public realm and other spaces.
Enhancement schemes should be of a high standard of design,
sustainability, surface treatment and landscaping, having regard to:

a) the predominant use of the space, surrounding buildings and
adjacent spaces;

b) connections between spaces and the provision of pleasant
walking routes;

C) the use of natural materials, avoiding an excessive range and
harmonising with the surroundings of the scheme and materials used
throughout the City;

d) the inclusion of trees and soft landscaping and the promotion of
biodiversity, where feasible linking up existing green spaces and routes
to provide green corridors;

e) the City's heritage, retaining and identifying features that
contribute positively to the character and appearance of the City;
f)sustainable drainage, where feasible, co-ordinating the design with
adjacent buildings in order to implement rainwater recycling;

9) the need to provide accessible and inclusive design, ensuring
that streets and walkways remain uncluttered;
h) the need for pedestrian priority and enhanced permeability,

minimising the conflict between pedestrians and cyclists;

i)the need to resist the loss of routes and spaces that enhance the City's
function, character and historic interest;

j)the use of high quality street furniture to enhance and delineate the
public realm;

k) lighting which should be sensitively co-ordinated with the design
of the scheme.

DM10.6 Advertisements

1) To encourage a high standard of design and a restrained
amount of advertising in keeping with the character of the City.

Page 130



2) To resist excessive or obtrusive advertising, inappropriate
iluminated signs and the display of advertisements above ground floor
level.

DM10.7 Daylight and sunlight

1) To resist development which would reduce noticeably the
daylight and sunlight available to nearby dwellings and open spaces to
unacceptable levels, taking account of the Building Research
Establishment's guidelines.

2) The design of new developments should allow for the lighting
needs of intended occupiers and provide acceptable levels of daylight
and sunlight.

DM10.8 Access and inclusive design
To achieve an environment that meets the highest standards of

accessibility and inclusive design in all developments (both new and
refurbished), open spaces and streets, ensuring that the City of London

is:
a) inclusive and safe for of all who wish to use it, regardless of
disability, age, gender, ethnicity, faith or economic circumstance;

b) convenient and welcoming with no disabling barriers, ensuring

that everyone can experience independence without undue effort,
separation or special treatment;

C) responsive to the needs of all users who visit, work or live in the
City, whilst recognising that one solution might not work for all.

CS11 Encourage art, heritage and culture
To maintain and enhance the City's contribution to London's world-class
cultural status and to enable the City's communities to access a range of
arts, heritage and cultural experiences, in accordance with the City
Corporation's Destination Strategy.

DM11.3 Hotels

Proposals for new hotel and apart-hotel accommodation will only be
permitted where they:

a) do not prejudice the primary business function of the City;

b) are not contrary to policy DM1.1;

C) contribute to the balance and mix of uses in the immediate
locality;

d) do not result in adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring

occupiers, including cumulative impacts;

Page 131



e) provide satisfactory arrangements for pick-up/drop-off, service
delivery vehicles and coaches, appropriate to the size and nature of the
hotel or apart-hotel;

f)are inclusive, providing at least 10% of hotel rooms to wheelchair-
accessible standards;

s)] ensure continuing beneficial use for historic buildings, where
appropriate.

CS12 Conserve or enhance heritage assets
To conserve or enhance the significance of the City's heritage assets
and their settings, and provide an attractive environment for the City's

communities and visitors.

DM12.1 Change affecting heritage assets

1. To sustain and enhance heritage assets, their settings and
significance.
2. Development proposals, including proposals for

telecommunications infrastructure, that have an effect upon heritage
assets, including their settings, should be accompanied by supporting
information to assess and evaluate the significance of heritage assets
and the degree of impact caused by the development.

3. The loss of routes and spaces that contribute to the character
and historic interest of the City will be resisted.

4. Development will be required to respect the significance,
character, scale and amenities of surrounding heritage assets and
spaces and their settings.

5. Proposals for sustainable development, including the
incorporation of climate change adaptation measures, must be sensitive
to heritage assets.

DM12.2 Development in conservation areas

1. Development in conservation areas will only be permitted if it
preserves and enhances the character or appearance of the
conservation area.

2. The loss of heritage assets that make a positive contribution to
the character or appearance of a conservation area will be resisted.

3. Where permission is granted for the demolition of a building in a
conservation area, conditions will be imposed preventing demolition
commencing prior to the approval of detailed plans of any replacement
building, and ensuring that the developer has secured the
implementation of the construction of the replacement building.

Page 132



DM12.3 Listed buildings
1. To resist the demolition of listed buildings.

2. To grant consent for the alteration or change of use of a listed
building only where this would not detract from its special architectural or
historic interest, character and significance or its setting.

DM12.4 Archaeology

1. To require planning applications which involve excavation or
ground works on sites of archaeological potential to be accompanied by
an archaeological assessment and evaluation of the site, including the
impact of the proposed development.

2. To preserve, protect, safeguard and enhance archaeological
monuments, remains and their settings in development, and to seek a
public display and interpretation, where appropriate.

3. To require proper investigation and recording of archaeological
remains as an integral part of a development programme, and
publication and archiving of results to advance understanding.

CS13 Protect/enhance significant views
To protect and enhance significant City and London views of important
buildings, townscape and skylines, making a substantial contribution to
protecting the overall heritage of the City's landmarks.

CS15 Creation of sustainable development
To enable City businesses and residents to make sustainable choices in
their daily activities creating a more sustainable City, adapted to the
changing climate.

DM15.1 Sustainability requirements
1. Sustainability Statements must be submitted with all planning

applications in order to ensure that sustainability is integrated into
designs for all development.

2. For major development (including new development and
refurbishment) the Sustainability Statement should include as a
minimum:

a) BREEAM or Code for Sustainable Homes pre-assessment;
b) an energy statement in line with London Plan requirements;
C) demonstration of climate change resilience measures.

Page 133



3. BREEAM or Code for Sustainable Homes assessments should
demonstrate sustainability in aspects which are of particular significance
in the City's high density urban environment. Developers should aim to
achieve the maximum possible credits to address the City's priorities.

4. Innovative sustainability solutions will be encouraged to ensure
that the City's buildings remain at the forefront of sustainable building
design. Details should be included in the Sustainability Statement.

5. Planning conditions will be used to ensure that Local Plan
assessment targets are met.

DM15.2 Energy and CO2 emissions

1. Development design must take account of location, building
orientation, internal layouts and landscaping to reduce likely energy
consumption.

2. For all major development energy assessments must be
submitted with the application demonstrating:

a) energy efficiency - showing the maximum improvement over
current Building Regulations to achieve the required Fabric Energy
Efficiency Standards;

b) carbon compliance levels required to meet national targets for
zero carbon development using low and zero carbon technologies,
where feasible;

C) where on-site carbon emission reduction is unviable, offsetting
of residual CO2 emissions through "allowable solutions" for the lifetime
of the building to achieve national targets for zero-carbon homes and
non-domestic buildings. Achievement of zero carbon buildings in
advance of national target dates will be encouraged;

d) anticipated residual power loads and routes for supply.

DM15.3 Low and zero carbon technologies

1. For development with a peak heat demand of 100 kilowatts or
more developers should investigate the feasibility and viability of
connecting to existing decentralised energy networks. This should
include investigation of the potential for extensions of existing heating
and cooling networks to serve the development and development of new
networks where existing networks are not available. Connection routes
should be designed into the development where feasible and connection
infrastructure should be incorporated wherever it is viable.

2. Where connection to offsite decentralised energy networks is not
feasible, installation of on-site CCHP and the potential to create new
localised decentralised energy infrastructure through the export of
excess heat must be considered

Page 134



3. Where connection is not feasible or viable, all development with
a peak heat demand of 100 kilowatts or more should be designed to
enable connection to potential future decentralised energy networks.

4. Other low and zero carbon technologies must be evaluated. Non
combustion based technologies should be prioritised in order to avoid
adverse impacts on air quality.

DM15.4 Offsetting carbon emissions

1. All feasible and viable on-site or near-site options for carbon
emission reduction must be applied before consideration of offsetting.
Any remaining carbon emissions calculated for the lifetime of the
building that cannot be mitigated on-site will need to be offset using
"allowable solutions".

2. Where carbon targets cannot be met on-site the City
Corporation will require carbon abatement elsewhere or a financial
contribution, negotiated through a S106 planning obligation to be made
to an approved carbon offsetting scheme.

3. Offsetting may also be applied to other resources including
water resources and rainwater run-off to meet sustainability targets off-
site where on-site compliance is not feasible.

DM15.5 Climate change resilience

1. Developers will be required to demonstrate through
Sustainability Statements that all major developments are resilient to the
predicted climate conditions during the building's lifetime.

2. Building designs should minimise any contribution to the urban
heat island effect caused by heat retention and waste heat expulsion in
the built environment.

DM15.6 Air gquality
1. Developers will be required to consider the impact of their
proposals on air quality and, where appropriate, provide an Air Quality

Impact Assessment.

2. Development that would result in deterioration of the City's
nitrogen dioxide or PM10 pollution levels will be resisted.

3. Major developments will be required to maximise credits for the
pollution section of the BREEAM or Code for Sustainable Homes
assessment relating to on-site emissions of oxides of nitrogen (NOX).

4. Developers will be encouraged to install non-combustion low
and zero carbon energy technology. A detailed air quality impact

Page 135



assessment will be required for combustion based low and zero carbon
technologies, such as CHP plant and biomass or biofuel boilers, and
necessary mitigation must be approved by the City Corporation.

5. Construction and deconstruction and the transport of
construction materials and waste must be carried out in such a way as to
minimise air quality impacts.

6. Air intake points should be located away from existing and
potential pollution sources (e.g. busy roads and combustion flues). All
combustion flues should terminate above the roof height of the tallest
building in the development in order to ensure maximum dispersion of
pollutants.

DM15.7 Noise and light pollution

1. Developers will be required to consider the impact of their
developments on the noise environment and where appropriate provide
a noise assessment. The layout, orientation, design and use of buildings
should ensure that operational noise does not adversely affect
neighbours, particularly noise-sensitive land uses such as housing,
hospitals, schools and quiet open spaces.

2. Any potential noise conflict between existing activities and new
development should be minimised. Where the avoidance of noise
conflicts is impractical, mitigation measures such as noise attenuation
and restrictions on operating hours will be implemented through
appropriate planning conditions.

3. Noise and vibration from deconstruction and construction
activities must be minimised and mitigation measures put in place to limit
noise disturbance in the vicinity of the development.

4. Developers will be required to demonstrate that there will be no
increase in background noise levels associated with new plant and
equipment.

5. Internal and external lighting should be designed to reduce
energy consumption, avoid spillage of light beyond where it is needed
and protect the amenity of light-sensitive uses such as housing,
hospitals and areas of importance for nature conservation.

DM15.8 Contaminated land

Where development involves ground works or the creation of open
spaces, developers will be expected to carry out a detailed site
investigation to establish whether the site is contaminated and to
determine the potential for pollution of the water environment or harm to
human health and non-human receptors. Suitable mitigation must be
identified to remediate any contaminated land and prevent potential

Page 136



adverse impacts of the development on human and non-human
receptors, land or water quality.

CS16 Improving transport and travel

To build on the City's strategic central London position and good
transport infrastructure to further improve the sustainability and efficiency
of travel in, to, from and through the City.

DM16.1 Transport impacts of development

1. Development proposals that are likely to have effects on
transport must be accompanied by an assessment of the transport
implications during both construction and operation, in particular
addressing impacts on:

a) road dangers;

b) pedestrian environment and movement;

C) cycling infrastructure provision;

d) public transport;

e) the street network.

2. Transport Assessments and Travel Plans should be used to
demonstrate adherence to the City Corporation's transportation
standards.

DM16.3 Cycle parking

1. On-site cycle parking must be provided in accordance with the
local standards set out in Table 16.2 or, for other land uses, with the
standards of the London Plan. Applicants will be encouraged to exceed
the standards set out in Table 16.2.

2. On-street cycle parking in suitable locations will be encouraged
to meet the needs of cyclists.

DM16.4 Encouraging active travel

1. Ancillary facilities must be provided within new and refurbished
buildings to support active transport modes such as walking, cycling and
running. All commercial development should make sufficient provision
for showers, changing areas and lockers/storage to cater for employees
wishing to engage in active travel.

2. Where facilities are to be shared with a number of activities they
should be conveniently located to serve all proposed activities.

Page 137



DM16.5 Parking and servicing standards

1. Developments in the City should be car-free except for
designated Blue Badge spaces. Where other car parking is exceptionally
provided it must not exceed London Plan's standards.

2. Designated parking must be provided for Blue Badge holders
within developments in conformity with London Plan requirements and
must be marked out and reserved at all times for their use. Disabled
parking spaces must be at least 2.4m wide and at least 4.8m long and
with reserved areas at least 1.2m wide, marked out between the parking
spaces and at the rear of the parking spaces.

3. Except for dwelling houses (use class C3), whenever any car
parking spaces (other than designated Blue Badge parking) are
provided, motor cycle parking must be provided at a ratio of 10 motor
cycle parking spaces per 1 car parking space. At least 50% of motor
cycle parking spaces must be at least 2.3m long and at least 0.9m wide
and all motor cycle parking spaces must be at least 2.0m long and at
least 0.8m wide.

4. On site servicing areas should be provided to allow all goods
and refuse collection vehicles likely to service the development at the
same time to be conveniently loaded and unloaded. Such servicing
areas should provide sufficient space or facilities for all vehicles to enter
and exit the site in a forward gear. Headroom of at least 5m where skips
are to be lifted and 4.75m for all other vehicle circulation areas should be
provided.

5. Coach parking facilities for hotels (use class C1) will not be
permitted.

6. All off-street car parking spaces and servicing areas must be
equipped with the facility to conveniently recharge electric vehicles.

7. Taxi ranks are encouraged at key locations, such as stations,
hotels and shopping centres. The provision of taxi ranks should be
designed to occupy the minimum practicable space, using a combined
entry and exit point to avoid obstruction to other transport modes.

CS17 Minimising and managing waste

To support City businesses, residents and visitors in making sustainable
choices regarding the minimisation, transport and management of their
waste, capitalising on the City's riverside location for sustainable waste
transfer and eliminating reliance on landfill for municipal solid waste
(MSW).

Page 138



DM17.1 Provision for waste

1. Waste facilities must be integrated into the design of buildings,
wherever feasible, and allow for the separate storage and collection of
recyclable materials, including compostable material.

2. On-site waste management, through techniques such as
recyclate sorting or energy recovery, which minimises the need for waste
transfer, should be incorporated wherever possible.

DM17.2 Designing out construction waste

New development should be designed to minimise the impact of
deconstruction and construction waste on the environment through:

a) reuse of existing structures;

b) building design which minimises wastage and makes use of
recycled materials;

C) recycling of deconstruction waste for reuse on site where
feasible;

d) transport of waste and construction materials by rail or river
wherever practicable;

e) application of current best practice with regard to air quality,

dust, hazardous waste, waste handling and waste management
DM17.3 New waste management sites

When new facilities for waste management, handling and transfer are
proposed developers will be required to demonstrate through design and
sustainability statements that the benefits of the proposed development
outweigh any adverse impacts and particularly that:

a) the development will handle waste which has been generated
locally;
b) access arrangements, mode of transport and transport routes

will minimise the potential for congestion and environmental impacts,
including local air quality impacts and carbon emissions. Use of the river
for transport of waste and recyclables will be encouraged;

C) the carbon impact of the development will be minimised. New
waste facilities should comply with the Mayor's Carbon Intensity Floor
(CIF);

d) the development is designed with resilience to natural and man-

made safety and security challenges.
CS18 Minimise flood risk

To ensure that the City remains at low risk from all types of flooding.

Page 139



DM18.2 Sustainable drainage systems

1. The design of the surface water drainage system should be
integrated into the design of proposed buildings or landscaping, where
feasible and practical, and should follow the SuDS management train
(Fig T) and London Plan drainage hierarchy.

2. SuDS designs must take account of the City's archaeological
heritage, complex underground utilities, transport infrastructure and
other underground structures, incorporating suitable SuDS elements for
the City's high density urban situation.

3. SuDS should be designed, where possible, to maximise
contributions to water resource efficiency, biodiversity enhancement and
the provision of multifunctional open spaces.

DM18.3 Flood protection and climate

1. Development must protect the integrity and effectiveness of
structures intended to minimise flood risk and, where appropriate,
enhance their effectiveness.

2. Wherever practicable, development should contribute to an
overall reduction in flood risk within and beyond the site boundaries,
incorporating flood alleviation measures for the public realm, where
feasible.

DM19.2 Biodiversity and urban greening

Developments should promote biodiversity and contribute to urban
greening by incorporating:

a) green roofs and walls, soft landscaping and trees;

b) features for wildlife, such as nesting boxes and beehives;

C) a planting mix which encourages biodiversity;

d) planting which will be resilient to a range of climate conditions;
e) maintenance of habitats within Sites of Importance for Nature

Conservation.

CS21 Protect and provide housing
To protect existing housing and amenity and provide additional housing
in the City, concentrated in or near identified residential areas, as shown
in Figure X, to meet the City's needs, securing suitable, accessible and
affordable housing and supported housing.

DM21.3 Residential environment

1. The amenity of existing residents within identified residential
areas will be protected by:

Page 140



a) resisting other uses which would cause undue noise
disturbance, fumes and smells and vehicle or pedestrian movements
likely to cause disturbance;

b) requiring new development near existing dwellings to
demonstrate adequate mitigation measures to address detrimental
impact.

2. Noise-generating uses should be sited away from residential
uses, where possible. Where residential and other uses are located
within the same development or area, adequate noise mitigation
measures must be provided and, where required, planning conditions
will be imposed to protect residential amenity.

3. All development proposals should be designed to avoid
overlooking and seek to protect the privacy, day lighting and sun lighting
levels to adjacent residential accommodation.

4. All new residential development proposals must demonstrate
how potential adverse noise impacts on and between dwellings will be
mitigated by housing layout, design and materials.

5. The cumulative impact of individual developments on the
amenity of existing residents will be considered.

Page 141



SCHEDULE
APPLICATION: 20/00932/FULMAJ
Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London

External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build
and associated change of use of existing building from police station
(sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses (Class C1) including: (i)
refurbishment of facade to Snow Hill and the retained facade to Cock
Lane; (ii) partial demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a
building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new plant at roof level; (iii)
extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle storage; (v)
highway works; (vi) greening and other ancillary works.

(Please note that additional information has been submitted in support
of the application including: additional Daylight and Sunlight
information, and a revised Construction Environmental Management
Plan)

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
REASON: To ensure compliance with the terms of Section 91 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 Prior to the commencement of the development an update to the
approved Circular Economy Strategy shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, to reaffirm the
proposed strategy or demonstrate improvements, and that
demonstrates that the development is designed to meet the relevant
targets set out in the GLA Circular Economy Guidance. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details and operated & managed in accordance with the approved
details throughout the lifecycle of the development.

REASON : To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be
satisfied with the detail of the proposed development so that it reduces
the demand for redevelopment, encourages re-use and reduces waste
in accordance with the following policies in the Development Plan and
draft Development Plans: London Plan; D3, S1 7, Sl 8 - Local Plan; CS
17, DM 17.2 - Draft City Plan 2036; S16, CEW 1. These details are
required prior to demolition and construction work commencing in order
to establish the extent of recycling and minimised waste from the time
that demolition and construction starts.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development a detailed Whole Life
Cycle Carbon assessment shall be submitted to and approved in

Page 142



writing by the Local Planning Authority, demonstrating that the Whole
Life Cycle Carbon emissions savings of the development achieve at
least the GLA benchmarks and setting out further opportunities to
achieve the GLA's aspirational benchmarks set out in the GLA's Whole
Life-Cycle Assessment Guidance. The assessment should include
details of measures to reduce carbon emissions throughout the whole
life cycle of the development and provide calculations in line with the
Mayor of London's guidance on Whole Life Cycle Carbon
Assessments, and the development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details and operated and managed in accordance
with the approved assessment for the life cycle of the development.
REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development so that it maximises the
reduction of carbon emissions of the development throughout the
whole life cycle of the development in accordance with the following
policies in the Development Plan and draft Development Plans: London
Plan: D3, SI 2, SI 7 - Local Plan: CS 17, DM 15.2, DM 17.2 - Draft City
Plan 2036: CE 1. These details are required prior to demolition and
construction work commencing in order to be able to account for
embodied carbon emissions resulting from the demolition and
construction phase (including recycling and reuse of materials) of the
development.

Prior to the commencement of the development a Climate Change
Resilience Sustainability Statement (CCRSS) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, that demonstrates
that the development is resilient and adaptable to predicted climate
conditions during the lifetime of the development. The CCRSS shall
include details of the climate risks that the development faces
(including flood, heat stress, water stress, natural capital, pests and
diseases) and the climate resilience solutions for addressing such
risks. The CCRSS will demonstrate that the potential for resilience and
adaptation measures (including but not limited to solar shading to
prevent solar gain; high thermal mass of building fabric to moderate
temperature fluctuations; cool roofs to prevent overheating; urban
greening; rainwater attenuation and drainage; flood risk mitigation;
biodiversity protection; passive ventilation and heat recovery and air
quality assessment to ensure building services do not contribute to
worsening photochemical smog) has been considered and appropriate
measures incorporated in the design of the building. The CCRSS shall
also demonstrate how the development will be operated and managed
to ensure the identified measures are maintained for the life of the
development. The development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved CCRSS and operated & managed in accordance with the
approved CCRSS for the life of the development.

REASON: To comply with Local Plan Policy DM 15.5 Climate change
resilience and adaptation.

Prior to the commencement of development, an updated Energy
Assessment demonstrating the improvements in carbon emission

Page 143



savings from the building is required to be submitted to and approved
by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To demonstrate that carbon emissions have been minimised
and that the development is sustainable in accordance with the
following policies of the Local Plan: CS15, DM15.1, DM15.2. and of the
London Plan: SI2.

No works shall take place until the developer has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work to be carried
out in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This shall include all on site work, including details of any
temporary works which may have an impact on the archaeology of the
site and all off site work such as the analysis, publication and archiving
of the results. All works shall be carried out and completed as
approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON: In order to allow an opportunity for investigations to be made
in an area where remains of archaeological interest are understood to
exist in accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM12.4.

No works shall take place until the developer has secured the
implementation of a programme of building recording work to be carried
out in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This shall include all on site work, and all off site work such
as the analysis, publication and archiving of the results. All works shall
be carried out and completed as approved, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to allow an opportunity for investigations to be made
in an area where remains of archaeological interest are understood to
exist in accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM12.4.

Before the development hereby permitted is begun a detailed site
investigation shall be carried out to establish if the site is contaminated
and to determine the potential for pollution of the water environment.
The method and extent of this site investigation shall be agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the
work. Details of measures to prevent pollution of ground and surface
water, including provisions for monitoring, shall then be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
development commences. The development shall proceed in strict
accordance with the measures approved.

REASON: To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance
with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM15.8. These details are
required prior to commencement in order that any changes to satisfy
this condition are incorporated into the development before the design
is too advanced to make changes

Page 144



10

11

12

Before any development hereby permitted is begun an air quality
assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and the measures identified shall be installed,
maintained and retained for the life of the building in accordance with
the approved assessment.

REASON: To improve or maintain local air quality, particularly nitrogen
dioxide and particulates PM10 in accordance with the City of London
Air Quality Strategy 2011 in accordance with the following policies of
the Local Plan: DM15.1, DM15.6. These details are required prior to
commencement in order to create a record of the conditions prior to
changes caused by the development.

Before any works including demolition are begun a site survey and
survey of highway and other land at the perimeter of the site shall be
carried out and details must be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority indicating the proposed finished floor levels
at basement and ground floor levels in relation to the existing Ordnance
Datum levels of the adjoining streets and open spaces. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
survey unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning
authority.

REASON: To ensure continuity between the level of existing streets
and the finished floor levels in the proposed building and to ensure a
satisfactory treatment at ground level in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM10.8, DM16.2. These details are required
prior to commencement in order that a record is made of the conditions
prior to changes caused by the development and that any changes to
satisfy this condition are incorporated into the development before the
design is too advanced to make changes.

Prior to the commencement of development the developer/construction
contractor shall sign up to the Non-Road Mobile Machinery Register.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Mayor of
London Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and
Demolition SPG July 2014 (Or any subsequent iterations) to ensure
appropriate plant is used and that the emissions standards detailed in
the SPG are met. An inventory of all NRMM used on site shall be
maintained and provided to the Local Planning Authority upon request
to demonstrate compliance with the regulations.

REASON: To reduce the emissions of construction and demolition in
accordance with the Mayor of London Control of Dust and Emissions
during Construction and Demolition SPG July 2014. Compliance is
required to be prior to commencement due to the potential impact at
the beginning of the construction.

Prior to any stripping-out or demolition of the existing building, a
material audit of the building should be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority to understand the value of it as
a material bank, establishing what can be retained and what can be
reused either on-site, in the first instance, re-used off-site or recycled,

Page 145



13

14

15

with the presumption that as little waste as possible is generated and
the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority can be satisfied
that the proposed development will be designed to promote circular
economy principles to reduce waste and encourage recycling, reducing
Impact on virgin resources in accordance with the following policies in
the Development Plan and the draft Development Plan: London Plan;
GG5, GG6, D3, Sl 7, SI 8 - Local Plan; CS 17, DM 17.2 - Draft City
Plan 2036; S16, CEW1.These details are required prior to demolition
and construction work commencing in order to establish the extent of
recycling and minimised waste from the time that demolition and
construction start.

No piling or construction of basements using penetrative methods shall
take place until it has been demonstrated that there would be no
unacceptable risk to below ground utilities infrastructure, details of
which shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
liaison with Thames Water before such works commence and the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

REASON: To ensure that below ground utilities infrastructure is
protected in accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan:
DM2.1.

No works except demolition to basement slab level shall take place
before details of the foundation design and piling configuration, to
include a detailed method statement, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to allow an opportunity for investigations to be made
in an area where remains or archaeological interest are understood to
exist in accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM12.4.

Before any construction works hereby permitted are begun the
following details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in conjunction with the Lead Local Flood
Authority and all development pursuant to this permission shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details:

(a) Fully detailed design and layout drawings for the proposed SuDS
components including but not limited to: attenuation systems including
blue/green roofs, rainwater pipework, flow control devices, design for
system exceedance, design for ongoing maintenance; surface water
flow rates shall be restricted to no greater than 0.8 I/s from a catchment
of 468m2 with the remainder of the site discharging at an unrestricted
rate, provision should be made for an attenuation volume capacity
capable of achieving this, which should be no less than 57m3;

(b) Full details of measures to be taken to prevent flooding (of the site
or caused by the site) during the course of the construction works.

(c) Evidence that Thames Water have been consulted and consider the
proposed discharge rate to be satisfactory.

Page 146



16

17

18

REASON: To improve sustainability, reduce flood risk and reduce
water runoff rates in accordance with the following policy of the Local
Plan: DM18.1, DM18.2 and DM18.3.

Demolition works shall not begin until a Deconstruction Logistics Plan
to manage all freight vehicle movements to and from the site during
deconstruction of the existing building(s) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
Deconstruction Logistics Plan shall be completed in accordance with
the Mayor of London's Construction Logistics Plan Guidance dated July
2017, and shall specifically address the safety of vulnerable road users
through compliance with the Construction Logistics and Community
Safety (CLOCS) Standard. The Plan must demonstrate how Work
Related Road Risk is to be managed. The demolition shall not be
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved
Deconstruction Logistics Plan or any approved amendments thereto as
may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that demolition works do not have an adverse
impact on public safety and the transport network in accordance with
London Plan Policy 6.14 and the following policies of the Local Plan:
DM15.6, DM16.1. These details are required prior to demolition work
commencing in order that the impact on the transport network is
minimised from the time that demolition starts

Demolition works shall not begin until a Construction Logistics Plan to
manage all freight vehicle movements to and from the site during
construction of the development has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Construction Logistics
Plan shall be completed in accordance with the Mayor of London's
Construction Logistics Plan Guidance dated July 2017, and shall
specifically address the safety of vulnerable road users through
compliance with the Construction Logistics and Community Safety
(CLOCS) Standard. The Plan must demonstrate how Work Related
Road Risk is to be managed. The development shall not be carried out
otherwise than in accordance with the approved Construction Logistics
Plan or any approved amendments thereto as may be agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that construction works do not have an adverse
impact on public safety and the transport network in accordance with
London Plan Policy 6.14 and the following policies of the Local Plan:
DM15.6, DM16.1. These details are required prior to construction work
commencing in order that the impact on the transport network is
minimised from the time that construction starts.

There shall be no demolition on the site until a scheme for protecting
nearby residents and commercial occupiers from noise, dust and other
environmental effects of demolition (including management of works,
control over working hours and types of equipment to be used, and
including prior consultation with neighbours and interested parties) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning

Page 147



19

20

Authority. The scheme shall be based on the Department of Markets
and Consumer Protection's Code of Practice for Deconstruction and
Construction Sites and arrangements for liaison and monitoring
(including any agreed monitoring contribution) set out therein. A staged
scheme of protective works may be submitted in respect of individual
stages of the demolition process but no works in any individual stage
shall be commenced until the related scheme of protective works has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The demolition shall not be carried out other than in
accordance with the approved scheme (including payment of any
agreed monitoring contribution).

REASON: In the interests of public safety and to ensure a minimal
effect on the amenities of neighbouring premises and the transport
network in accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan:
DM15.6, DM15.7, DM21.3. These details are required prior to
demolition in order that the impact on amenities is minimised from the
time that development starts.

There shall be no construction on the site until a scheme for protecting
nearby residents and commercial occupiers from noise, dust and other
environmental effects during construction (including management of
works, control over working hours and types of equipment to be used,
and including prior consultation with neighbours and interested parties)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be based on the Department of Markets
and Consumer Protection's Code of Practice for Deconstruction and
Construction Sites and arrangements for liaison and monitoring
(including any agreed monitoring contribution) set out therein. A staged
scheme of protective works may be submitted in respect of individual
stages of the construction process but no works in any individual stage
shall be commenced until the related scheme of protective works has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The construction of the development shall not be carried out
other than in accordance with the approved scheme (including payment
of any agreed monitoring contribution).

REASON: In the interests of public safety and to ensure a minimal
effect on the amenities of neighbouring premises and the transport
network in accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan:
DM15.6, DM15.7, DM21.3. These details are required prior to
demolition in order that the impact on amenities is minimised from the
time that the construction starts.

Before any construction works hereby permitted are begun details of
rainwater harvesting including for the irrigation for the green wall as
agreed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.

REASON: To improve sustainability and reduce flood risk by reducing
potable water demands and water run-off rates in accordance with the
following policy of the Local Plan: CS18. These details are required
prior to construction work commencing in order that any changes to

Page 148



21

satisfy this condition are incorporated into the development before the
design is too advanced to make changes.

21. Before any works thereby affected are begun the following
details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and all development pursuant to this permission
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and so
retained thereafter:

(1) particulars and samples of the materials to be used on all
external faces of Block A and Block B and the atrium including external
ground and upper level surfaces including brick samples panels to be
inspected on site ;

(i) details of the shadow gap for block B at the junction between
retained structure and extension

(i)  details of the proposed new facades to Block B including typical
details of new fenestration and entrances and mansard extension
including dormers;

(iv)  details of a typical bay of the development for new internal and
external facades to Block B;

(v) typical details of brickwork including for the new external walls
for atrium Block B ;

(vi)  details of ground floor elevations;

(vii)  details of all ground floor entrance(s);

(viii) details of window schedule including retained and upgraded,
refurbished and replaced including full joinery details to the Block A and
retained Block B;

(ixX)  details of the mansard and new dormer windows and rooflights
to Block A;

(x) details of soffits, hand rails and balustrades;

(xi)  details of all alterations to the existing facades;

(xii)  details of junctions with adjoining premises;

(xii)  details of the integration of window cleaning equipment and the
garaging thereof, plant, flues, fire escapes and other excrescences at
roof level;

(xiv) details of plant and ductwork to serve the development

(xv) details of ventilation and air-conditioning for the development;

(xvi) details of all ground level surfaces including materials to be
used,

(xvii) details of external surfaces within the site boundary including
hard and soft landscaping;

(xx)  obscured glazing and internal privacy screen details; to all
relevant windows to external elevations including a management plan
for securing use of privacy screens;

(xxi) circadian light source details for the flank wall facing Cock Lane.

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development and to ensure a
satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM3.2, DM10.1, DM10.5, DM12.2.

Page 149



22

23

24

25

Prior to the commencement of the relevant works a full Signage
strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, which should include full details of design, location,
fixing and lighting .

The Applicant should note that separate advertising consent may be
required.

REASON: To encourage a high standard of design and a restrained
amount of advertising in keeping with the character of the City in
accordance with Policy DM 10.6 of the Local Plan and to ensure the
publicly accessible areas and Cultural Offer are visible and legible for
visitors.

Prior to the commencement of the relevant works, details of the
proposed construction hoarding including cultural content shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and no construction hoardings shall be erected other than in
compliance with the approved details.

REASON: To encourage a high standard of design and a restrained
amount of advertising in keeping with the character of the City in
accordance with Policy DM 10.6 of the Local Plan and to ensure the
publicly accessible areas and Cultural Offer are visible and legible for
visitors.

Details of the position and size of the green roof(s), the type of planting,
the maintenance regime including fire strategy and the contribution of
the green roof(s) to biodiversity and rainwater attenuation shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
before any works thereby affected are begun. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with those approved details and
maintained as approved for the life of the development unless
otherwise approved by the local planning authority.

REASON: To assist the environmental sustainability of the
development and provide a habitat that will encourage biodiversity in
accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan: DM18.2,
DM19.2, and to ensure that the safety of future visitors to the
development and surrounding uses through mitigating the risk of fire
from the green roof in accordance with draft City Plan Policy S2 and
London Plan Policy D12.

Details of the position and size of the green walls(s), the type of
planting, the maintenance regime including a fire strategy and the
contribution of the green wall(s) to biodiversity shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority before any
works thereby affected are begun. The maintenance regime must
ensure the maintenance of the green wall does not require access from
6 Snow Hill The development shall be carried out in accordance with
those approved details and maintained as approved for the life of the
development unless otherwise approved by the local planning
authority.

Page 150



26

27

REASON: To assist the environmental sustainability of the
development and provide a habitat that will encourage biodiversity in
accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan: DM18.2,
DM19.2, and to protect use of neighbouring site in accordance with
DM11.3 and to ensure that the safety of future visitors to the
development and surrounding uses through mitigating the risk of fire
from the green wall and green roof in accordance with draft City Plan
Policy S2 and London Plan Policy D12.

Prior to the commencement of the relevant works,

(a) a full Lighting Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority, which should include full details of all
luminaires, both decorative, functional or ambient (including associated
infrastructure), alongside details of the impact of lighting on the public
realm, including intensity, uniformity, colour, timings and associated
management measures to reduce the impact on light pollution and
residential amenity. Detail should be provided for all external, semi
external and public-facing parts of the building and of internal lighting
levels and how this has been designed to reduce glare and light
trespass. This should include details of the replica police lanterns.

Post installation (b) Details of final lux levels for all external lighting,
including a test light glare assessment on site attended by the Local
Planning Authority officers with adjustments to be agreed in writing

All works and management measures pursuant to this consent shall be
carried out, put in place and maintained in accordance with the
approved details and lighting strategy.

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development and to ensure a
satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM10.1, 15.7 and emerging policy DE2 of
the Draft City Plan 2036.

Before any works thereby affected are begun the following details shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all development pursuant to this permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and so retained thereafter:

a. The details for the reinstatement of the police lamps previously
located on the Snow Hill fagade. If it is not possible to reinstate the
original lamps, details for an appropriate replica or replacement must
be submitted. The plans and details for the reinstatement or
replacement of these lamps must be completed in consultation with
City Police prior to relevant works commencing.

b. the above works shall be completed in full and inspected by the
Local Planning Authority prior to occupation .

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development and to ensure a
satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM10.1, DM15.7 and CS3, and emerging
policy DE2 of the Draft City Plan 2036.

Page 151



28

29

30

31

Before any works thereby affected are begun, the layout and the
arrangement of the long stay and short stay cycle parking, including
adaptable cycle parking, shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Transport for
London. The cycle parking detailed in the approved arrangement plans
and report shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the
approved plan(s) for the life of the building.

REASON: To ensure the cycle parking is accessible and has regard to
compliance with the London Cycling Design Standards in accordance
with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM16.3 and Intend to
Publish London Plan policy: T5.

(a) The level of noise emitted from any new plant shall be lower than
the existing background level by at least 10 dBA. Noise levels shall be
determined at one metre from the window of the nearest noise
sensitive premises. The background noise level shall be expressed as
the lowest LA90 (10 minutes) during which plant is or may be in
operation.

(b) Following installation but before the new plant comes into operation
measurements of noise from the new plant must be taken and a report
demonstrating that the plant as installed meets the design
requirements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

(c) All constituent parts of the new plant shall be maintained and
replaced in whole or in part as often is required to ensure compliance
with the noise levels approved by the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: To protect the amenities of neighbouring
residential/commercial occupiers in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM15.7, DM21.3.

All residential premises in the development shall be designed and
constructed to attain the following internal noise levels:

Bedrooms- 30dB LAeq,T* and 45dB LAmax

Living rooms- 30dB LAeq, T*

*T- Night-time 8 hours between 23:00-07:00 and daytime 16 hours
between 07:00-23:00.

A test shall be carried out after completion but prior to occupation to
show that the criteria above have been met and the results must be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to occupation of any part of the building.

REASON: To ensure that the occupiers and users of the proposed
development do not suffer a loss of amenity by reason of excess noise
from environmental and transportation sources in accordance with the
Local Plan: DM21.3 and D21.5.

Before any mechanical plant is used on the premises it shall be

mounted in a way which will minimise transmission of structure borne
sound or vibration to any other part of the building in accordance with a

Page 152



32

33

34

35

scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to any mechanical plant being installed .
REASON: In order to protect the amenities of commercial occupiers in
the building in accordance following policy of the Local Plan: DM15.7.

Before any works thereby affected are begun, a scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
which specifies the fume extract arrangements, materials and
construction methods to be used to avoid noise and/or odour
penetration to the upper floors from the Class E use. Flues must
terminate at roof level or an agreed high level location which will not
give rise to nuisance to other occupiers of the building or adjacent
buildings. The details approved must be implemented before the Class
E use takes place.

REASON: In order to protect residential/commercial amenities in the
building in accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan:
DM15.6, DM15.7, DM21.3.

Before the shell and core is complete the following details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
conjunction with the Lead Local Flood Authority and all development
pursuant to this permission shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details:

(a) A Lifetime Maintenance Plan for the SuDS system to include:

- A full description of how the system would work, it's aims and
objectives and the flow control arrangements;

- A Maintenance Inspection Checklist/Log;

- A Maintenance Schedule of Work itemising the tasks to be
undertaken, such as the frequency required and the costs incurred to
maintain the system.

REASON: To improve sustainability, reduce flood risk and reduce
water runoff rates in accordance with the following policy of the Local
Plan: DM18.1, DM18.2 and DM18.3.

A post construction BREEAM assessment demonstrating that a target
rating of 'Excellent' has been achieved (or such other target rating as
the local planning authority may agree provided that it is satisfied all
reasonable endeavours have been used to achieve an 'Excellent’
rating) shall be submitted as soon as practicable after practical
completion.

REASON: To demonstrate that carbon emissions have been minimised
and that the development is sustainable in accordance with the
following policy of the Local Plan: CS15, DM15.1, DM15.2

Details of a Hotel Security Management Plan to ensure the security
and safety of visitors and staff at the development shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby permitted. The Management
Plan must include details for the security arrangements for the publicly
accessible spaces. The building facilities shall thereafter be operated in

Page 153



36

37

38

39

accordance with the approved Security Management Plan (or any
amended Security Management Plan that may be approved from time
to time by the Local Planning Authority) for the duration of the hotel
use.

REASON: To ensure that the development is secure from crime,
disorder and terrorism in accordance with the following policy of the
Local Plan: CS3."

Prior to first occupation of the hotel an Accessibility Management Plan
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and
this should include accessibility details for the publicly accessible
spaces. The hotel shall only be operated in accordance with the
approved management plan.

REASON: To ensure the hotel provides a fully accessible and inclusive
facility in accordance with Policy DM10.8

Details of an Operational Management Plan demonstrating the
arrangements for management of the building, including the
arrangements for guests that require blue badge car parking spaces
and the arrangements for waste collection, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby permitted. The building facilities
shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved
Operational Management Plan (or any amended Management Plan
that may be approved from time to time by the Local Planning
Authority) for the life of the building.

REASON: To ensure that the development does not have an adverse
impact on the amenity of the surrounding uses in accordance with the
following policy of the Local Plan: DM11.3.

No development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided
that either:-

1. Capacity exists off site to serve the development, or

2. A development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed
with the Local Authority in consultation with Thames Water. Where a
development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed, no occupation
shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed development
and infrastructure phasing plan, or

3. All wastewater network upgrades required to accommodate the
additional flows from the development have been completed.
REASON: Network reinforcement works may be required to
accommodate the proposed development. Any reinforcement works
identified will be necessary in order to avoid sewage flooding and/or
potential pollution incidents. The developer can request information to
support the discharge of this condition by visiting the Thames Water
website at thameswater.co.uk/preplanning.

No development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided
that either:

Page 154



40

41

42

- all water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional
flows to serve the development have been completed; or

- a development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with
Thames Water to allow development to be occupied. Where a
development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation
shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed housing and
infrastructure phasing plan.

REASON: The development may lead to no / low water pressure and
network reinforcement works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure
that sufficient capacity is made available to accommodate additional
demand anticipated from the new development

Once the as-built design has been completed (upon commencement of
RIBA Stage 6) and prior to the development being occupied (or if
earlier, prior to the development being handed over to a new owner or
proposed occupier) the post-construction Whole Life-Cycle Carbon
(WLC) Assessment (to be completed in accordance with and in line
with the criteria set out in in the GLA's WLC Assessment Guidance)
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority . The post-
construction assessment should provide an update of the information
submitted at planning submission stage (RIBA Stage 2/3), including the
WLC carbon emission figures for all life-cycle modules based on the
actual materials, products and systems used. The assessment should
be submitted along with any supporting evidence as per the guidance
and should be received three months post as-built design completion,
unless otherwise agreed.

REASON: To ensure whole life-cycle carbon is calculated and reduced
and to demonstrate compliance with Policy SI 2 of the London Plan.

Once the building construction is completed and prior to the
development being occupied (or, if earlier, prior to the development
being handed over to a new owner or proposed occupier) a post-
completion report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority to demonstrate that the targets and actual
outcomes achieved are in compliance with or exceed the proposed
targets stated in the approved Circular Economy Statement for the
development.

REASON: To ensure that circular economy principles have been
applied and Circular Economy targets and commitments have been
achieved to demonstrate compliance with Policy Sl 7 of the London
Plan.

Prior to the occupation of any part of the building all exposed flank or
party walls must be faced or treated in accordance with details to be
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before any such
works are commenced and all development pursuant to this permission
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the
following policy of the Local Plan: DM10.1.

Page 155



43

44

45

46

47

48

Within 6 months of completion details must be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority demonstrating the Climate Change resilience
measures that have been incorporated to ensure that the development
is resilient to the predicted weather patterns during the lifetime of the
building. This should include details of the climate risks that the site
faces (flood, heat stress, water stress, natural capital, pests and
diseases) and the climate resilience solutions that have been
implemented.

REASON: To comply with Local Plan Policy DM 15.5 Climate change
resilience and adaptation

No live or recorded music shall be played that it can be heard outside
the premises or within any residential or other premises in the building.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the adjoining premises and the
area generally in accordance with the following policies of the Local
Plan: DM15.7, DM21.3.

Privacy screens or obscured glazing must be installed on the windows
to obstruct the internal views from the hotel bedrooms to the
neighbouring properties on Cock Lane as shown in the approved
drawings.

REASON: To ensure the amenity of surrounding uses is protected in
accordance with Policy DM11.3.

There shall be no use of or access to any part of the roof areas hereby
approved, other than in the case of emergency or for maintenance
purposes.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the adjoining premises and the
area generally in accordance with the following policies of the Local
Plan: DM15.7, DM21.3.

There shall be no promoted events on the premises. A promoted event
for this purpose, is an event involving music and dancing where the
musical entertainment is provided at any time between 23:00 and 07:00
by a disc jockey or disc jockeys one or some of whom are not
employees of the premises licence holder and the event is promoted to
the general public.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the adjoining premises and the
area generally in accordance with the following policies of the Local
Plan: DM15.7, DM21.3.

No servicing of the premises shall be carried out between the hours of
23:00 on one day and 07:00 on the following day from Monday to
Saturday and between 23:00 on Saturday and 07:00 on the following
Monday and on Bank Holidays. Servicing includes the loading and
unloading of goods from vehicles and putting rubbish outside the
building.

Page 156



49

50

51

52

53

REASON: To avoid obstruction of the surrounding streets and to
safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjacent premises, in
accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan: DM15.7,
DM16.2, DM21.3.

All parts of the ventilation and extraction equipment including the odour
control systems installed shall be cleaned, serviced and maintained in
accordance with Section 5 of ‘Control of Odour & Noise from
Commercial Kitchen Extract Systems' dated September 2018 by
EMAQ+ (or any subsequent updated version). A record of all such
cleaning, servicing and maintenance shall be maintained and kept on
site and upon request provided to the Local Planning Authority to
demonstrate compliance.

REASON: To protect the occupiers of existing and adjoining premises
and public amenity in accordance with Policies DM 10.1, DM 15.7 and
DM 21.3.

The proposed development sharing a party element with non-office
premises shall be designed and constructed to provide resistance to
the transmission of sound. The sound insulation shall be sufficient to
ensure that NR40 is not exceeded in the proposed premises due to
noise from the neighbouring premises and shall be permanently
maintained thereafter.

A test shall be carried out after completion but prior to occupation to
show the criterion above have been met and the results shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To protect the amenities of occupiers of the building in
accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM15.7.

A minimum of 10% of the hotel bedrooms shall be wheelchair
accessible as set out in the details provided.

REASON: To ensure the hotel provides a fully accessible and inclusive
facility in accordance with Policy DM10.8

Provision shall be made for disabled people to obtain access to the
building via the principal entrance without the need to negotiate steps
and shall be maintained for the life of the building.

REASON: To ensure that disabled people are able to use the building
in accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM10.8.

In the event that the neighbouring owner at 6 Snow Hill is to redevelop
their Site and proposes to build to the boundary line at 5 Snow Hill, the
green wall located on the flank wall is to be removed before works on
the neighbouring site commence and such removal shall not be
deemed to be in breach of Condition 25.

REASON: To ensure does not prejudice future redevelopment or
prejudice the primary business function of the City in accordance with
policies DM1.2 and DM11.3.

Page 157



54

55

56

57

58

59

In the event that the neighbouring owners facing the east and south
elevations of no. 5 Snow Hill redevelop their sites (12 Cock Lane and 4
Cock Lane) the glazing to the windows in the east and south elevations
of 5 Snow Hill must replace by frosted glass or obscured glazing and
the proposed specifications are required to provide sufficient privacy,
which must be installed no later than first occupation of the first
redeveloped neighbouring site and thereafter retained for the life of the
building .

REASON: To ensure does not prejudice future redevelopment or
prejudice the primary business function of the City in accordance with
policies DM1.2 and DM11.3.

In the event that the neighbouring owner at 6 Snow Hill is to redevelop
their Site and proposes to build to the boundary line at 5 Snow Hill, and
the natural light for the three windows on the boundary is obstructed,
the rooms will instead be served through artificial circadian light source
as shown on approved plans.

REASON: To ensure does not prejudice future redevelopment or
prejudice the primary business function of the City in accordance with
policies DM1.2 and DM11.3.

The refuse collection and storage facilities shown on the drawings
hereby approved shall be provided and maintained throughout the life
of the building for the use of all the occupiers.

REASON: To ensure the satisfactory servicing of the building in
accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM17.1.

All new work and work in making good shall match the existing
adjacent work with regard to the methods used and to materials,
colour, texture and profile, unless shown otherwise on the drawings or
other documentation hereby approved or required by any condition(s)
attached to this permission.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance in accordance
with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM10.1.

The plant enclosures shown in the drawings hereby approved shall be
constructed and completed within a period of three months from the
date of the plant equipment being installed on the roof and shall be
retained thereafter as approved for the life of the plant it encloses.
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance in accordance
with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM10.1.

No flues, ductwork, soil stacks, soil vent pipes or any other pipe-work
other than rainwater pipes shall be fixed to the elevations of the
building unless shown on the drawings hereby approved.

REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is
satisfactory in accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan:
DM10.1.

Page 158



60

61

62

63

64

65

66

All commemorative plaques on the existing building shall be retained
for the life of the building and not removed during refurbishment.
REASON: In the interest of visual amenity and to maintain the historic
and cultural interest of the site in accordance with the following policy
of the Local Plan: DM12.1.

The development shall be designed to allow for the retro-fit of heat
exchanger rooms to connect into a district heating network if this
becomes available during the lifetime of the development.

REASON: To minimise carbon emissions by enabling the building to be
connected to a district heating and cooling network if one becomes
available during the life of the building in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM15.1, DM15.2, DM15.3, DM15.3, DM15.4.

No doors, gates or windows at ground floor level shall open over the
public highway.
REASON: In the interests of public safety.

No part of the proposed development including plant structures to
which this permission relates shall infringe or exceed the heights
specified on the St. Paul's Heights code.

REASON: To ensure compliance with St. Paul's Heights restrictions
and to ensure protection of the view of St. Paul's Cathedral in
accordance with the following policy of Local Plan: CS14, DM10.1,
DM12.1.

Unless otherwise approved by the LPA there must be no building, roof
structures or plant above the top storey, including any building,
structures or plant permitted by the Town & Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 or in any provisions in any
statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification.

REASON: To ensure protection of the view of St Paul's Cathedral and
to ensure a satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the
following policies of the Local Plan: CS14, DM10.1 DM12.1.

Unless otherwise approved by the LPA no plant or telecommunications
equipment shall be installed on the exterior of the building, including
any plant or telecommunications equipment permitted by the Town &
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 or in
any provisions in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance in accordance
with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM10.1.

Before any works thereby affected are begun the following details shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all development pursuant to this permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and so retained thereafter:

() Lighting strategy external elevations

Page 159



67

68

69

(if) Post installation review on site with the Local Planning Authority to
adjust and agree final lux levels

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development and to ensure a
satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM10.1, DM15.7 and CS3, and emerging
policy DE2 of the Draft City Plan 2036.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, before any
works thereby affected are begun the following details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all works pursuant to this consent shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details:

a. A methodology and monitoring strategy to ensure the stability of the
retained structures of the historic building including in relation to Block
B the main staircase; reading room and Cock Lane facade.

REASON: to ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with detail of the proposed development in accordance with the
following policies DM12.2 and DM12.3

The stability of the structure to remain must, throughout the period of
demolition and reconstruction, be assured before any works of
demolition begin, taking into account any rapid release of stress,
weather protection, controlled shoring, strutting, stitching,
reinforcement, ties or grouting as may occur to be necessary.
REASON: To ensure the stability of the structure to be retained in
accordance with the following policies of the Local Plan: DM12.2 and
DM12.3

The development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with
the following approved drawings and particulars or as approved under
conditions of this planning permission:

5177-P-010-A; 5177-011-A; 5177-P-114; 5177-P-115; 5177-P-116;
5177-P-117; 5177-P-118; 5177-P-119; 5177-P-120; 5177-P-121; 5177-
P-122; 5177-P-123; 5177-P-198-B; 5177-P-199-B; 5177-P-200-C;
5177-P-201-C; 5177-P-202-C; 5177-P-203-C; 5177-P-204-C; 5177-P-
205-C; 5177-P-206-B; 5177-P-207-B; 5177-P-208-B; 5177-P-209-A;
5177-P-210-A; 5177-P-211-B; 5177-P-300-A; 5177-P-301; 5177-P-
302-A; 5177-P-303-D; 5177-P-304-B; 5177-P-305; 5177-P-306; 5177-
P-307; 5177-P-308; 5177-P-309; 5177-P-310; 5177-P1-401; 5177-P1-
402; 5177-P1-403; 5177-P1-404; 5177-P1-405; 5177-P1-406; 5177-
P1-407; Email from Daniel Watney dated 17.06.2021 regarding the site
area; Email from Daniel Watney regarding public access timings dated
24/06/2021; Email from Daniel Watney regarding public access to
atrium space dated 24/06/2021; Email from Daniel Watney regarding
short stay cycle parking dated 03/09/2021.

Page 160



REASON: To ensure that the development of this site is in compliance
with details and particulars which have been approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

INFORMATIVES

In dealing with this application the City has implemented the
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework to work with
the applicant in a positive and proactive manner based on seeking
solutions to problems arising in dealing with planning applications in the
following ways:

detailed advice in the form of statutory policies in the Local Plan,
Supplementary Planning documents, and other written guidance has
been made available;

a full pre application advice service has been offered;

where appropriate the City has been available to provide guidance on
how outstanding planning concerns may be addressed.

The proposed development is located within 15 metres of Thames
Waters underground assets and as such, the development could cause
the assets to fail if appropriate measures are not taken. Please read
the guide ‘'working near our assets' to ensure your workings are in line
with the necessary processes you need to follow if you're considering
working above or near our pipes or other structures.

There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. If
you're planning significant work near our sewers, it's important that you
minimize the risk of damage. Thames Water will need to check that
your development doesn't limit repair or maintenance activities, or
inhibit the services they provide in any other way. The applicant is
advised to read the guide working near or diverting Thames Water

pipes.

As required by Building regulations part H paragraph 2.36, Thames
Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their
proposal, protection to the property to prevent sewage flooding, by
installing a positive pumped device (or equivalent reflecting
technological advances), on the assumption that the sewerage network
may surcharge to ground level during storm conditions. If as part of the
basement development there is a proposal to discharge ground water
to the public network, this would require a Groundwater Risk
Management Permit from Thames Water. Any discharge made without
a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the
provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would expect the

Page 161



developer to demonstrate what measures will be undertaken to
minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit
enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management.

The Mayor of London has adopted a new charging schedule for
Community Infrastructure Levy ("the Mayoral CIL charge or MCIL2") on
1st April 2019. The Mayoral Community Levy 2 Levy is set at the
following differential rates within the central activity zone:

Office 1185 sg.m

Retail 1165 sq.m

Hotel 1140 sq.m

All other uses 180 per sq.m

These rates are applied to "chargeable development” over 100sg.m
(GIA) or developments where a new dwelling is created.

The City of London Community Infrastructure Levy is set at a rate of
i75 per sq.m for offices, 1150 per sq.m for Riverside Residential, 195 per
sq.m for Rest of City Residential and i75 for all other uses.

The CIL will be recorded on the Register of Local Land Charges as a
legal charge upon "chargeable development" when planning
permission is granted. The Mayoral CIL will be passed to Transport for
London to help fund Crossrail and Crossrail 2. The City CIL will be
used to meet the infrastructure needs of the City.

Relevant persons, persons liable to pay and interested parties will be
sent a "Liability Notice" that will provide full details of the charges and
to whom they have been charged or apportioned. Where a liable party
is not identified the owners of the land will be liable to pay the levy.
Please submit to the City's Planning Obligations Officer an
"Assumption of Liability" Notice (available from the Planning Portal
website: www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil).

Prior to commencement of a "chargeable development" the developer
is required to submit a "Notice of Commencement" to the City's
Planning Obligations Officer. This Notice is available on the Planning
Portal website. Failure to provide such information on the due date may
incur both surcharges and penalty interest.

This permission must in no way be deemed to be an approval for the
display of advertisement matter indicated on the drawing(s) which must
form the subject of a separate application under the Advertisement
Regulations.

This permission is granted having regard to planning considerations
only and is without prejudice to the position of the City of London
Corporation as ground landlords; and the work must not be instituted
until the consent of the City of London Corporation as freeholders has
been obtained by the Head Lessee.

This permission is granted having regard to planning considerations
only and is without prejudice to the position of the City of London

Page 162



Corporation or Transport for London as Highway Authority; and work
must not be commenced until the consent of the Highway Authority has
been obtained.

Access for people with disabilities is a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications. The City of London Corporation
has published design standards giving advice on access for people
with disabilities and setting out the minimum standards it expects to
see adopted in the City buildings. These can be obtained from the
City's Access Adviser, Chief Planning Officer and District Surveyor.
Further advice on improving access for people with disabilities can be
obtained from the City's Access Adviser. Your attention is drawn to the
Disability Discrimination provisions of the Equality Act 2010 to ensure
that disabled people are not significantly disadvantaged.

Service providers, etc., should make "reasonable adjustments” to
facilitate access to their premises and the City asks all applicants for
planning permission to ensure that physical barriers to access
premises are minimised in any works carried out.

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



Background Papers — 20/00932/FULMAJ

Application documents

Existing plans: 5177-P-100, 5177-P-101, 5177-P-102, 5177-P-103, 5177-P-104,
5177-P-105, 5177-P-106, 5177-P-107, 5177-P-108, 5177-P-109, 5177-P-110, 5177-
P-111, 5177-P-112, 5177-P-113, 2019-4988-002 P1,

Design and Access Statement, Axiom Architects, November 2020
Covering Letter, Daniel Watney, 13/11/2020

Phase | Preliminary Risk Assessment ref. ‘CRM.1483.043.GE.R.001.A’, Enzygo
Geoenvironmental Ltd, September 2020

Urban Greening Assessment, Greengage, 06/11/2020

BREEAM Ecology Credit Report, Greengage, November 2020

CIL Form, Daniel Watney, 13/11/2020

Cultural Plan, becg, November 2020

Daylight and Sunlight Report, Point 2 Surveyors, November 2020
BREEAM Pre-Assessment, Greengage, 06/08/2020

Delivery and Servicing Management Plan, RGP, November 2020
Transport Assessment, RGP, November 2020

Travel Plan, RGP, November 2020

Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy Report, Heyne Tillett Steel, 28/10/2020
Planning Statement, Daniel Watney, November 2020

Statement of Community Involvement, becg, October 2020
Structural Report, Heyne Tillett Steel, 28/10/2020

Archaeological Desk-based assessment, MOLA, October 2020
Circular Economy Statement, Greengage, 06/11/2020

Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, November 2020
Energy Statement, Greengage, 13/11/2020

Air Quality Assessment, Entran Limited, 10/11/2020

Noise Impact Assessment, Scotch Partners, 12/11/2020

Page 165



Life Cycle Assessment, Greengage, 13/11/2020

Statement of Significance, Donald Insall Associated, November 2020
Overheating Assessment, Greengage, October 2020

Letter, Scotch Partners 11/01/2021

Daylight and Sunlight Addendum, Point 2 Surveyors, 11/01/2021

Healthy Urban Planning Checklist, Daniel Watney, 11/01/2021

Transport Statement Addendum, RGP, January 2021

Addendum Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, February 2021
Views from Giltspur Street, Point 2 Surveyors, 01/02/2021

Sustainability Addendum. Greengage, March 2021

Archaeological Desk Based Assessment — Addendum, MOLA, February 2021
Q-ton, Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Air-conditioning Europe, Ltd, May 2021
Fire Strategy, C.S. Todd, May 2021

Sustainability Statement, Greengage, March 2021 PV02

Axonometric Roof Plan, 5177-P-310 Rev A

IFC Engineering Assessment Report, International Fire Consultants Limited,
February 2020

Construction Environmental Management Plan, Gilbert Ash, August 2021
General Detailing for blue roofs for SuDS, 01/06/2021

Impacts to 6 Snow Hill Letter, Anstey Horne, 18/06/2021

Security Policy Statement, Whitbread PLC, August 2021

Daylight and Sunlight Report, Point 2 Surveyors, August 2021

Daylight and Sunlight Letter for 6 Snow Hill, Point 2 Surveyors, 13/08/2021
Daylight and Sunlight Addendum, Point 2 Surveyors, 26/08/2021

Page 166



Representations

Mr Thomas Boden 17/12/2020

Marcello Leonardi 20/12/2020

Mr Alan Buxton 21/12/2020

Beaumont Business Centre Limited (sent from CMS LLP) 06/01/2021
Mr Richard Leyland 06/01/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited (sent from CMS LLP) 18/01/2021
Collineve Limited 27/04/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited 20/04/2021

Collineve Limited 28/06/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited 28/06/2021

Anstey Horne (on behalf of Beaumont Business Centres Limited 14/07/2021
John James 22/08/2021

Mrs Carol Bernstein 23/08/2021

Beaumont Business Centres Limited 31/08/2021

Anstey Horne 02/09/2021

External

Letter Historic England (pre-application advice) 24/08/2020
Letter Historic England 21/12/2020

Email Thames Water 29/12/2020

Email ANS Global, 01/04/2020

Email Twentieth Century Society (pre-application advice to Applicant) 28/10/2020
Email Transport for London 11/01/2021

Letter Conservation Area Advisory Committee 21/01/2021
Email Whitbread PLC 01/02/2021

Email Daniel Watney 03/02/2021

Email Thames Water 09/02/2021

Email Daniel Watney 11/02/2021

Marcello Leonardi 05/02/2021

Letter, Greengage, 15/02/2021

Letter Daniel Watney 19/02/2021

Letter Daniel Watney 03/03/2021

Page 167



Email Daniel Watney 03/03/2021

Letter LAMAS Historic Buildings 08/03/2021
Email Air Quality Officer 24/03/2021
Letter Whitbread Group PLC, 29/03/2021
Email Transport for London 29/03/2021
Email Transport for London 31/03/2021
Letter ANS Global 01/04/2021

Email Daniel Watney 08/04/2021

Email Daniel Watney 27/04/2021

Letter BRCS Building Control 15/04/2021
Email Thames Water 11/05/2021

Email Daniel Watney 25/05/2021

Email Tower Eight, 07/06/2021

Email Tower Eight, 11/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 23/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 18/06/2021

Email Daniel Watney 11/08/2021

Email Daniel Watney 03/09/2021

Email Thames Water 06/09/2021

Internal

Email Transport Planning Team 11/12/2020

Memo Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 18/12/2020
Memo Lead Flood Authority 18/12/2020

Memo Lead Flood Authority 26/03/2020

Memo Air Quality Officer 15/01/2021

Memo Access Team 15/01/2021

Email Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 22/01/2021
Email Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 17/03/2021
Email Culture Mile Manager 01/02/2021

Email District Surveyors Office 02/06/2021

Memo District Surveyors Office 18/05/2021

Page 168



Email District Surveyors Office 27/04/2021 (09:45)
Email District Surveyors Office 11/06/2021 (09:45)
Email District Surveyors Office 11/06/2021 (13:46)
Email District Surveyors Office 22/06/2021 (11:01)
Email District Surveyors Office 22/06/2021 (11:39)

Email Fire Safety Department, 08/11/2020
Email Fire Safety Department, 09/03/2021
Email Fire Safety Department, 27/01/2021
Email Fire Safety Department, 08/04/2021

Email City of London Police 21/06/2021
Email City of London Police 01/07/2021

Email Access Team 25/06/2021

Memo Transport Planning Team 01/06/2021

Memo Planning Obligations Team 25/06/2021

Email Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 13/08/2020

Email Cleansing Team 12/04/2021

Other
The Square Mile: Future City Report, 2021
City of London Visitor Destination Strategy 2019-2021

Cultural Strategy 2018 — 2022 (CoL 2020)

Page 169



Background Papers — 20/00933/LBC

Application documents

Existing plans: 5177-P-100, 5177-P-101, 5177-P-102, 5177-P-103, 5177-P-104,
5177-P-105, 5177-P-106, 5177-P-107, 5177-P-108, 5177-P-109, 5177-P-110, 5177-
P-111, 5177-P-112, 5177-P-113, 2019-4988-002 P1,

Design and Access Statement, Axiom Architects, November 2020

Planning Statement, Daniel Watney, November 2020

Covering Letter, Daniel Watney, 13/11/2020
Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, November 2020

Addendum Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, February 2021

Statement of Significance, Donald Insall Associated, November 2020
Archaeological Desk-based assessment, MOLA, October 2020

Archaeological Desk Based Assessment — Addendum, MOLA, February 2021

External

Email Twentieth Century Society (pre-application advice to Applicant), 28/10/2020
Letter Historic England (pre-application advice), 24/08/2020

Letter Historic England 21/12/2020

Letter Daniel Watney 03/03/2021

Letter Historic England 09/03/2021

Letter LAMAS Historic Buildings 08/03/2021

Letter Historic England 13/04/2021

Email Daniel Watney 11/08/2021

Page 170



Comments for Planning Application 20/00932/FULMAJ

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00932/FULMAJ

Address: Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP

Proposal: External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build associated with
the change of use of existing building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses
(Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of retained facades to Snow Hill and Cock Lane; (ii) partial
demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new
plant at roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle storage; (v)
highway works; (vi) greening and other ancillary works.

Case Officer: Pearl Figueira

Customer Details
Name: Mr Thomas Boden
Address: Flat GO2 32 Cock Lane London

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Residential Amenity
Comment:The Daylight and Sunlight report notes a material loss of daylight and sunlight from
existing levels which are already very low and indeed below recommended levels. This is in
contrast to the advice received during the consultation process that 'any changes will be minor'. It
would therefore appear that based upon the existing plans there would be a material adverse
impact on my property, both in terms of residential amenity and economic value from the proposal.

In addition | note that during the consultation process the proposers were unable to advise on
potential local disruption from any construction process. | note the significant disruption to local
residents caused by the previous closure to Cock Lane during the construction of the West
Smithfield Premier Inn and note that it would be unreasonable to have further road
closures/accessibility restrictions within such a short time frame and that consideration should be
given to this.

Page 171



From:

To: PLN - Comments
Subject: Hotel conversion of Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill, London, EC1A 2DP
Date: 20 December 2020 19:47:38

Dear Mrs. Pearl.

| am owner of Flat E, 8-9 Giltspur Street, EC1A 9DE. | recently received a letter from the
City of London informing me of the request to convert the Snow Hill Police Station into a
hotel. Part of this conversion will entail the upward extension of a certain part of the
existing structure.

This past August | was in touch with William Day of BECG, regarding the impact that the
planned reconversion would have on the line of sight and daylight/sunlight of the windows
and terrace of my property. Mr. Day asked me to send him the layout of my flat so that
Point 2 could include in its Daylight and Sunlight report, an analysis of the impact of the
reconversion on the flats in my building (Hart House, 8-9 Giltspur Street).

Despite the information requested, | have not received from him any update on the
matter. | have also reviewed the relevant report, posted on the City of London Planning
website, and note that it does not include any analysis regarding my property or building
which is surprising, considering the correspondence exchanged with Mr. Day in August and
the flagging of my concerns.

Considering the absence of detailed analysis which shows that the proposed extension will
not impact the line of sight or daylight/sunlight of my flat or of other flats in my building, |
wish to formally lodge my opposition to the proposed reconversion of the Snow Hill Police
Station.

It is unfortunate that the concerns of a resident of the City of London have not been taken
into account by the developer. Such highhandedness is not conducive to ensuring a
friendly and cooperative relationship with me or other residents affected by the proposed
project.

Sincerely,

Marcello Leonardi

Page 172



From: Figueira, Pearl

To: DBE - PLN Support

Subject: FW: Planning application 20/00932/FULMAJ. Snow Hill Police Station
Date: 08 February 2021 16:14:16

Attachments: image001.png

From: Marcello Leonardi

Sent: 05 February 2021 14:10

To: Jonathan Langdon <jonathan.langdon@whitbread.com>

Cc: Clare Causton ; lan Harvey <ian@ianharvey-ip.com>; Michael PRENTICE
<m.prentice@ucc.ie>; Richard Leyland ; Figueira, Pearl <Pearl.Figueira@cityoflondon.gov.uk>;
Sam Leigh <sam@samleigh.co.uk>

Subject: Re: Planning application 20/00932/FULMAJ. Snow Hill Police Station

Dear Jonathan,
| am happy to withdraw my objection.
Many thanks,

Marcello Leonardi
Flat E
8-9 Giltspur Street

From: Jonathan Langcion

Sent: Friday, February 5, 2021 09:03

To:5om L I
Ce: Clare Causton ||| GG /- cc!lo Leonardi

; lan Harve Michael PRENTICE

I ichard Leyland ; Figueira, Pear

<Pearl.Figueira@cityoflondon.gov.uk>

Page 173


mailto:Pearl.Figueira@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:DBEPLNSupport@int.cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:Pearl.Figueira@cityoflondon.gov.uk





Subject: RE: Planning application 20/00932/FULMAJ. Snow Hill Police Station
Dear Sam

Many thanks for your email confirming this on behalf of residents at 8-9 Giltspur Street, and | am
really pleased that our presentation and further discussion has enabled you to arrive at this
decision.

Marcello, it might be that you will need to respond to this email chain confirming you are
formally happy to withdraw your objection, however | have copied Pearl, our case officer at the
City of London, who | am sure will be able to advise further.

Mr Leyland, | would be delighted to discuss our proposals with you as | know you were unable to
attend the call, so | will drop you a line separately.

One final point which was raised on the call was in relation to general construction matters. |
have attached the City’s code of practice for demolition and construction, and can confirm that
we will be selecting a contractor who is approved by the City and will ensure that they adhere to
this guidance. We have also already consulted with the City on working hours, the response is as
below:

Monday — Friday 08.00-18.00
Reduced impact hours are between the hours of 10.00-12.00 & 14.00-16.00
Saturday 09.00-14.00

In the event we are working on, or in close proximity to party walls, this is reduced further during
the week. You may only work in these locations 08.00-09.00 & 17.00-18.00. These hours also
apply if within working offices the dBA is monitored over 65. There is no restriction during the
Saturday working hours.

There is a site hours variation process, if we wanted to work outside the agreed times, however
this would first need approval by the City EHO.

Many thanks and as ever, please let me know if you have any further queries.
Regards

Jonathan Langdon MRICS
Acquisitions Manager, Central London | Whitbread Plc

From: sam Leie I

Sent: 05 February 2021 12:04

To: lonathan Langdon < [

Cc: Clare Causton Marcello Leonardi

; lan Harvey || GGG /i chae PRENTICE
Page 174




I =10 Leyan¢

Subject: Planning application 20/00932/FULMAJ. Snow Hill Police Station

*H*E WARNING: This email originated from outside Whitbread. DO NOT CLICK links or
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. ****

Dear Mr Langdon

On behalf of Hart House Management Ltd | am pleased to inform you that 5 of the 6 owners of
the apartments in Hart House have no objection to the above application.

Two owners, Mr Richard Leyland and Mr Marcello Leonardi made formal objections on the City
of London objection portal.

Mr Leyland wishes to maintain the objection.

If you have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact me,

S A Leigh
Chairman HHML

Sent from my iPhone

Whitbread
Please consider the environment and don't print this email unless you really need to.

This email and any attachments are confidential, legally privileged and protected by copyright. If
you are not the intended recipient, dissemination or copying of this email is prohibited. If you
have received this in error, please notify the sender by replying by email and then delete the
email completely from your system.

Where the content of this email is personal or otherwise unconnected with Whitbread's
business, we accept no responsibility or liability for such content. Internet email may be
susceptible to data corruption, interception and unauthorised amendment over which we have
no control. Whilst sweeping all outgoing email for viruses, we do not accept liability for the
presence of any computer viruses in this email or any losses caused as a result of viruses.

The company numbers for the Whitbread group of companies, each of which is registered in
England and Wales are:

Whitbread PLC (4120344)
Whitbread Group PLC (29423)
Premier Inn Hotels Limited (5137608)

Please consider the environment and don't print this email unless you really need to.

Page 175



Whitbread
Please consider the environment and don't print this email unless you really need to.

This email and any attachments are confidential, legally privileged and protected by copyright. If
you are not the intended recipient, dissemination or copying of this email is prohibited. If you
have received this in error, please notify the sender by replying by email and then delete the
email completely from your system.

Where the content of this email is personal or otherwise unconnected with Whitbread's
business, we accept no responsibility or liability for such content. Internet email may be
susceptible to data corruption, interception and unauthorised amendment over which we have
no control. Whilst sweeping all outgoing email for viruses, we do not accept liability for the
presence of any computer viruses in this email or any losses caused as a result of viruses.

The company numbers for the Whitbread group of companies, each of which is registered in
England and Wales are:

Whitbread PLC (4120344)

Whitbread Group PLC (29423)
Premier Inn Hotels Limited (5137608)

Page 176



Comments for Planning Application 20/00932/FULMAJ

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00932/FULMAJ

Address: Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP

Proposal: External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build associated with
the change of use of existing building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses
(Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of retained facades to Snow Hill and Cock Lane; (ii) partial
demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new
plant at roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle storage; (v)
highway works; (vi) greening and other ancillary works.

Case Officer: Pearl Figueira

Customer Details
Name: Mr Alan Buxton
Address: Flat 613 10 Hosier Lane London

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Noise

- Residential Amenity
Comment:l own a flat to the rear of 10 Hosier Lane, with an aspect over Cock Lane and towards
the existing police station on Snow Hill. the proposed development would result in a material loss
of daylight and sunlight to my flat, as noted in the Daylight and Sunlight report. Existing levels of
sunlight and daylight are already very low and below recommended levels and would be materially
compromised by the proposed development. The proposed extensions in the development to
between 6 and 8 storeys are in my view excessive and there is no reason to build taller than the
existing level of the police station given the material loss of daylight and sunlight that will result.
Based upon the existing plans, there would be a material adverse impact on my property, both in
terms of residential amenity and economic value from the proposal and so | object in the strongest
terms.

In addition | significant disruption to local residents caused during the construction of the West
Smithfield Premier Inn and note that it would be unreasonable to have further road
closures/accessibility restrictions within such a short time frame and that consideration should be
given to this.

Page 177



Law.Tax

CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro

By email to: PLNComments@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Olswang LLP
Department of the Built Environment Cannon Place
The Corporation of London Zinzi?]“;g f;lfz‘itF
Guildhall
PO Box 27 |
EC2P 2EJ I
]
cms.law
6 January 2021
Our ref JORC/035376.00004
Dear Sirs,

Objection to planning application (20/00932/FULMAJ)
Former Snow Hill Police Station, 5 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2DP

Application:

“20/00932/FULMAJ | External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build associated
with the change of use of existing building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses
(Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of retained facades to Snow Hill and Cock Lane; (ii) partia
demalition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new plant at
roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle storage; (v) highway works; (vi)
greening and other ancillary works. | Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP”
(*Application”)

Local Planning Authority: City of London Corporation (“City”).
Link to Application on City’ s planning portal:
20/00932/FULMAJ | External and internal alterations together with demalition and new build associated

with the change of use of existing building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses
(Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of retained facades to Snow Hill and Cock Lane; (ii) partid

UK - 648659856.1

CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP is alimited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registration number OC310335. It is a body corporate which
uses the word "partner" to refer to a member, or an employee or consultant with equivalent standing and qualifications. It is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation
Authority of England and Waleswith SRA number 423370 and by the Law Society of Scotland with registered number 47313. A list of members and their professional qualifications
is open to inspection at the registered office, Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4AN 6AF. Members are either solicitors, registered foreign lawyers, patent attorneys or
otherwise legally qualified. VAT registration number: 974 899 925. Further information about the firm can be found at cms.law

CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP is amember of CMS Legal Services EEIG (CMS EEIG), a European Economic Interest Grouping that coordinates an organisation
of independent law firms. CMS EEIG provides no client services. Such services are solely provided by CMS EEIG’'s member firmsin their respective jurisdictions. CMS EEIG and
each of its member firms are separate and legally distinct entities, and no such entity has any authority to bind any other. CMS EEIG and each member firm are liable only for their
own acts or omissions and not those of each other. The brand name"CMS" and the term "firm" are used to refer to some or all of the member firms or their offices. Further information

can be found at cms.law rl‘ 71&
Notice: the firm does not accept service by e-mail of court proceedings, other roc@g)eor of of any kind without specific prior written agreement.



demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new plant at
roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle storage; (v) highway works; (vi)
greening and other ancillary works. | Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP
(cityoflondon.gov.uk)

Objector: adjoining landowner — Beaumont Business Centres Limited (“Beaumont”). Leaseholder of 6,
Snow Hill, EC1A 2AY . Beaumont. St. Paul’ s (beaumont-uk.com). Beaumont occupy the adjoining attached
5 storey office building next door to the Application site.

Beaumont object to the Application.

Beaumont’ s objection includes the planning and listed building issues listed below. Beaumont have asked
CMSto consider these and any other issues that may arisein further detail to follow this correspondencein
the form of a substantive objection within the next week.

CMS ask that the City does not determine the application before consideration of Beaumont' s substantive
objection.

There is a concern that the Application could be legally defective: we understand that the green ‘living’
wall / roof, comprising a critical element of the scheme benefits, cannot be accessed for maintenance or
other purposes except from Beaumont’s land. This means that the Application red line boundary is
Inaccurate because it should include part of Beaumont’ sinterest in 6 Snow Hill.

It also raises the question as to how the applicant can legally secure provision of the living wall / roof either
under a planning condition or S106 obligation to the City’s reasonable satisfaction without Beaumont’s
involvement.

Consequently, the applicant should resubmit a revised Application red line plan that properly includes
enough land for it to access the wall / roof. The City should consider whether it should reconsult on any
revised Application red line plan.

Without prejudice to the potentially defective application, Beaumont considers the following points as part
of its objection to the Application:

Hotel demand: the Application has no substantive evidence of qualitative or quantitative need in the
form of a detailed hotel demand study (or similar evidence) for budget hotel facilitiesin the City.

L oss of Daylight and Sunlight: the Application presents evidence of significant breaches of the BRE
Guidelines and concerns over impact on amenity of adjoining buildings in terms of outlook and privacy.

Harm to heritage Assets: in NPPF terms, queries over the significance of the harm and whether the
perceived scheme benefits outweigh the harm.

Servicing deficiencies: various risks and deficiencies exposed in the proposed highways sol ution.

Page 179

UK - 648659856.1



Beaumont reserves its position generally as to further objection points.
Y ours faithfully,

CMS
CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP

Page 180

UK - 648659856.1



Comments for Planning Application 20/00932/FULMAJ

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00932/FULMAJ

Address: Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP

Proposal: External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build associated with
the change of use of existing building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses
(Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of retained facades to Snow Hill and Cock Lane; (ii) partial
demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new
plant at roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle storage; (v)
highway works; (vi) greening and other ancillary works.

Case Officer: Pearl Figueira

Customer Details
Name: Mr Richard Leyland
Address: Flat F 8-9 Giltspur Street London

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Noise

- Other

- Residential Amenity

- Traffic or Highways
Comment:The 8 story vertical extension plus plant at roof level will obscure the view from by flat, it
is too large for the surrounding area and will cause extensive disruption in terms of noise, dust and
road closures.
Following the scrappy error-riddled letter we received in July | sent a similar objection. On 3rd
August 2020 | was told by William Day: "Out[sic] daylight surveyor has located your property and
confirms that there is no material loss of daylight to 8-9 Giltspur Street. As part of the planning
application we will be submitting a comprehensive daylight and sunlight report which will, amongst
other properties, assess 8-9 Giltspur Street." However, the online planning application shows no
analysis of Giltspur Street so | do not believe the daylight surveyor had done any analysis.
In summary, | object to this over-sized monstrosity for the reasons stated above.

Page 181



COLLINEVE

27™ April 2021

Department of the Built Environment

City of London
PO Box 27
Guildhall
London

EC2P 2EJ]

Dear Sir/Madam

Objection to Planning Application Reference 20/00932/FULMAJ for budget hotel
(“Planning Application”)

Snow Hill Police Station, 5 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2DP (“Application Site”)

Collineve Ltd owns the Head Lease for 6-9 Snow Hill and we write to object to the
proposed scheme at 5 Snow Hill.

This proposal would cause long term harm to our property. We are extremely concerned

by:

2

3.

Proposed changes to the wall on the boundary line between 5 and 6 Snow Hill

that could potentially cause the sterilisation of part of our land. Our most notable
concerns are:

a. The proposed green living wall;
b. Proposed cross-hatched brickwork; and
c. 13 proposed windows in the wall.

The proposal states that all 5 Snow Hill’s servicing and guest movements
compete to enter through the front entrance of the property, an extremely
unusual arrangement for a hotel;

The need for a hotel in this location. We are extremely concerned that the impact
of coronavirus has not been consider in the needs’ assessment for this type of use
in this location.

Loss of amenity, outlook, privacy daylight and sunlight that we would suffer
under this proposed development.

Collineve Limited, 80 Coleman Street, London, EC2R 5B

Registered in England No. 12908860
Regustered Office: B0 Coleman Street, Londen EC2R 58)

Page 182



We therefore ask that the proposal in its current form be refused planning permission.

Yours Faithfully

James Adam
Director

Collineve Limited, 80 Coleman Street, London, EC2R 5B

Page 183 Registared in England No, 12908860

Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2R 58J



Beaumont.

20" April 2021

Department of the Built Environment
City of London

PO Box 27

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2E)

Dear Sir/Madam

Objection to Planning Application Reference 20/00932/FULMAIJ for budget hotel (“Planning

Application”)
Snow Hill Police Station, 5 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2DP (“Application Site”)

We write to expand on our objection letter, submitted by CMS Law on 18" January 2021. Since this
date, new plans have been submitted by the applicant and we have become aware of additional
severe impacts on our property and operation that would occur. Furthermore, we do not believe

that many of the matters raised in our letter of 18" January have been addressed by the responses.
Our additional serious concerns are that:

1. This application results in a loss of community use;

2. The green living wall continues to present major problems and would still require trespass on
or above our land for maintenance or servicing;

3. The removal of the unviable green wall means the proposal does not meet the required Urban
Greening Factor score;

4. We continue to have significant issues with overlooking. Newly submitted plans now show
cross hatched brickwork in a wall that sits on our boundary line, and new windows are shown
in a wall located on our boundary line, all of which adversely affects our amenity; and

5. The applicant has included a ‘cut and paste’ Construction Environment Management Plan that

has no prospect of being delivered and would cause immense harm to us and our community.

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, IR@.: :39184 Registered in England No, 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2ZR 5BJ



These matters cause us serious concern and are expanded as follows:

1. Land use principle and loss of community use

The application relates to the redevelopment of the site including change of use from police station
(Sui Generis) to hotel (Class C1). It is unclear whether the police station provided a full suite of services
(typical of a larger station), but from what can be found online, it is considered that the station did at
least provide a front counter service for visiting members of the public. As such, this would constitute
a provision of community use. Policy DM 22.1 of the Local Plan (2015), states amongst other points
that for any change of use and loss of community use, applications must be accompanied by evidence

of the lack of need for those facilities.

A review of the submitted application information provides no evidence to confirm that the police
station is no longer needed here. The planning statement at page 3 includes a sentence to suggest the
station has been declared surplus, however no report to evidence this has been submitted. As such,

the proposed development is contrary to planning policy as the evidence is lacking.

Upon closer investigation, it is understood that a report was presented to the City of London Police
Authority Board on 24 October 2019 which outlined why the station was no longer needed and
proposed for sale. However, this report and any subsequent minutes of the meeting have been
restricted from public disclosure which further indicates that the surplus argument and loss of this

much needed community use has not been properly assessed in accordance with planning policy.

2. Green Wall

The application proposals include a ‘green wall’. This is proposed on the flank wall of the Cock Lane

building which faces our hardstanding land and vehicular car parking area.
a. Ability of planting to survive

The part of the site where the green wall is proposed is the north part of the site. The wall where the
green wall is proposed is heavily enclosed by neighbouring buildings both immediately adjacent and
opposite. Cock Lane is narrow. As a consequence, this part of the site is dark, heavily overshadowed,
receives very little natural light and is micro-climatically very poor. It is suitable for hardstanding, the
parking of vehicles and enclosed buildings, but not much else. Our principal point here is that this is
the worst possible part of the site for a green wall as the plants would receive no natural light
whatsoever and are likely to be in constant shadow. This is likely to result in the plants dying quickly

or requiring constant replacing and replanting, which defeats the object.

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, L ER 1%5 Registered in England No. 06170242
Registered Office: BO Coleman Street, London EC2R 58J



b. Installation, management, and maintenance of the green wall

Given the above we are deeply concerned as to how the green wall shall be installed, managed and

maintained.
c. Installation and oversailing

The Design and Access statement proposes that the plants shall ‘hang’ from a ‘stainless steel trellis,
wall anchors and fixing points’. If this is the case, this trellis shall over sail our land. Our permission
and a licence would be required for this oversailing. Our permission has not been sought and would

not be granted.

In addition, we understand that the installation of such an oversailing stainless steel trellis would
require the erection of structures on our land. Again, our permission has not been sought and would

not be granted.
d. Requirement for Certificate B

If the applicant requires access to any part of our land to construct, utilise, maintain or occupy any
part of the application proposals then it is required to serve notice on us as a relevant owner. We have

received no such notification.

Correct notification is a statutory obligation. Failure to serve the correct notice would leave any

decision on the application subject to Judicial Review (IR).

e. Maintenance

Maintenance of the stainless steel trellis i.e., the physical structure of the trellis itself as well as the
pant growing and ‘hanging’ from it would require some access to our land. Permission for which has

not been sought and would not be granted.
f. Undeliverable

As such, the green wall and its associated stainless-steel trellis and installation infrastructure is entirely
undeliverable in its current form and even if it could be installed, the plants would die owing to the

poor choice of location for the green wall.
g. Green wall recessed within the wall?

We understand that there may be a proposal by the applicant to ‘recess’ the green wall and the trellis

‘inside’ or ‘within’ the wall itself, however we have not seen any information as to how this would or

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, L %6 Registered in England No. 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2ZR 5BJ



could be constructed. We would also be concerned that such a ‘recessed’ green wall within the
brickwork would exacerbate the detrimental implications of the location and make the lack of light
and other microclimatic concerns set out above even worse, and none of the servicing or maintenance

issues would be addressed by this.

3. Urban Greening Factor

The reason we are emphasising our concerns with regard to the green wall is that the delivery of the
applicant’s sustainability approach, biodiversity strategy and specifically compliance with
development plan policies in relation to the Urban Greening Factor is entirely dependent upon the
ability of the applicant to a) construct the wall, b) maintain the wall and c) keep the plants alive. None

of this is possible or likely for the reasons we set out above.

If the green wall cannot be delivered as a proper and robust part of the application with longevity,
then the scheme would not score the UGF score set out in the application and would not meet the

policy target of 0.3.

4. Harm to amenity and potential future harm

The application proposals include 13 new proposed windows in the same flank elevation as the
proposed green wall. This is the same flank wall on the Cock Lane building which faces our
hardstanding land and vehicular car parking area. Furthermore, ‘cross-hatch’ brickwork is prosed

further along the same wall.
a. New Windows

These 13 new windows would be just 7 metres away from the windows in our property, resulting in
direct overlooking of our primary office rooms and spaces. This would have a significant detrimental

effect on the privacy, function and useability of the spaces and our business.

b. Atrium

We object to the proposed new atrium and its design.

The atrium by reason of its location and siting would remove light to our property in a part of the site
which already receives very limited light.

The proposed ‘hit and miss’ brickwork is not acceptable. It would enable users of the atrium and

internal stairs (which in an hotel would be a heavily trafficked space, experiencing high lewels of

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, L @R 1587 Registered in England No. 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London ECZR 5BJ



footfall) to constantly overlook our private office spaces at any hour of the day or night and would

impact upon the privacy and amenity of these business spaces.

c. Sterilization of Land

The issues with the green wall and overlooking could go further by potentially having the effect of
sterilising our land between our building and the application site, thereby potentially limiting any
development of this land in the future and potentially resulting in permanent limitation of the use of
this part of our site to surface level car parking. This would be contrary to planning objectives in the
City which seek to ensure that the development of 1 site does not prejudice the development potential
and ability of other sites to come forward for development in the future. This is especially the case
when it relates to office development which is the main use of our building; office use being an
important established primary role and function of the City, which has always been supported above

all other land uses.

5. Construction environmental management plan (CEMP)

We refer to the Gilbert-Ash Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) dated 22/10/2020.

The plan as it is currently written means that the proposed development is entirely reliant on access

to, oversailing of, or the use of land under our ownership and control.

Consent to use our land for access, oversailing and construction has not been sought and shall not be

given. And as such, the entire construction project is undeliverable.

We were surprised to review such a plan, where the applicant has not engaged with us in any
meaningful way on any element of the scheme or its construction whatsoever. This is particularly

surprising given their reliance upon our land to build their scheme.
We set out our specific concerns in relation to the CEMP as follows:
a. Cutand Paste

The Gilbert-Ash plan reads like a cut and paste plan which could have been a standard plan drafted
for any site and which could be generically applicable to any construction project in the country. It

clearly has not been properly thought through. It is vague on detail to say the least.

The City of London is one of the densest and highly constrained locations in the world when it comes

to construction management and the delivery of projects, with numerous complexities and site

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, L R1E88 Registerad in England No. 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London ECZR 5BJ



specific factors requiring balancing and consideration to enable a successful process. None of these

details, constraints or site-specific analysis or assessment has been undertaken nor set out in the plan.
We draw the officer’s attention to the diagram on page 12 and have the following main concerns:

b. Gantry

The CEMP proposes a triple stacked site accommodation block on a gantry mounted 5 metres above
the road surface. This would block vehicular access through Cock Lane and would block access to our

parking area.

We understand that underneath this Gantry there may remain a 2.5m access width but this is not clear
in the CEMP. Regardless, this would be insufficient remaining width for most normal sized cars and is
certainly not wide enough for larger vehicles likely to be used in a major construction and emergency

vehicular access.

¢. Loading Zone

The CEMP proposes a large loading and unloading zone immediately to the west of the triple stacked

gantry.

According to the CEMP, this loading and unloading zone would require vehicles to first navigate
underneath the triple stacked accommodation block and its associated 2.5m remaining width at road
level, and we question how any normal size vehicle is going to get through this narrow width and

underneath the accommodation block to enable them to unload in the location proposed?

The only alternative would be for any such vehicle looking to load / unload in the zone to do so by
driving in the opposite direction along Cock Lane (opposition to the direction indicated for the flow of

traffic in the CEMP) or reversing up Cock Lane.

In addition, the loading and unloading zone would totally block access to our car parking area and fire

escape.
d. Hoist location
The CEMP proposes a ‘hoist location’ directly on our land. We would not give permission for this.
e. Crane location

The CEMP proposes a crane location with a 36m jib. This would oversail our land and buildings when

in operation. We would not give permission for this.

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, !Ra eRlﬂg Registered in England No. 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2ZR 58J



f. Vehicle size and access

It is not clear from the CEMP what type and size of vehicle(s) are required to access the site,
particularly along Cock Lane. Cock Lane is narrow and is two way. No access plan or swept path analysis
has been submitted with the CEMP to demonstrate that the vehicles required can access, turn,

manoeuvre and egress safely.

6. Summary

a. Daniel Watney letter dated 19" February 2021

We have read the Daniel Watney letter dated 19" February 2021 and understand that this is an
attempt to respond to objections raised by neighbours and stakeholders during the consultation
process.

The Daniel Watney letter does not respond to our concerns as a direct neighbour and adjacent land
owner, especially in relation to construction management and impacts, our detailed concerns in this
respect being set out above.

b. Planning and Transportation committee

We note that the application is defined as a ‘Major Application’ and according to the Corporation of
London’s website has received 6 objections. We would therefore be grateful if planning officers
could confirm when this application shall be presented to the Corporation of London Planning and

Transportation Committee for determination?

In summary, we continue to ask that the City refuse Planning Permission for this application for the

reasons covered above and in our objection letter of 18" January 2021.

Yours faithfully,

Crispin Vaughan

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, L R 5_990 Registered in England No. 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Colernan Street, London EC2ZR GBJ



COLLINEVE

28th June 2021

Department of the Built Environment
City of London

PO Box 27

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2EJ]

Dear Sir/Madam

Objection to Planning Application Reference 20/00932/FULMAJ for budget hotel
(“Planning Application™)

Snow Hill Police Station, 5 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2DP (“Application Site”)

We are writing in response to recent information uploaded by the applicant, as advised
by you on 14t June 2021.

We appreciate the efforts of the applicant to partly alleviate one of our concerns, namely
the windows and overlooking.

All other reasons for our objection have not been addressed. We refer to our letter of
27 April 2021 which sets out our reasons. Therefore, we remain extremely concerned
about the long and short term harm that granting this application, as currently
presented, would cause us.

We would like to highlight three of our ongoing reasons for objection.

First, we do not believe that the recent changes have gone far enough to mitigate our
concern that the current design of the wall on the boundary line between 5 and 6 Snow
Hill could potentially cause the sterilisation of a significant portion of our land.

Covering our concerns in relation to sterilisation:
1. The green wall

We do not believe a simple notation goes far enough to avoid sterilisation of our
land. Furthermore, we object on the grounds that future servicing of this feature
remains impossible. Maintenance would still require trespass, and we are not
prepared to grant access for this purpose, as it would adversely affect our means
of escape in event of a fire.

2. The Proposed cross-hatched brickwork

Collineve Limited, 80 Coleman Street, London, EC2R 5BJ]

P 19 1 Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2R 5BJ



There has been no change to this and we remain very concerned that this could
cause sterilisation of our land.

3. 13 proposed windows in the wall on the suggested boundary line

Could you please confirm that all affected windows have been frosted? The plans
do not show the means of frosting and how this will be enforced. Could you
please advise the planning mechanism to control this?

We are asking how we can be certain that the windows will be as shown on these
new drawings and not left clear?

Could you please further confirm that a planning condition will be included and
could we please see the wording for this condition beforehand?

Second, regarding our other stated concerns, the new drawings do not address these in
any way. To restate our further concerns:

1. The proposal states that all 5 Snow Hill’s servicing and guest movements
compete to enter through the front entrance of the property, an extremely
unusual arrangement for a hotel.

We remain very concerned that this proposal would result in Snow Hill becoming
a ‘back of house’ means of servicing and providing for the proposed hotel. This
will lead to a huge increase in traffic, noise, rubbish, people smoking on the
sidewalk and other forms of disruption.

2. We continue to question the need for a hotel in this location. We are extremely
concerned that the impact of coronavirus has not been considered in the needs’
assessment for this type of use in this location.

Third, we would like to draw your attention to a matter raised by Beaumont, which also
greatly concerns us; the Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP).

The CEMP, as presented, is prejudicial to our rights, shows little thought has been given
by the applicant to the great harm they would cause us and Beaumont, and has not
been prepared in consultation with neighbours. We cannot understate the damage that
this CEMP would cause Beaumont and therefore us as their landlord. As such, we would
not, under any circumstances, provide the permissions necessary to implement this plan.

We are the immediate neighbour to this proposal; the one most affected by the plans.
The applicant is not going to be able to build this scheme without our consent, which we
will not grant under the framework of the current CEMP.

Therefore, we ask that the City of London delay determination and encourage Whitbread

to present and agree a CEMP with us that addresses our issues.

Yours faithfully

James Adam
Director

Collineve Limited, 80 Coleman Street, London, EC2R 5BJ]

P ag e 1 9 2 Registered in England No. 12908860

Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2R 5BJ



Beaumont.

28™ June 2021

Department of the Built Environment
City of London

PO Box 27

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2EJ

Dear Sir/Madam

Objection to Planning Application Reference 20/00932/FULMAIJ for budget hotel (“Planning
Application”)

Snow Hill Police Station, 5 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2DP (“Application Site”)

We write in response to the recent submission of new drawings by the applicant. While we are
pleased that the applicant has made changes to the window design, we do not believe that most of

the other matters raised in our letters of 18" January 2021 and 20™ April 2021 have been addressed.

We are the immediate neighbour who would be most affected, in an extremely negative way, over

both the short and long term by these plans.

All our issues, as set out in two previous letters, remain very much valid and extremely concerning.

We do not propose to restate all matters but would like to highlight three points:

First, we believe the notation to the Green Wall, to the effect that the applicant would remove the
green wall should we build up against this wall in the future, does not address our concern that the
green wall will present us problems should we not develop up against the applicant’s building for some

time or at all. It does not deal with our serious concerns about:
a. Ability of planting to survive

b. Management and maintenance of the green wall

¢. Instaliation and oversailing

d. Requirement for Certificate B

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, London EC2R 5BJ Registered in England No. 06170242
93 Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, London EC2R 58J



Second, there has been no change to address our concern about the potential sterilisation of our land

due to the cross-hatched brickwork in the wall on the boundary line.

Third, and this is extremely important, there has been no action by the applicant to address our severe
concerns with the Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP). In our letter of 20" April
2021, we set out our issues in detail and highlighted that that the CEMP, in its current form is
undeliverable, and therefore, the scheme, as proposed, is not constructable. Quite frankly, the CEMP
is not up to standard for an application of this nature and completely fails to show how the applicant

could implement the scheme.
The applicant has made no effort to address these concerns.

In light of this. we ask would the City of London wish to grant an unimplementable planning

permission?

Given the failures to deai with key matters, we request that the determination of this application be

delayed and for the applicant to be encouraged to engage with us and rectify these matters.

Failing this, we continue to ask that this application be refused.

Yours faithfully,

Crispin Vaughan

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, don E(éR 1894 Registered 'n England No. 06170242
N ]

Registered Office: 80 Coieman Street, London EC2R 5BJ



A
AnsteyHorne

Our ref: RC/JC/ROL00521

Your ref: 20/00932/FULMAIJ

Department of the Built Environment
City of London

PO Box 27

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2EJ

14 July 2021

Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: (ROL00521) — Proposed hotel development at 5 Snow Hill (City’s planning reference number
20/00932/FULMAJ) and the potential for impacts to the daylight and sunlight at the
neighbouring 6 Snow Hill

In response to the letter addressed to Nick Delaney of Daniel Watney LLP from Point 2 Surveyors
dated 18 June 2021 and published to the City’s online planning applications database, we are
instructed on behalf of Beaumont Business Centres to consider the potential for daylight/sunlight
impacts to their property at 6 Snow Hill. Our concern is specifically related to the submitted
supporting information forming part of the planning application to redevelop the neighbouring 5
Snow Hill into a hotel. Our professional opinion is that the offices at 6 Snow Hill should be included
in the scope of a daylight and sunlight impact assessment, our reasoning for which is set out in more
detail below and overlaps in part with points raised in the letter addressed to the Department of the
Built Environment sent by CMS Law on behalf of Beaumont Business Centres dated 18 January 2021.

Relevant Daylight and Sunlight Guidance and Policies

e The current BRE guidelines are referred to when assessing the potential for impacts on
daylight and sunlight as a consequence of new developments. The BRE Report states that:
“The guidelines may also be applied to any existing non-domestic building where the
occupants have a reasonable expectation of daylight” and goes on to mention that this may
be a consideration for some offices too. Therefore, given that our client is a flexible office

4 Chiswell Street, London EC1Y 4UP |G
3 Temple Row West, Birmingham B2 SNY ||

510 Bristol Business Park, Coldharbour Lane, Bristol BS16 1EJ || NN

ansteyhorne.co.uk

Chartered Surveyors | Rights of Light | Party Walls | Building Surveying | Neighbourly Liaison expertise

Anstey Horne is the trading name of Anstey Horne & Co (Bristol) Ltd a company registered in England and Wales number 11816993. Registered address 4 Chiswell Street, London EC1Y 4UP. Registered by RICS pp

Page 195



A
AnsteyHorne

provider and by association of that business model there should be an allowance made for
any type of office function, including that which the BRE suggests as ‘some offices’.

e The British Council for Offices also publishes guidance and specifically on the provision of light
within offices. The provision of daylight and the necessity to try and maximise its provision
wherever possible is stressed, with the associated benefits to health and wellbeing
emphasized. Whilst this guidance focusses on the design of buildings, it clearly supports and
justifies why it is also imperative to protect the availability of daylight in office environments,
particularly where already sensitive at lower levels. This guidance is relevant to consider as it
justifies the importance of natural light within offices.

e According to Policy CS10 of the City’s Local Plan, the City suggests that it will seek to ensure
that the scale of new development is appropriate by respecting the amenity of surrounding
buildings. The City’s Local Plan specifically mentions the mental health of residents and
workers alongside a provision of appropriate levels of daylight and sunlight. Policy DM11.3 of
the Local Plan specifically states that proposals for new hotel accommodation will only be
permitted where they “do not result in adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers, including cumulative impacts.”

Use of accommodation at 6 Snow Hill

e Works are currently underway to provide new office accommodation within 6 Snow Hill. The
new offices replace the former tea stations at each level (the tea stations were mentioned in
the letter from Point 2 Surveyors to Nick Delaney of Daniel Watney LLP dated 18 June 2021
and published to the City’s online planning applications portal). Image 1 overleaf is a plan
which shows an example of the new office layouts replacing the former teas stations (extents
outlined red with indicative furniture arrangement subject to change depending on use).

Page 196



A
AnsteyHorne

Image 1: 6 Snow Hill works — replacement of tea stations to provide office accommodation

The new office accommodation relies on natural light received through the same single
window that served the former tea stations and it faces the proposed development at 5 Snow
Hill. Therefore, as Point 2 have already noted in the aforementioned letter, there is potential
for the availability of natural light to these windows and new offices to be adversely impacted
when assessed in line with the BRE guidelines.

The use of 6 Snow Hill has been dismissed by Point 2 in their letter (dated 18 June 2021) as
being an ‘ordinary office building’. Our client has confirmed that this is simply not
representative of its use and purpose. Whilst appreciated an argument that standard
administrative tasks in ‘ordinary offices’” may not be sensitive to reductions in natural light
levels, the offices at 6 Snow Hill are not restrained to only accommodate such a category of
use, and therefore should not be dismissed as insensitive to reductions in natural light.

An example of businesses functions not necessarily reliant on natural light to function may be
those with a focus on financial activities. However, whilst this sort of business may not
necessarily focus on natural light provision, Beaumont Business Centres often accommodate
businesses in more creative fields that do. Some examples include architecture, product

Page 197



A
AnsteyHorne

inventors, marketing businesses (creative departments), jewellers, musicians and a variety of
other artistic businesses that seek out spaces based on natural light provision.

e Beaumont Business Centres is a high-end flexible office provider and therefore their business
is reliant on the custom from a wide variety of businesses and their associated activities. 6
Snow Hill is currently occupied by and fully expect that the new offices in view of the proposed
development at 5 Snow Hill will contain occupants that place emphasis on natural light
provision to operate effectively. Indeed, Beaumont Business Centres focus on the provision
of natural light when marketing their offices to prospective clients.

e Beaumont Business Centres is committed to ensuring that the quality/amenity of office space
in the city is retained and made as attractive as possible in accordance the City’s primary
objective as a world centre for business and commerce and is a key objective for office
landlords who are committed to do everything they can to improve their office space and thus
entice customers/tenants back to the office and the City post covid.

To conclude, assigning a generic standard office description to the 6 Snow Hill premises is
inappropriate in this instance. Including this property in the assessment is appropriate and in line
with the guidance offered in the BRE Report and the City's planning policies. Furthermore, the British
Council for Offices further backs up the provision of daylight to offices and cites the value of its
contribution to the health and wellbeing of occupants. The amount of daylight received to the new
offices will be on the low side already and therefore we think it is even more imperative that the
impacts are fully considered to inform the planning decision. The already sensitive levels of daylight
in the current conditions mean that each drop of ‘light’ is precious to our client, adding value and
affecting the running of their business.

Finally, Beaumont Business Centres are happy to provide a set of plans to assist an assessment —
these would show the new offices replacing the tea stations.

Yours sincerely

L

Anstey Horne

Page 198



From:

PLN - Comments

Subject: RE: No.5 Snow Hill Planning Application

From: JOHN JAMES

Sent: 22 August 2021 19:45

To: PLN - Comments <PLNComments@cityoflondon.gov.uk>
Subject: No.5 Snow Hill Planning Application

THIS IS AN EXTERNAL EMAIL

| wish to object to the above application for the following reasons:

1.

Far too many hotels already in the area. One application pending just across the road from this site. The
residents at 10 Hosier Lane, experienced may years of disturbance for the current Premier Inn in Barts
Square.

Yet another demolition and building works in this small area. We residents in 10 Hosier Lane are and will be
enclosed by works on all sides, including the construction of the new Museum of London development. Will
we ever get a respite, and be able to enjoy the quiet of a home in the City of London, | fear NOT.

Yet another excavation to basement level and therefore more intrusive and heavy drilling, which will cause
the flats to shake and vibrate ,as was the case recently with the demolition on the site just across the road
from this application.

More plant at a higher roof level. We already experience noise and disturbance from the plant/ machinery
situated on the roof of the Travers Smith Braithwaite offices and Premier Inn. The noise is constant
throughout day/night, and even with our windows closed you can still hear it. Try sleeping through that!
More disturbance and safety issues at street level, whilst entering and leaving our residential building, with
the volume of building works on our doorstep.

A more appropriate use of the building would be for offices or residential, utilising the existing structure.

| therefore strongly object to the application and a more appropriate usage should be considered for the existing
building in its current structure.

Yours faithfully,

John James.
FLAT 506
10 HOSIER LANE.

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

Page 199



Comments for Planning Application 20/00932/FULMAJ

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00932/FULMAJ

Address: Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP

Proposal: External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build and associated
change of use of existing building from police station (sui generis) to hotel with ancillary uses
(Class C1) including: (i) refurbishment of facade to Snow Hill and the retained facade to Cock
Lane; (ii) partial demolition, rebuilding and extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8
storeys, plus new plant at roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; (iv) provision of cycle
storage; (v) highway works; (vi) greening and other ancillary works.|cr||cr|(Please note that
additional information has been submitted in support of the application including: a revised
Daylight and Sunlight Report, and a revised Construction Environmental Management Plan)
Case Officer: Pearl Figueira

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Carol Bernstein
Address: Flat 201 32 Cock Lane London

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Noise

- Other
Comment:The height of the proposed building will have a direct negative impact on my flat which
faces the back of the building. The height of the new building will significantly reduce the light
coming into my flat which only has 2 windows. The proposed plan on the roof will also mean i
cannot open my flat windows due to the 24/7 noise that will come from the plant. the noise created
as a result of a hotel eg staff entrance located on cock lane which is a very very narrow road
would mean any noise would impact the enjoyment of my home. there will be increased deliveries
of goods due to it being a hotel as well as increased waste collection. All will create a
neighbourhood nuisance. Additionally there will be a serious loss of privacy as hotel room
windows will look out directly into my flat and given the exceptionally narrow width of Cock Lane,
this is ALL UNacceptable.

Page 200



Beaumont.

31 August 2021

Department of the Built Environment
City of London

PO Box 27

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2EJ

Dear Sir/Madam

Objection to Planning Application Reference 20/00932/FULMAJ for budget hotel (“Planning

Application”)
Snow Hill Police Station, 5 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2DP (“Application Site”)

We write in response to the recent submission of new drawings and an updated Construction

Environmental Management Plan (“CEMP”) by the applicant.

We are extremely disappointed to advise that no progress has been made to alleviate our serious
concerns since our letter of 28" June 2021. We had one meeting with the applicant, but they have

done nothing to mitigate any of the planning issues we have raised.

Referring to the CEMP, we note that the updated version shows a Plan extremely prejudicial to the
operation of our building. The applicant appears to consider the pavement and road in front of our
building on 6-9 Snow Hill to be part of their development site (refer to drawings on pages 30, 31 and
32, and diagram on page 12 of the CEMP). They state that they will block the front of our building. As
there is an existing development on the other side of the road on Snow Hill and the applicant will block
Cock Lane, our clients will have no means of safely walking to our building from High Holborn, which

is the route most of them currently use.

In section K, the CEMP sets out alternative methods of dismantling the wall on our boundary line,

should they not be able to reach an agreement with us. We have been advised that the alternatives

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, Lonﬁ ECZReSB201 Registered ir England No. 06170242
Registered Office: 80 Coleman Street, Londor EC2R 5BJ



fr

described on pages 30-32 of the CEMP are either not feasible or would still necessitate trespass. We

remain firmly opposed to the works proposed to the boundary wall.

We fully accept that commercial development is crucial to the progress of City, but we hope that it
would be undertaken in a legitimate manner and without unfairly prejudicing neighbours’ rights. As
drafted, this scheme would cause considerable operational and financial harm to our business. A

business that contributes over £3,000,000 per annum to our government in business rates.

We appreciate this site was sold by the City of London, but this should not mean that the applicant be
permitted to ignore or breach numerous planning policies. We have spent significant time and

resources identifying and highlighting to you some of these breaches.

Then there are the applicant’s past actions. They state they will comply with legislation, but their
actions show differently. During their development of the nearby Premier Inn, we witnessed
numerous breaches that led to countless disputes, damage to our land and intervention by Council

Enforcement Officers.

Regarding the many issues we have raised, after taking much of our time to write and meet, the

applicant has only made minimal changes.
So, we again ask that this application be refused.

Yours faithfully

Crispin Vaughan

Beaumont Business Centres Limited, 80 Coleman Street, Lo n EC2R 5?02 Registered ir England No. 96170242
I e Rzgistered Offica: 30 Soleman Streer, Londor EC2R 58J



A
AnsteyHorne

Department of the Built Environment
City of London

PO Box 27

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2E)

2 September 2021

Dear Sir/Madam

Re: (ROL00521) — Proposed hotel development at 5 Snow Hill (City’s planning reference number
20/00932/FULMAI) and the potential for impacts to the daylight and sunlight at the neighbouring
6 Snow Hill

In response to the letter addressed to Ms P Figueira, Planning Officer at the City of London, from Point
2 Surveyors dated 12 August 2021, we have the following comments. This letter follows our previous
letter dated 14 July 2021 which was in response to the letter addressed to Nick Delaney of Daniel
Watney LLP from Point 2 Surveyors dated 18 June 2021.

Whilst acknowledged that local planning authorities are usually mainly concerned with residential
accommodation, the BRE Guidelines make a clear point that certain offices can form part of an
assessment. It follows then that it would be incorrect to simply dismiss testing within the parameters
of the BRE Guidelines where the potential for diverse use within an office is identified. We accept that
it may not be necessary to test all offices in all locations, but it is the case that our client’s business
relies on the diversity of functions offered, and for some of those, natural light will undoubtedly be of
greater importance than what one might loosely term as a standard office user. Therefore, we
maintain that it is reasonable to ask that a BRE daylight assessment is carried out before any planning
decision is made.

Following on from the above, we do not understand why Point 2 appear to be arguing that it is not
appropriate or necessary to carry out the BRE tests, yet they have carried out a detailed Radiance
study that contains additional sophistication compared to the test methodologies specifically
recommended in the BRE Guide (the BRE suggests VSC and DD assessments, which Point 2 have
enough information to produce quickly). Whilst Radiance is another method of testing, for it to be
accurate, Point 2 will have had to apply a degree of estimation to the settings and therefore some
caution should be taken when reading these results.

4 Chiswell Street, London EC1Y 4UP |

3 Temple Row West, Birmingham B2 SNY |

510 Bristol Business Park, Coldharbour Lane, Bristol BS16 1EJ || NN

ansteyhorne.co.uk

Chartered Surveyors | Rights of Light | Party Walls ‘ Building Surveying | Neighbourly Liaison expertise

Page 203



A
AnsteyHorne

Furthermore, Point 2 refer to low levels of daylight in the current conditions but this does not mean
that our client is not very concerned about good levels of retained natural light. In the City, we do not
dispute that a realistic view on natural daylight availability needs to be considered, but it is
nonetheless important to the use and enjoyment of this kind of building and will play a part in its
lettability.

Finally, Point 2 have suggested that the request for an assessment forms part of a wider discussion
but our client’s primary concern remains focussed on impacts to their natural light. Indeed, their
preference would be for the existing building profiles to be retained along with their existing light
levels.

Yours Sincerely

Anstey Horne

Page 204



Historic England

Ms Pearl Figueira Direct Dial: 020 7973 3856

City of London

Our ref: P01328130

21 December 2020

Dear Ms Figueira

T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990

SNOW HILL POLICE STATION, 5 SNOW HILL, LONDON, EC1A 2DP
Application No. 20/00932/FULMAJ

Thank you for your letter of 7 December 2020 regarding the above application for
planning permission. On the basis of the information available to date, we do not wish
to offer any comments. We suggest that you seek the views of your specialist
conservation advisers, as relevant.

It is not necessary for us to be consulted on this application again, unless there are
material changes to the proposals. However, if you would like detailed advice from us,
please contact us to explain your request.

This response relates to designated heritage assets only. If the proposals meet the
Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service’s published consultation criteria we
recommend that you seek their view as specialist archaeological adviser to the local
planning authority.

The full GLAAS consultation criteria are on our webpage at the following link:

https://www.historicengland.org.uk/services-skills/our-planning-services/greater-
london-archaeology-advisory-service/our-advice/

Yours sincerely

\\\‘ A ':’r_.l,/_

4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA

e
”'f_ ;:" Telephone 020 7973 3700
“Isann HistoricEngland.org.uk

Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation r_:gn be reqtﬁsﬁg_)for release under this legislation.
age



AR Historic England
istoric Englan

Jessica Laker
Business Officer

E-mail

4TH FLOOR, CANNON BRIDGE HOUSE, 25 DOWGATE HILL, LONDON EC4R 2YA
Telephone 020 7973 3700

at A 5‘9,0
HistoricEngland.org.uk

§ \“'
SW/E
&f_;r.lq\\.(:h
Historic England is subject to both the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and Environmental Information Regulations (2004). Any
Information held by the organisation r_:gn be reqtﬁsﬁ%{or release under this legislation.
age



Agenda Iltem 4a

Committee: Date:
Planning and Transportation 21 September 2021
Subject: Public

Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London EC1A 2DP

External and internal alterations together with demolition
and new build associated with the change of use of a police
station to a hotel with ancillary uses including: (i)
refurbishment of facade to Snow Hill and the retained
facade to Cock Lane; (ii) partial demolition, rebuilding and
extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys,
plus new plant at roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-
basement; and other ancillary works.

Ward: Farringdon Without For Decision

Registered No: 20/00933/LBC Registered on:
20 November 2020

Conservation Area:  Smithfield Listed Building:
Grade Il

Summary

For full report please see 20/00932/FULMAJ

Page 207



Recommendation

1. That Listed Building Consent is granted for the above proposal in
accordance with the details set out in the attached schedule subject to:

(@) Planning obligations and other agreements being entered into under
Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 278
of the Highways Act 1980 in respect of those matters set out in the
report, the decision notice not be issued until the Section 106
obligations have been executed.

2. That your Officers be instructed to negotiate and execute obligations in
respect of those matters set out in "Planning Obligations" under Section 106
and any necessary agreements under Section 278 of the Highway Act 1980.

Page 208



Site Location Plan

s A\
Cycle |
‘3 i :
fi General Market
& O -
X %4
- s
2
or
Hall %‘l‘
B S
s =)
1 EX At S
B & ™
f 5
& To8
g 2
o Bwn
B[R
&
£ HOSIER LANE
5
P
2
8
3 Queen M
sity of
West Sehithfield|
.......
8 2
s
ca
T
Jk"%x
B £
SRS 3
g NS
X =
Red Lion Bulkdings g
* ,
o,
o
Q,
78m = e
S, e
o W%
2
e
16.1m
= g
B St QF 5
o Shelter 16
8
) XN
o
- CLOSE
SR Fleet Place o8 16.0m
House
\ 2 o
z d 5
6.3m Ty S 4"‘”‘
S - Y by Vg
s O >
- Oy =
H 16.4m
City Thamesink § CouRT
(station) New Gate
o B §> (ate o)
e
e \ i O D
S stopsgouiﬂ
. N
; N
, %
- Britannia House -
¥
c= .
% B
13
: u; 8
3 .
-

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 OS 100023243

ADDRESS:

5 Snow Hill
EC1A 2PD

SITE LOCATION

LISTED BUILDINGS

CONSERVATION AREA BOUNDARY

CITY OF LONDON BOUNDARY

Page 209

CASE No.
20/00932/FULMAJ & 20/00933/LBC

LONDON

DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT



Main Report

For report please see 20/00932/FULMAJ

Page 210



Appendix A

Background Papers — 20/00933/LBC

Application documents

Existing plans: 5177-P-100, 5177-P-101, 5177-P-102, 5177-P-103, 5177-P-
104, 5177-P-105, 5177-P-106, 5177-P-107, 5177-P-108, 5177-P-109, 5177-
P-110, 5177-P-111, 5177-P-112, 5177-P-113, 2019-4988-002 P1.

Design and Access Statement, Axiom Architects, November 2020

Planning Statement, Daniel Watney, November 2020

Covering Letter, Daniel Watney, 13/11/2020

Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, November 2020
Addendum Historic Building Report, Donald Insall Associates, February 2021
Statement of Significance, Donald Insall Associated, November 2020
Archaeological Desk-based assessment, MOLA, October 2020

Archaeological Desk Based Assessment — Addendum, MOLA, February 2021

External

Email Twentieth Century Society (pre-application advice to Applicant),
28/10/2020

Letter Historic England (pre-application advice), 24/08/2020

Letter Historic England 21/12/2020

Letter Daniel Watney 03/03/2021

Letter Historic England 09/03/2021

Letter LAMAS Historic Buildings 08/03/2021

Letter Historic England 13/04/2021

Email Daniel Watney 11/08/2021

Page 211



Appendix B

Relevant London Plan Policies

Policy HC1 Heritage conservation and growth

Relevant Draft City Plan 2036 Policies
HE1 Managing change to heritage assets

S11 Historic environment

Relevant Local Plan Policies

CS12 Conserve or enhance heritage assets
To conserve or enhance the significance of the City's heritage assets
and their settings, and provide an attractive environment for the City's
communities and visitors.

DM12.1 Change affecting heritage assets

1. To sustain and enhance heritage assets, their settings and
significance.
2. Development proposals, including proposals for

telecommunications infrastructure, that have an effect upon heritage
assets, including their settings, should be accompanied by supporting
information to assess and evaluate the significance of heritage assets
and the degree of impact caused by the development.

3. The loss of routes and spaces that contribute to the character
and historic interest of the City will be resisted.

4. Development will be required to respect the significance,
character, scale and amenities of surrounding heritage assets and
spaces and their settings.

5. Proposals for sustainable development, including the
incorporation of climate change adaptation measures, must be sensitive
to heritage assets.

DM12.2 Development in conservation areas
1. Development in conservation areas will only be permitted if it
preserves and enhances the character or appearance of the
conservation area.

2. The loss of heritage assets that make a positive contribution to
the character or appearance of a conservation area will be resisted.

Page 212



3. Where permission is granted for the demolition of a building in a
conservation area, conditions will be imposed preventing demolition
commencing prior to the approval of detailed plans of any replacement
building, and ensuring that the developer has secured the
implementation of the construction of the replacement building.

DM12.3 Listed buildings
1. To resist the demolition of listed buildings.
2. To grant consent for the alteration or change of use of a listed

building only where this would not detract from its special architectural or
historic interest, character and significance or its setting.

Page 213



SCHEDULE
APPLICATION: 20/00933/LBC
Snow Hill Police Station 5 Snow Hill London

External and internal alterations together with demolition and new build
associated with the change of use of a police station to a hotel with
ancillary uses including: (i) refurbishment of facade to Snow Hill and the
retained facade to Cock Lane; (ii) partial demolition, rebuilding and
extension to provide a building ranging from 6 to 8 storeys, plus new
plant at roof level; (iii) extension of existing sub-basement; and other
ancillary works.

(Please note that revised drawings and supplementary information have
been submitted in support of the application.)

CONDITIONS

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this consent.
REASON: To ensure compliance with the terms of Section 18 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2 Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, before any
works thereby affected are begun the following details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all works pursuant to this consent shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and shall retained thereafter:

(1) particulars and samples of the materials to be used on all
external faces of the building including external ground and upper level
surfaces including brick samples panels to be inspected on site ;

(i) details of the shadow gap for block B at the junction between
retained structure and extension

(i) details of the proposed new internal and external elevations to
Block B including typical details of new fenestration and entrances and
mansard extension including dormers;

(iv)  details of a typical bay of the development for new internal and
external facades to Block B;

(v) typical details of brickwork including for the new external walls
for atrium Block B ;

(vi)  details of all ground floor elevations;

(vii)  details of all ground floor entrance(s);

(viii)  details of window schedule including retained and upgraded,
refurbished and replaced including full joinery details to the Block A and
retained Block B;

(ixX)  details of the mansard and new dormer windows and rooflights
to Block A;

Page 214



(x) details of soffits, hand rails and balustrades;

(xi)  details of all alterations to the existing facades;

(xii)  details of junctions with adjoining premises;

(xiii) details of the integration of window cleaning equipment and the
garaging thereof, plant, flues, fire escapes and other excrescences at
roof level;

(xiv) details of plant and ductwork to serve the development

(xv) details of ventilation and air-conditioning for the development;

(xvi) details of all ground level surfaces including materials to be
used,

(xvii) details of external surfaces within the site boundary including
hard and soft landscaping;

(xviii) obscured glazing and internal privacy screen detalils ;

(xix)  final details of the interior fit out for the Heritage Rooms within
Block A including reflective ceiling plans, joinery and plasterwork
details;

(xx)  details of the Atrium space including rooflight, fit out, bridges,
new openings in the soffits and staircases, stair lift and relationship to
the retained elevation of Block A and recreated elevation of Block B
and identified areas for exhibition space;

(xxi)  the rear elevation of Block A shall be unpainted, and details of
specification of repairs and cleaning including samples to be inspected
on site and detailing of openings in relation to windows;

(xxii) details of works to the internal vaults to Block A;

(xxiii)  final details of the service runs within block A including AC
details within atrium, public reception spaces. staircases and heritage
rooms;

(xxiv) interior fit out proposals for Block A Entrance, lobby and
reception in relation to historic fabric including identification of
exhibition zones

(xxv) floor finishes to the main public circulation spaces including
historic staircases, reception, lobby and Reading Room;

(xxvi) door and joinery schedule for the interior of Block A and rear
elevation Block B

(xxvii) lighting proposals to the public areas of the hotel including
historic staircases, reception, lobby, Reading Room and atrium;
(xxviii) details of new secondary glazing to Block A windows;

(xxiv) details of the proposed external green wall to Cock Lane
elevation including planting and maintenance.

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development and to ensure a
satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM12.3.

No part of the building(s) shall be demolished (unless otherwise
permitted by the Local Planning Authority in the circumstances
identified in this condition) before a contract or series of contracts for
the carrying out of substantial works of redevelopment have been
made and planning permission has been granted for the development

Page 215



for which the contracts provide. Such contracts shall include the
construction of all foundations, above ground framework and floor
structures. Works of demolition may be permitted prior to the
completion of the contract(s) if the Local Planning Authority is satisfied
that the site is required for archaeological investigation and the
developer has submitted evidence to show that development will
proceed upon completion of the investigation.

REASON: To ensure the protection of the special architectural or
historic interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of
the Local Plan: DM12.3.

The stability of the structure to remain must, throughout the period of
demolition and reconstruction, be assured before any works of
demolition begin, taking into account any rapid release of stress,
weather protection, controlled shoring, strutting, stitching,
reinforcement, ties or grouting as may occur to be necessary.
REASON: To ensure the stability of the structure to be retained in
accordance with the following policy of the Local Plan: DM12.3.

All new works and finishes and works of making good to the retained
fabric shall match the existing adjacent work with regard to the
methods used and to materials, colour, texture and profile unless
shown otherwise on the drawings or other documentation hereby
approved or required by any condition(s) attached to this consent.
REASON: To ensure the protection of the special architectural or
historic interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of
the Local Plan: DM12.3.

All commemorative plaques on the existing building shall be retained
for the life of the building and not removed during refurbishment.
REASON: In the interest of visual amenity and to maintain the historic
and cultural interest of the site in accordance with the following policy
of the Local Plan: DM12.1.

Before any works thereby affected are begun details shall be provided
of the proposed protective measures for retained historic fabric and
features for the duration of works on site shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and all
development pursuant to this permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and so retained thereafter:
REASON: To ensure the protection of the special architectural or
historic interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of
the Local Plan: DM12.3.

Before any works thereby affected are begun the following details shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all development pursuant to this permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and so retained thereafter:

a. The details for the reinstatement of the police lamps previously
located on the Snow Hill facade. If it is not possible to reinstate the

Page 216



10

11

original lamps, details for an appropriate replica or replacement must
be submitted. The plans and details for the reinstatement or
replacement of these lamps must be completed in consultation with
City Police prior to relevant works commencing.

b. The above works shall be completed in full and inspected by the
Local Planning Authority prior to occupation

REASON: To ensure the protection of the special architectural or
historic interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of
the Local Plan: DM12.3.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, before any
works thereby affected are begun the following details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all works pursuant to this consent shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details:

a)specification, methodology and samples for repairs, cleaning and
reinstatement of the external elevations to Block A and the retained
external elevation to Block B the development shall then be undertaken
only in accordance with this method statement. ;

b) specification, methodology and samples for repairs; cleaning and
,reinstatement of the historic interiors of Block A and in Block B the
staircase and related enclosure and the Reading Room the
development shall then be undertaken only in accordance with this
method statement.

c) the above works in a) and b) shall be completed in full and inspected
by the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation

REASON: To ensure the protection of the special architectural or
historic interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of
the Local Plan: DM12.3.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, before any
works thereby affected are begun the following details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and all works pursuant to this consent shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details:

a. A methodology and monitoring strategy to ensure the stability of the
retained structures of the historic building including in relation to Block
B the main staircase; reading room and Cock Lane facade.

Reason: to ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with detail of the proposed development in accordance with the
following policies DM12.3

The works hereby approved are only those specifically indicated on the
drawing(s) referred to in conditions to this consent.

REASON: In order to safeguard the special architectural or historic
interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of the
Local Plan: DM12.3.

Page 217



12

13

14

Prior to commencement to the relevant part of the work

(a) a full Lighting Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority, which should include full details of all
luminaires, both decorative, functional or ambient (including associated
infrastructure), alongside details of the impact of lighting on the public
realm, including intensity, uniformity, colour, timings and associated
management measures to reduce the impact on light pollution and
residential amenity. Detail should be provided for all external, semi
external and public-facing parts of the building and of internal lighting
levels and how this has been designed to reduce glare and light
trespass. This should include details of the replica police lanterns.

Post installation (b) Details of final lux levels for all external lighting,
including a test light glare assessment on site attended by the Local
Planning Authority officers with adjustments to be agreed in writing

All works and management measures pursuant to this consent shall be
carried out, put in place and maintained in accordance with the
approved details and lighting strategy.

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied
with the detail of the proposed development and to ensure a
satisfactory external appearance in accordance with the following
policies of the Local Plan: DM12.3

Prior to the commencement of the relevant works a full Signage
strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, which should include full details of design, location,
fixing and lighting .

The Applicant should note that separate advertising consent may be
required.

REASON: To ensure the protection of the special architectural or
historic interest of the building in accordance with the following policy of
the Local Plan: DM12.3.

The works hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in
accordance with the following approved drawings and particulars or as
approved under conditions of this consent:

5177-P-010-A; 5177-011-A; 5177-P-114; 5177-P-115; 5177-P-116;
5177-P-117; 5177-P-118; 5177-P-119; 5177-P-120; 5177-P-121; 5177-
P-122; 5177-P-123; 5177-P-198-B; 5177-P-199-B; 5177-P-200-C;
5177-P-201-C; 5177-P-202-C; 5177-P-203-C; 5177-P-204-C; 5177-P-
205-C; 5177-P-206-B; 5177-P-207-B; 5177-P-208-B; 5177-P-209-A;
5177-P-210-A; 5177-P-211-B; 5177-P-300-A; 5177-P-301; 5177-P-
302-A; 5177-P-303-D; 5177-P-304-B; 5177-P-305; 5177-P-306; 5177-
P-307; 5177-P-308; 5177-P-309; 5177-P-310; 5177-P1-401; 5177-P1-
402; 5177-P1-403; 5177-P1-404; 5177-P1-405; 5177-P1-406; 5177-
P1-407; Email from Daniel Watney dated 17.06.2021 regarding the site
area.

Page 218



REASON: To ensure that the development of this site is in compliance
with details and particulars which have been approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 220



Agenda Iltem 5

Committee(s): Dated:
Planning and Transportation Committee — For decision 21 09 2021
Subject: City Fund Highway Declaration: Millennium Public

Bridge House, EC4V

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate |7 & 10
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N

capital spending?

If so, how much? n/a

What is the source of Funding? n/a

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the n/a
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: City Surveyor (CS.367/21) For Decision

Report author: Nicholas Welland

Summary

Approval is sought to declare a volume of airspace totalling 75 sq.ft. of City Fund
airspace (held for planning purposes) situated around Millennium Bridge House, 2
Lambeth Hill, EC4V to be surplus to highway requirements to allow its disposal in
conjunction with the permitted development.

Refurbishment and extension of the existing commercial building was approved by
Planning and Transportation Committee on 14 July 2020 and planning permission was
issued on the 18 March 2021 (20/00214/FULMAJ). The building encroaches on City
Corporation highway airspace and will project into City Corporation airspace above
the highway stratum.

Before third party interests can be granted in City Fund land (held for planning
purposes) which is highway land the affected areas first need to be declared surplus
to highway requirements.

The highway stratum beneath the airspace is not to be declared surplus and will
remain as highway.

The terms for the highway disposal, are to be reported separately for approval of the
Corporate Asset Sub (Finance) Committee, subject to your approval to declare the
affected volume of airspace surplus to highway requirements.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:

e Resolve to declare a volume of City Fund airspace (held for planning purposes)
measuring a total of 75 sq.ft. situated around Millennium Bridge House, 2
Lambeth Hill, to be surplus to highway requirements to enable its disposal upon
terms to be approved by the Corporate Asset Sub Committee.

Page 221



e Delegate authority to the City Surveyor and the Director of the Built
Environment to determine the relevant ordnance datum levels to suitably
restrict the vertical extent of the leasehold airspace demise.

Main Report

Background

1.

Millennium Bridge House is an office building fronting the River Thames a short
distance south of St Paul’s Cathedral which was built in 1988. The existing building
comprises 193,411 sq.ft. of space arranged over basement, ground and five upper
floors.

Refurbishment and extension of the existing commercial building was approved by
Planning and Transportation Committee on 14 July 2020 and planning permission
was issued on the 18 March 2021 (20/00214/FULMAJ). The development involves
the partial demolition and partial infilling of the existing structure, the introduction
of roof terraces at fifth and sixth floors, including a public viewing terrace and
associated lobbies at second and sixth floors. The building will extend to 240,000
sqg.ft. The building will be predominantly offices, with some retail/restaurant
throughout.

The development includes projections that project into City Corporation owned
airspace around the building, a portion of which is held by City Fund (planning).

Current Position

4.

Beltane Asset Management has approached the City Corporation seeking to
acquire a suitable interest in the airspace affected by its approved refurbishment
works.

In the event of the airspace being declared surplus, its disposal is a matter for
Corporate Asset Sub-Committee. However, by way of background, land held for
planning purposes may be disposed of to secure best use of land or secure
construction for the proper planning of the area.

Before the City Corporation is able to dispose of any interests in City Fund
(planning) land which is highway your Committee should first agree it is surplus to
highway requirements.

. The proposed surplus declaration does not extend to the highway stratum which

will remain as highway and vested in the City Corporation as the highway
authority (unless it is ever stopped up, which is not proposed in this case).

In this instance the development will oversail the highway but will not impede it thus
stopping-up is neither necessary nor required.

Detailed research by City Surveyors confirms the City Corporation's ownership of

the parcels of affected land measuring 230 sq.ft. in total. This is split between City
Cash (155 sq.ft.) and City Fund (75 sq.ft.).

Page 222



10.The upper and lower levels of the projection will be governed by Ordnance Datum
Newlyn levels. Ordnance Datum Newlyn are the British mainland national
geographic height system by reference to which the volume of land or airspace can
be defined and identified by its upper and lower levels.

Proposals

11.The airspace is not considered necessary for the use of the highway and the
exercise of the highway function and it is therefore proposed that subject to your
agreement to declare the volume of City Fund airspace around Millennium Bridge
House, 2 Lambeth Hill, to be surplus to highway requirements (measuring 75 sq.ft.)
that the City Corporation disposes of a suitable interest in the airspace upon terms
to be approved by the Corporate Asset Sub Committee.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

12. Strategic implications —

e 7. We are a global hub for innovation in finance and professional services,
commerce and culture.

e 10. We inspire enterprise, excellence, creativity and collaboration.

13.Financial implications —

e The terms of the highway disposal transaction are to be reported to the
Corporate Asset Sub Committee on the 30 September 2021 for consideration
subject to you first declaring the affected City Fund airspace to be surplus to
highway requirements.

14.Resource implications — None
15.Legal implications —

e City Fund airspace held for planning purposes may be disposed of to secure
the best use of land or to secure construction for the better planning of the
area (Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Section 233). No statutory power
is required in respect of disposal of a City’s Cash interest and it may be
disposed of at the City’s discretion.

16.Risk implications — The developer could choose not to proceed with the transaction,
however, this is considered unlikely.

17.Equalities implications — No equalities issues identified.
18.Climate implications — None

19. Security implications - None

Page 223



Conclusion

20.The airspace proposed to be declared surplus to highway purposes is not required
for highway functions. If declared surplus it is proposed to dispose of an interest in
the airspace to enable development of the property according to the planning
permission that has been granted.

Appendices
e Appendix 1 — Oversail Plan, Millennium Bridge House, EC4V

Background Papers

e Millennium Bridge House 2 Lambeth Hill London EC4V 4AG (Planning Approval
20/00214/FULMAJ) — Planning and Transport Committee — 14/07/2020

Nicholas Welland
Senior Principal Surveyor
City Surveyor's Department

T: 07519 292846
E: nicholas.welland@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 224


mailto:nicholas.welland@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Line of City Walkway
based upon City Engineers Plan
No. A0/X108/86/258 shown in

the City Walkway declaration
under the City of London
(Various Powers) Act 1967

\

NN

NN

ooy
fha 7 7,
222zl z777777 77 2

Inset : External Express Lifts

Ge¢e¢ abed

City of Londol
School

illennium
‘ Bridge ||

Sbove

&
Loy

T T T 1T
CU L

St Mary

Somerset

E

BLumt
£r1:4257im aoo
SRR

1

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 100023243

Norfolk House

Castle Baynard Street

}77 .

Upper Thames Street

Upper Thames Street

8 OO B D

Scale 1:500

City of London Registered Title number NGL27364 (City Fund Estate)
Area =7.00m?

City of London Registered Title number AGL228685
(City's Cash Estate) Area = 7.56m?

Leasehold Registered Title number NGL682806

City of London Unregistered Land - City's Cash Estate (Charter Street)
Area = 6.00m?

City of London Unregistered Land - City's Cash Estate
Area = 0.86m?

Plan is based upon the proposed sixth floor drawing
supplied by Piercy and Company and land certificate
information.

Drawn Date

¢

|

\DIRIGE,

cITY
LONDON
P.G.Wilkinson BSc MSc MRICS
City Surveyor

CITY SURVEYOR'S DEPARTMENT
Corporate Property Group :
Plans & Records Section

Inset : Unregistered Land

Address :

Millennium Bridge House
Peter's Hill
London EC4

Title :

Committee Plan

Print scale : 1:500 @ A3 Drawn by : KT
Date : Aug 2021 Pro code

UPRN
Drawing No :

5-C-42860 -01

Revision



AutoCAD SHX Text
N


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 226



Agenda Iltem 6

Committee(s)

Dated:

Planning & Transportation
Policy & Resources (For information)

21 September 2021
14 October 2021

Subject: Congestion Charge consultation

Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

9. We are digitally and
physically well-connected
and responsive

Chamberlain’s Department?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N
capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Report of: Executive Director Environment

Report author: Bruce McVean

For Decision

Summary

In June 2020 TfL introduced temporary changes to the Congestion Charge in
response to the transport challenges created by the Covid-19 pandemic. TfL are now

consulting on proposals for permanent changes.

The proposals include (full details are provided in Appendix 1):

e A daily charge of £15

¢ Reducing the hours of operation from 07:00 to 22:00 each day under the
temporary arrangements to 07:00-18:00 Monday to Friday and 12:00-

18:00 at weekends and on Bank Holidays

e A discount of 90 per cent for residents living in the Congestion Charge

zone

The proposed changes to the Congestion Charge will support the City Corporation’s
efforts to reduce motor traffic in the Square Mile. However, the approach to charging
needs to reflect the recovery challenges facing central London and the potential

impacts on places of worship.

The proposed response to the consultation (paragraph 8) seeks to balance these
issues and opportunities while highlighting the need for a new, more dynamic

approach to road user charging.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to approve the proposed response to the Congestion Charge

consultation (Paragraph 8).

Page 227




Main Report

Background

1.

In June 2020 TfL introduced temporary changes to the Congestion Charge in
response to the transport challenges created by the Covid-19 pandemic. TfL are
now consulting on proposals for permanent changes to the Congestion Charge.

The approach proposed seeks to recognise the changing context of travel
patterns as London moves to the next phase of pandemic recovery while:

e Delivering policies and proposals of the Mayor’s Transport Strategy

e Ensuring the Congestion Charge continues to meet its primary objective of
reducing traffic and congestion in central London

e Improving London’s air quality, reducing carbon emissions and encouraging
more journeys to be made by walking, cycling or public transport.

Full details of the proposed changes, the rationale for them and a comparison
with the pre-pandemic Congestion Charge arrangements prior to June 2020 are
provided in Appendix 1.

The proposals include:
e A daily charge of £15 (up from £11.50 prior to June 2020).

e Reducing the hours of operation from 07:00 to 22:00 each day under the
temporary arrangements, to:

o 07:00-18:00 Monday to Friday (In combination with a £15 charge, this is
expected to reduce car kilometres travelled in the Congestion Charge
zone by around 4%)

o 12:00-18:00 at weekends and on Bank Holidays (In combination with a
£15 charge, this is expected to lead to a reduction in car traffic of around
15%. Note that traffic levels at weekends are now similar to weekdays)

¢ No charge between Christmas and the New Year’s Bank Holiday
e A discount of 90 per cent for residents living in the Congestion Charge zone

The City of London Transport Strategy aims to achieve at least a 25% reduction
in motor traffic by 2030, and a 50% reduction by 2044. Reductions in all types of
motor traffic will be required to achieve this, with the most significant reductions
being in the number of private cars and private hire vehicles using the City’s
streets.

The main proposal to achieve this aim is championing and supporting the
development of the next generation of road user charging for London; and
encouraging the Mayor of London and TfL to accelerate the development of new
charging mechanisms. This smarter approach to charging could, for example, be
varied according to patterns of demand, vehicle type or by distance travelled.

While this approach is being developed the Transport Strategy supports changes
to the Congestion Charge that help achieve our traffic reduction aims.

Page 228



Proposed response

8. TfL are inviting feedback to the consultation via an online survey. It is proposed
to respond both to this survey and in writing to the Mayor of London along the
following lines:

a. The City Corporation continues to support efforts to avoid a car led recovery
and to reduce motor traffic in central London, in line with our Transport
Strategy and Climate Action Plan.

b. The approach to this needs to reflect the recovery challenges facing central
London, particularly for the leisure and cultural sectors. The return to 7am —
6pm for the weekday charge is therefore welcomed.

c. We recognise the potential for traffic reduction resulting from increasing the
charge to £15. However, we question the extent to which this will influence
driver behaviour on weekdays, particularly for commercial drivers who will
either absorb the additional cost or pass it on to customers. We are not
advocating for a higher charge, rather this highlights the need for a new
approach to road user charging for London as noted below.

d. We support the reintroduction of the 90% residents discount.

e. We recognise that traffic reduction is necessary at weekends as well as
during the week but would recommend reducing the hours of the weekend
charge, for example to 12:00 — 17:00, and reviewing the need for a Sunday
and Bank Holiday charge at this time. This would help support the leisure
and cultural sectors and address some of the potential impacts on faith
communities.

f. We are concerned about the potential impacts of the weekend charging
hours on places of worship, and particularly members of their congregations
that need to use a car to travel but may not be eligible for a Blue Badge
discount. Full consideration must be given to the feedback from the City and
central London’s faith communities on this consultation and we urge
flexibility around their requirements.

g. The issues with and limitations of the proposed changes to charging levels
and hours of operation highlight the need for a smarter, more dynamic
approach to road user charging. There will be an opportunity to introduce
this when the current contracts for administering the Congestion Charge and
ULEZ comes to an end in 2026. We would like to see the Mayor and TfL set
out a process and timetable for developing and consulting on a new
approach to road user charging within this timeframe.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

9. Strategic implications — Reducing motor traffic in the Square Mile enables more
effective and efficient use of limited street space, reduces transport related
carbon emissions, improves air quality and reduces road danger. Traffic
reduction supports delivery of Corporate Plan Outcome 9: We are digitally and
physically well-connected and responsive; the Transport Strategy; Climate
Action Strategy and the Air Quality Strategy.

Page 229



10.Financial implications — None
11.Resource implications — None
12.Legal implications — None

13.Risk implications — Reducing motor traffic in the Square Mile helps mitigate
Corporate Risks CR20 — Road Safety, CR21 — Air Quality and CR30 — Climate
Action.

14.Equalities implications — TfL have undertaken an Integrated Impact Assessment
(IIA) on the proposed changes to the Congestion Charge. This incorporates an
Equalities Impact Assessment. The IlA is available online
https://haveyoursay.tfl.gov.uk/congestion-charge-changes

15. Climate implications — Reducing motor traffic supports delivery of the Climate
Action Strategy by reducing carbon emissions and potentially enabling street
space to be reallocated to climate resilience measures.

16. Security implications - None

Conclusion

17.The proposed changes to the Congestion Charge will support the City
Corporation’s efforts to reduce motor traffic in the Square Mile and help avoid a
car led recovery. However, the approach to charging needs to reflect the
recovery challenges facing central London, particularly for the leisure and
cultural sectors, and the potential impacts on places of worship and their
congregations.

18.The proposed response to the consultation seeks to balance these issues and
opportunities. The response will also highlight the need for the Mayor and TfL to
set out a process and timetable for developing and consulting on a new
approach to road user charging.

Appendices

e Appendix 1: Supplementary information for the proposed changes to the
central London Congestion Charge

Bruce McVean
Acting Assistant Director (City Transportation), Transportation and Public Realm,
Environment Department

E: bruce.mcvean@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 230


https://haveyoursay.tfl.gov.uk/congestion-charge-changes

Supplementary information for the
proposed changes to the central London
Congestion Charge

July 2021

TRANSPORT
FOR LONDON

EVERY JOURNEY MATTERS

MAYOR OF LONDON e
Page 231




Contents

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

(oo 18 o (o] o ISR 3

P UNDOSE ...ttt et et e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaes 3
Overview Of propoSEd ChANGES ........uuiii i e e e e e e e 3
The Congestion Charge..........oooo i 7
History of the SCheme...........co oo 7
INitial ffeCtS .o 8
Congestion Charge iN rECENT YEAIS .........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e nnaeeanne 9
Temporary changes to the Congestion Charge............coooooiiiiiiieie, 10
The case fOr NEW ProPOSaAlS..........ooovviiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeens 11
The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS) ....cooeeeeeeeeeeee e 11
Sustainable MOdE ShAr€...........coooiiiiiii e e e 11
Efficient movement in central LONdON ...........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 12
Development of PropoSalsS ...........eeeiiii i 13
Transport scenarios and foreCasts .........oouuuiiiii i 13
Option deVEIOPMENT .......eee e e e e e e e e e e 14
The proposals and their impact on traffic and congestion................cccciiiiiiin e, 17
£15 CNArge [EVE ... . 18
Monday to Friday charging hours 07:00-18:00........c...uoiiiiiiiiieeiee e 18
Saturday and Sunday charging hours from 12:00 — 18:00 ..........coorriiiiiiiiiiie e, 19
Bank Holiday charging hours from 12:00 — 18:00 .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee 21
No charge between Christmas Day and New Year’s Day bank holiday (inclusive)........ 22
90 per cent residents’ discount, open to new and existing residents.............ccccccceeee. 22
£17.50 pay next day charge (up to three days aftertravel) ...........ccccooeeiiiiiiicien 23
Removing the Auto Pay and Fleet Auto Pay discounts ............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 24
Retaining and adapting reimbursement schemes ..............ccccci 25
Summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment..............ccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 26
The wider impacts of the proposed package..............ouuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccee e 26
N[ Q] (T 01 PP 29

2

Page 232



1.Introduction

Purpose

This document provides information on the Congestion Charge scheme, the proposed
changes to the scheme including why we are proposing them and how they have been
developed, the expected traffic impacts of the proposals as well as the potential wider
impacts as identified in the Integrated Impact Assessment.

Overview of proposed changes

The Congestion Charge was introduced in central London in February 2003. The primary
objective of the scheme is to reduce traffic and congestion in central London.

Since its introduction, there have been a number of changes to the scheme, including the
level of daily charge and penalty charge for non-payment, the charging zone, the operating
days and hours, payment methods and discounts and exemptions to the charge. The
recent temporary changes to the scheme are set out in Section 2.

The current Mayor’s Transport Strategy' (MTS) contains proposal 20, which states:

The Mayor, through TfL, will keep existing and planned road user charging schemes,
including the Congestion Charge, Low Emission Zone, Ultra Low Emission Zone and the
Silvertown Tunnel schemes, under review to ensure they prove effective in furthering or
delivering the policies and proposals of this strategy.

Prior to 22 June 2020, the main Congestion Charge operating conditions were:

e £11.50 charge level for each charging day on which a vehicle enters the Congestion
Charge zone (CC2)

e £1 discount if using Auto Pay or Fleet Auto Pay

e £14 pay next day charge (if paid by one day after travel in the CCZ, to avoid a
penalty charge notice (PCN))

e The charging hours were Monday to Friday 07:00 — 18:00, no charge at weekends

e No charging on Bank Holidays or the days between Christmas Day and New Year's
Day

e 90 per cent residents’ discount for eligible residents

¢ NHS staff and patient reimbursement schemes

The full details of the Congestion Charge before the pandemic were set out in the
consolidated Charging Scheme order dated May 20192

" Mayor's Transport Strategy, 2018 (www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-transport-strategy-
2018.pdf)

2 The consolidated Charging Scheme order dated May 2019 can be found here:
www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/consolidated-scheme-order-may2019.pdf

Page 233


http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-transport-strategy-2018.pdf
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-transport-strategy-2018.pdf

In response to the emergency situation arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and in
accordance with the Government’s request for TfL to urgently bring forward proposals to
widen the scope and levels of road user charging schemes, temporary changes were
introduced to the Congestion Charge on 22 June 2020 and remain in place. These
temporary changes were intended to support the Mayor’'s Streetspace plan and facilitate
the flow of essential traffic (including for key workers) in central London during the
pandemic. The temporary changes are:

e £15 charge level for each charging day on which a vehicle enters or is kept in the
CCz
¢ No Auto Pay or Fleet Auto Pay discount
e £17.50 charge level to pay after the day of travel and deadline for payment
extended to three days after travel
e The charging hours are Monday to Sunday 07:00 — 22:00 except Christmas Day
e The 90 per cent residents’ discount was closed to new applicants from 1 August
2020 (residents registered for the discount by this date continued to receive a 90
per cent discount)
o NHS staff and patient reimbursement schemes were expanded to encompass more
staff journeys and all patients most at risk from the coronavirus
e New reimbursement arrangements were introduced for:
o workers working at care homes located in the CCZ;
o workers and volunteers providing services on behalf of a local authority or
charity in direct response to the pandemic or which supports the most
vulnerable people.

[The full details of the Congestion Charge as it applied as from 22 June 2020 are set out in
the consolidated Charging Scheme order dated July 20203..]

TfL and the Mayor keep the Congestion Charge under review to ensure its continued
effectiveness, as per the MTS.

We are now consulting on new proposed changes to the Congestion Charge which we
consider will enable us to continue to achieve MTS objectives and ensure the Congestion
Charge continues to be effective in reducing traffic and congestion in central London.

The proposals are:

e £15 charge level for each charging day on which a vehicle enters the CCZ

¢ No Auto Pay or Fleet Auto Pay discount

e £17.50 charge level to pay after the day of travel and deadline for payment
extended to three days after travel

e The charging hours will be Monday to Friday 07:00 — 18:00 and Saturdays,
Sundays and Bank Holidays 12:00 — 18:00

e No charge from Christmas Day to New Year’s Day bank holiday (inclusive)

e 90 per cent residents’ discount, re-opened to new applicants

¢ Reimbursement arrangements for NHS patients who are vulnerable to risk of
infection, care home workers working at care homes in the CCZ, local authority or

3 The consolidated Charging Scheme order dated July 2020 can be found here:
www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/consolidated-scheme-order-july-2020.pdf

Page 234


http://www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/consolidated-scheme-order-july-2020.pdf

charity workers and volunteers providing certain services in relation to the COVID-
19 pandemic are proposed to be updated so that they apply during epidemics or
pandemics prevalent in Greater London (which includes the current COVID-19
pandemic). The expanded NHS staff reimbursement is also proposed to continue.

A summary comparison of the pre-pandemic scheme, temporary changes and new
proposals can be seen in the below table.

Pre-pandemic | Temporary Proposed changes to / provisions in
scheme up to | changes to the the Congestion Charge
22 June 2020 | Congestion
Charge from 22
June 2020
Charge level £11.50 £15 £15
Auto Pay and £1 discount No discount No discount

Fleet Auto Pay

Pay ‘next day’

£14 next day

£17.50 if paid up

£17.50 if paid up to three days after

charge charge to three days after | travel
travel
Charging period | Mon — Fri, Mon — Sun, 07:00 | Mon — Fri, 07:00 — 18:00;
07:00 - 18:00 | -22:00

Sat, Sun & bank holidays, 12:00 —
18:00

Non- charging
days

Bank holidays
and the days

Christmas Day

Christmas Day to New Year’s Day bank
holiday (inclusive)

between

Christmas Day

and New

Year’'s Day
Residents’ 90% for all 90% residents’ 90% for all residents following
discount residents discount closed to | registration for discount (reopened to

following new applicants new applicants)

registration for | from 1 August

discount 2020

Page 235




Reimbursements

NHS staff and
patient
reimbursement
arrangements

NHS staff and
patient
reimbursement
arrangements
extended, and
new
reimbursement
arrangements for
care home
workers working at
care homes in the
Congestion
Charging Zone
and charities and
local authorities’
workers/volunteers
providing certain
services.

Extended NHS staff reimbursement
arrangement.

NHS patient

reimbursement arrangement expanded
to patients vulnerable to risk of infection
during any future pandemic or epidemic
prevalent in Greater London (this
includes the COVID-19 pandemic).

Reimbursement arrangements for care
home workers working at care homes in
the CCZ and charities and local
authorities’ workers/volunteers providing
certain services during the COVID-19
pandemic expanded to any future
pandemic or epidemic prevalent in
Greater London.

Table 1: Comparison of pre-pandemic Congestion Charge, temporary changes and new proposals for consultation

Each of the proposals is discussed in detail in section five. In addition to the proposals
described above, we are also proposing to make an administrative change to how
residents pay for multiple consecutive charging days.

Subiject to the consultation and if confirmed by the Mayor, the proposed changes would
come into immediate effect the day after a decision is made for them to be implemented,
expected to be later this year. The exception would be the introduction of new charging
days and hours, which involve changes to signage and technology systems. The changes
to days and hours would come into effect on 28 February 2022.

Page 236




2.The Congestion Charge

History of the scheme

A Congestion Charge was first introduced in central London on 17 February 2003. The
current boundary of the Congestion Charge zone (CCZ) is shown in Figure 1. The scheme
reduces traffic and congestion in central London by reducing the number of vehicles that
enter the CCZ during charging hours. This secures further benefits identified below.

Hackne
& o London > oo o y
I A
4 oo 2 & Islington <
King's Cross 208
Regent's and St. Pancras As0
Stations ,‘ g e} i
Z Park LG <r Shoreditch
3 Camden R St Finsbury " %
s v % .
3 Marylebone By ) 2 4 e o:
T »* Bloomsbury o Eoos & Tower
L J. s ¥ Clerkenwell station & Hamlets
i —— N A . LAY
Pagtdalggﬁon ,:! At K City of & \\YG o
) N & 5
S EROSTRE! CoventZ Hobom —~ London 3'5‘ g A13
Bayswater M,fr h""\ Soho  Garden St. Paul's ® < 1 i
a0 ¥ e \ 2 © Cathedral e
N <
. A3 aytarr | @FICERGILY &5 \\‘%
City of %M Cius % \ Tower
W e 2% L e oo 2 s IBridge
estminster © % &
N\ Green 2 3 ®London I®
) | A
Hyde Park 4 d. \ lr:ark stefames's w. \ § & :t"adtig:\’f
5 y eg' Park aterloo @
sk Corrter Station 3 d‘& s 42,
Knightsbridge > = Ko g & ”© 0
- .\ Westminster 28
Victorian y Tate _ O ’,@s
A n Statw@ ~ Britain® £ 7 MO
s T, 308 Samti 0
& Chelsea 3 NN | o~ astle  southwark
$ N % 2 Nguxhall 7
Y > Pimlico ~ 4 4 2
2 ﬁdf 73 &
& L
4
2 Chelsea @ The Oval
¥ Albert Bridge
i %
Bridge pﬁ oo © Transport for London
Battersea ] May 2018

Figure 1: The Congestion Charge zone

The scheme requires that a charge must be paid for each day on which a vehicle that is
kept or used in the CCZ during the charging hours.

The Congestion Charge has a number of discounts and exemptions, which are set out

below. Generally, customers have to register for a discount and provide proof of eligibility.
Exemptions, however, are usually automatically applied.

Discounts (100% except residents’ discount)

Residents’ discount (90%)

Blue Badge holders

Accredited breakdown vehicles

Vehicles with 9+ seats

Cleaner Vehicle Discount for electric and certain plug-in hybrid
vehicles

Motor tricycles

Page 237 !



Roadside recovery vehicles

Table 2: Discounts to the Congestion Charge

Exemptions

Two-wheeled motorcycles and mopeds

Emergency service vehicles (police, ambulance, lifeboat and fire
service vehicles exempt from Vehicle Excise Duty)

NHS vehicles that are exempt from vehicle tax

Vehicles used by disabled people that are exempt from vehicle tax

Vehicles for more than one disabled person that are exempt from
vehicle tax

Designated wheelchair accessible PHVs licensed with TfL (when
fulfilling a booking)

Taxis licensed by TfL

HM Coastguard and Port Authorities vehicles

Certain borough and TfL operational vehicles

Armed forces vehicles

Royal Parks Agency and Crown Estate Paving Commission
vehicles

Table 3: Exemptions to the Congestion Charge

There are also reimbursement arrangements for NHS staff and patients, care home
workers and certain charity and local authority workers or volunteers. More information on
these rules can be found here: https:/ifl.gov.uk/modes/driving/reimbursements-of-the-
congestion-charge-and-ulez-charge. The full details of the existing exemptions as from 22
June 2020 are set out in the consolidated Charging Scheme order dated July 20204

Initial impacts

Following its introduction, the Congestion Charge was very effective in reducing traffic and
congestion in the CCZ. There was a 30 per cent reduction in congestion within the CCZ,
and a 15 per cent reduction in circulating traffic. In addition, by reducing the overall
volumes of traffic within the CCZ and increasing the efficiency of circulating traffic, the

4 The consolidated Charging Scheme order dated July 2020 can be found here:
www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/consolidated-scheme-order-july-2020.pdf

Page 238


https://tfl.gov.uk/modes/driving/reimbursements-of-the-congestion-charge-and-ulez-charge
https://tfl.gov.uk/modes/driving/reimbursements-of-the-congestion-charge-and-ulez-charge
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/consolidated-scheme-order-july-2020.pdf

Congestion Charge was responsible for a reduction in emissions. This equated to
approximately a 12 per cent emissions reduction of both NOx and PM10 from road traffic
and 20 per cent reduction in emission of CO? from road traffic, based on a 24-hour annual
average day.

Congestion Charge in recent years

The MTS highlighted that 15 years after the introduction of the Congestion Charge, while it
remained an integral part of managing road space, the challenge facing central London
had changed. It emphasised the changing composition of vehicles in the CCZ and the
times in which they entered.

One of the elements discussed was the growth in uncharged vehicles in the CCZ, in
particular the rise in the number of private hire vehicles (PHVs). It stated that the number
of PHVs entering the CCZ had grown from the 4,000 predicted in 2003 to more than
18,000 daily.

In April 2019, the PHV exemption was removed, except for those designated as
wheelchair accessible, following public consultation. This had the effect of reducing the
number of unique PHVs entering the CCZ in line with expectations when compared to
before the exemption was removed.

The MTS also set out that weekend traffic levels in the CCZ had become similar to levels
on weekdays. The graphs below, taken from the MTS, showed traffic levels in the CCZ on
weekdays and at the weekend (Saturday and Sunday average) by half hour period. This

demonstrated the high levels of traffic at the weekend in comparison to weekday traffic
levels.

17,500
15,000
12,5001
10,0007
7,500+
5,000

2,500+

OONNSNOONNNNNNNNNNNNY
ORI
OO
NN NN O OO OO
NN NN
OO RN NS
AR LHLLL LR LL LR L LR LR LG
NN AN NN S R SOOI
AR R A R R R RNy
NN AN N N N O O NSO OO
NN N NN N NN RN RO
OO NN,
NN NN NN OO
AN N RO RO RN RN NN
ORI
NN N OO UOONSONRONRONONNONONONNNNNY
ONNNNNUSNONRORRINRORRORRRONRNNNANN
NN N OO NN NN
NN AR AN R AN R NN NN RNNRNNNNY
NN A N N R AN R RO RN RN R NN
NN NN
AL LLLLLRL LR L LR RN RN
NN NN NN NN
AN OGN
OO NN NN
NN RO OO WY
ONONUNNONONOOORNRRRNRNRNNNN
OO
OO OO
ONONRORORNNNNRNRNNNNNNNY
ONONNNNNNNNNNNNNY
SONNRONRONRRRNNNRNNN
PROCRNRORRRRORNRRRNNNNANY

SONOVNRNNNNNNN

SONNNNRNNNY
AN

OO

T\\\\\\\\\

SNNNNNN
NNNNN
NN
SNNNNN
NN
SN
NN\

OO RN
NN

OO

0

S R B R S B R A S S I S I S S TR IR AR S S
PP P PFPEEEPEFESSPSPPLSSSSS
S Al S S A RN N TN NN N N N N S A Ll

o)

Time of day

Figure 2: Traffic levels in CCZ by half hour, Monday to Friday average (Source: Mayor’s Transport Strategy, 2018)

Page 239



17,500
15,000
Tt Ir”
VOV
s
U e e
00900\900 'QQQ%'QQQNQQQ%'QQQ@'QQQ’\'QQQQ;'QQQ%'QQ Q'QQ,\’\'QQ\W'QQ,\%'Q()\D!QQ,\%QQ,\Q)QQ,\’\QQN%QQNCDQQ%QQQ(L QQ,Q,QQ %90
Time of day

Figure 3: Traffic levels in the CCZ by half hour, Saturday and Sunday average (Source: Mayor’s Transport Strategy,
2018)

Temporary changes to the Congestion Charge

To address the transport challenges arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, a package of
temporary changes to the Congestion Charge came into effect on 22 June 2020. The
temporary changes were introduced following a funding package being agreed with the
Department for Transport, with one aspect being to urgently bring forward proposals to
widen the scope and levels of road user charging schemes. These changes are intended
to support the enhanced provision of space for walking and cycling as implemented by the
Mayor’s Streetspace plan and facilitate the free flow of essential traffic including buses and
freight. The Mayor has committed TfL to keeping these temporary changes under review
having regard to the transport challenges created by the pandemic and taking account of
important milestones in the response to the pandemic or significant changes in
circumstances.

Following the Government’s announcement of the progression to Step 4 of the ‘Roadmap
out of lockdown’ on 19 July 2021, we reviewed the transport challenges arising from the
pandemic and identified that the following are likely to persist beyond Step 4:

e a slow return of users to public transport and a general reluctance for people to
currently return to using it as they did pre-pandemic;

e temporary road space changes to roads in the CCZ reducing capacity for motorised
traffic, with no immediate plans to return to the pre-pandemic situation; and

o the return of traffic at a faster rate than public transport use, bringing with it the
potential risk of a car-based recovery, with its associated impacts on health, the
environment and road danger, as well as and the inability of central London’s
limited road capacity to cope.

Page 240 10



The temporary changes to the Congestion Charge scheme remain a necessary response
to these persistent challenges. They will remain in place and will continue to be kept under
review. If the temporary changes are still in place at the time of the proposed
implementation of any proposed changes or provisions (as per this consultation), the
intention is that they will be replaced by these proposals.

3.The case for new proposals

The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS)

The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS) sets out the healthy streets approach, which puts
people at the centre of transport planning. The MTS recognises that the success of
London’s transport system relies on reducing Londoners’ dependency on cars in favour of
increased walking, cycling and public transport use. As such, the central aim of the MTS is
for 80 per cent of all trips in London to be made on foot, cycle or public transport by 2041.

An increase in the number of journeys being made by people walking, cycling and using
public transport, and a reduction in car use across London, will not only deliver the vision
and central aim of the MTS, but will also help address poor air quality and the climate
emergency, deliver the Mayor’s ambition for Vision Zero and provide vibrant, attractive and
inclusive public spaces. In addition, a shift from car use to more space-efficient means of
travel also provides the only long-term solution to the congestion challenges that, as
outlined in the MTS, threaten London’s status as an efficient, well-functioning city.

Reliable deliveries and servicing, high-quality public services and easy access to
workplaces and cultural and leisure attractions are all dependent on the development of an
increasingly efficient transport network. Reducing car dependency and increasing the
share of sustainable modes of transport (sustainable mode share) is a critical component
to keeping London moving.

Sustainable mode share

Delivering the mode share aim of the MTS requires that London’s public transport provides
a reliable and practical alternative to car use, and that people feel safe and confident to
walk and cycle. Achieving this requires that the negative impacts of traffic and congestion
caused by motorised vehicles are reduced.

Prior to the pandemic, across Greater London, we were making steady progress towards
the MTS aim for 80 per cent sustainable mode share. In 2019, 63.2 per cent of all trips
were made by sustainable modes. The latest mode share estimates are for Q3 2020,
which found sustainable mode share had reduced to 54.9 per cent as a result of the
significant change in travel behaviour due to the pandemic. Although trips by public
transport have decreased, there has been an increase in walking and cycling, though there
continues to be a significant risk of increasing car travel.

The 80 per cent mode share aim is a London wide ambition. For trips being made within,
to and from central London, the expected mode share in 2041 is:

Page 241 B



Travel between MTS 2041 expected
central area and | walk/cycle/bus mode share

Central 95%
Inner 99%
Outer 99%

Table 4: Mode share (expected) in 2041(Source: Mayor’s Transport Strategy, 2018)

The central London 2041 mode share ambitions in Table 4 reflect the already higher
sustainable mode share of these trips and the very high levels of public transport
connectivity. Prior to the pandemic, a 90 per cent sustainable mode share for trips made
by London residents within central London had been achieved, with almost all remaining
car trips potentially switchable to sustainable modes.

Despite this high sustainable mode share, congestion was still evident within the CCZ
especially outside charging hours. High levels of traffic and congestion in the CCZ add
delay to journey times for businesses and individuals, reduce the reliability of buses,
worsen air pollution and make streets less safe for those walking and cycling. Reducing
traffic improves conditions for those sustainable modes, which is required to meet MTS
objectives.

Efficient movement in central London

A shift from car use to sustainable modes also makes more efficient use of London’s
streets. Compared to buses and people walking and cycling, cars take up considerably
more road space per person. The MTS sets a clear total traffic reduction target of 10-15
per cent by 2041 to tackle congestion and improve the efficiency of streets for the
movement of people and goods.

The tightly constrained road network in central London means efficient movement is
fundamental to the continued success of such a limited geographical area. Reducing car
use provides economic benefits by freeing up space and reducing journey times for
essential trips that keep London’s businesses and key services functioning.

Around 50 temporary or experimental street space schemes have been implemented by
TfL and the boroughs in central London since May 2020. These include schemes to
increase footway space, timed road closures and cycleways. All schemes focus on
reallocating road space from general traffic to support the increased levels of travel by
sustainable modes in central London.

These measures supported increased levels of sustainable travel during the pandemic
(due to social distancing, reduced public transport capacity and Government advice) and
are likely to remain in place beyond Step 4 of the Government’s roadmap out of lockdown.
These temporary measures may be considered for permanency, subject to consultation,
engagement and assessment of their impacts.

In developing new proposals for the Congestion Charge, we have considered the pre-
pandemic situation with regards to traffic and congestion with the road network capacity

Page 242 12



available at that time, as well as the existing capacity of the road network given there are
number of temporary and experimental schemes in place and it is possible that some or all
may remain in place (but this is uncertain).

The Congestion Charge plays an important role in helping to manage traffic and
congestion. The MTS highlighted that the scheme may need to be reviewed in light of
increased traffic before the temporary Streetspace changes were introduced. If any
Streetspace schemes in central London are made permanent in the future after due
process is followed, the case for reducing traffic levels would be even stronger.

4.Development of proposals

Prior to the pandemic, the MTS highlighted the traffic challenge in central London with high
levels of traffic outside charging hours.

Section 2 outlined previous changes to the Congestion Charge scheme as a result of
ongoing review of the traffic conditions and relevant external factors in central London.

Looking forward, it is clear that some of the transport challenges that have arisen as a
result of the pandemic may be longer-term features of the transport landscape in central
London.

New proposals have been developed to ensure the Congestion Charge scheme remains
effective in managing traffic and congestion in central London in support of long term MTS
objectives as well as effectively addressing persistent transport challenges arising from the
pandemic.

Transport scenarios and forecasts

We have undertaken a scenario planning exercise to help inform future decision making,
given the need to understand the impact of the pandemic on the economy and travel
demand in the future. We have developed five post-pandemic scenarios to account for the
increased uncertainty. To allow for detailed assessment, we have also created two fully
modelled forecasts which combine assumptions from the five scenarios. This includes a
Reference Case - which assumes a close return to pre-pandemic travel behaviours and
updated economic forecasts - and the Hybrid forecast - which assumes slightly

slower population growth, more working from home and online shopping and a slower
recovery in public transport usage.

In both the current Reference Case and Hybrid forecast, traffic levels in central London
could increase, as shown in Figure 4. In the Hybrid forecast - in part due to the impact
from the slower recovery in public transport usage - we could effectively lose the last 10 to
15 years of traffic reduction without intervention. Further information can be found in the
Integrated Impact Assessment (II1A), within the Consultation Materials.

Page 243 "



Daily number of motor vehicles crossing the central London

105 cordon 2000-2019 observed with estimated range for 2030
100
95
90
85
80

75

Index: 2000 = 100

70

65

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2030

Figure 4: Daily number of motor vehicles crossing the central London cordon 2000-2019 with 2030 estimate (Source: TfL
modelling)

In November 2020, the GLA commissioned Arup to produce a report on the future of the
Central Activities Zone. The ‘Central Activities Zone (CAZ) Economic Futures Research’
report was published in March 20215 and recommends an ambitious step change in
creating inclusive and accessible public realm with increased space for pedestrians and
active travel. Complementing this, the report says, is: the need to remove vehicles from
some areas of the CAZ to create large ‘car free’ areas; and a review of the congestion
charge to prevent a car led recovery and ensure traffic levels are kept low.

Option development

We have assessed several potential changes to the Congestion Charge for their
effectiveness in achieving its primary objective of traffic and congestion reduction in
support of the policies and proposals of the MTS.

A summary of options considered including why they were or were not taken forward to
consultation is included in the below table.

Parameter Option Taken Justification
forward /
Rejected
Charging Increase charge | Rejected e Modelling analysis indicates that
level to £13 the charge would have a lesser
impact on traffic in the CCZ,

5 https://www.london.gov.uk/business-and-economy-publications/central-activities-zone-caz-economic-
futures-research.

Page 244 1


https://www.london.gov.uk/business-and-economy-publications/central-activities-zone-caz-economic-futures-research
https://www.london.gov.uk/business-and-economy-publications/central-activities-zone-caz-economic-futures-research

reducing car kms in the CCZ in pre-
pandemic charging hours by
around 1.5%

Increase charge
to £15

Taken forward

Modelling indicates a £15 charge
would be expected to reduce car
kms in the CCZ in pre-pandemic
charging hours by around 4%

Weekday
Charging
hours

Extend charging
hours in
the evening

R ejected

Not being taken forward while
future weekday travel patterns
remain uncertain and due to
potential impacts on the recovery of
the evening economy

End charging at
6pm

Taken forward

In combination with a £15 charge
level, there is a traffic reduction in
pre-pandemic charging hours. The
profile of traffic in the evening will
be kept under review

Weekend
charging
hours

Charging hours
12 noon — 6pm

Taken forward

Traffic levels at weekends are
similar to weekdays, with car and
PHV traffic even higher than on an
average weekday, pre-pandemic,
causing delay to essential traffic
including buses and freight.
Highest levels of traffic seen on
weekends from midday.

In combination with a £15 charge,
there is a reduction in car traffic of
around 15%.

E xtend charging
hours beyond
12 noon — 6pm

R ejected

Although entries to the zone have
been higher on Saturday and
Sunday compared to an average
weekday, overall traffic levels are
lower on weekend mornings.
Longer charging hours at the
weekend, given the different activity
profile compared to weekdays, may
adversely impact some individuals.

Charging
days

Charge
weekends

Taken forward

Traffic levels at weekends are
similar to weekdays, with car and
PHV traffic having been even
higher than on an average
weekday, pre-pandemic

E xtends the benefits of reduced
traffic and congestion (including
freeing up road space for
sustainable modes and essential
traffic, as well as emissions
reductions) to weekends, when

Page 245

15




more people are travelling for
leisure

Charge bank
holidays

Taken forward

Carand PHV traffic were higher on
bank holidays than on an average
weekday pre-pandemic

E xtends the benefits of reduced
traffic and congestion to bank
holidays when there are likely to be
higher proportions of visitors and
leisure trips

Charge-free
weekends

Rejected

Traffic levels at weekends are very
similar to weekdays, with car and
PHV traffic even higher than on an
average weekday pre-pandemic,
causing delay to essential traffic
including buses and freight

Charge-free
period from
Christmas Day
to New Year's

Taken forward

Fewer alternative travel options on
Christmas day

Changes to travel patterns
throughout period, for example

Day Bank through the closure of some
Holiday businesses throughout the period,
inclusive reducing traffic and the impact of
journeys for those who are
travelling on those days
Discounts, Maintain Taken forward Residents receive a 90% discount
charges residents 90% in recognition of the factthey are
and discount unable to avoid the charge if they
exemptions need to drive
Removing the discount would have
greater impacts for residents whose
opportunity to avoid the charge
would be even more constrained by
the proposed higher charge level
and introduction of weekend
charging
Remove R ejected At this time, it remains appropriate
residents’ disco to provide a reduced level of charge
unt for residents who may have less
option to avoid the charge
Reduce R ejected The higher charge level and

residents’ disco
unt

extension of charging hours to
weekends may further influence
some residents’ mode choice. The
impact of the new proposals, if
confirmed, on residents’ car trips
would be kept under review

Longer-time
period to pay

Taken forward

To provide drivers with more time to
pay the charge (ata higher rate

Page 246

16




‘next day’
following travel
into the CCZ

than the ordinary charging level)
before being issued with a PCN

Increase charge
level for ‘next
day’ paymentto
£17.50

Taken forward

Increase to charge required to
continue incentive to pay in
advance of travel into the CCZ. The
£2.50 price differential between the
ordinary charging level and
deferred charge is retained

Remove Auto
Pay and Fleet
Auto Pay
discount

Taken forward

The rationale for introducing Auto
Pay discounts was to encourage
people to switch to paying by
account. As the majority of people
now pay by Auto Pay, this incentive
is no longer required

Removing the discount reinforces
thataccess to road space in central
London should not be discounted
for those who are liable to pay the
full charge

An incentive remains to continue
using Auto Pay as it reduces the
risk of having to pay a higher
charge in the days following travel
in the zone orincurring a PCN for
non-payment

Introduce wider
reimbursements
or make
changes to
existing
reimbursement
schemes

Taken forward

The extension of the NHS staff
reimbursementis proposed to be
retained

The other reimbursement
arrangements introduced as part of
the temporary changes will be
retained and extended to ensure
they can be used in future
pandemic and epidemics in Greater
London, recognising the positive
impacts this has had for those in
response roles and vulnerable
people they support

5.The proposals and their impact on traffic and

congestion

The new Congestion Charge proposals have been developed to support the long term
aims of the MTS whilst also helping to address short to medium term transport challenges.
The Congestion Charge is one of the key tools to manage road space and demand in
central London but relies upon continual review to ensure its ongoing effectiveness in

changing circumstances.

Page 247

17




£15 charge level

Background and context

The charge level was previously increased in 2014, when it increased from £10 to £11.50.
Previous changes included an increase in 2011 from £8 to £10 and an increase in 2005
from £5 to £8. The period since 2014 is the longest time in which a permanent increase to
the charge level has not been made, gradually eroding the deterrent effect of the charge.

In June 2020, the charge level was temporarily increased to £15 as part of the
temporary measures introduced in response to the transport challenges created by the
pandemic.

What is proposed?

We are proposing to set the charge level at £15 to help reduce traffic and congestion in
central London and support the other aims of the MTS. The increase in charge level
reflects the high value of road space in central London and has been assessed and
forecast to have a positive impact on (that is, to reduce) traffic in the CCZ. Road space in
central London is tightly constrained and as far as possible, motorised traffic should be
disincentivised from entering the CCZ.

High levels of motorised traffic in such a small area have significant negative impacts on
those who work, visit and live in central London, increasing costs for businesses, slowing
down essential journeys and negatively impacting air quality.

Impact of the proposal

A £15 charge level is expected to reduce car kms in the CCZ by around four per cent
between 07:00 — 18:00 on weekdays, compared to a situation where no changes were
made to the pre-pandemic scheme. This is a significant reduction in an area where road
space is heavily constrained and demand is high. The reduction in car usage is expected
to result in an increase in sustainable travel to, within and from the CCZ with around 6,000
new trips made by public transport and 2,000 new walking and cycling trips made into
each weekday.

Monday to Friday charging hours 07:00-18:00

Background and context
Prior to the pandemic, the Congestion Charge operated on weekdays from 07:00 — 18:00.
The hours of operation were temporarily extended in June 2020 to 07:00 — 22:00 on

weekdays and weekends as part of the temporary measures introduced in response to
the transport challenges created by the pandemic.

Page 248 8



What is proposed

We are proposing that the Congestion Charge will operate on weekdays from 07:00 —
18:00, the same weekday charging hours as the pre-pandemic scheme.

As highlighted in the MTS, traffic was at its highest in the evening after charging hours
end. An increase in traffic after charging hours end is, to some extent, to be expected as
traffic is no longer disincentivised from driving in the CCZ. When determining the right time
to end the Congestion Charge operating hours on weekdays, we have considered the
changing and uncertain nature of weekday travel patterns, the impact on the evening
economy in central London and on those who need to carry large or heavy loads to
participate in it or drive in for shift work.

It is also recognised that there may be cumulative impacts of the proposed package of
changes which could impact overall weekday traffic and congestion levels. A higher
charge level during the week (and removal of the Auto Pay discount) will result in some
mode shift. Charging at weekends will also influence mode choice for a new cohort of
drivers, which could extend benefits to journeys made on other days.

If the proposed new weekday charging hours are implemented, they will be kept under
review to understand their impact on evening traffic.

Impact of proposal

This proposal is not expected to impact traffic and congestion as compared to the pre-
pandemic scheme. However, wider changes to the Congestion Charge, weekday travel
patterns and the road network in central London could lead to changes in behaviour which
could have knock-on impacts for traffic levels in the CCZ in the evenings.

Saturday and Sunday charging hours from 12:00 — 18:00

Background and context

Prior to the pandemic, car (including PHV) traffic was higher on Saturdays and Sundays
than on an average weekday. Car and PHV traffic also made up over 70 per cent of traffic
in the CCZ at the weekend, compared to 50 per cent in the week.

Page 249 1



Activity in the CCZ (average day, May to Dec 2019)

74% 74%
Average weekday Average Average Saturday Average Sunday  Average Bank
Saturday/Sunday holiday

B Car and PHV activity ~ ® All other activity % = proportion of car and PHV activity

Figure 5: Activity in CCZ comparing average weekday, average weekend and average bank holiday

As highlighted in the MTS, the challenge facing central London has changed. With higher
levels of car and PHV traffic seen at the weekend, the pre-pandemic charging days did not
reflect the days of the week with the highest number of entries to the CCZ. It is necessary
to take steps to help reduce levels of traffic and congestion seen at the weekend to ensure
we meet the aims of the MTS, with the proposed charging hours reflecting this.

High traffic levels at the weekends contribute to congestion and delay, including for bus
passengers, as well as a less pleasant street environment, higher levels of emissions and
increased road danger.

Charging on Saturday and Sunday from 07:00 — 22:00 was temporarily introduced in
June 2020 as part of the temporary measures introduced in response to the transport
challenges created by the pandemic.

What is proposed?

We are proposing that weekend charging hours will be from 12:00 — 18:00 on Saturdays
and Sundays, when traffic is at its highest.

Although entries to the CCZ have been higher on Saturday and Sunday compared to an
average weekday, overall traffic levels are lower on weekend mornings. Given the different
activity profile at the weekends compared to weekdays, we are proposing shorter hours at
the weekend which will help to mitigate the impact on some individuals.

Page 250 20



Total activity in the CCZ by hour (average day, May to Dec 2019)

S

-

e \veekday Saturday e Sunday

Figure 6: Total activity by hour on Saturdays, Sundays and average weekday in CCZ

Shorter hours of operation at the weekend could help to support freight trips that have a
positive impact on London’s weekend economy. Starting the hours later also accounts for
later availability of public transport on the weekend.

Impact of the proposal

A £15 charge between 12:00 and 18:00 on Saturdays and Sundays is expected to reduce
car kms in newly charged hours by around 15 per cent compared to a situation where no
changes were made to the pre-pandemic scheme. As a result, sustainable travel to the
CCZ is expected to increase. It is estimated that there will be around 8,000 new public
transport trips and 3,000 walking and cycling trips each day on the weekend.

Bank Holiday charging hours from 12:00 — 18:00

Background and context

Prior to the pandemic, car and PHV traffic was higher on Bank Holidays than on an
average weekday.

All days except Christmas Day were charged as part of the temporary measures
introduced in response to the transport challenges created by the pandemic.

What is proposed?

We are proposing to introduce Bank Holiday charging hours from 12:00 — 18:00. This will
help to encourage the use of sustainable modes of travel and reinforce that central London
road space is tightly constrained across all days. Charging the majority of Bank Holidays
also means that for most of the year the Congestion Charge will operate seven days a
week.

Page 251 21



Impact of the proposal

The impact of the proposal is likely to be similar to that expected at the weekends, with
around 15 per cent reduction in car kms in the newly charged hours with a £15 charge.

No charge between Christmas Day and New Year’s Day bank
holiday (inclusive)

Background and context

Prior to the pandemic, the Congestion Charge operated Monday to Friday excluding Bank
Holidays and the period between Christmas Day and New Year’s Day.

The days of operation were extended to include every day except Christmas Day as part
of the temporary measures introduced in response to the transport challenges created
by the pandemic.

What is proposed?

We are proposing that the period in between Christmas and the New Year’s Day bank
holiday inclusive (including where this falls later than 1 January due to New Year’s Day
falling on a weekend) will not be charged.

Traffic levels are normally around 20 per cent lower during this week. Public transport is
not available on Christmas Day and, given the lower traffic levels, trips in the CCZ are
likely to have less of an impact on congestion.

Impact of the proposal

There is not expected to be a traffic impact from this proposal compared to the pre-
pandemic scheme, as those days were not previously charged.

90 per cent residents’ discount, open to new and existing
residents

Background and context

In 2003, when the scheme was introduced, a 90 per cent residents’ discount was provided
in recognition that residents are unable to avoid the charge if they need to drive.

The residents’ discount was closed to new applicants from 1 August 2020 as part of the
temporary measures introduced in response to the transport challenges created by the
pandemic.

Page 252 2



What is proposed?

In light of additional charging hours at weekends, there are fewer opportunities than
previously for residents to avoid the charge. We are proposing to maintain the 90 per cent
residents’ discount and to re-open applications for all eligible residents to register for the
discount.

Impact of the proposal

There is not expected to be a noticeable traffic impact from this proposal as compared to
the pre-pandemic scheme, as this re-opens applications for the residents’ discount that
was in place previously (and which continued for registered residents). There may be
some small impact on residents’ travel behaviour from the introduction of charges at the
weekend and the higher charge level.

£17.50 pay ‘next day’ charge (up to three days after travel)

Background and context

The pay next day charge provides customers with an opportunity to pay the Congestion
Charge at a slightly higher rate following their day of travel before they are issued with a
PCN (penalty charge notice) for non-payment. The mechanism allows drivers to avoid a
PCN if they remember to pay shortly after they have been in the CCZ. Prior to the
pandemic, the pay next day charge was set at £14 (£2.50 above the usual charge) and
customers only had one day to pay.

The pay ‘next day’ charge was temporarily increased to £17.50 (with three days to pay)
in June 2020 as part of the temporary measures introduced in response to the transport
challenges created by the pandemic.

What is proposed?

We are proposing that the pay ‘next day’ charge is set at £17.50 and that the deadline for
making a delayed payment is three days after the day of travel. Failure to pay after that
deadline will result in a PCN being issued in the normal way. This proposal provides
drivers with additional time to pay the Congestion Charge and the proposed increase is in
line with the previous difference between the Congestion Charge and pay next day charge
(£2.50 difference).

Impact of the proposal

This proposal maintains the differential in the charge level for a delayed payment in line
with the proposed charge level of £15. However, it is expected to benefit drivers as it
provides them with additional days to pay the charge, albeit at a slightly increased level,
before they are issued with a PCN.

Page 253 2



Removing the Auto Pay and Fleet Auto Pay discounts

Background and context

Auto Pay was introduced in January 2011 and allows customers to be automatically billed
monthly for the number of charging days on which their vehicle is used within the CCZ,
providing they have an Auto Pay account. There are two forms of Auto Pay: Auto Pay and
Fleet Auto Pay. Fleet Auto Pay is available for businesses with six or more vehicles,
allowing them to add multiple vehicles to one account. It has the same benefits as
standard Auto Pay and helps businesses to administer the Congestion Charge for larger
fleets.

Auto Pay and Fleet Auto Pay were introduced to help make the process of paying the
Congestion Charge simpler and to remove the risk of incurring a PCN for non-payment. To
encourage people to adopt this form of payment, a £1 discount was given. This has been
very successful, with more than three quarters® of customers now paying via Auto Pay.

Even without the discount, it is still beneficial for customers to use Auto Pay and Fleet Auto
Pay as it removes any administrative burden of paying for the Congestion Charge on a
daily basis as well as the risk of receiving a PCN for non-payment and it is simple to use.

Auto Pay and Fleet Auto Pay discounts were removed as part of the temporary
measures introduced in response to the transport challenges created by the pandemic.

What is proposed?

We are proposing that the £1 discount for both Auto Pay and Fleet Auto Pay is removed. It
is evident that the original reason for introducing the discount to incentivise uptake of the
payment method has been successful and, therefore, the discount is no longer required. In
addition, removing the discount reinforces that access to road space in central London
should not be discounted for those who are liable to pay the full charge.

Impact of the proposal

This proposal continues to allow customers and businesses to benefit from the Auto Pay
and Fleet Auto Pay systems. The original intention of the discount was to incentivise a new
mechanism of charging, however, given high levels of use it is no longer considered
necessary to provide a discount. It is not expected that this change alone will have a
considerable impact on customers or businesses traveling into the CCZ, or traffic levels,
though it will add an additional deterrent effect by eliminating what would otherwise be a
reduction on the increased charge level.

6 Based on Congestion Charge payment activity for January—May 2021, on average
around 76 per cent of customers paid via Auto Pay.

24

Page 254



Retaining and adapting temporary reimbursement schemes

Background and context

Pre-pandemic, reimbursements were available for NHS staff and NHS patients in respect
of certain journeys.

The eligibility criteria of the NHS staff and the NHS patient reimbursement schemes
were expanded, and new arrangements introduced for care home workers, local
authorities and charities as part of the temporary measures introduced in response to
the transport challenges created by the pandemic.

What is proposed

We are proposing to either retain or adapt the reimbursement arrangements that were
introduced as part of the temporary changes to ensure that people most vulnerable to
infection from epidemics and pandemics continue to be protected and to facilitate essential
trips made by NHS staff in times of exceptional or extraordinary circumstances including
for commuting purposes.

The NHS staff reimbursement arrangement would continue in its expanded form.

The NHS patient, care home workers and local authorities and charities reimbursement
criteria would be modified to replace COVID-19 specific references with references to a
pandemic or epidemic prevalent in Greater London. The existing reimbursement
arrangements would continue seamlessly if the proposed changes are implemented so
reimbursements would remain available for eligible journeys taken during the COVID-19
pandemic.

Impact of the proposal

Continuation of the reimbursements is expected to have a positive impact on specific
groups in exceptional circumstances, but is not expected to result in significant traffic
impacts.

Removal of resident online and app payments for
consecutive charging days

Background and context

Holders of the residents’ discount can currently pay for multiple consecutive charging
days by post, call centre, App or online, and may also pay for any number of charging
days by Auto Pay.

What is proposed

We are proposing to remove the ability for residents to pay by App or online for multiple
consecutive charging days. Resident payments for multiple consecutive charging days will

25

Page 255



still be able to be made by post or via the call centre and residents will still be able to pay
for any number of individual charging days by Auto Pay.

Impact of the proposal

The number of residents who do not use Auto Pay is relatively small, the frequency of
purchases of multiple consecutive charging days is low and alternative payment channels
will remain available, therefore, this proposal is not expected to have a significant impact
on holders of the residents’ discount.

6.Summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment

A change to a scheme such as this will have multiple impacts. It is important that TfL, in
developing the proposals, and the Mayor, as decision maker, understand and consider the
potential impacts of the proposals.

The objective of an Integrated Impact Assessment (lIA) is to understand the impacts of
proposals, both positive and negative, of the following assessment areas:

Equality impacts;
Business/economic impacts;
Environmental impacts;
Health impacts.

Each assessment includes a baseline, objectives, evidence of likely impacts of the
proposals, assessment of these against the objectives, and a summary of potential
positive and negative impacts. An IlA also identifies possible measures to enhance the
positive impacts of proposals and mitigate against the negative impacts. They often
include engagement with stakeholders to understand the impact of the proposals on
relevant groups.

Following a competitive procurement process, we commissioned Jacobs to undertake an
[IA on the proposed changes to the Congestion Charge. The full document can be found
on the consultation website, with a summary provided below.

The wider impacts of the proposed package

The objectives and assessment for the IIA undertaken by Jacobs were split into three
themes: London’s people (including health and equalities assessment), London’s economy
and London’s environment. Each of the theme-focused assessments was undertaken to
an agreed scope with relevant baseline.

The people category includes an assessment of ‘protected characteristic’ groups. This
enabled Jacobs to understand how the proposals could impact all the protected
characteristic groups (age, disability, sex, race, pregnancy or maternity, gender
reassignment, religion or belief, and sexual orientation) and those from deprived areas / on
low incomes. It also demonstrates how we have discharged the Public Sector Equality
Duty when developing and deciding to put the proposed changes forward for consultation.
Together with the consultation responses and any updates, the IIA will also be relied on by

Page 256 26



the Mayor when making his decision whether to implement the proposed changes or not,
including whether to make any modifications to them.

The IlA assessment compares the new proposals against the equivalent features of the
pre-pandemic scheme, rather than comparing against temporary circumstances when
many people would not have been travelling in the usual way. Overall impacts were

determined according to their scale (extent of impact) and sensitivity (response to impact).

Each impact identified was given an impact rating from -3 (major negative) to +3 (major
positive). In the people section, protected characteristic groups that are particularly
impacted by the proposals, either positively or negatively, are identified.

The full report is available to read as part of the supporting information for this
consultation. Key findings are summarised below.

Page 257

27



8G¢ abed

4 )
Environment \r‘,
Reduction (approximately 1.5 per cent) in annual emissions
of NOx, PM1o and PM2.s within central London.
Reduction (approximately 1.5 per cent) in annual emissions
of CO2 within central London.
o

J

N

mbie |
-

Neutral impacts overall on employment and businesses, with potential
for minor impacts for some sectors (retail, accommodation and food
services, arts and recreation)

Economy

Wider supply chains will be affected by the proposals but the overall
impact on London’s wider economy is expected to be neutral

People (including health and equalities)

Reduction in pollutant emissions leading to positive health
outcomes particularly for people living in the boroughs within
the CCZ.

Increase in active travel in central London.

Improvement in bus and taxi journey times and reliability.

Increased cost of access to attend religious services during
weekend charging hours in the CCZ for those unable to travel
by public transport or attend at other times.

Increased costs to PHV drivers unable to spread additional
costs across multiple trips.

Reduction in travel by individual with a fear for their safety on
public transport, walking or cycling.

Potential increase in crowding on public transport.

Increased costs for disabled drivers — particularly at weekends
—who do not qualify for blue badge.

Mitigated or partly mitigated impacts

J
Impact upon mental and physical health due to a reduction in

traffic making the streets more attractive to socialise/walk/cycle
on.

Improvements in road safety as a result of a reduction in
congestion.

Financial impact for people in certain low income jobs and charities
delivering mobile services using motorised transport during
weekend charging hours. Impacts on charities providing services
in response to pandemics or epidemics would be mitigated by
retaining the temporary charities reimbursement.

Increased cost for those providing privately funded or voluntary
care and those accessing healthcare who are unable use public
transport or active travel. Particular impact on pregnant women
travelling into the CCZ for medical appointments. Partially
mitigated by NHS patient reimbursement (including for pregnant
women where they are vulnerable to infection during pandemics or
epidemics).

Short-term impact upon people with underlying health conditions
vulnerable to coronavirus travelling by public transport if they are
not eligible for reimbursements. Mitigated by retaining the
temporary NHS patient reimbursement criteria relating to those
vulnerable to infection during a time of pandemic or epidemic.

%




7.Next steps

We would like to hear your views on our proposals for changes to the Congestion Charge.
You can access the questionnaire for these proposals here.

In addition to this document you can read more about the expected impacts, both positive
and negative, of these proposals in the Integrated Impact Assessment.

TRANSPORT
FOR LONDON

EVERY JOURNEY MATTERS

MAYOR OF LONDON

Page 259



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 260



Agenda ltem 7

Committee(s)

Dated:

Planning & Transportation Committee

21 September 2021

Subject: Public
Business Plan 21/22 — Q1

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | N/A
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or | No
capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the | N/A

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of:
Juliemma McLoughlin

Report author:
Elisabeth Hannah

For Information

Summary

This report sets out the progress made during Q1 of the 2021/22 Departmental
Business Plan. This report continues to build on our new approach to share
high level data, awards and results as infographics (Appendix 1), you will find

further details and additional information at Appendix 2.

At the end of June 2021, the Department of Built Environment was £712k (24%)
underspent against the local risk budget to date of £3.021m, over all the
services managed by the Executive Director of Environment within the Planning
& Transportation Committee. Appendix 3 sets out the detailed position for the

individual services covered by this department.

Overall the Executive Director of Environment is currently forecasting a year end
overspend of £1.205m (11%) for her City Fund and Bridge House Estate services.

Recommendation
Members are asked to:

e Note the report and appendices.

Page 261



Main Report

Background

1.

The 2020/21 Business Plan of the Department of the Built Environment was
approved by this committee on 26 January 2021.

Current Position

2.

Appendix 1 shows our Infographic approach to presenting departmental high-
level data, awards and results. The work of the department continues to support
City of London’s Corporate Plan and key adopted strategies.

The end of Quarter 1 20/21 monitoring position for the Department of Built
Environment services within Planning & Transportation Committee is provided at
Appendix 2.

Key Updates

4.

Following the Grenfell Tower fire in 2017, Government published the Building
Safety Bill with a formal first reading in the House of Commons earlier this
summer. The Bill draws on the content of the draft Bill published the previous
year, it has also taken into account the Housing and Local Government Select
Committee pre-legislative enquiry to which Ministers also responded. The District
Surveyor will be preparing a briefing note for Members this autumn.

The City of London is currently consolidating all its parking contracts across six
lots, potentially with a single supplier. This will provide for efficiencies in contract
management and savings via economies of scale. The contract(s) should be
awarded by October 2021 with a go-live date of 1 April 2022, to allow for the
significant data migration exercise required. An update will be provided to
members in future progress reports.

Transport Strategy Updates

6.

The Pedestrian Priority Programme has been established with initial focus on
reviewing and potentially retaining Covid-19 transport measures. A gateway 3/4
report on the first phase, including Cheapside and Chancery Lane, will be going
to Streets and Walkways Committee (S&W) in October.

All Change at Bank consultation has been completed with over 4000 responses
analysed. A consultation report will be going to S&W in September.

The judicial review of Beech Street was dismissed, and work has restarted on
options for a scheme to replace the current experiment, which will conclude this
September.

Healthy Streets Programme is seeking to deliver improvements to the zebra
crossing on Golden Lane and to the junctions with Fann Street and Brackley
Street. It has been confirmed that TfL funding for these will not be available this
year, alternative funding sources are being ored.

Bage 562



Staff Development

10.This September the next phase of our Talent Management strategy begins with
the Institute of Leadership and Management Level 2 programme — Release Your
Potential. This programme will bring together twelve members of staff from
across the new Environment Department as well as colleagues from
Chamberlain’s team to build collaboration, networking and team skills. On
successful completion staff will have a nationally recognised certificate as well as
increased confidence and self-awareness.

11.Recruitment of two new Business Administration apprentices is underway to work
in the Development Management and Cleansing teams.

12.Congratulations to Isaac Taylor who successfully completed his Transport
Planning Technician Apprenticeship and who is now embarking on a five-year
Transport Planning degree apprenticeship.

Detailed Finance Information

13.The end of June 2021 monitoring position for the Department of Built
Environment services within Planning & Transportation Committee is provided at
Appendix 2. This shows a net underspend to date for the Department of £712k
(24%) against the overall local risk budget to date of £3.021m for 2021/22.

Actual to Date vs Profile to Date

600 .

400

200 E
o 0 - l"“ | * | 8
o r ]
© +# vy
@ /)

(200) i

;
(400) /
III..I‘
s
i F
(600) / /
(800)
O Q> *) ) & O &) O Q & 2
S @c,}\o \@ﬁ @ef\ & E é\o & e® (\Q\(\ ée}*\ & QQo . \bo?
QQ (@Q Q‘\é“(\ fb& é‘Q(b Q,'\Q’b S Q\'é\ ;\}OQ Q® o é,\% ‘b-%o <
S S T G A A S
~ R\ &© d{? o 0@ A ° & &
& @ & & >
& & «°
)
B profile to Date  # Actual to Date
Notes:

1. Graph shows the actual local risk net position against the profiled budget to date for each Division.
2. A position above the baseline shows overall net income.

3. A position below the baseline shows overall net expenditure.

4. DBE total actual to date net exp of £2.309nﬁ%&gﬂk268r the profiled budget to date of £3.021m.




14.Overall the Executive Director Environment is currently forecasting a year end

overspend position of £1.205m (11%) for her City Fund and Bridge House Estate
services.

Projected Outturn vs Latest Approved Budget

600
500
400
300
200
o
o 100 -
8 0 - — . ._,_-_\
(100)
(200)
(300)
(400)
(500) N
& @ & OO > O S} ) & o
o‘(éo & & e@é\ q}‘bo ,§‘§ ¢ & & & fz‘»\é’& & oQQo '«\6&
L & & L LT 0 F ST e
O R I A = S
AR\ & PN > K X @ e
N 2 o o O P S
& A& (\\Q Q%
& & <L
& 3
Notes:
1. Zero is the baseline latest approved budget for each Division of Service.
2. Graph shows projected outturn position against the latest approved budget.
3. Avariance above the baseline is favourable ie either additional income or reduced expenditure.
4. A variance below the baseline is unfavourable is additional expenditure or reduced income.
5. Overall the Department is forecasting an overspend of £1.205m at year end.

15.The reasons for the significant budget variations are detailed in Appendix 2,

which sets out a detailed financial analysis of each individual Division of Service
reporting to this Committee, for the services the Executive Director Environment
manages.

16.The better than budget position at the end of June 2021 is mainly due to staffing

savings due to vacancies held, and additional income from Planning Application
fees, Planning Performance Agreements, and the Thames Tideway SLA.

17.These underspends to date are partly offset by reductions in car parking income

due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19, under recovery of staff costs recharged
to capital projects due to reduced activity as a result of COVID-19 together with
current staff vacancies, and increased variable On-Street Parking enforcement
costs.

18.The Executive Director Environment anticipates that the underspends and

overspends to date set out in the preceding paragraphs will largely continue to
year end, but that the overall budget position will significantly worsen by year end
due mainly to the 12% Target Operating Model (TOM) savings still to be
delivered.

19.The Executive Director Environment is continuing to review all opportunities to

further reduce the projected oversqarage 264




Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Infographic
e Appendix 2 — Finance Report

Background Papers
DBE Business Plan 2021/22

Elisabeth Hannah
Business Manager

T: 07795 290028
E: elisabeth.hannah@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Jenny Pitcairn
Group Accountant

T:020 7332 1358
E: jenny.pitcairn@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 265


mailto:elisabeth.hannah@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:jenny.pitcairn@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 266



# FOIs & Complaints

Grade Breakdown

32

N N

Headcount

4/5 5/6

11/11

(80%) (66%) (100%)

FOI/EIR Responses within 20 working days Complaint Responses within 10 working days

(90% target)

HQ1-2019/20 Q1-2020/21 Q1l-2021/22

Building Control performance

100%
93%
97%

Applications
= processed
within 19 days

Applications
= processed
within 26 days

Completion

- certificates
issued within
10 days

CON29 property

searches returned

Ay
(g))

within

59 days

4G/5G shared
infrastructure
deployment
expected Q4 2022/23

Freight Delivery & Servicing

Feasability Study has #

been commissioned <o

® Pedestrian Priority Programme
established, Gateway 3/4 report to
go to S&W in October

97 % completion certificates

issued within 10 days

# Building Control Applications

F9 Grade

Female m Male

Gender Profile

Female | Male
42.22% | 57.78%

*May 2021

100% of engineering
structures inspected in
accordance with annual
inspection programme

Planning applications determined
within agreed timescales:

100% - Major

(Target 100%)

86 % - Minor

(Target 65%)

919 - Other

(Target 75%)

o
Shape

outstanding
environments

Department of
the Built Environment

L

Support a
thriving
economy

100% of SUDS consuitations
responded to within 21 working days

72 9 cycle parking

< m)() spaces secured

through planning applications

129 scaffold/hoarding applications
734 scaffold/hoarding dispensations

# Valid Planning Applications

Q1 Q2

N2018/19 m2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Q3

N 2018/19 m2019/20 2020/21 2021/22




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 268



Department of Built Environment Local Risk Revenue Budget - 1st April to 30th June 2021

(Expenditure and unfavourable variances are shown in brackets)

Appendix 2

Latest Budget to Date (Apr-Jun) Actual to Date (Apr-Jun) Forecast for the Year 2021/22
Approved
Budget Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net Variance LAB Forecast Over /
2021/22 Expenditure Income Expenditure | Expenditure Income Expenditure Apr-Jun Outturn (Under)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Notes
Planning & Transportation (City Fund)
Building Control (643) (431) 158 (273) (384) 251 (133) 140 (643) (518) 125 1
Structural Maintenance & Inspection (614) (93) 0 (93) (95) 30 (65) 28 (614) (493) 121 2
Highways (2,858) (949) 214 (735) (853) 187 (666) 69 (2,858) (2,986) (128) 3
Traffic Management 987 (246) 784 538 (238) 824 586 48 987 1,119 132 4
Off Street Parking 466 (1,035) 633 (402) (1,016) 464 (552) (150) 466 52 (414) 5
On Street Parking (3,669) (712) 5 (707) (649) 3 (646) 61 (3,669) (3,610) 59 6
Drains & Sewers (362) (144) 18 (126) (119) 13 (106) 20 (362) (353) 9
Recoverable Works 0 (150) 150 0 (153) 153 0 0 0 0 0
Contingency 1,523 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,523 0 (1,523) 7
Town Planning (2,929) (948) 164 (784) (820) 496 (324) 460 (2,929) (2,340) 589 8
Planning Obligations Monitoring 0 (46) 0 (46) (47) 0 47 (1) 0 0 0
Transportation Planning (582) (656) 537 (119) (549) 361 (188) (69) (582) (891) (309) 9
Road Safety (288) (80) (40) (120) (74) (40) (114) 6 (288) (276) 12
Street Scene (70) (82) 277 195 (82) 298 216 21 (70) (70) 0
Director & Support (1,228) (289) 0 (289) (216) 0 (216) 73 (1,228) (1,135) 93| 10
(10,267) (5,861) 2,900 (2,961) (5,295) 3,040 (2,255) 706 (10,267) (11,501) (1,234)
Planning & Transportation (BHE)
London Bridge (87) (18) 0 (18) (14) 0 (14) 4 (87) (69) 18
Blackfriars Bridge (60) (11) 0 (11) (20) 0 (10) 1 (60) (54) 6
S@thwark Bridge (52) (12) 0 (12) (11) 0 (11) 1 (52) 47 5
I\S@ennium Bridge (82) (29) 0 (29) (19) 0 (29) 0 (82) (82) 0
N (281) (60) 0 (60) (1) 0 (54) 6 (281) (252) 29
(o))
T%DTAL PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION CTTEE (10,548) (5,921) 2,900 (3,021) (5,296) 3,040 (2,309) 712 (10,548) (11,753) (1,205)

Notes:

0O ~NOOTL A~ WNPEP

. Building Control - projected underspend due to salary underspends.
. Structural Maintenance - projected underspend due to income from Thames Tideway SLA.

. Highways - the projected year end overspend is mainly due to a shortfall in capital project fees as a result of staff vacancies. This is partly offset by salary underspends due to staff vacancies and energy cost savings.
. Traffic Management - the projected year end underspend is mainly due to income from Hoarding & Scaffolding Licences, Road Closures and Thames Tideway SLA.
. Off Street Parking - projected overspend due to effects of COVID-19 on car park income. This has been partly offset by reduced variable management contract costs and energy costs.
. On Street Parking - projected underspend due to reduced salary and various variable contract costs.
. Contingency - projected overspend relates to P&T DBE TOM 12% savings £1.365m and vacancy factor to be achieved for 2021/22.
. Town Planning - projected underspend is mainly due to staff vacancies, additional income from Planning Application Fees and Planning Performance Agreements from large planning applications in the pipeline.

This is partly offset by increased advertising costs and savings to be applied.
9. Transportation Planning - projected overspend is mainly due to under recovery of staff costs from capital projects due to staff vacancies, maternity leave and incomplete timesheets. This is partly offset with salary

savings due to vacant posts.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 270



T/ ¢ abed

PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE — OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

Item

Date

Action/ Responsible Officer

Progress Update and Date to be
progressed/completed

18 March 2019
2 April 2019
30 April 2019
24 May 2019
18 June 2019
9 July 2019
30 July 2019
10 Sept 2019
1 Oct 2019
22 Oct 2019
5 Nov 2019
12 Dec 2019
28 Jan 2020
18 Feb 2020
6 March 2020
2 June 2020
23 June 2020
14 July 2020
8 Sept 2020
6 Oct 2020
27 Oct 2020
17 Nov 2020
15 Dec 2020
5 Jan 2021
26 Jan 2021
16 Feb 2021
24 Feb 2021
9 March 2021

Daylight/Sunlight — Alternative Guidelines

Chief Planning Officer and Development
Director

A Member argued that the Committee should
separate out the desire for Member training and the
desire for alternative guidelines on
daylight/sunlight,and requested that a report be
brought to Committee setting out how the City of
London Corporation might go about creating
alternative qguidelines, including timescales, if
Members were so minded and the legal implications
of this.

UPDATE (20 July 2021) — see action la)

g wa)| epuaby



2/ ¢ abed

30 March 2021

22 April 2021

12 May 2021

8 June 2021

29 June 2021

20 July 2021

7 Sept 2021

la) | 5 March 2020 Radiance Studies UPDATE (20 July 2021) - Officers confirmed that

30 March 2021 they would be requesting radiance assessments

22 April 2021 Chief Planning Officer and Development from applicants for all future applications where a

12 May 2021 Director BRE assessment had been submitted. Members

8 June 2021 were also informed that Officers continued to

29 June 2021 A Member referred to a training session that had taken | discuss the use of radiance assessments with

20 July 2021 place for the Committee earlier this morning, and in developers at the pre-application and application

7 Sept 2021 which a consultant had expressed a view that radiance | stage and were also in discussions with the BRE
_studles were the best way for Iaymen to assess the as to the emerging amendments to their
impact of developments on daylight where there was a | v jight/sunlight assessments. It was confirmed
genuine concern about this issue. '_I'he consultant felt that it was ultimately for the BRE to decide whether
that, in appropriate cases, the applicant should be . o
asked to provide a radiance study. radlance was a us&_—:'ful tc_JoI and to.endorsg it |_f they

saw fit through their review of national guidelines.
In view of this, the Member asked Officers to
undertake, when future applications were received in
which daylight will be an issue, to ask the applicant to To be completed: Further report to Committee
prepare a radiance study to be provided to this setting out/providing updates on these points
Committee so that Members could make an informed by Autumn 2021.
assessment of the issue.
2 18 June 2019 Construction Works UPDATE (7 September 2021) — Officers

9 July 2019
30 July 2019
10 Sept 2019
1 Oct 2019
22 Oct 2019
5 Nov 2019
12 Dec 2019
28 Jan 2020

Chief Planning Officer and Development
Director

A Member referred to the many construction sites
within her Ward that were causing
noise/disturbance issues. She asked if officers
could look at how this matter might be improved and

undertook to bring forward a report to the October
meeting of this Committee setting out work now
taking place to better coordinate forthcoming
construction work in the City and to liaise with
residents on these from an early stage,.




¢/ ¢ abed

18 Feb 2020
6 March 2020
2 June 2020
23 June 2020
14 July 2020
8 Sept 2020
6 Oct 2020
27 Oct 2020
17 Nov 2020
15 Dec 2020
5 Jan 2021
26 Jan 2021
16 Feb 2021
24 Feb 2021
9 March 2021
30 March 2021

more effectively controlled and questioned whether
any restrictions could be placed on construction
when applications were first approved/granted
consent.

The Chair reiterated that Members had also
requested, at the last meeting of this Committee,
that Officers consider what powers, if any, might be
used with regard to construction time periods and
how construction in any given area might ‘dovetail’.

To be completed: October 2021

22 April 2021

12 May 2021

8 June 2021

29 June 2021

20 July 2021

7 Sept 2021

6 March 2020 Member Training UPDATE: (17 November 2020): Members were of
2 June 2020 the view that more formal training should be

23 June 2020 Chief Planning Officer and Development offered by the Department to any newly appointed
14 July 2020 Director / Director of the Built Environment members of the Committee in line with the

8 Sept 2020 principles of the Planning Protocol.

6 Oct 2020 A Member questioned whether there would be

27 Oct 2020 further training provided on Daylight/Sunlight and To be completed: Training offering for new

17 Nov 2020 other relevant planning matters going forward. She | Members to be considered in 2021 with a view
15 Dec 2020 stated that she was aware that other local to implementing this for the new municipal

5 Jan 2021 authorities offered more extensive training and year.

26 Jan 2021 induction for Planning Committee members and

16 Feb 2021 also requested that those sitting on the Planning

24 Feb 2021




/¢ abed

9 March 2021
30 March 2021
22 April 2021
12 May 2021

8 June 2021
29 June 2021
20 July 2021

7 Sept 2021

Committee signed dispensations stating that they
had received adequate training.

The Chair asked that the relevant Chief Officers
consider how best to take this forward. He also
highlighted that the request from the Town Clerk to
all Ward Deputies seeking their nominations on to
Ward Committees states that Members of the
Planning & Transportation Committee are expected
to undertake regular training.

23 June 2020
14 July 2020
8 Sept 2020
6 Oct 2020
27 Oct 2020
17 Nov 2021
15 Dec 2021
5 Jan 2021
26 Jan 2021
16 Feb 2021
24 Feb 2021
9 March 2021
30 March 2021

Barbican and Golden Lane Conservation Area
SPD

Chief Planning Officer and Development
Director

A Member highlighted that a Conservation
Management Plan was still awaited for this area in
the form of a Supplementary Planning Document.
He added that this was originally approved by this
Committee in October 2018 and that he had
requested an update on progress on several
occasions since. He asked that this also now be

UPDATE (7 September 2021) - The Chief Planning
Officer and Development Director reported that a
significant number of consultation responses had been
received, some of which were very detailed and would
now require additional meetings with stakeholder. The
final document would then have to be presented to the
three Barbican Committees for input before being
finalised by this Committee.

The Chair stressed the need for and importance of
proper consultation on this piece of work.

T2May2021 | that twas not lostsigh of entrly. | 10 be completed: Amended draft document to

3 June 2021 Committee for final approval by February 2022.
29 June 2021

20 July 2021

7 Sept 2021

5 Jan 2021 Whole Life Carbon Guidelines UPDATE (30 March 2021): A Member noted that

26 Jan 2021 there were currently no training sessions planned

16 Feb 2021 Chief Planning Officer and Development for the Committee on the subject of Whole Life

24 Feb 2021 Director Carbon Impact and questioned whether Officers

9 March 2021
30 March 2021

could provide an update on this as she was aware
that it had been the subject of various discussions




22 April 2021
12 May 2021
8 June 2021
29 June 2021
20 July 2021
7 Sept 2021

A Member questioned whether consideration could
be given to developing guidance on Whole Life
Carbon that could be adopted as a planning advice
note in the same way that guidance on Thermal
Comfort had been developed.

outside of meetings. The Interim Chief Planning
Officer and Development Director confirmed that
this was a key focus for Officers and that they were
currently scoping the opportunities for training for
Members around this which would be led by
Kerstin Kane.

To be completed: Training to be offered by
June 2021.

G/ ¢ abed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 276



Agenda Item 9

Committee(s) Dated:
Planning and Transportation 215t September 2021
Subject: Public

Delegated decisions of the Chief Planning Officer and
Development Director

Report of: For Information
Chief Planning Officer and Development Director

Summary

Pursuant to the instructions of your Committee, | attach for your information a
list detailing development and advertisement applications determined by the
Chief Planning Officer and Development Director or those so authorised under
their delegated powers since my report to the last meeting.

In the time since the last report to Planning & Transportation Committee
Twenty Four (24) matters have been dealt with under delegated powers. Eight
(8) relate to works to Listed Buildings, One (1) application for Advertisement
Consent, Ten (10) relate to conditions of previously approved schemes, and
One (1) application for Non-Material Amendments.

Four (4) Full applications for development have been approved including One
(1) change of use and 600sg.m of created floorspace.

Breakdown of applications dealt
with under delegated powers

12
10
10
8
8
b
4

4

2 1 T

0 e

Planning

Applications
Listed Building

Consent
Advertisement

Consent
Submission of

details
Non-Material
Amendment

Page 277



Any questions of detail arising from these reports can be sent to
plans@cityoflondon.gov.uk.

Details of Decisions

Registered Address Proposal Decision & | Applicant/
Plan Number & Date of Agent name
Ward Decision
21/00468/LBC 271 Refurbishment and Approved Mr and Mrs Paul
Lauderdale | Internal alterations and Anne Swain
Aldersgate Tower including: (i) refitting | 02.09.2021
Barbican kitchen, utility room,
London bathroom and

EC2Y 8BY | shower/WC; (ii)
reconfiguration of
internal walls and
doors; (iii) installation
of false ceiling and
spot lights fitted
throughout; and (iv)
installation of opening
between kitchen and
living room wall and
(v) replacement
internal doors and
general redecoration

21/00140/MDC | Bevis Marks | Submission of details | Approved Bevis Marks
Synagogue | of a scheme external Synagogue
Aldgate Heneage material finishes and | 26.08.2021 | Heritage
Lane details of finishes to Foundation
London the ceiling roses
EC3A 5DQ | pursuant to condition
4 (a) and 4 (b) of
listed building
consent dated 7 June
2019 (19/00142/LBC)
and condition 5 (a) of
planning permission
dated 7 June 2019
(19/00141/FULL).
21/00173/MDC | 1-2 Details of the historic | Approved Bluebutton
Broadgate and present ground Properties UK
Bishopsgate London conditions including 26.08.2021 | Limited

EC2M 2QS | appraisal of the levels
of contamination
present pursuant to

Page 278



mailto:plans@cityoflondon.gov.uk

condition 2 of
planning permission
18/01065/FULEIA
dated 28/03/2019.

21/00275/PODC

Bishopsgate

150
Bishopsgate
London
EC2M 4AF

Submission of the
Second Interference
Survey pursuant to
Schedule 1
Paragraph 7.1 of the
Deed of Variation
dated 01 February
2017 (Planning
Application
Reference:
11/00905/FULL as
amended by
14/01151/FULL and
17/00623/FULL).

Approved

02.09.2021

UOL Group Ltd

21/00511/ADVT

Bishopsgate

1-2
Broadgate
London
EC2M 2QS

Installation of a non-
illuminated hoarding
around 1-2 Broadgate
site, for a maximum
period of 28 months.
Hoardings to be
varying height and
width, up to a
maximum 3.42m in
height, all comprising
vinyl application
applied to hoarding
boards.

Approved

02.09.2021

Bluebutton
Properties UK
Limited

21/00673/NMA

Bishopsgate

150
Bishopsgate
London
EC2M 4AF

Non-material
amendment under
section 96A of the
Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
(as amended) to
planning permission
21/00061/FULL,
dated 30/03/2021, to
alter the layout at
third floor level of
Devonshire House to
allow for use of part
(26m2) of staff
canteen space as a
Tasting Room

Approved

26.08.2021

Pan Pacific
Hotel Ltd

Page 279




associated with the
approved A3 Use
Class.

21/00095/MDC | 25 Cannon | Submission of details | Approved 25 Cannon
Street of: (i) the planting Street Limited
Bread Street London maintenance; (ii) 02.09.2021
EC4M 5TA | water maintenance;
(ii) facing materials
and samples of hard
landscaping, water
feature and glazing;
(iv) details of
interface between
materials; (v)
biodiversity
installations and
maintenance; and (vi)
details of slot gulley
drains.
21/00096/MDC | 25 Cannon | Submission of details | Approved 25 Cannon
Street of the lighting Street Limited
Bread Street London strategy pursuantto | 02.09.2021
EC4M 5TA | partial discharge of
condition 4 of
planning permission
19/01150/FULL dated
16th April 2020
21/00605/MDC | 1-14 Submission of details | Approved Aviva Life And
Liverpool of a Written Scheme Pensions UK
Broad Street Street And | of Investigation for 02.09.2021 | Ltd
11-12 Archaeological
Blomfield Evaluation pursuant
Street to condition 11 of
London planning permission
EC2M 7AW | dated 08/07/2021
(app. no.
19/00466/FULEIA).
21/00153/MDC | 3 Moorgate | Submission of Approved Intertrade
Place particulars and Associates Ltd
Coleman Street | London samples of the 02.09.2021
EC2R 6EA | materials to be used

on the proposed
balustrade and plant
screen pursuant to
condition 8 (a) of
planning permission

Page 280




20/00385/FULL dated
13 August 2020.

21/00581/MDC

Cordwainer

1 Bow Lane
London
EC4M 9EE

Submission of details
pursuant to
conditions 3 and 5 of
20/00968/FULL,
dated 16/02/2021 for
details of the rooftop
plant and submission
of post-installation
Acoustic Report.

Approved

26.08.2021

Avenuepoint Ltd

21/00416/LBC

Cripplegate

702 Gilbert
House
Barbican
London
EC2Y 8BD

Internal
refurbishments
including alterations
to several internal
walls and doors.
Installation of shallow
suspended ceilings
throughout.

Approved

02.09.2021

Mr and Mrs
Brett and
Monica Ellis

21/00469/LBC

Cripplegate

Great Arthur
House
Golden
Lane Estate
London

Application under
Section 19 of the
Planning (Listed
Buildings and
Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 (as
amended) to vary
conditions 2 and 4 of
application dated
06/10/2020 (app. ho.
20/00499/LBC) to
allow for minor
internal alterations
comprising the
replacement of an
internal door with a
new fire rated door,
minor variation to the
proposed flooring
detalls, and
submission of details
of new windows.

Approved

02.09.2021

City of London
Corporation

21/00466/MDC

Cripplegate

Great Arthur
House
Golden
Lane Estate
London

Submission of
particulars and
samples of new
windows pursuant to
condition 3(b) of

Approved

02.09.2021

City of London
Corporation

Page 281




planning permission
dated 06/10/2020

(app. no.
20/00498/FULL).
21/00572/LBC 409 Gilbert | Internal Approved Mr and Mrs
House refurbishments to the Nicholas and
Cripplegate Barbican kitchen including 26.08.2021 | Leona Briggs
London removal of the door,
EC2Y 8BD | associated frame and
fixed panels from the
rear opening between
the kitchen and living
room.
21/00582/LBC 704 Internal Approved Mr and Mrs
Willoughby | refurbishments Alastair and
Cripplegate House including: relocation 02.09.2021 | Katherine
Barbican of kitchen and Metcalf
London bathroom/WC; new
EC2Y 8BN | false ceiling to middle
floor hall/landing; and
alteration of existing
non-structural internal
walls, door openings
and associated
frames and doors
replaced and
increased in height.
21/00483/LBC Central Installation of new Approved City of London
Criminal mechanical plant Corporation
Farringdon Court Old equipment at roof 02.09.2021
Within Bailey level to the East
London Wing; mechanical
EC4M 7EH | and electrical
refurbishment of the
Sheriffs corridor at
first floor level in the
East Wing; and
general internal
refurbishment works.
21/00488/FULL | 33 Black Change of use of the | Approved E&A Securities
Friars Lane | lower ground floor
Farringdon London and ground floor from | 02.09.2021
Within EC4V 6EP | either office (Class

Bla) or non-
residential institution
(Class D1) or

Page 282




assembly and leisure
(Class D2) to a
flexible use for either
commercial, business
and service use
(Class E) or learning
and non-residential
institution use (Class
F1) or local
community use
(Class F2) (600sg.m)

21/00537/FULL | Central Replacement of Approved City of London
Criminal existing mechanical Corporation
Farringdon Court Old plant with new heat 02.09.2021
Within Bailey recovery condenser
London unit at roof level of
EC4M 7EH | East Wing of the
Central Criminal
Court.
21/00502/FULL | Middle External alterations to | Approved The Honourable
Temple Hall | the roof of Bench Society of The
Farringdon Middle Apartments on the 26.08.2021 | Middle Temple
Without Temple south side of Middle
Lane Temple Hall,
London including new double
EC4Y 9AT | glazed skylights
within lead roof bays
replacing single
glazed rooflights,
asphalt roof
coverings and
abutments with the
main hall;
replacement steel
access hatch; liquid
membrane roofing;
and replacement lead
hoppers and
downpipes.
21/00503/LBC Middle External alterations to | Approved The Honourable
Temple Hall | the roof of Bench Society of The
Farringdon Middle Apartments on the 26.08.2021 | Middle Temple
Without Temple south side of Middle
Lane Temple Hall,
London including introduction
EC4Y 9AT | of lead lined roofs

and gutters replacing

Page 283




single glazed
rooflights, asphalt
roof coverings and
abutments with the
main hall;
replacement steel
access hatch; liquid
membrane roofing;
and replacement lead
hoppers and

downpipes.
21/00277/PODC | Emperor Submission of the Approved Urbanest UK
House 35 draft Conservation Ltd
Tower Vine Street | and Management 26.08.2021
London Plan pursuant to
EC3N 2PX | Schedule 3
Paragraph 17.1.1 and
17.1.2 of the Section
106 Agreement dated
09 November 2017
(Planning Application
Reference:
17/00239/FULMAJ as
amended by
18/00193/FULMAJ).
21/00516/FULL | The Bank Works to replace the | Approved The Bank of
Of England | existing roof England
Walbrook Threadneed | membrane and 26.08.2021
le Street rooflights.
London
EC2R 8AH
21/00517/LBC The Bank Works to replace the | Approved The Bank of
Of England | existing roof England
Walbrook Threadneed | membrane and roof 26.08.2021
le Street lights.
London
EC2R 8AH

Page 284




Agenda ltem 10

Built Environment

Valid planning applications received by Department of the

Committee(s) Dated:
Planning and Transportation 215t September 2021
Subject: Public

Report of:

Chief Planning Officer and Development Director

For Information

Summary

Pursuant to the instructions of your Committee, | attach for your information a list detailing
development applications received by the Department of the Built Environment since my
report to the last meeting.

Any questions of detail arising from these reports can be sent to
plans@cityoflondon.gov.uk.

Details of Valid Applications

Application Address Proposal Date of Applicant/
Number & Ward Validation | Agent
name

21/00419/FULL London Wall | Change of use of part | 12/08/2021 | Amazon UK
Bassishaw Car Park, of an existing Services Ltd

London Wall, | underground carpark

London, form 41 car parking

EC2V 5DY spaces to a last mile

delivery hub. The
proposal will comprise
the provision of
electric cargo bike
storage spaces, the
provision of security
cages to store parcels,
welfare facilities and
an office area, an
amended vehicular
access route through
this section of the
carpark and use of the
existing layby for
reception of deliveries
by HGVs.

Page 285


mailto:plans@cityoflondon.gov.uk

21/00658/FULMAJ
Bishopsgate

7 Devonshire
Square,
London,
EC2M 4YH

Demolition of existing
7th floor of Building 7
to facilitate the
construction of three
additional floors
including a roof
terrace and rooftop
plat room, extensions
to the existing building
at ground floor level,
addition of balconies
to the southern and
eastern elevations and
works within the
basement to create
additional officer floor
space (GIA 3018m2);
the enclosing of
existing waste store
on Harrow Place and
widening the adjacent
passageway;
replacing the waste
store on Cutlers
Gardens with an
external seating and
amenity area, the
provision of new hard
and soft landscaping
in the Central
Courtyard and The
Avenue; the provision
of an accessible
terrace and works to
the Middlesex Street
plant rooms; new and
replacement
wayfinding signage;
the provision of public
art within the New
Street archway and
other associated
works.

23/08/2021

CG Cutlers
Gardens LP

21/00665/FULL
Bishopsgate

5 Wormwood
Street,
London,
EC2M 1RQ

Renovation of existing
shop front from
powder coated
aluminium to fully
glazed frontage and
associated signage.

25/08/2021

Love Food

Page 286




21/00691/FULL Eastcheap (i) Alterations to the 11/08/2021 | DEREIF
Bridge And Bridge | Court, 11 office entrance at 11 London
Without Philpot Lane, | Philpot Lane (ii) Eastcheap
London, replacement of Court S.a
EC3M 8BA windows (iii) R.l.
replacement finishes
to the existing terraced
areas at levels 4 and 5
and (iv) removal of a
horizontal metal fin
screen to the Level 5
terrace.
21/00685/FULL Faraday The removal of three 10/08/2021 | British
Castle Baynard Building, 136 - | crittal windows on the Telecom
144A Queen | first floor south PLC
Victoria elevation, and the
Street, installation of three
London, aluminium louvres, to
EC4V 4BU be fixed behind the
window frames.
21/00709/FULMAJ | 65 Fleet Application under 18/08/2021 | Whitefriars
Castle Baynard Street, Section 73 of the Limited
London, Town and Country
EC4Y 1HT Planning Act 1990 (as

amended) for the
variation of Condition
20 (floorspace of
uses) and Condition
21 (approved plans) of
planning permission
ref. 19/00058/FULMAJ
dated 6 April 2020, to
allow for alterations
including: to facades
at the ground and
lower ground floor to
Bouverie & Whitefriars
street and Ashentree
Court; to the design of
the North facade to
the courtyard from
ground to the fourth
floor; the provision of a
canopy over the
courtyard; to the Fleet
Street elevation and
colonnade; a new
entrance on Bouverie
Street; to the cycle
entrance; to the

Page 287




cladding at 6th floor; to
the lift overrun; and
other ancillary works.

21/00687/FULL 3 Moorgate Installation of external | 10/08/2021 | TP Bennett
Coleman Street Place, lighting to elevation LLP
London, Moorgate place.
EC2R 6EA
21/00526/FULL Livery Hall, Removal of a fixed 23/08/2021 | Pulsar
Farringdon Within | Apothecaries’ | window and Building
Hall, Black replacement with a Consultancy
Friars Lane, double door, removal
London, of adjacent part fixed
EC4V 6EJ window and door and

replacement with a
fixed window, north
Courtyard elevation,
relocation of a store
room door to west
courtyard elevation to
better suit DDA access
and relocation of crest
above Blackfriars
Lane entrance to
above existing Houses
entrance, Blackfriars
Lane

Page 288




Agenda Iltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 291



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 303



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 305



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 SNOW HILL POLICE STATION, 5 SNOW HILL LONDON EC1A 2DP
	Snow Hill - Background Papers
	0- Snow Hill - Background Papers
	1- 17 Dec 2020 Thomas Boden
	2 - 20 Dec 2020 Marcello Leonardi
	2.1 - 05 Feb 2021 Marcello Leonardi- Withdrawal of objection
	3- 21 Dec 2020 Alan Buxton
	4- 06 Jan 2021 Beaumont Business Centre Limited
	5- 06 Jan 2021 Richard Leyland
	7- 27 April 2021 Collineve Limited
	8- 20 April 2021 Beaumont Business Centre Limited
	9- 28 June 2021 Collineve Limited
	10- 28 June 2021 Beaumont Business Centre Limited
	11- 14 July 2021 Anstey Horne
	20/00932/FULMAJ) and the potential for impacts to the daylight and sunlight at the neighbouring 6 Snow Hill

	12- 22 August 2021 John James
	13- 23 August 2021 Carol Bernstein
	14- 31 August 2021 Beaumont Business Centre Limited
	15- 02 Sept 2021 Anstey Horne
	16- 21 Dec 2020 Historic England


	4a SNOW HILL POLICE STATION, 5 SNOW HILL LONDON EC1A 2DP - LISTED BUILDING CONSENT
	5 City Fund Highway Declaration: Millennium Bridge House EC4
	Item 5 - Appendix 1 (PTC) – Oversail Plan, Millennium Bridge House, EC4V - 030921
	Sheets and Views
	Committe Plan 01



	6 Congestion Charge Consultation
	Item 6 - Appendix 1_supplementary-information-congestion-charge
	1. Introduction
	Purpose
	Overview of proposed changes

	2. The Congestion Charge
	History of the scheme
	Initial impacts
	Congestion Charge in recent years
	Temporary changes to the Congestion Charge

	3. The case for new proposals
	The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS)
	Sustainable mode share
	Efficient movement in central London

	4. Development of proposals
	Transport scenarios and forecasts
	Option development

	5. The proposals and their impact on traffic and congestion
	£15 charge level
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	Monday to Friday charging hours 07:00-18:00
	Background and context
	What is proposed
	Impact of proposal

	Saturday and Sunday charging hours from 12:00 – 18:00
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	Bank Holiday charging hours from 12:00 – 18:00
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	No charge between Christmas Day and New Year’s Day bank holiday (inclusive)
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	90 per cent residents’ discount, open to new and existing residents
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	£17.50 pay ‘next day’ charge (up to three days after travel)
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	Removing the Auto Pay and Fleet Auto Pay discounts
	Background and context
	What is proposed?
	Impact of the proposal

	Retaining and adapting temporary reimbursement schemes
	Background and context
	What is proposed
	Impact of the proposal

	Removal of resident online and app payments for consecutive charging days
	Background and context
	What is proposed
	Impact of the proposal


	6. Summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment
	The wider impacts of the proposed package

	7. Next steps


	7 Business Plan 21/22 - Q1
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 Infograph
	Item 7 - Appendix 2 - P&T Business Plan Apr-Jun 2021-22

	8 Outstanding Actions
	9 Delegated decisions of the Chief Planning Officer and Development Director
	10 VALID PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT
	15 RESOLUTION OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
	16 Suicide Prevention in the City of London
	Item 16 - FINAL Appendix 1 Suicide Prevention Report
	Item 16 - FINAL Appendix 2 - Suicide Prevention Report
	Item 16 - FINAL Appendix 3 Summary of Suicide Prevention Action Plan




